ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, CALAVERAS, COLUSA Rura‘ couﬂtie Py MADERA, MARIPOSA, MODOG, MONO, NEVADA, PLUMAS,

DEL NORTE, EL DORADO, GLENN, IMPERIAL, INYO, LASSEN SIERRA, SISKIYOU, TEHAMA, TRINITY, TUOLUMNE

JTECHNICAL ADVISORY GROUP (TAG)

CHAIR — MICHAEL KOBSEFF, SISKIYOU COUNTY TAG CHAIR — KRISTINA MILLER, TEHAMA COUNTY

VICE CHAIR — BOB WILLIAMS, TEHAMA COUNTY TAG VICE CHAIR —JiM MCHARGUE, AMADOR COUNTY

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR — GREG NORTON PROGRAM MANAGER — MARY PITTO

Rural Counties’ Environmental Services Joint Powers Authority
Board of Directors’ & Technical Advisory Meeting

Agenda

1215 K Street, Suite 1650 Conference Room
Sacramento, CA

Thursday, August 20, 2015 9:00 a.m. — 3:00 p.m.

Only those tiems that indicate a specific time will be beard at the assigned time. All other itemss may be taken out of
Sequence 1o accommodate the Board, the siaff, and the general public. Indicated time allocations are for planning
purposes only and actual times will vary from those indicated.

I. Call to Order, Self-Introductions, and Determination of Quotum

II. Business Matters Page 1
Discussion and possible action related to the following:

Approval of Minutes from the Meeting of May 21, 2015 — Supervisor Kobseff, ESJPA Chait
(pp 3-8)

III. Public Comment
Any person may address the Board on any matter relevant to the Authority’s business, but not
otherwise on the agenda.

IV. Presentations Page 9

A. CalRecycle’s Revised Enforcement Policy and Jurisdictional Reviews — Ken Yee, Manager,
and Joe Rasmussen, Supetvisor, Materials Management and Local Assistance Program,
CalRecycle (pp 11-60; 30 minutes)

B, . Butte County’s Mandatory Commercial Recycling Ptogram (Ordinance) — Steve
Rodowick, Recycling Manager, Butte County (5p 67-64 minutes)

C. Report from CalRecycle — Joe Rasmussen, Supetvisot, Materials Management and Local
Assistance Program, CalRecycle (70 minutes)

V. Member County Concerns/Comments

VI. Legislative Update Supplemental Packet
(This item may be heard at any time during the meeting depending upon the
availability of staff) Discussion of Legislation - Paul Smith, RCRC Senior Legislative
Advocate (15 minutes)

1215 K STREET, SUITE 1650, SACRAMENTO, CA 95814 PHONE: 916447-4806 FAX: 9164471667
WEB: WWW.ESJPA.ORG



A. Complete Text of Selected Bills (Supplemental Packet pp 1-44)
B. Summary Listing of All Solid Waste Related Bills (Supplemental Packet pp 45-62)

VII. Special Guest Speaker: Message from CalRecycle’s New Director, Scott Smithline
(20 minutes)

VIII. Solid Waste/Regulatory Update Page 65
Discussion 2nd possible action related to the following:

A. CalRecycle
e Beverage Container Recycling Program Reform — Larry Sweetser (pp 67-69; 5 minntes)
e Compostable Materials, Transfer/Processing Regulations — Latty Sweetser (5 minutes)

B. Environmental Farming Act Science Advisory Panel
e Governor’s Healthy Soils Initiative - Latry Sweetser (5 minutes)

C. State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB)
o Storm Water Industrial General Permit — Larry Sweetser (pp 77-86; 5 minutes)
o Compost Waste Discharge Requirements — Larry Sweetser (pp 87-92; 5 minutes)
» Water Quality Fees for Fiscal Year 2015-16 — Larry Sweetser (pp 93-102; 5 minutes)

D. Extended Producer Responsibility

e CA Product Stewardship Council Update — Heidi Sanborn/Christine Flowers,
Product Stewardship Council (pp 103-114; 10 minutes)

e Carpet America Recovety Effort (CARE) Update — Lisa Mekis, CA Senior Associate,
CARE (pp 115-116; 5 minutes)

e PaintCare Update — Datia Kent, Northern California Regional Coordinatot
(5 minntes)

e Mattress Recycling Council Update — Rodney Clara, Mattress Recycling Council (p
117-124; 10 minutes) '

E. Grant Progtam Update — Latty Sweetser (page 125; 10 minutes)
F. Highlights of June/July/August Meetings — Larry Sweetser (pp 127-152; 5 mrinntes)

G. Other Regulatory Announcements/Issues of Interest
CalRecycle Program News (page 153)

SWANA and NW&RA Joint Advisory (page 154)
Cal EPA CUPA Newsletters (pp 155-166)

DTSC E-Waste Updates (pp 167-172)

IX. Agenda Suggestions, Member County Presentation Volunteetr, Workshop Topics for
Next ESJPA Board Meeting Scheduled Thursday, October 15, 2015.

X. Articles of Interest (pp 175-274) Page 173

XI. Adjournment

12:00 PM Lunch



1:00 PM

Technical Advisory Group Breakout Session

This afternoon session will be conducted as an informal workshop. The
following topics are intended for robust discussions. You are invited to stay
and encouraged to participate in this session.

* Water Board’s General Order for Compost Facilities — Leslie Graves, Senior Engineeting
Geologist, and Nadine Langley, Engineering Geologist, SWRCB

® New Industrial Storm Water Permit - Laurel Warddrip, Industrial & Construction Storm
Water Unit Chief, SWRCB

Meeting facilities are accessible fo persons with disabikities. By request, alternative agenda docusment formats are available o persons with
disabilities. To arrange an alternative agenda document format or to arrange aid or services to wiodzfy or accommodate persons with a
disability to participate in a pubkic meeting, please contact our offices af least 72 hauts prior to the meeting by calling (916) 4474806,

Agenda iterns will be taken as close as possible to the schednle indicated. Any member of the general public may comment on an agenda ftem
at the time of discussion. In order to facikitate public comment, please let staff know if you wosid Fke 1o Speak on a specific agenda item,

The final agenda for this meeting of the Board of Directors of the Rural Counties’ Environmental Services Joint Powers Authority will
be dufy posted at its offices: 1215 K Street, 16" Floor, Sacramento, California at least 72 hours prior to the meeting,

G\ESJPA Board of Directors\Meotings\Agenda\201 5\08201 5 final doc






Agenda Item I1

BUSINESS MATTERS






ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, CALAVERAS, COLUSA

Dit. NORTE, EL DORADO, GLENN, IMPERIAL, INYO, LASSEN

CHAIR ~ MICH/ EL KOBSEFF, SISKIYOU COUNTY
VICE CHAIR ~ MARY RAWSON, ALPINE COUNTY

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR — GREG NORTON

MADERA, MARIPOSA, MODOG, MONO, NEVADA, PLUMAS,

SIERRA, SISKIYOU, TEHAMA, TRINITY, TUCLUMNE

ECHNICAL ADVISORY GROUP (TAG)
TAG CHAIR = KRISTINA MILLER, TERAMA COUNTY
TAG ViCE CHAIR — JiIM MCHARGUE, AMADOR COUNTY

PROGRAM MAMAGER — MARY PITTO

Minutes of the Rural Counties’
Environmental Setvices Joint Powers Authority
Board of Directors Meeting
1215 K Street, Suite 1650, Sactamento, CA

Thursday May 21, 2015
MEMBERS REPRESENTED
Mary Rawson, Supervisor Alpine County
Jim McHargue, Ditector solid Waste Amador County
Bill Mannell, Solid Waste Manager Butte County
Steve Rodowick, Recycling Coordinator Butte County

Robert Pachinger, Deputy Public Works Director
Yvonne Van Zee, Program Coordinator

Mike Azevedo, Assistant Ditector

Greg Stanton, Dep. Director Environmental Mgt
William Brunet, Director of Public Works

Tom Valentino, Manager

Paula Wesch, Program Coordinator

Lorenzo Nadora, Engineer

Greg Ollivier, Solid Waste Manager

Bob Perrault, Director of Public Works

Arthur Boyd, Grant Recycling Coordinator
Kiistina Miller, Landfill Agency Manager

Karl Fisher, Supetvisor

Diane Radet, Deputy Director Solid Waste
Belinda Barlow, Solid Waste Specialist

STAFF IN ATTENGANCE:

Mary Pitto, ESJPA Program Manager

Paul Smith, Senior Legislative Advocate
Stact Heaton, Regulatory Affairs Advocate
Larty Sweetser, ESJPA Consultant

Maggie Chui, Government Affairs Assistant
Lisa McCargar, Chief Financial Officer
Elizabeth Jensen, Accountant

GUEST SPEAKERS:
David Mehl, ARB

Joe Rassmussen, CalRecycle
Heidi Sanbotn, CPSC

Calaveras County
Calaveras County
Colusa County

El Dorado County
Imperial County
Lassen County
Lassen County
Madera County
Mariposa County
Plumas County
Siskiyou County
Tehama County
Trinity County
Trinity County
Tuolumne County

RCRC Governmental Affairs
RCRC Governmental Affairs
RCRC Governmental Affairs
Sweetser and Associates, Inc.
RCRC Staff
RCRC Staff
RCRC Staff

Lisa Mekis, CARE
Daria Kent, PaintCate
Connie Cloak, C* Alternative Setvices

1215 K STREET, SUITE 1650 SACRAMENTO, CA 95814 FHONE: 91 6-447-4B06 FAX. 916447-1667
WEB: WWW.ESJPA.ORG

3



IIL.

II1.

IV.

OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE:

Jamie Cameron-Hatley, CalRecycle Keir Fury, CalRecycle
Will Carpenter, CalRecycle Daisy Kong, CalRecycle
John Duke, CalRecycle Susan Mueller, CalRecycle
Spencer Fine, CalRecycle

Jessica Diridoni, Shasta County Mark Urquhart, MJU P.E.

MEMBERS NOT REPRESENTED
Del Norte County, Glenn County, Inyo County, Modoc County, Mono County, Nevada County,
and Sierra County

Call to Ordet, Determination of Quorum and Self Introductions
Vice Chait Supetvisor Mary Rawson, Alpine County called the meeting to order at 9:04 am.
Self-introductions wete made. A quorum was determined at that time.

Business Matters

A. Approval of Minutes March 19, 2015. Vice Chair Supervisor Mary Rawson, Alpine
County called for the approval of the minutes from the March 19, 2015 Board of Directots
Mecting.

The motion to approve the minutes was made by Kristina Millet, Tehama County and was
seconded by Bill Mannell, Butte County. The motion passed unanimously.

B. Review and Approval of the 2014 Financial Statements

Lisa McCargar, Chief Financial Officer, presented the ESJPA Board of Directors with the
2014 Annual Audited Financial Statements and the Communications with those charged with
Govetnance for ESJPA. Ms. McCargar noted that ESJPA received an unmodified opinion
and had no adjusting journal entties.

Greg Ollivier, Mariposa County called for a motion to apptove the 2014 Audited Financial
Statements and the Communications for those charged with Governance. Supervisor Katl
Fisher, Trinity County, seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Public Comment: Connie Cloak, C2 Alternative Services, presented to the ESJPA Boatd of
Directots on the California’s Certified Collection Centet Program. Ms. Clog provided
infotmational binders regatding used oil collection centers and other useful resources.

Presentations

A. Short Lived Climate Pollutant Reduction Strategy - Dave Mehl, Air Resources Board (ARB)
reported on the agency’s early-May release of a concept paper desctibing ways to achieve the
State’s goals of emissions reduction. The State is developing a comprehensive strategy through a
public process which will, amongst other objectives, include plans fot reducing organic waste from
landfills. Mr. Mehl stated that ARB will be hosting upcoming workshops to encourage
stakeholder participation to help formulate a plan.

B. US HPA’s Webinar Pay-AS-You-Throw: Growth and Opportunity for Sustainable Materials
Management - Dana D’Souza and Dawn BeMent, SERA, Inc. presented to the ESJPA Board of
Directors via web conference on the Pay-As-You-Throw (PAYT) program. For communities who



VI.

participate in the PAYT program, the community charges their residents a fee for the collection of
municipal solid waste based on the amount they throw away versus through propetty taxes ot a
fixed fee. The PAYT program is intended to create a direct economic incentive while generating
less waste.

C. Portola Landfill Closute - Tom Valentino, Lassen Regional Solid Waste Management Agency,
repotted on the recent completion of Portola’s landfill closure. Prior to the construction project,
the Portola landfill was an unlined landfill with erosive soils that caused maintenance issues and
water contamination problems. Mz. Valentino repotted on the stages the agency has taken to
address the soil and contamination problems by utilizing the state-approved final landfill closure
system, known as ClosureTurf.

D. Report from CalRecycle - Joe Rasmussen, CalRecycle, reported on the recent release of the
2014 Annual Report, the Depattment’s updated website, and vatious grant opportunities., Mr.
Rasmussen provided a handout for this update, which is available on the ESJPA website.

Member County Concerns /Comments

Kdstina Miller, Tehama County, encouraged the ESJPA Board of Directors to attend the
Notthern California Household Hazardous Waste Information Exchange meeting to be held in
Tehama County on June 17.

Jessica Diridoni, Shasta County, inquired the ESJPA Board of Directors about what is being
done in other counties in regards to outreach efforts on mandatoty commercial recycling.

Legislative Update
Paul A. Smith, Senior Legislative Advocate, provided a brief update on the 2015-16 Legislative
Session of bills relating to solid waste.

Assembly Bill 45 (Mullin) continues to be a hot topic amongst the ESJPA Board of Directors.
AB 45 would impose new mandates that are extremely costly to administer for curbside
collection of household hazardous waste and setting diversion goals for counties. The bill is

currently in the Assembly Appropriations Committee and has been placed on the Suspense File.
RCRC/ESJPA is in strong opposition of AB 45.

Assembly Bill 864 (Williams) would grant the California Department of Resoutces Recycling and
Recovery (CalRecycle) the ability to issue temporary permits for a variety of solid waste '
faciliies. RCRC/ESJPA has been monitoring the bill, but not offered a formal position. The
bill passed the State Assembly with minimal opposition in the Assembly, and now awaits a
teview in the State Senate.

Assembly Bill 876 (McCatty) would requite local jutisdictions to report an estimate of the total
otganics processing capacity that will be needed over a fifteen-year period. The bill is currently
in the Assembly Appropriations Committee and has been placed on the Suspense File. M.
Smith mentions that AB 876 undermines certain provisions of last yeatr’s enactment of Assembly
Bill 1826 which RCRC wotked to have placed into the bill. RCRC/ ESJPA has sent letters in
opposition of this bill.



AB 901 (Gotdon) strengthens the requitement of solid waste operatots to provide data to
CalRecycle. The bill is currently in the Assembly Appropriations Committee and has been
placed on the Suspense File. RCRC/ES]JPA has sent letters in support of this bill.

AB 1045 (Irwin) addresses the diversion of organic waste from disposal. The bill is currently
awaiting action on the Assembly Floor. RCRC/ESJPA has not yet engaged on the issue, but
may take a position soon.

Much discussion was made on Assembly Bill 1063 (Williams), the “tipping fee” bill, which would
require CalRecycle to hold a public heating and wotkshop to develop a new solid waste
management fee. Mr. Smith speculates that AB 1063 could be amended and serve as a vehicle to
revise the solid waste disposal fee which is projected to be an inadequate funding source for
future state solid waste management needs. Both Paul Smith and Mary Pitto are actively
engaged in discussions on “tipping fees” and have made other stakeholders aware that if there is
going to be an increase in the tipping fee, the State Water Board fee should be incorporated into

the amount to avoid the cutrent billing system being used by the State Water Board.
RCRC/ESJPA has sent a letter in support of the bilk

Mt. Smith also discussed Assembly Bill 1159 (Gotdon), which would requite CalRecycle to enact
regulations to implement a product stewardship pilot program for two specific products —
sharps and household primary batteries. The bill is currently in the Assembly Appropriations
Committee and has been placed on the Suspense File. RCRC/ESJPA is in support of AB 1159.

Mary Pitto, ESJPA Program Manager, discussed Assembly Bill 1315 (Alejo) relating to
stormwater pollution prevention. RCRC/ESJPA along with a broad group of public agencies
and organizations has opposed the bill.

In addition, Mr. Smith mentioned that the Legislature’s approved 2015-16 State Budget is due by
June 15®. Ms. Pitto provided an update on cap-and-trade funds. In the January Budget, the
Governor put in $40 million dollars to CalRecycle for cap-and-trade monies. In the May Revise,
the funds were increased with an additional $52 million, bringing the total to $92 million. $2
million were set aside that will go to rural counties/disadvantages communities. Though, Ms.
Pitto stated the definition of “disadvantaged communities” is not practical as that eliminates 28
counties from qualifying for assistance. RCRC/ES]JPA continues to be engaged in the
discussions for solutions, such as partnering with other rural counties, and advocating for a
change in the “disadvantaged communities” determination.

VIII. Solid Waste/Regulatory Update
A. Air Resources Board

e Governor’s Executive Order B-30-15 and the 2030 Catbon Target - Ms. Pitto reported
that duting the Governor’s inaugural speech in January, the Govetnot stated that a new
2030 Catbon Target goal will be established. In late-April, the Govenor issued
Executive Order B-30-15 that would establish a Califotnia greenhouse gas reduction
target of 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030.

B. CalRecycle

e AB 2398 Carpet Product Stewardship — Ms. Pitto introduced Lisa Mekis as the new
California Senior Associate for rural county projects for CalRecycle’s stewardship



organization, the Carpet America Recovery Effort (CARE). Ms. Mekis reported that
several counties have recently joined the CARE program, including Napa, Matin,
Matiposa, and Mendocino Counties. Ms. Mekis informed the ESJPA Board of Directors
that thete will be a stakeholders meeting to be held on July 15%.

® Beverge Container Recycling Program Reform — Larry Sweetser, ESJPA Consultant,
provided information on recent CalRecycle cases where opetators were fined for double-
dipping on the California Redemption Value (CRV). In addition, Mt. Sweetser reported
on CalRecycle entering into pattnership with U.S. Labor Department to target labor law
violations at California recycling centers.

® Compostable Materials/ Transfer/Processing Regulations — Mr. Sweetser reported to the
ESJPA Boatd of Ditectors on the status of the proposed regulations. M. Sweetser
teported to the ESJPA Board of Directors on the status of proposed regulations. The
proposal will include new requirements on management of compostable green materials,
addition of food materials, and land application of organic materials. Currently, it is
unclear how the mandatory reporting would work on measuring for physical
contamination.

C. Department of Toxic Substance Control

® HHW Regulatory Work Group — Mr. Sweetser repotted on the Household Hazardous
Waste (HHW) regulatory working group that was formed to address HEHW regulatory
issues dealing with the Department of Toxic Substance Control (DTSC). The HHW
regulatory working group meets once a month.

® Covered Electronic Waste Recycling Program — Mt. Sweetser reported on the Covered
Electronic Waste Recycling Program. Mr. Sweetser that as the amount of cathode ray
tubes (CRT) at recycling sites continue to dectease, he expects an increase in the

consumer fee will be needed. CalRecycle is considering allowing certain CRT glass
waste to be landfilled

D. State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB)

® Storm Water Industrial General Permit — Mr. Sweetser provided a handout regarding the
Industrial General Permit for Storm Water Associated with Industrial Activities
compliance. The Storm Water Multiple Application and Report Tracking System
(SMARTS) program regulates stotm water discharges, and also is responsible for
maintenance of the program. Mr. Sweetser alerted the Board of Directors that counties
have until July 1* to comply.

® Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) permits - Ms. Pitto reported that while
there were concerns that MS4 permits were too presctiptive, the adopted permit
requirements were intended to provide flexibility. Ms. Pitto encouraged the Board of
Ditectors to review the curtent petmit.

¢ Compost Waste Discharge Requirements — Mr. Sweetser teported on proposed general
waste discharge requirements fot composting operations. These requirements will
impose design standards for different types of composting operations. Some smaller
compost operations will be unable to comply with these new standards and will likely
cease operations.

* Proposed Trash Amendments — Mr. Sweetser repotted that the proposed Final Trash
Amendment are set for approval by the SWRCB.



XI.

L. CA Product Stewardship Council Update - Heidi Sanbotn, Product Stewardship Council,
provided an update on the Council’s current projects, including the Refuel Your Fun
campaign. The Refuel Your Fun allows users of 1 lb. propane gas cylinders to choose
refillables cylinders to save money and the environment. Mariposa County tecently joined
the program, and Tuolumne and Tehama Counties are expected to join soon.

F. Paint Care Update - Datia Kent, PaintCare, reported on events they have successfully held in
rural communities. Thus far, PaintCare progtam has paint drop-off sites at over 700
Jocations throughout California. Ms. Kent mentioned that PaintCate is continuously looking
to hold 1-day events at undersetved areas and rural communities, and encouraged
RCRC/ESJPA-member counties to see if their county qualifies for the event.

G. Mattress Recycling Council Update — Rodney Clara, Mattress recycling Council, provided an
updated on the Proposed Regulations for the Used Mattress Recovery and Recycling
Progtam. Mr. Clara stated that their mattress recycling program in the State of Connecticut
launched on May 17 and is receiving a positive response. M. Clara provided an update that
the Council is seeking request for proposals to tecyclets. Lastly, the Council has recently

launched a website (http://www.byebyemattress.com) for consumer education.

H. Grant Report Update — Sweetser reported:

e The Beverage Container City/County Payment Program funding Request Due Date is
June 23, 2015. There is now a requirement to report expenditures

e The new Greenhouse Gas Reduction Loan Program Application Due Date is June 30,
2015. CalRecycle has proposed future funding that will include a rural allocation.
Member counties should consider application for these funds.

e The Oil Payment Program, sixth cycle (OPP) applications are due June 30, 2015

I. Highlights of April/May Meetings. — Sweetser reported that most of the highlights were
covered under the Joe Rassmussen’s repott.

J. Other Regulatory Announcements/Issues of Interest. Mary Pitto directed Members to the
Board packet.

Agenda Suggestions, Member County Presentation Volunteet, Workshop Topics for
Next ESJPA Board Meeting Scheduled Thursday, August 20, 2015

Articles of Interest
Mary Pitto directed Members to the Board packet.

Adjournment- 12:25 pm

Respectfully submitted,
Maggie Chui, Governmental Affairs Assistant

Technical Advisory Group Breakout Session
Kaoru Cruz, Supervisor, Kyle Pogue, and Christopher Bria, of the Local Assistance and Market

Development Branch, CalRecycle provided a review of the new Mandatory Commetcial Organics
Recycling and AB 1594, green waste as ADC legislation.



Agenda Item IV

PRESENTATIONS



10



i apkoeyics

sjuauwtalinbal uoisianip

dunsaw jou pue sweiBosd Sunuawa|dw 10N ¢

syuawaJinbal uoisiaAlp Suijeaw

pue swelsold jo Jaquunu jlews Sunuawsa|dw) g

SiuawaJlinbal uoisianlp Sunnasw
1ou Inqg sweidoud j|le/swos Suiuawajdwy -z
S1UawalIinbal UoIsIaAIp

8uieaw pue swesdoud 3sow Jo (je Sunuawsdw) T

V6ST ‘SHOIN ‘4D S3)e10dI0dU) UOISIAGI SIY L

Juswa|dwi 03 Buijley o} pasodwi ag Aew 1243 sanjeuad Jo aunlonig

sisAjeue Joj BlIBT)
pajuaws|dw) Aj:enbape

9TOT °S 03 3np OTOZ Ul pasiasl 1seT «

S3[JA3 JeaA-p pue JedA-z7
SHSIA BUS |eNUUY

uoitejuswarduw wesdosd uo snao4

2Juef|duiod Jo aAjeullLId)Sp 10U 31kl |esodstp euded Jad

21kl pue 108.ie) |esodsip ejrdes-iad

-

=

r

11



& ophanyel
SDv4 payipow/payiie|d osly

jJuawaJinbau

ssauisng -- %00T 3(9A294 01 JUBWBINbYL palesslaY «
Ajjenuue paanbal

— Suio3UOW ‘UoIleINP3 ‘Yoraulno asdueyd Jou pig <
3w jeyl 1e ase|d ul pjoysaiyl <

asoy) 0] satjdde -- s3ssaUISNG Lo SJuBWRIINDAI PayLIe)

@mlays

65T SUHOW YOI 3uiloaw jJou Joj sal}jeusd

syuaLalinbal sy Jo/pue YD Juswadul

Aja1enbape o} ain|ie} 40} J3pI0 ddueldwo) Juinss) Joy sdals < D

m.toaw.\_ _msccm ul :O_“_.NE‘_O*:_ wc_toamh .._OL. mm“_.mﬁ ang « J3jhey ‘spodal jenuue “swiesdold SulAjlian pue siisiA 311 [enuue - m_u>u M3IIABL U]
3O J2pun pamoj(e suondwaxa 1eany JuizAjEUR puR SUIPUEISISPUN JO) S3WBPING - 35282 Jou ‘Bandudsaid 10N

ajed |esodsip epded uad Jo ssa|plesal

JUDWID|ALWL 03 3w} 3xe) ||Im ‘S1aymAsa
ssaippe 0] suejd pue siajLieq Inoqe oyul apiacad 0} pasinkial Os|e SUOIDIPSLING

A21[0d JUBLLIBILOMUT Ul PB]1EISP SISA|BUE MBIASS 4O} BLISILID
Ay 51 23Enbape st jeym pue wesSoad sa3N3IISU0D JBYM

mu.mm.sn_c _M._.u._mEEOU
10y swel30.d saey SUOLIDIPSLIN Jama) asnedaq YW UBY3L JBpJEY S| BUOIN

SsWAIINbaY

O11BUDIS UYoBD 10} 2LIDNID pue suonsanb $3quasaq

HeE({ 1s

12



Countywide Integrated Waste Management
Plan (CIWMP) Enforcement Policy Part Il;

Failure to Implement a SRRE and HHWE,
Including Failure to Implement MCR,
MORe, and AB 1594

Updated June 11, 2015

13



Table of Contents

BACKGROUND . ...t e e es e esessssses s ese s s ena s rarsa s 164 a0 RS RSRT S S e 1
WHAT 1S IMPLEMENTATIONT ...t erseetrmesreserersrsstsssssssssnsast s s smsss s s casssessissssses 1
SRRE IMPLEMENTATION ..ottt eereetsesssarassssssss st asssastssss o nsssas s sss s st asasssessassssns 2
Criteria for SRRE IMplementation ... 2

. Implementing All or Most Programs and Meeting Diversion Requirements........ 3

Il. Implementing Some/All Programs, But Not Meeting Diversion Requirements..3

[1I. Implementing a Small Number of Programs and Meeting the Diversion

REGUITEITIENES.......ccvoecoceaniireres iR SRR e 9

IV. Not Implementing Programs and Not Meeting Diversion Requirements. ......... i1
Additional Considerations for SRRE Implementation...........oooiimiinnn. 15
RUFAL JUASAICHONS ....c.cveveeeeieeeeeerecee e sen s st sssnsas st s sn s 16

Approved Petition for RedUCHON ... 16

T2 0 1= 11 L= ST U UV O OO PSRRI P S SRS ILY 17

REQIONal AGENCIES ....cuuururrienrssrsresceonecrissessimsss s st 17
TrANSFOMNIALION ... oo crereerree s eee et cr s e st e 18
MANDATORY COMMERCIAL RECYCLING IMPLEMENTATION ...cccorvriniinninnnes 18
MANDATORY COMMERCIAL ORGANICS RECYCLING IMPLEMENTATION............... 23
HHWE IMPLEMENTATION .....oivieeeteeemesssvirnssissaserersssss st s s sasss s ssssa st s s thsasness 31
Criteria for HHWE Implementation ... 31
Programs IMplemented..........v i 31

Programs Not Implemented..........o e 32
DETERMINATION OF SRRE AND HHWE IMPLEMENTATION.......occooviiimiininsninisennes 32
ANNUA! REPOIS .....cvoveiiecemmmisccererstas s e s b 33
SRRE INFOMMAION ..coveviriirereseeeis et ssaaes s ess s ssss s cees 33

HHWE FOMMEtION ...cvovieeeeeeeriersriee it srass s sasa s sassssssesas 33

CalRecycle Jurisdiction ReVIEW CYCIES ...t 33

14



Compliance MEaSUTEMENLS...........ccceceueececeiecceerecsesesseseseesenes e sesssssssessesssessss s eees 34

Criteria for Measuring Diversion ReqUIrements ..........coooeeovoveoeeeeeeeemoeeeeeess oo 34
Not Meeting Diversion ReqUIFEMENES ..................o.cooeoeeeeeeeeeeeesceeeeee oo 36
ENFORCEMENT ..ottt ves ettt ssssstsssnsssssese s seseseseseaseaaees s ssa s eee oo 36
Steps Toward Issuance of 2 COMPHANCE OFAEF ........o...eceeeeeeeeerer e ses 36
Statutory Relief ConSIdErations ................cooouieeeconeneeeeseesees e seee e eeeees s oo 38
Compliance Order and SChedUIE ..o eeeeceeeeeeeeeeeee oo, 39
PENAIY STUCHUIE ..ottt sesese s sessesese e sensebesssess e se e et seses 39
REMOVAEI Of PENGILES.............coocovrrceernieecenie s seneeessessessssstesssssssess s 40
CONCLUSION..........oocsrtminreerccreritseeseensersssssssas et sssssseessssmessssses s sessssessseessessess s 40
APPENDICES ...ttt svisemanse et sas e s ab s s s sees et esaes s e e 41
APPeNdixX Az DEfINIIONS .........c.c o essiae e setssceessssessssssmsrss sossses s 41
Appendix B: Relevant Waste Reduction Statutes...............ooooveeoeeeooeveooeee, 44

15



BACKGROUND

On November 17, 1993, CalRecycle's predecessor, the California Integrated Waste
Management Board (Board) approved Part 1 of the Staff Analysis, CIWMP
Enforcement report. Part 1, entitled "Adequacy of CIWMP and Elements," outlines the
procedures CalRecycle staff will use to determine the adequacy of Countywide
integrated Waste Management Plans (CIWMPs), Source Reduction and Recycling
Elements (SRREs), Household Hazardous Waste Elements (HHWES), Nondisposal
Facility Elements (NDFEs), and Countywide Siting Elements (CSEs).

This report constitutes Part 2 of the CIWMP Enforcement report. CalRecycle must
determine, for each jurisdiction, whether the SRREs and HHWESs have been
implemented. Annual reports submitted by the jurisdictions will be used, in
combination with the Jurisdiction Review process and other information, such as
information from site visits, data from haulers, etc., to determine implementation. This
report recommends criteria CalRecycle will use during the Jurisdiction Review to
determine whether local jurisdiction SRREs, HHWEs, Mandatory Commercial
Recycling (MCR), Mandatory Organics Recycling (MORe) and any required AB 1594
Greenwaste/ADC programs have been implemented, mechanisms CalRecycle and
local jurisdictions will use to achieve compliance with implementation mandates, and
the structure of penalties that may be imposed on jurisdictions failing to implement their
SRREs, HHWES, andfor Mandatory Commercial Recycling, Mandatory Organics
Recycling and any required AB 1594 Greenwaste/ADC programs

WHAT IS IMPLEMENTATION?

Full implementation, for the purposes of this report, includes executing the programs
as described in the SRRE and HHWE and as required for MCR, Mandatory Organics
Recycling and any required AB 1594 Greenwaste/ADC programs, using the
jurisdiction’s annual per capita disposal rate and, more importantly pursuant to SB
1016, diversion programs implementation as factors in determining compliance with
the diversion requirements. The per capita disposal rate is not determinative of
compliance. Criteria for determining the level of SRRE, HHWE, MCR, Mandatory
Organics Recycling and AB 1594 Greenwaste/ADC, implementation are outlined
separately.

CalRecycle staff will refer to the various components of the SRRE and HHWE,
information from a jurisdiction's annual report, CalRecycle's Jurisdiction Review, and
other sources to determine how fully a jurisdiction has implemented its SRRE, HHWE,
MCR, Mandatory Organics Recycling and AB 1594 Greenwaste/ADC. (Also see
“Determination of SRRE and HHW Implementation” section.)

16



SRRE IMPLEMENTATION

Criteria for SRRE Implementation

Each SRRE outlines the source reduction, recycling, composting, and public education
and information programs a jurisdiction will implement. Additionally, the SRRE
identifies funding mechanisms and monitoring for these programs, and describes their
integration into a comprehensive waste diversion program. A fully implemented SRRE
means a jurisdiction is both carrying out the selected programs and achieving the
diversion requirements.

Staff has identified four scenarios to use in determining SRRE implementation:
. Implementing all or most programs, and meeting diversion requirements.
[l. Implementing some/all programs, but not meeting diversion requirements.
1. Implementing a small number of programs and meeting diversion requirements.
IV. Not implementing programs and not meeting diversion requirements.

To determine the level of SRRE implementation, staff use annual reports submitted by
local jurisdictions, CalRecycle's Jurisdiction Review process, and provide technical
assistance, when requested. This applies to all four scenarios.

Staff uses the following criteria to determine the extent to which a jurisdiction has
implemented, or shown a good faith effort to implement, their selected diversion
programs,

These criteria reflect the four scenarios above, and may not be all-inclusive. These
criteria are provided to serve as an example. The criteria are not prescriptive and they
are not a "checklist". They indicate the issues that will be examined when CalRecycle
performs its Jurisdiction Reviews. There is no intent in this document to mandate that
each criterion be adhered to, and that, if not, that a local jurisdiction would be in a
"failure” situation.

It is not CalRecycle's intention to micro-manage local jurisdiction's decisions on which
diversion programs have been identified and selected for implementation. CalRecycle
will attempt, with the identified criteria, to assist local jurisdictions who may need help
in identifying why implementation of diversion programs is failing to achieve the results
expected, or is failing to meet the diversion requirements,

Note: In scenarios Il and IV, criteria for evaluating AB 1594 Greenwaste/ADC are
addressed. AB 1594 is included here because implementation of its provisions is
directly tied to measurement of per-capita disposal. In contrast, implementation of

17



MCR and MORe is not linked to per-capital disposal and hence is addressed later in
this document.

|, implementing All or Most Programs and Meeting Diversion Requirements.

Jurisdictions implementing all or most of their diversion programs and achieving or
below their 50% equivalent per capita disposal target are not subject to fines by
CalRecycle. These jurisdictions will be subject to future CalRecycle review at least
once every four years.

Jurisdictions will be required to submit information to CalRecycle stating why
diversion programs identified in SRREs have not been implemented. Staff
recommends using the following criteria to determine if a jurisdiction fits this scenario.

+ What is the measured annual per capita disposal rate?

« What programs have been implemented, or what existing programs have been
continued or expanded, to achieve the diversion requirements?

« Will these programs maintain the desired level of diversion?

« Are contingency programs selected and available to implement, if necessary,
to maintain diversion levels?

IIl. Implementing Some/All Programs, But Not Meeting Diversion Requirements.

If a jurisdiction is implementing some or all selected diversion programs and yet not
achieving its 50% equivalent per capita disposal target, it may be that the SRRE is in
need of revision.

Staff investigates the extent to which a jurisdiction has tried to meet the diversion
requirements through its selected diversion programs, and the reasons it has failed to
implement some or all of those diversion programs. Staff may recommend that a
jurisdiction has either made a good faith effort to implement its SRRE, or should be put
on a compliance schedule. In the case of a rural jurisdiction, CalRecycle could instead
recommend the jurisdiction apply for a diversion rate reduction as allowed in PRC
Section 41787. If a compliance schedule was ordered and the jurisdiction failed to
meet the requirements of the order, CalRecycle could then consider levying an
administrative fine against the jurisdiction. A fine, if determined to be appropriate,
would be decided by CalRecycle on a case-by-case basis, and could be assessed at up
to $10,000 per day.

Staff uses the following criteria to assess the specific conditions that may have
prevented a jurisdiction from meeting its 50% equivalent per capita disposal target, and
whether a good faith effort was made by the jurisdiction to meet the requirements.

« Have some/all selected diversion programs been implemented? If yes, then
what may be the cause for not reaching the requirements? For example:

3

18



* What is the measured annual per capita disposal rate?

* Does the jurisdiction have a CalRecycle approved reduced diversion
requirement?

> Were waste quantification problems encountered when calculating
achievement of the 50% equivalent per capita disposal target?

* Have participation and program effectiveness been low?

» Has the jurisdiction utilized public education and information programs to
promote its diversion programs?

» Has the jurisdiction targeted the appropriate sector
(commercial/residential/industrial) in its public education and information
campaign?

> Is the program accessible to the targeted audience? Have language
barriers been addressed?

» Have incentives for participation been used (e.g., cash for recyclables,
free/reduced cost compost bins for workshop attendance, etc.)?

» What other program alternatives have been used to promote waste
prevention and reduction programs (e.g., increased tip fees, local land
use restrictions, increased business fees, etc.)?

»> Has the jurisdiction utilized CalRecycle's free public information materials?
* Have markets for diverted materials continually remained low or poor?
» Has the jurisdiction investigated local and regional marketing options?

» Has the jurisdiction investigated development opportunities with the private
sector?

> Has the jurisdiction worked with CalRecycle's market development program?

» Has the jurisdiction applied to CalRecycle’s Recycling Market
Development Zone (RMDZ) program?

* Were all significant waste materials selected in the SRRE targeted in the
implemented programs?

> Have conditions changed to make these materials less targetable and/or
marketable?

» Have waste generation characteristics changed such that selected programs
would no longer be feasible or appropriate?

19



e Were sufficient funds available to implement programs?

» Has the jurisdiction investigated grants and loans available from CalRecycle,
the U. S. Environmental Protection Agency (US EPA), etc.?

> Has the jurisdiction investigated regional approaches to programs and
expenses?

> Has the jurisdiction investigated all financial options selected in the SRRE,
including contingency funding?

e Have time frames projected in the SRRE been met?
» What factors have affected these time frames?

» Will time frames be adjusted to continue program implementation?

« Were local diversion programs implemented but the jurisdiction had disposal
increases due to a regional diversion facility generating and disposing significant
amounts of residue within the "host" jurisdiction's borders?

e Have other state-mandated programs affected solid waste disposal tonnage
(such as a doubling of street sweeping activities due to Clean Water Act
requirements for certain cities)?

» What other problems has the jurisdiction encountered in program implementation?

e Have all selected diversion programs been implemented? If no, then what may be
the reason for not implementing the programs? For example:

» What diversion programs were not implemented, and why?

» What selected diversion facilities (e.g., material recovery, composting) are not
yet online?

» Did financing options for a selected diversion facility (e.g., material
recovery, composting) fail?

» Did a jurisdiction face unavoidable regulatory delays? If so, explain the
regulatory delays and how they affected the project time lines.

» Did a jurisdiction elect to recover a certain type of material (e.g., cardboard),
but the haulerfoperator will not cooperate and recover the waste type on
behalf of the jurisdiction? Is the failure to recover the material(s) due to
logistical problems?

« Was insufficient staff available to implement programs?

» Has the jurisdiction investigated volunteer or internship programs?

20



» Has the jurisdiction investigated regional approaches to programs,
expenses, and staffing?

» Was there a high turnover in staff?
> Did the jurisdiction allot reasonable resources?
» Have time frames projected for program implementation in the SRRE been met?
> What factors have affected these time frames?
> Have time frames been adjusted to continue program implementation?

» Have waste generation characteristics changed (e.g., a military base closure, or a
manufacturing/industry relocated or closed), such that selected programs would no
longer be feasible or appropriate?

* Have contingency diversion programs been implemented to reach the
diversion requirements?

> If contingency programs are significant in scale, has that caused a delay?

* Have existing contractual or legal issues prohibited a jurisdiction from
implementing programs?

» Can the jurisdiction amend franchise agreements? If not, when do the
agreements expire?

» Can the jurisdiction prepare a request for proposal(s) for the implementation of
programs and facilities?

* What technical assistance can CalRecycle provide to assist local
jurisdictions in implementing diversion programs?

AB 1594

In September 2014, Govemnor Brown signed AB 1594, Williams (Chapter 719, Statutes
of 2014), mandating that as of January 1, 2020, the use of green material as alternative
daily cover (ADC) does not constitute diversion through recycling and will be considered
disposal in terms of measuring a jurisdiction’s annual 50 percent per capita disposal rate.

Beginning with the 2020 Electronic Annual Report (due August 1, 2021), a jurisdiction
that, as a result of not being able to claim diversion for the use of green material as ADC,
does not meet its 50 percent per capita disposal target, must report additional
information to CalRecycle about how it will address diverting greenwaste that was being
sent as ADC. Staff will investigate the extent to which a jurisdiction has tried to meet the
diversion requirements through its efforts to find other means of diverting greenwaste.

21



Staff will use the following criteria to assess the specific conditions that may have
prevented a jurisdiction from meeting its 50% equivalent per capita disposal target, as
a result of not being able to claim diversion for the use of green material as ADC, and
whether a good faith effort was made by the jurisdiction to meet the diversion
requirements.

« Did the jurisdiction commencing with the 2017 Electronic Annual Report {due August
1, 2018) include information on plans to address the diversion requirements by
diverting green material that is being used as ADC?

o Were the plans reasonable?

o If the jurisdiction didn’t include plans commencing with the 2017 EAR on how to
divert green materials, in 2020 or any time thereafter if the jurisdiction is not
meeting its target did it address how it is diverting green material that is being
used as ADC?

« Did the jurisdiction commencing with the 2020 Electronic Annual Report (due August,
1, 2021) provide the foliowing:
o Were the bariers to recycling green material identified and addressed?

« Are there adequate existing facilities to process greenwaste within a
reasonable vicinity?

» Are there existing solid waste and organic waste recycling facilities
within the jurisdiction that may be suitable for potential expansion or
colocation of organic waste processing or recycling facilities?

= What time frame could this be accomplished?

= Are there efforts that are underway to develop new private or public
regional organic waste recycling facilities and the anticipated timeline for
completion of those facilities?

= Are there other nondisposal opportunities or markets for greenwaste
(e.g., on-site composting, etc.)?

» Are there appropriate zoning and permit requirements for the location of
new or expanded organic waste recycling facilities to help with siting?

= Are there local incentives available, if any, for developing new organic
waste recycling facilities within the jurisdiction?

= Have markets for recycled organic materials continually remained low or
poor?

« Has the jurisdiction investigated local and regional marketing
options?

« Has the jurisdiction investigated organics recycling opportunities
with the private sector, e.g., partnering to site and build organics
recycling facilities, collaborating with large commercial generators

22



to manage waste on-site, such as smali scale anaerobic digestion
facilities, etc.?

Are sufficient funds available to implement programs?

Has the jurisdiction investigated funding resources, e.g.,
CalRecycle grants/loans, Treasurer's Office loans and bonds,
CA Energy Commission grants, etc.?

Has the jurisdiction investigated regional approaches to programs
and expenses?

What selected organics recycling facilities are not yet on-line?

Did financing options for a selected diversion facility fail?

Did the facilities face unavoidable regulatory delays? If so, did
the jurisdiction explain the regulatory delays and how they
affected the project time lines?

Did a jurisdiction elect to recover a certain type of material (e.g.,
food waste), but the hauler/operator will not cooperate and
recover the waste type on behalf of the jurisdiction? Is the
failure to recover the material(s) due to logistical problems?

* Is sufficient staff available to implement programs?

Has the jurisdiction investigated volunteer or intemship programs?
Has the j'urisdiction collaborated with the hauler(s)?

Has the jurisdiction investigated regional approaches to
programs, expenses, and staffing?

= Are there existing contractual or legal issues that need to be
addressed that are a barrier to diverting greenwaste that was
being used as ADC?

* Can the jurisdiction amend franchise agreements,

contracts, or permits? If not, when do the agreements
expire?

Can the jurisdiction prepare a request for proposal(s) for the
implementation of programs and facilities?

» What other considerations, including but not limited to market
development obstacles, population density, waste generation rates,
dominant waste generation categories and types, and geographic,

23



demographic and economic factors, have affected the jurisdiction's
ability to implement its organics recycling program?

o If sufficient capacity at facilities that recycle green material is not expected to be
operational before the jurisdiction’s next review pursuant to Section 41825, was
a reasonable plan to address those barriers that are within the control of the
local jurisdiction provided?
= Did the jurisdiction identify all barriers under its control?
= Did the jurisdiction provide sufficient explanation and supporting
information to explain how it would address this, or why it still cannot do
s0? l.e., is the plan reasonable in light of the barriers?
» Did it provide a timeline for addressing the barriers?

l1I. Implementing a Small Number of Programs and Meeting the Diversion
Requirements.

This Scenario focuses on the level of SRRE implementation, and reinforces the
statutory requirement for SRRE (i.e., program) implementation in addition to meeting
the 50% equivalent per capita disposal target. Meeting the per capita disposal target is
a factor in evaluating performance but is not determinative of compliance. This
scenario will allow CaiRecycle to make a case-by-case determination of whether a
jurisdiction has made a good faith effort to implement its SRRE, or whether it should be
issued a compliance order. Jurisdictions will be required to submit information to
CalRecycle stating why diversion programs selected for implementation in the SRRE
have not been implemented.

Staff uses the following criteria to determine if a jurisdiction fits this Scenario:
e What is the measured annual per capita disposal rate?

« What programs have been implemented, or what existing programs have been
continued or expanded, to achieve the diversion requirements?

o Will these programs maintain the desired level of diversion?

« Are contingency programs selected and available to implement, if necessary,
to maintain diversion levels?

e Have any implemented programs been dropped, and if so, why?

¢ Have programs selected for implementation not been implemented? If not, why
not?

» What selected diversion facilities (e.g., material recovery, composting) are not
yet on- line?

24



» Did financing options for a selected diversion facility (e.g., material
recovery, composting) fail?

» Did a jurisdiction face unavoidable regulatory delays? If so, explain the
regulatory delays and how they affected the project time lines.

» Did a jurisdiction elect to recover a certain type of material (e.g., cardboard),
but the hauler/operator would not cooperate and recover the waste type on
behalf of the jurisdiction? Is the failure to recover the material(s) due to
logistical problems?

» Were sufficient funds available to implement programs?

» Has the jurisdiction investigated grants and loans available from
CalRecycle, US EPA, etc.?

» Has the jurisdiction investigated regional approaches to programs and
expenses?

> Has the jurisdiction investigated all financiaf options selected in the SRRE,
including contingency funding?

« Was insufficient staff available to implement programs?
> Has the jurisdiction investigated volunteer or intemship programs?

» Has the jurisdiction investigated regional approaches to programs,
expenses, and staffing?

> Was there a high turnover in staff?
» Did the jurisdiction allot reasonable resources?
« Have participation rates and program effectiveness been too low?

> Has the jurisdiction utilized public education and information programs to
promote its diversion programs? Has the jurisdiction targeted the
appropriate sector (commercial/residential/industrial) in its public education
and information campaign?

»> Is the program accessible to the targeted audience? Have potential
language barriers been addressed?

> Have incentives for participation been used (e.g., cash for recyclables,
free/reduced cost compost bins for workshop attendance, etc.)?

» What other program altematives have been used to promote waste
prevention and reduction programs (e.g., increased tip fees, local land
use restrictions, increased business fees, etc.)?

10

25



» Has the jurisdiction utilized CalRecycle's free public information materials?

Have markets for diverted materials continually remained low or poor?
> Has the jurisdiction investigated local and regional marketing options?

» Has the jurisdiction investigated development opportunities with the private
sector?

> Has the jurisdiction worked with CalRecycle's market development program?
» Has the jurisdiction applied to CaiRecycle’s RMDZ program?

Were all significant waste materials selected in the SRRE targeted in the
implemented programs?

» Have conditions changed to make these materials less targetable and/or
marketable?

> Have waste generation characteristics changed such that selected programs
would no longer be feasible or appropriate?

What other problems has the jurisdiction encountered in program implementation?

» Have waste generation characteristics changed (e.g., has a military base
closed, or a manufacturerfindustry relocated or closed), such that selected
programs would no longer be feasible or appropriate?

Have contingency diversion programs been implemented to reach the
diversion requirements?

> If contingency programs are significant in scale, has that caused a
delay in implementation?

Have existing contractual or legal issues prohibited a jurisdiction from
implementing programs?

» Can the jurisdiction amend franchise agreements? If not, when do the
agreements expire?

» Can the jurisdiction prepare a request for proposal(s) for the
implementation of programs and facilities?

What technical assistance can CalRecycle provide to assist the local
jurisdiction in implementing diversion programs?

IV. Not Imptementing Programs and Not Meeting Diversion Reguirements.

Staff will investigate the reasons a jurisdiction has failed to implement diversion
programs and thus failed to meet the 50% equivalent per capita disposal

11

26



requirements. Staff will recommend that CalRecycle issue compliance schedules to
jurisdictions in this scenario. If the requirements of the compliance schedule are not
met, CalRecycle could, at a public hearing, consider assessing the jurisdiction an
administrative fine of up to a maximum of $10,000 per day.

Staff recommends using the following criteria to determine if a jurisdiction fits this
scenario.

¢ What is the measured annual per capita disposal rate?
» Why were programs not implemented?

» Were insufficient funds available to implement programs?  If sufficient funds
were available, explain why they were not dedicated to implementing
programs. For example:

» Did the jurisdiction investigate grants and loans available from CalRecycle,
US EPA, etc.?

> Did the jurisdiction investigate regional approaches to programs and
expenses?

» Did the jurisdiction investigate all financial options selected in the SRRE?

» s there a lack of markets for diverted materials, and therefore programs were not
implemented? For example:

> Did the jurisdiction investigate local and regional marketing options?

> Did the jurisdiction work with CalRecycle's market development program and
apply for market development zone designation?

« Was sufficient staff available to implement programs? Was staff allocated?
» Did the jurisdiction investigate volunteer or intemship programs?

> Did the jurisdiction investigate regional approaches to programs,
expenses, and staffing?

» Have existing contractual or legal issues prohibited a jurisdiction from implementing
programs?

» Can the jurisdiction amend franchise agreements?

> Can the jurisdiction prepare a Request For Proposal (s) for the
implementation of programs and facilities?

12

27



e What other problems has the jurisdiction encountered that resulted in no diversion
program implementation?

AB 1594

In September 2014, Governor Brown signed AB 1594, Williams (Chapter 719, Statutes
of 2014), mandating that as of January 1, 2020, the use of green material as alternative
daily cover (ADC) does not constitute diversion through recycling and will be considered
disposal in terms of measuring a jurisdiction’s annual 50 percent per capita disposal rate.

Beginning with the 2020 Electronic Annual Report (due August 1, 2021), a jurisdiction
that, as a result of not being able to claim diversion for the use of green material as ADC,
does not meet its 50 percent per capita disposal target, must report additional
information to CalRecycle about how it will address diverting greenwaste that was being
sent as ADC. Staff will investigate the extent to which a jurisdiction has tried to meet the
diversion requirements through its efforts to find other means of diverting greenwaste.

Staff will use the following criteria to assess the specific conditions that may have
prevented a jurisdiction from meeting its 50% equivalent per capita disposal target, as
a result of not being able to claim diversion for the use of green material as ADC, and
whether a good faith effort was made by the jurisdiction to meet the diversion
requirements.

» Did the jurisdiction commencing with the 2017 Electronic Annual Report (due August
1, 2018) include information on plans to address the diversion requirements by
diverting green material that is being used as ADC?

o Were the plans reasonable?

o If the jurisdiction didn’t include plans commencing with the 2017 EAR on how to
divert green materials, in 2020 or any time thereafter if the jurisdiction is not
meeting its target did it address how it is diverting green material that is being
used as ADC?

» Did the jurisdiction commencing with the 2020 Electronic Annual Report {due August,
1, 2021) provide the following:
o Were the barriers to recycling green material identified and addressed?

= Are there adequate existing facilities to process greenwaste within a
reasonable vicinity?

= Are there existing solid waste and organic waste recycling facilities
within the jurisdiction that may be suitable for potential expansion or
colocation of organic waste processing or recycling facilities?

=  What time frame could this be accomplished?

13

28



= Are there efforts that are underway to develop new private or public
regional organic waste recycling facilities and the anticipated timeline for
completion of those facilities?

* Are there other nondisposal opportunities or markets for greenwaste

(e.g., on-site composting, etc.)?

Are there appropriate zoning and permit requirements for the focation of

new or expanded organic waste recycling facilities to help with siting?

Are there local incentives available, if any, for developing new organic

waste recycling facilities within the jurisdiction?

Have markets for recycled organic materials continually remained low or
poor?

* Has the jurisdiction investigated local and regional marketing
options?

 Has the jurisdiction investigated organics recycling opportunities
with the private sector, e.g., partnering to site and build organics
recycling facilities, collaborating with large commercial generators
1o manage waste on-site, such as small scale anaerobic digestion
facilities, etc.?

*  Are sufficient funds available to implement programs?

» Has the jurisdiction investigated funding resources, eg.,
CalRecycle grantsfloans, Treasurer’s Office loans and bonds,
CA Energy Commission grants, etc.?

* Has the jurisdiction investigated regional approaches to programs
and expenses?

* What selected organics recycling facilities are not yet on-line?
+ Did financing options for a selected diversion facility fail?

o Did the facilities face unavoidable regulatory delays? If so, did
the jurisdiction explain the regulatory delays and how they
affected the project time lines?

* Did a jurisdiction elect to recover a certain type of material (e.g.,
food waste), but the hauler/operator will not cooperate and
recover the waste type on behalf of the jurisdiction? Is the
failure to recover the material(s) due to logistical problems?

= Is sufficient staff available to implement programs?

* Has the jurisdiction investigated volunteer or intemship programs?

14

29



e Has the jurisdiction collaborated with the hauler(s)?

¢ Has the jurisdiction investigated regional approaches to
programs, expenses, and staffing?

= Are there existing contractual or legal issues that need to be
addressed that are a barrier to diverting greenwaste that was
being used as ADC?

e Can the jurisdiction amend franchise agreements,
contracts, or permits? if not, when do the agreements
expire?

¢ Can the jurisdiction prepare a request for proposal(s) for the
implementation of programs and facilities?

= What other considerations, including but not limited to market
development obstacles, population density, waste generation rates,
dominant waste generation categories and types, and geographic,
demographic and economic factors, have affected the rural
jurisdiction's ability to implement its commercial organics recycling
program?

o If sufficient capacity at facilities that recycle green material is not expected to be
operational before the jurisdiction’s next review pursuant to Section 41825, was
a reasonable plan to address those barriers that are within the control of the
local jurisdiction provided?
= Did the jurisdiction identify all barriers under its control?
= Did the jurisdiction provide sufficient explanation and supporting
information to explain how it would address this, or why it still cannot do
so? l.e., is the plan reasonable in light of the barriers?
= Did it provide a timeline for addressing the barriers?

Additional Considerations for SRRE Implementation

Statute provides for specific variations to the 25 and 50 percent diversion
requirements. These variations include:

1. No more than 10 percent of the average (2003 through 2006) calculated per cap'ita
generation tonnage may be counted for a city, county, or regional agency's use of a
CalRecycle- permitted transformation project (PRC Sections 41783);

2. Petitions for reduction for rural jurisdictions (PRC Section 41787);
3. Regional and rural regional agency formation (PRC Sections 40970 and 41787.1);
4. A two-year time extension for rural jurisdictions (PRC Section 41787.4);

15

30



5. Atime extension granted by CalRecycle to a city that incorporated after January
1, 1990, and before January 1, 2001, (PRC Section 41820.5);

6. Pursuant to PRC Section 41784, if CalRecycle determines that a jurisdiction's SRRE
will not achieve the 50 percent diversion requirement and a city or county chooses
notto use a transformation project to achieve the 50 percent diversion requirement,
CalRecycle shall not require the jurisdiction to use a transformation project to
achieve the 50 percent requirement;

7. A reduction of the diversion requirements of PRC Section 41780 for any city or
county which, on or before January 1, 1990, disposed of 75 percent or more of
its solid waste, collected by the jurisdiction or its authorized agents or
contractors, by transformation if certain conditions exist (PRC Section 417886),

Staff considers the following criteria, as applicable, in addition to the previous criteria
outlined above.

Rural Jurisdictions

[Note that, pursuant to SB 1016 (Wiggins, 2008) as of January 1, 2009, the definition
of rural city, rural regional agency and rural county has changed. See PRC Sections
40183 and 40184 before applying this section]

* Has the rural jurisdiction utifized CalRecycle's rural assistance information and
programs?

* Has the rural jurisdiction investigated regional approaches to program
implementation?

» Is the rural jurisdiction qualified to petition for a reduction in diversion
requirements?

» What other considerations, including but not limited to market development
obstacles, population density, waste generation rates, dominant waste
generation categories and types, and geographic, demographic and economic
factors, have affected the rural jurisdiction's ability to meet the diversion
requirements?

Approved Petition for Reduction

* Are rural cities and rural counties that are members of a rural regionai agency
eligible fora reduction in diversion requirements? If so, then the rural regional
agency may be eligible for a reduction of the diversion requirements of PRC
Section 41780. Has the rural regional agency petitioned CalRecycle for a
reduction in the diversion requirements?

16

3



e Has a jurisdiction that qualifies for a reduction petitioned for a reduction in the
diversion requirements?

» Did a jurisdiction petition for a reduction in diversion requirements and receive a
reduced diversion requirement? If so, were the conditions of the petition
reduction request met by the jurisdiction?

e If the jurisdiction has a CalRecycle-approved reduced diversion requirement,
was the reported total reporting year disposal tonnage equal to or less than the
maximum allowable disposal for that reduced disposal percentage?

e Has the jurisdiction implemented the programs specified in the approved petition?

« Are there any other considerations that affect the jurisdiction’s ability to meet
its reduced diversion requirements?

Exiensions

« Did a newly incorporated city (incorporated after January 1, 1990} receive a
time extension from the diversion requirements (PRC Section 41820.5)7?

» Has the rural city, rural county, or rural regional agency been granted a two-
year time extension (PRC Section 41 787.4)7

e Is the jurisdiction achieving the maximum feasible amount of source reduction,
recycling, and composting within its jurisdiction?

Regional Agencies

Jurisdictions that form a regional agency to share planning and diversion requirements
of the Integrated Waste Management Act are required by PRC Section 40975(b)(2) to
describe the method by which any civil penalties imposed will be allocated among the
agency members. Each member of a regional agency, which is formed to allow its
members to share diversion, is liable for the sum of the penalties that may be imposed
against each member of the regional agency. Thus, a regional agency that has five
members would be subject to a maximum penalty of $50,000 per day. However,
CalRecycle may consider the relevant circumstances that resulted in a regional agency
(as described in PRC Sections 40970-40976) not achieving the diversion requirements
and the individual members who may have contributed to the circumstances that
resulted in a failure to achieve the diversion requirements.

PRC Section 40974 establishes the maximum liability for civil administrative penalties
imposed pursuant to PRC Section 41813 or PRC Section 41 850 at $10,000 per day for
each member of a regional agency. The remainder of PRC Section 40974 may be
interpreted to provide an option for members of a regional agency to agree among
themselves to a different maximum liability through an apportionment of the sum of the
penalties that may be imposed against each member of the regional agency.
CalRecycle may consider a regional agency's joint powers agreement that specifies

17

32



that all liability for fines rests with the non-complying agency member with no liability
assigned to the regional agency or the authority.

An apportionment of penalties on agency members and not the regional agency may
provide for flexibility for the regional agency to continue to resoive the issue that is
causing the agency members to not meet the diversion requirements. CalRecycle may
consider fimiting penalties to a maximum of $10,000 per day if a member's failure does
not cause other members or the regional agency to fail to implement the programs in
the regional SRRE. Consideration of no fines or penalties on a member or the regional
agency may be given by CalRecycle if the agency member has demonstrated to the
satisfaction of CalRecycle to have made good faith efforts to implement the programs
assigned to it in the regional SRRE. Questions to consider include:

* [sthe jurisdiction part of a regional agency or rural regional agency?

* Is the regional agency implementing its programs and meeting its diversion
requirements?

» If a regional agency was dissolved, will each of the agency members
meet the 50% equivalent per capita disposal requirements?

3

Transformation

* Did the jurisdiction claim no more than 10 percent of the average (2003 through
2006) calculated per capita generation tonnage (PRC Section 41783)7

» Did the jurisdiction dispose of 75 percent or more of its solid waste by
transformation, and if so, were the statutory conditions in PRC Section 41786
met?

MANDATORY COMMERCIAL RECYCLING IMPLEMENTATICON

Commencing July 1, 2012, each jurisdiction shall implement a commercial solid waste
recycling program that consists of education, outreach and monitoring of businesses, that
is appropriate for that jurisdiction and is designed to divert commercial solid waste from
businesses, whether or not the jurisdiction has met the requirements of PRC Section
41780. Each jurisdiction shall report the progress achieved in implementing its
commercial recycling program, including education, outreach and monitoring, and if
applicable, enforcement efforts and exemptions, by providing updates in its electronic
annual report.

To determine the level of Mandatory Commercial Recycling (MCR) implementation, staff
review programs and data as part of the annual site visits, and use annual report
information submitted by local jurisdictions, and other information, such as recovery rate

18

33



data, educational materials both print and electronic, etc. Jurisdictions’ compliance with
the MCR requirements will be determined during the formal Jurisdiction Review (either
during a two or four-year review cycle depending on which cycle the jurisdiction is on).

Staff uses the following criteria to determine the extent to which a jurisdiction has shown a
good faith effort to implement its mandatory commercial recycling program. These criteria
are provided to serve as an example. The criteria are not prescriptive and they are not a
"checklist”. They indicate the issues that will be examined when CalRecycle performs its
Jurisdiction Reviews. There is no intent to mandate that each criterion be adhered to, and
that, if not, that a local jurisdiction would be in a "failure” situation. The criteria are broken
down into four sections: 1) ldentifying Commercial Generators, 2) Conducting
Education/Outreach, 3) Monitoring, and 4) Ensuring Commercial Recycling Services.

1. Identifying Commercial Generators
 Did the jurisdiction make a reasonable effort to annually identify the commercial
generators that are required to recycle?
« Did the jurisdiction provide data on the foliowing in the Annual Report beginning
August 1, 20137
Number of regulated businesses.
Number of regulated multifamily complexes.
Number of regulated businesses that are recycling.
Number of regulated multifamily complexes that are recycling.
If any of this data is not available, did the jurisdiction explain why and
how they are addressing gathering the data?
o If applicable, did the jurisdiction provide the amount of recyclable
material that is being diverted by businesses/multifamily complexes?
« If any of the data was not provided, did the jurisdiction have a reasonable
explanation and is the jurisdiction demonstrating that it is trying to address the

gap?

O 0 0 00

o [f the jurisdiction is phasing in identification, did the jurisdiction provide adequate
rationale?

« Based upon this information CalRecycle will assess the extent to which businesses
have complied with Section 42649.2, including information on the amount of disposal
that is being diverted from the businesses, if available, and on the number of
businesses that are subscribing to service.

o If the number of businesses that have recycling service decreases during the
review cycle, CalRecycle would assess the reasons further with the jurisdiction ,
including did the jurisdiction cease any active education or outreach efforts, did
the rate structure change, etc.?

o CalRecycle would also assess the availability of markets for collected
recyclables.

19

34



2. Conducting Education/Outreach

» Did the jurisdiction provide information about its annual education and outreach
efforts?

* Did the jurisdiction use a variety of education and outreach approaches to inform
covered businesses and multifamily complexes about the law and how to recycle,
including electronic, print, and direct contact approaches?

o |s this occurring annually?
o Are there activities that were intended to be only one-time and did the
jurisdiction provide an explanation that is reasonable?

» Is education and outreach accessibie to the targeted sector, e.g., can affected
commercial customers readily find information on the jurisdiction or hauler's
websites, is information provided at least annually, etc.?

« Have language barriers been addressed, e.g., if needed, have materials been
translated into other languages, is the website information available in other
languages, etc.?

» Have any incentives been provided to covered businesses and multifamily
complexes, e.g., free or reduced cost collection services, technical assistance,
awards and recognition, etc.?

» Has the jurisdiction utilized CalRecycle's free public information related to
mandatory commercial recycling?

* Was sufficient staff available to implement the education and outreach? If not,
were there budgetary constraints? How did the jurisdiction try to address this?

o Has the jurisdiction investigated volunteer or internship programs?

o Has the jurisdiction investigated regional approaches to programs,
expenses, and staffing?

o Was there a high tumover in staff?
o Did the jurisdiction allot reasonable resources?

= [f the jurisdiction is phasing in education and outreach, did the jurisdiction provide
adequate rationale?

e In the case of a rural jurisdiction, what were the effects of small geographic size, low
population density, or distance to markets?

3. Monitoring
» For those covered businesses and multifamily complexes that were not in
compiiance with the MCR law were covered businesses and multifamily complexes
annually identified?
» Were covered businesses and multifamily complexes that were not in compliance
annually notified about the law and how to comply with the law, e.g., non-compliant

20

35



businesses were sent a letter by the jurisdiction, contacted via phone call, received
an on-site meeting, etc.? _

e If the jurisdiction is phasing in monitoring, did the jurisdiction provide adequate
rationale?

« If any of the data was not provided, did the jurisdiction have a reasonable
explanation and is the jurisdiction demonstrating that it is trying to address the
gap?

» Were there staffing or budgetary constraints?

« In the case of a rural jurisdiction, were there issues regarding monitoring related to the
geographic size of the jurisdiction, or low population density?

4. Ensuring Commercial Recycling Services

Pursuant to statute, jurisdictions may include, but are not limited to, the following
elements in their commercial waste recycling services:

1. Requiring a hauler under a franchise contract or agreement to provide
commercial recycling services for on-site coflection of recyclables from
businesses.

2. Requiring permitted or contract haulers to provide commercial recycling
services for on-site collection of recyclables from businesses in a non-
franchised jurisdiction.

3. Implementing a mandatory commercial waste recycling policy or ordinance that
requires businesses to either hire a service provider to haul its recyclables to a
source separated or mixed processing system that diverts recyclables from
disposal, or to seif-haul.

Additiona! program elements that might support a program include:

1. Establishing certification requirements for self-hauters.

2. Enforcement provisions, including a structure for fines and penalties.

3. Charging businesses a fee to cover the jurisdiction’s costs of implementing the
commercial waste recycling program.

Note: A jurisdiction may implement or enforce commercial recycling requirements that are
more stringent or comprehensive than the law.

Determining Progress Achieved in Implementing a Commercial Recycling Program:

In addition to the questions above, what constitutes “commercial waste recycling
services” will vary depending on many factors, such as the types of commercial
generators and the types of recyclables that are generated, the types of existing or
potential infrastructure for processing recyclable materials, on-site collection options, etc.
The commercial waste recycling services must be appropriate for the jurisdiction and

21

36



meet the needs of its businesses; it must provide opportunities for the regulated
businesses to avail themselves of organics recycling services.

» Did the jurisdiction sufficiently demonstrate that the commercial recycling programs
available to regulated businesses and multifamily complexes are adequate?

* Whatis the recovery rate of the commercial waste from the material recovery facilities
that are utilized by the businesses? Note: Pursuant to statute, CalRecycle may review
the recovery rate of the commercial waste from the material recovery facilities that are
utilized by the businesses, as well as all information, methods, and calculations, and
any additional perfformance data.

o [f the jurisdiction has not been able to implement a commercial recycling program
that is appropriate for the jurisdiction and meets the needs of its businesses, has it
done the following:

o Have markets for recycled materials continually remained low or poor?
* Has the jurisdiction investigated local and regional marketing options?

= Has the jurisdiction investigated recycling opportunities with the
private sector, e.g., partnering to site and build recycling
manufacturing facilities, etc.?

o ere sufficient funds available to implement programs?

» Has the jurisdiction investigated funding resources, e.g.,
- CalRecycle grants/loans, Treasurer's Office loans and bonds, CA
Energy Commission grants, etc.?

= Has the jurisdiction investigated regional approaches to programs and
expenses?

o What selected recycling facilities are not yet on-line?
» Did financing options for a selected diversion facility fail?

* Did a jurisdiction face unavoidable regulatory delays? If so, did
the jurisdiction explain the regulatory delays and how they
affected the project time lines?

* Did a jurisdiction elect to recover a certain type of material, but the
hauler/operator will not cooperate and recover the waste type on
behalf of the jurisdiction? Is the failure to recover the material(s)
due to logistical problems?

o Was insufficient staff available to implement programs?

= Has the jurisdiction investigated volunteer or internship programs?

22

37



» Has the jurisdiction collaborated with the hauler(s)?

= Has the jurisdiction investigated regional approaches to
programs, expenses, and staffing?

= Was there a high turnover in staff?
= Did the jurisdiction allot reasonable resources?

o Have existing contractual or legal issues prohibited a jurisdiction
from implementing programs?

= Can the jurisdiction amend franchise agreements, contracts,
or permits? If not, when do the agreements expire?

= Can the jurisdiction prepare a request for proposal(s) for the
implementation of programs and facilities?

o What other considerations, including but not limited to market
development obstacles, population density, waste generation rates,
dominant waste generation categories and types, and geographic,
demographic and economic factors, have affected the rural jurisdiction’s
ability to implement its commercial recycling program?

MANDATORY COMMERCIAL ORGANICS RECYCLING
IMPLEMENTATION

On and after January 1, 2016, each jurisdiction is required to implement an organic waste
recycling program that is appropriate for that jurisdiction and designed specifically to
divert the organic waste generated by businesses subject to Section 42649.81, whether
or not the jurisdiction has met the requirements of Section 41780.

The intent of AB 1826, the Mandatory Commercial Organics Recycling law is to divert
organic materials from landfills, primarily by requiring: 1) a business that generates a
specified amount of organic waste per week to arrange for recycling services for that
organic waste; and 2) jurisdictions to implement mandatory organic waste recycling
programs.

Every jurisdiction’s organic waste recycling program at a minimum must consist of the
following for the businesses that meet the required thresholds (described in more detail
on the following pages):

1. Identifying the businesses that are required to recycle their organic waste.

2. Education and outreach to inform businesses about the law and how to recycle
organics in the jurisdiction.

23

38



3. Implementing annual monitoring activities to identify those not recycling and to
inform them of the law and how to recycle organics in the jurisdiction.

4. Ensuring that organic waste recycling services are available to businesses in
the jurisdiction that meet the required threshold.

To determine the level of Mandatory Commercial Organics Recycling (MORe)
implementation, staff would review programs and data as part of the annual site visits,
and use information such as annual report information submitted by local jurisdictions
tonnage data, education information, etc. Jurisdictions’ compliance with the MORe
requirements will be determined during the formal Jurisdiction Review (either during a
two or four-year review cycle depending on which cycle the jurisdiction is on).

As part of this, CalRecycle recognizes that the AB 1826 requirement for jurisdictions to
implement mandatory organic waste recycling programs may require more than what AB
341 required for mandatory commercial recycling. For example, if the jurisdiction has to
implement new or expanded commercial organic recycling programs and if determining
the businesses that meet the compliance threshold is more complex, e.g., due to
complexity of identifying businesses that generate certain thresholds of organic material.
To assist jurisdictions in developing appropriate programs and understanding how
CalRecycle will assess program implementation and compliance, CalRecycle developed
a separate analytical tool to demonstrate the nature of the questions and information that
staff will use in reviewing jurisdiction programs — e.g., has the jurisdiction done the -
following:

* Identified covered businesses and the amount of organic material they generate,
» Assessed if the covered businesses are already diverting their organic material,

» Determined the availability of existing organics recycling services to those covered
businesses and the need for additional services,

» Determined what else it will need to implement to meet the needs of its covered
businesses, and,

* Reported to CalRecycle if there are barriers and developed and provided a plan to
address the barriers?

While jurisdictions do not need to use this analytical tool, they should be aware that it
reflects the types of information that CalRecycle will be looking to assess as part of the
formal Jurisdiction Review.

CalRecycle has incorporated the substance of this approach into the following criteria that
staff would use to determine the extent to which a jurisdiction has shown a good faith
effort to implement its mandatory organics recycling program. These criteria are provided

24

39



to serve as an example. The criteria are not prescriptive and they are nota "checklist".
They indicate the issues that will be examined when CalRecycle performs its Jurisdiction
Reviews. There is no intent to mandate that each criterion be adhered to, and that, if not,
that a local jurisdiction would be in a "failure” situation. The criteria are broken down into
four sections: 1) Identifying Commercial Generators of Organic Materials, 2) Conducting
Education/Outreach, 3) Monitoring, and 4) Ensuring Commercial Recycling Services.
Note: If jurisdictions meet the criteria for a rural exemption as provided for in AB 1826 and
submitted the exemption resolution to CalRecycle, they will be exempt from implementing
the requirements of AB 1826 and not subject to enforcement.

1. Ildentifying Covered Commercial Businesses of Organic Materials
« Did the jurisdiction make a reasonable effort to annually identify the commercial
businesses that are required to recycle their organic waste?

o How did the jurisdiction identify the covered commercial organics
businesses?

o Did the jurisdiction identify the types of existing organics diversion programs
that the covered commercial businesses have in place?

o Did the jurisdiction identify the types of programs that it has for covered
commercial organics businesses?

o Did the jurisdiction identify expanded or new programs that are needed to
meet the needs of businesses?

« Did the jurisdiction provide data on the following regarding covered businesses in
the Annual Report beginning August 1, 20177

o Number of covered businesses.

o Number of covered multifamily complexes.

o Number of covered businesses that are recycling organic waste.

o Number of covered multifamily complexes that are recycling green
waste, landscape and pruning waste, and nonhazardous wood waste.
The methodology used to identify covered businesses and multifamily
complexes. '

o If any of this data is not available, an explanation of why and how the

jurisdiction is are addressing gathering the data

o If applicable, the amount of organic material that is being diverted by

covered businesses/multifamily complexes
s If any of the data was not provided, did the jurisdiction have a reasonable
explanation and is the jurisdiction demonstrating that it is trying to address the

gap?

0

e If the jurisdiction is phasing in identification, did the jurisdiction provide adequate
rationale?

25

40



e Based upon this infformation CalRecycle will assess the extent to which jurisdictions
have monitored which covered businesses are in compliance with Section 42649.81,
including information on the amount of organic waste that is being diverted from
covered businesses, if available, and on the number of covered businesses that are
subscribing to service. If the number that have recycling service decreases during the
review cycle, then CalRecycle would explore further with the jurisdiction to assess the
reasons, including did the jurisdiction cease any active education or outreach efforts,
did the rate structure change, etc.?

. Conducting Education/Outreach

+ Did the jurisdiction provide information about its annual education and outreach
efforts?

» Did the jurisdiction use a variety of education and outreach approaches to inform
covered businesses and multifamily complexes about the law and how to recycle
organics, including electronic, print, and direct contact approaches?

o s this occurring annually?
o Are there activities that were intended to be only one-time and did the
jurisdiction provide an explanation that is reasonable?

» |s education and outreach accessible to the targeted sector, e.g., can affected
commercial businesses readily find information on the jurisdiction or hauler's
websites, is information provided at least annually, efc.?

e Have language barriers been addressed, e.g., if needed, have materials been
translated into other languages, is the website information available in other
languages, etc.?

» Have any incentives been provided to covered businesses and multifamily
complexes, e.g., free or reduced cost collection services, technical assistance,
awards and recoghnition, etc.?

» Has the jurisdiction utilized CalRecycle's free public information related to
mandatory organics recycling?

» Was insufficient staff available to implement the education and outreach? Were
there budgetary constraints? How did the jurisdiction try to address this?

o Has the jurisdiction investigated volunteer or intemship programs?

o Has the jurisdiction investigated regional approaches to programs,
expenses, and staffing?

o Was there a high turnover in staff?
o Did the jurisdiction allot reasonable resources?

» |f the jurisdiction is phasing in education and outreach, did the jurisdiction provide
adequate rationale?

26

41



« In the case of a rural jurisdicticn, what were the effects of small geographic size, low
population density, or distance to markets?

3. Monitoring

s Were covered businesses and mulitifamily complexes annually identified that were
not in compliance with the Mandatory Organics Recycling law?

s Were covered businesses and multifamily complexes that were not in compliance
annually notified about the law and how to comply with the law, e.g., non-compliant
businesses were sent a letter by the jurisdiction, contacted via phone call, received
an on-site meeting, etc.?

e [f the jurisdiction is phasing in education and outreach, did the jurisdiction provide
adequate rationale?

« If any of the data was not provided, did the jurisdiction have a reasonable
explanation and is the jurisdiction demonstrating that it is trying to address the
gap?

o Were there staffing or budgetary constraints?

« In the case of a rural jurisdiction, were there issues regarding monitoring related to the
geographic size of the jurisdiction, or low population density?

4. Ensuring Organic Waste Recycling Services

Pursuant to statute, jurisdictions may include, but are not limited to, the following three
elements in their organic waste recycling services:

1. Requiring a hauler under a franchise contract or agreement to provide
commercial organic recycling services for on-site collection of organics from
businesses.

2. Requiring permitted or contract haulers to provide commercial organic recycling
services for on-site collection of organics from businesses in a non-franchised
jurisdiction.

3. Implementing a mandatory commercial organic waste recycling policy or
ordinance that requires businesses to either hire a service provider to haul its
organic waste to a source separated or mixed processing system that diverts
organic waste from disposal, or to self-haul

These three elements also might be implemented in conjunction with food rescue
programs, on-site composting/AD, self-hauling by businesses, and landscaping services
that collect the greenwaste and recycle it. Additional program elements that might
support a program include:

1. Establishing certification requirements for self-haulers or businesses that
manage organics on site.
2. Enforcement provisions, including a structure for fines and penalties.

27

42



3. Charging businesses a fee to cover the jurisdiction’s costs of implementing the
organic waste recycling program.

Note: A jurisdiction may implement or enforce organic waste recycling requirements that
are more stringent or comprehensive than the law.

Determining Progress Achieved in Implementing a Commercial Organics Waste
Recycling Program:

What constitutes “organics waste recycling services” will vary depending on many factors,
such as the types of commercial generators and the types of organics that are generated,
the types of existing or potential infrastructure for processing organic materials, on-site
collection options, etc. The organics waste recycling services must be appropriate for the
jurisdiction and meet the needs of its businesses; it must provide opportunities for the
regulated businesses to avail themselves of organics recycling services.

1. Looking at the data regarding generators (see Identifying Generators above),
did the jurisdiction sufficiently demonstrate that the commercial organics
recycling programs available to regulated businesses and multifamily
complexes are adequate?

a. How is the program sufficient, e.g., if the jurisdiction only has food rescue
and allows businesses to manage it onsite via composting or anaerobic
digestion, and there is no on-site collection services, did the jurisdiction
demonstrate that this is sufficient to meet the needs of the businesses and
multifamily complexes?

2. Did the jurisdiction demonstrate that its commercial organics recycling programs are
effective?

a. What is the recovery rate of the commercial waste from the material recovery
facilities that are utilized by the covered businesses? Note: Pursuant to
statute, CalRecycle may review the recovery rate of the commercial waste
from the material recovery facilities that are utilized by the businesses, as well
as all information, methods, and calculations, and any additional performance
data.

b. Are the programs, in combination with other available services, sufficient to
provide for the collection where needed of all organic materials from
regulated businesses?

3. If the jurisdiction has not been able to implement a commercial organics
recycling program that is appropriate for the jurisdiction and meets the needs of
its covered businesses, has it done the following:

a. Have markets for recycled organic materials continually remained low or
poor? (See Additional Reporting and Analysis Requirements below. )

28

43



i. Has the jurisdiction investigated local and regional marketing
options?

i. Has the jurisdiction investigated organics recycling opportunities
with the private sector, e.g., partnering to site and build organics
recycling facilities, collaborating with large commerciat generators
to manage waste on site, such as small scale anaerobic digestion
facilities, etc.?

b. Were sufficient funds available to implement programs?

i. Has the jurisdiction investigated funding resources, e.g.,
CalRecycle grants/loans, Treasurer's Office loans and bonds,
CA Energy Commission grants, etc.?

ii. Has the jurisdiction investigated regional approaches to programs
and expenses?

¢. What selected organics recycling facilities are not yet on-line? (See
Additional Reporting and Analysis Requirements below.)

i. Did financing options for a selected diversion facility fail?

ii. Did a jurisdiction face unavoidable regulatory delays? If so,
did the jurisdiction explain the regulatory delays and how they
affected the project time lines?

iii. Did a jurisdiction elect to recover a certain type of material (e.g.,
food waste), but the hauler/operator will not cooperate and
recover the waste type on behalf of the jurisdiction? Is the
failure to recover the material(s) due to logistical problems?

d. Was insufficient staff available to implement programs?
i. Has the jurisdiction investigated volunteer or internship programs?
ii. Has the jurisdiction collaborated with the hauler(s)?

iii. Has the jurisdiction investigated regional approaches to
programs, expenses, and staffing?

iv. Was there a high tumover in staff?
v. Did the jurisdiction allot reasonable resources?

e. Have existing contractual or legal issues prohibited a jurisdiction
from implementing programs?

29

44



i. Can the jurisdiction amend franchise agreements,
contracts, or pemits? If not, when do the agreements
expire?

ii. Can the jurisdiction prepare a request for proposal(s) for the
implementation of programs and facilities?

f. What other considerations, including but not limited to market
development obstacles, population density, waste generation rates,
' dominant waste generation categories and types, and geographic,
demographic and economic factors, have affected the rural
jurisdiction's ability to implement its commercial organics recycling
program?

4. Note: Due to the amount of arganics generated by the commercial sector, the
jurisdiction may be able to phase in organics recycling services. For example,
some jurisdictions may not have any businesses that generate 8 cy/week of
organics, but do have businesses that generate 4 cy/week of organics. For
these jurisdictions they may not need to implement organics recycling services
until 2017, For jurisdictions that don’t have businesses that generate 4 cy/week
of organics and have businesses that generate 4 cy/week of trash, they may
not need to implement organics recycling services until 2019.

5. Did the jurisdiction meet additional reporting and analysis requirements?

The following shall be reported in the Electronic Annual Report beginning
August 1, 2017, for compost, anaerobic digestion and chip and grind facilities,
and may include other facilities that recycle organic waste. This information will
be analyzed by CalRecycle to determine if the jurisdiction’s efforts to implement
an organics recycling program are adequate.

a. The names of compost, anaerobic digestion and chip and grind
facilities, within a reasonable vicinity and the capacities available for
materials to be accepted at each facility?

b. Existing solid waste and organic waste recycling facilities within the
jurisdiction that may be suitable for potential expansion or colocation
of organic waste processing or recycling facilities?

c. Efforts of which the jurisdiction is aware that are underway to develop
new private or public regional organic waste recycling facilities and
the anticipated timeline for completion of those facilities?

d. A summary of closed or abandoned sites that may be available for
new organic waste recycling facilities?

30

45



e. Other nondisposal opportunities or markets (e.g., food donation, on-
site composting, etc.)

f. Are there appropriate zoning and permit requirements for the location
of new organic waste recycling facilities to help with siting?

g. Are there local incentives available, if any, for developing new
organic waste recycling facilities within the jurisdiction?

h. If there are known barriers to siting or expanding organic waste
recycling facilities in the area that are in the jurisdiction’s control, did
the jurisdiction provide a summary of the jurisdiction’s plan to remedy
the barriers?

HHWE IMPLEMENTATION

Each HHWE describes programs for the safe collection, recycling, treatment and
disposal of hazardous wastes generated by households, a monitoring program,
funding sources, and a spegcific implementation time frame. CalRecycle staff
recommends using the following criteria to determine whether selected programs were
implemented, and to assess the reasons a jurisdiction has failed to implement its
HHW programs. CalRecycle staff will also determine if the jurisdiction is following the
HHWE implementation schedule. Jurisdictions failing to fully implement their HHWE
may be fined up to $10,000 per day.

Criteria for HHWE implementation
Programs Implemented

Jurisdictions implementing their HHW programs are not subject to fines by CalRecycle.
Staff recommends the following criteria be used to determine if programs were
implemented. For example:

e Was a HHW event or a permanent collection facility made available to all
households in the jurisdiction, regardless of actual participation?

o What expenditures have been devoted to HHW collection, treatment, recycling, and
disposal?

e What efforts have been made to inform the public about HHW and HHW
collection events and/or facilities?

« Have the time frames specified in the HHWE for implementing programs been
followed (considering reasonable barriers to implementation)?

31

46



Programs Not iImplemented

Staff recommends investigating the extent to which a jurisdiction has implemented
programs, and the reasons they have failed to impiement programs. Based upon the
evaluation, staff may recommend to CalRecycle that a jurisdiction be issued a
compliance order. CalRecycle may consider assessing fines of up to $10,000 per day
to jurisdictions that fail to meet the requirements of their compliance orders, on a case-
by-case basis. Example criteria include:

» What programs were not implemented?

* Has the jurisdiction investigated local and regional waste exchange, recycling
and reuse options?

» Were insufficient funds available to implement programs?

» Has the jurisdiction investigated grants available from CalRecycle, the US
EPA, etc.?

» Has the jurisdiction investigated regional approaches to programs and
expenses?

» Has the jurisdiction investigated all financial options selected in the HHWE?
= Have time frames projected in the HHWE been met?

» What factors have affected these time frames?

» Wil time frames be adjusted to continue program implementation?
o What other problems has the jurisdiction encountered in program implementation?
» Was insufficient staff available to implement programs?

» Has the jurisdiction investigated volunteer or internship programs?

» Has the jurisdiction investigated regional approaches to programs,
expenses, and staffing?

» Have existing contractual or legal issues prohibited a jurisdiction from
implementing programs?

DETERMINATION OF SRRE AND HHWE IMPLEMENTATION

CalRecycle staff will refer to the various components of the SRRE and HHWE,
information from a jurisdiction’s annual report, CalRecycle’s Review, and other
information sources to determine how fully a jurisdiction has implemented its SRRE
and HHWE,

32

47



Annual Reports

SRRE Information

Each jurisdiction is required to annually submit a report to CalRecycle summarizing its
progress in implementing waste diversion programs and achieving the diversion
requirements. A jurisdiction’s annual per capita disposal rate and up-to-date
information on its diversion programs should be included in each annual report.

Annual reports must be submitted to CalRecycle by August 1 of each year following the
year of Board approval of a jurisdiction’s SRRE, with the first annual report (for 1995}
due by August 1, 1996, and each year thereafter.

CalRecycle will provide jurisdictions with a mode! annual report.

Commencing with the 2012 Annual Report (due August 1, 2013) each jurisdiction must
report annually on its implementation of MCR. Commencing with the 2016 Annual Report
(submitted on August 1, 2017} each jurisdiction must report annually on its
implementation of MORe. Commencing with the 2017 Electronic Annual Report (due
August 1, 2018) each jurisdiction must report annually on its implementation of AB 1594.
CaiRecycle will provide jurisdictions with guidance in the Electronic Annual Report on the
information that needs to be reported.

HHWE |nformation

Each jurisdiction is also required to include in its annual report information summatrizing
its progress in implementing the household hazardous waste programs selected in its
HHWE.

CalRecycle Jurisdiction Review Cycles

Based on the information provided in a jurisdiction’s annual reports submitted pursuant to
PRC Section 41821 and any other relevant information, CalRecycle shall make a finding
as to whether each jurisdiction was in compliance with PRC Section 41780 for the
calendar year 2006 and shall review a jurisdiction’s compliance with the diversion
requirements of PRC Section 41780 as follows (PRC Section 41825), as well as PRC
Section 42649 (MCR and MORe}, and PRC Section 41781.3:

e If the jurisdiction was in compliance for the calendar year 2006, commencing
January 1, 2012, and at least once every four years thereafter, CalRecycle
shall review whether the jurisdiction has implemented its SRRE, HHWE, MCR
and MORe.

e If the jurisdiction made a good faith effort to implement its SRRE and HHWE,
commencing January 1, 2010, and at least once every two years thereafter,
CalRecycle shall review, whether the jurisdiction has implemented its SRRE,
HHWE, MCR and MORe.

33

48



¢ [f the jurisdiction was not in compliance for the calendar year 2008, commencing
January 1, 2010, and at least once every two years thereafter, CalRecycle shall
review, whether the jurisdiction has implemented its SRRE, HHWE, MCR and
MORe.

e If a jurisdiction subject to a two-year schedule subsequently comes into
compliance with PRC Section 41 780, CalRecycle has discretion to switch the
jurisdiction to a four-year review schedule.

e [fa jurisdiction subject to a four-year schedule subsequently falls out of compliance
with PRC Section 41780, CalRecycle has discretion to switch the jurisdiction to a
two-year review schedule.

e In additon to the above requirements, CalRecycle may review whether a
jurisdiction is in compliance with PRC Section 41780 at any time that CalRecycle
receives information that the jurisdiction may not be making a good faith effort to
implement its SRRE, HHWE, MCR or MORe.

Compliance Measurements

Pursuant to SB 1016, as of January 1, 2009 the 50% equivalent per capita disposal
target is the amount of disposal a jurisdiction would have had during the base period if
it had been exactly at a 50% diversion rate. It is calculated using the average of 2003-
2006 per capita generation for each jurisdiction (in pounds). it then divides this
generation average in half to determine the 50% equivalent per capita disposal target.
This is the only time that generation will be used. This target will be specific to each
jurisdiction and is not comparable to those of other jurisdictions.

The target is an indicator for comparison with that jurisdiction’s annual per capita per
day disposal rate beginning with the 2007 program year.

Disposal reporting requirements are described in 14 CCR, Article 9.2, Sections 18800-
18813. A jurisdiction will determine its yearly disposal amount based on disposal -
information provided by one or more counties as part of CalRecycle’s Disposal
Reporting System. Jurisdictions will measure and report on their achievement of the
25 percent diversion requirement for the years 1995 through 1999, and achievement of
the 50 percent diversion requirement for 2000 and beyond.

A jurisdiction will measure its progress toward achieving the applicable waste diversion
requirement as required in PRC Section 41780 by following the requirements outlined
in PRC Sections 41780.05, 41780.1 and 41780.2, and Sections 41781 through 41786,
as applicable,

Criteria for Measuring Diversion Requirements

Staff recommends using the following criteria to determine whether the applicable
diversion requirement has been achieved. Information will be obtained from the

34

49



electronic annual report, information provided by the jurisdiction, and other sources as
necessary.

Has the jurisdiction updated its SRRE and/or, HHWE through the electronic
annual report to include any new or expanded programs it has implemented or
plans to implement?

Has the jurisdiction updated its NDFE through the electronic annual report to
reflect any new or expanded non-disposal facilities it is using or planning to use?

Is the total actuai per capita disposal amount reported in the jurisdiction’s
applicable annual report equal to our less than the 50% equivalent per capita
disposal allowable to meet the applicable diversion requirement of PRC Section
41780, or CalRecycle-approved reduced diversion requirement?

Has the jurisdiction summarized its progress in diverting construction and
demolition material, including information on programs and ordinances
implemented by the local government and quantitative data, where applicable?

Has the jurisdiction included other information relevant to compliance with PRC
Section 41780 including, but not limited to:

» Information on disposal reported pursuant to PRC Section 41821.5 that the
jurisdiction believes may be relevant to CalRecycle’s determination of the
jurisdiction's per capita disposal rate.

> Disposal characterization studies or other completed studies that
show the effectiveness of the programs being implemented.

> Factors that the jurisdiction believes would affect the accuracy of or mitigate
the amount of solid waste disposed by the jurisdiction including but not
limited to either of the following:

=  Whether the jurisdiction hosts a solid waste facility or any regional
diversion facility.

= The effects of self-hauled waste and construction and demolition waste.

» The extent to which the jurisdiction previously relied on biomass diversion
credit and the extent to which it may be impacted by the lack of the credit.

» Information regarding the programs the jurisdiction is underiaking to address
specific disposal challenges and why it is not feasible to implement
programs to respond to other factors that affect the amount of waste that is
disposed.

« Is the actual per capita disposal rate reflective of actual programmatic performance?

35

50



Not Meeting Diversion Requirements

* [f the total annual per capita disposal rate is greater than the jurisdiction’s 50%
equivalent per capita disposal target, how much greater is it?

* Isthe increase in per capita disposal rate the result of the jurisdiction’s disposal
increasing faster than the jurisdiction’s growth?

» Is the actual per capita disposal rate reflective of actual programmatic
performance?

* Has the jurisdiction provided relevant and substantive documentation indicating
that the factors used in calculating its annual per capita disposal rate may have
resulted in rate 50% equivalent per capita disposal target that is inaccurate and
may require correction?

ENFORCEMENT

The preceding sections entitied "SRRE Implementation,” "HHWE Implementation,” MCR
Implementation, and MORe Implementation outline the criteria staff uses to determine
level of implementation. The following section outiines the enforcement processes
recommended to be used by CaiRecycle.

Steps Toward Issuance of a Compliance Order

CalRecycle’s Jurisdiction Review process will be used to assess the level of
implementation of jurisdictions’ SRREs and HHWESs. Also, CalRecycle’s Jurisdiction
Review process will be used to assess the level that each jurisdiction has made in
implementing MCR, MORe, and AB 1594. For example, for the 1999/2000 Biennial
Review, staff evaluated the program implementation and diversion rate information in
jurisdictions’ 1999 and 2000 Annual Reports to determine their progress in
implementing diversion programs selected in their SRREs (and HHWESs) and in
meeting the 50 percent diversion requirement in 2000. Staff then presented the results
of that review and their recommendations to the Board at a regularly scheduled
meeting. To the extent possible, this hearing will be held in the local or regionat
agency's jurisdiction (PRC Section 41825).

If CalRecycle finds, after the public hearing, that a jurisdiction has failed to adequately
implement its SRRE and/or HHWE and fits into Scenarios Il or ill, CalRecycle may
issue an Order of Compliance, including a compliance schedule (PRC Section 41825).
CalRecycle will follow the procedures for issuing compliance orders it adopted at the
January 23-24, 2001, Board meeting. Jurisdictions determined to be in Scenario IV will
be issued an Order of Compliance, including a compliance schedule. The compliance
order will identify the programs of the SRRE and/or HHWE that are not being
implemented or attained by the jurisdiction, or identify areas of the SRRE and/or

36

51



HHWE that require revision. Staff recommends that CalRecycle set a specific
schedule for the jurisdiction to act on these findings, to be determined on a case-by-
case basis.

CaiRecycle will follow the requirements of PRC Section 41825 regarding issuing a
jurisdiction a comptiance order for failure to adequately implement its SRRE and/or
HHWE.

If CalRecycle finds, after the public hearing, that a jurisdiction has failed to adequately
implement its MCR and/or MORe requirements regardless if it met the diversion
requirements of PRC Section 41780 and has not demonstrated a good faith effort to
implement one or both of these programs, CalRecycle may issue an Order of
Compliance, including a compliance schedule (PRC Section 41825). CalRecycle will
follow the procedures for issuing compliance orders it adopted at the January 23-24,
2001, Board meeting. The compliance order will identify the programs for mandatory
commercial recycling and mandatory commercial organics recycling that are not being
implemented by the jurisdiction. CalRecycle will set a specific schedule for the
jurisdiction to act on these findings, to be determined on a case-by-case basis.
CalRecycle will follow the requirements of PRC Section 41825 regarding issuing a
jurisdiction a compliance order for failure to adequately implement its MCR and/or
MORe programs.

If CalRecycle finds, after the public hearing, that a jurisdiction has failed to adequately
implement its requirements under AB 1594 and fits into Scenarios |l or IV and has not
made a good faith effort to address the barriers to divert greenwaste that was being used
as ADC, CalRecycle may issue an Order of Compliance, including a compliance
schedule (PRC Section 41825). CalRecycle will follow the procedures for issuing
compliance orders it adopted at the January 23-24, 2001, Board meeting. The
compliance order will identify the greenwaste programs that are not being implemented.
CalRecycle will set a specific schedule for the jurisdiction to act on these findings, to be
determined on a case-by-case basis.

CalRecycle will follow the requirements of PRC Section 41825 regarding issuing a
jurisdiction a compliance order for failure to adequately implement AB 1594's
requirements.

If a jurisdiction fails to meet the requirements of its compliance order and CalRecycle is
determining whether or not to impose a fine, or determining the amount of a fine,
including cases where a jurisdiction failed to meet the diversion requirements due to
the inability to count the excluded wastes (agricultural waste, inert solids, scrap metals
and white goods), CalRecycle will follow the requirements of PRC Section 41850(b).
That Section states that in determining the amount of any penalties imposed, including
penalties imposed due to the exclusion of solid waste pursuant to PRC Section
41781.2 which results in a reduction in the quantity of solid waste diverted by a city or

37

52



county, CalRecycle shall consider only those relevant circumstances which have
prevented a city or county or regional agency from meeting the diversion requirements,
PRC Section 41850 provides a non-exclusive list of potential circumstances
CalRecycle shall consider before assessing a fine, as noted in the “Statutory Relief
Considerations” section below.

Statutory Relief Considerations

The preceding criteria will be used to recommend to CalRecycle whether a jurisdiction
has implemented its SRRE, HHWE, and met the MCR, MORe, and AB 1594
requirements. Administrative civil penalties of up to $10,000 per day per may be levied
on jurisdictions failing to implement their SRRE and HHWEs, or for failing to meet these
other requirements; however, statute allows CalRecycle to consider the following
circumstances when determining the amount of the civil penaity.

» Disasters or acts of nature, such as the Northridge, Femdale, and Loma Prieta
earthquakes, the Oakland Hiils and Malibu fires, or the mudslides that are common
to California, which result in short-term increases in the amount of wastes sent to
landfills and short or long-term re-direction of city and county personnel who must
respond fo the health and safety issues resulting from the acts of nature.

» Budgetary conditions within a jurisdiction that could not be remedied by the
imposition or adjustment of solid waste fees. Examples include high
unemployment, a limited tax base, or existing solid waste contracts that cannot be
altered.

> Work stoppages that directly prevent a jurisdiction from implementing its source
reduction and recycling element. This may include unanticipated industry
closures, closure of privately-owned composting or materials recovery facilities,
strikes by city or county labor unions, or work stoppages in private industries that
provide support and/or materials to a jurisdiction through a public-private
partnership.

» The extent to which a jurisdiction has implemented additional source reduction,
recycling, and composting activities to comply with the diversion requirements. This
would include the implementation of programs not initially selected in the SRRE, but
chosen to make up for an unanticipated diversion shortfall in a selected program or
to adjust to meet changes in the composition of the jurisdiction's waste stream.

» The extent to which a jurisdiction is meeting the diversion requirements.

» The extent to which a jurisdiction has made good faith efforts to implement its
SRRE or HHWE. "Good faith effort” is shown when a city, county, or regional
agency has made all reasonable and feasible efforts to implement those programs
or activities identified in its SRRE or HHWE, or altemative programs or activities

38

53



that achieve the same or similar results. A jurisdiction will be required to
demonstrate to CalRecycle its good faith efforts. CalRecycle will determine the
adequacy of the effort, as described by the city, county or regional agency.

» MCR has some specific provisions for determining Good Faith Effort at PRC
42649.3 (i)(1-7).

» MORe has some specific provisions for determining Good Faith Effort at PRC
42649.82 (h)(1-10).

Compliance Order and Schedule

Jurisdictions that are issued Compliance Orders by CalRecycle will work with staff to
develop compliance schedules for implementing the Order. CalRecycle staff will
monitor the progress of the jurisdiction throughout the compliance period. In
determining the appropriate compliance schedule, staff recommends CalRecycle
consider the following:

a) Existing budgetary and/or personnel constraints or other compelling
issues within the jurisdiction (for example, time required to solicit
proposals, conduct bid processes, establish pilot programs, generate
funding),

b) Alternative programs the jurisdiction may undertake to meet the
diversion requirements (including MCR, MORe, and AB 1594)
and/or SRRE implementation requirements;

c) Local regulatory or zoning conditions that would prohibit or
postpone compliance; and

d) Impacts of the compliance schedule to public health and the environment.

Staff recommends CalRecycle include specific requirements in the compliance
schedule to ensure compliance is attained, including, but not limited to, the following:

a) A date by which the jurisdiction will achieve compliance with the
requirements set forth by CalRecycle; and

b) A specific monitoring schedule for CalRecycle to assess progress
toward compliance.

Time frames for monitoring a jurisdiction's performance may include periodic {(e.g.,
quarterly) progress reports of the jurisdiction's efforts to attain compliance.

Penalty Structure

CalRecycle may impose fines only after a jurisdiction fails to adhere to the Compliance
Order and schedule requirements. Fines would be levied according to the cause of

39

54



failure to adequately implement a SRRE, HHWE, or meet the MCR, MORe and/or AB
1594 requirements, as listed below. Staff will recommend to CalRecycle an appropriate
level of penalty, based on an analysis of the above-mentioned criteria.

1. "Serious" failure includes jurisdictions that fail to implement their SRRE, HHWE,
MCR or MORe requirements without reason or justification. The fine
recommended for this type of viclation would be no less than $5,000 and up to the
maximum $10,000 per day.

2. "Moderate” failure includes jurisdictions that fail to implement their SRRE, HHWE.
MCR or MORe requirements due to mitigating circumstances that have no bearing
on natural disasters, budgetary constraints and work stoppages. Mitigating
circumstances would be determined on a case-by-case basis by CalRecycle. The
fine recommended for this type of violation would be $1,000 to $5,000 per day.

3. "Minor" failure includes jurisdictions that have implemented some or all programs,
buthave failed to meet the diversion requirements to some extent. Fines will be
based on information provided by jurisdictions as outlined in the above criteria for
implementation, and on statutory relief considerations. Fines, if determined to be
appropriate, will be decided by CalRecycle on a case-by-case basis, and would
range from $1 to up to $1,000 per day.

Notwithstanding the above penalty structure, if a jurisdiction demonstrates that it has
made a good faith effort to implement its SRRE and to meet the MCR, MORe, and AB
1594 requirements, including achieving the diversion requirements, CalRecycle, on a
case-by-case basis, shall not impose any penalties.

Removal of Penalties

Jurisdictions may only be fined after failing to adhere to the compliance order and
schedule. Fines will continue until a jurisdiction has implemented the programs as
outfined in the compliance order.

CONCLUSION

CalRecycle staff has prepared this report that explains the method and criteria staff
recommends using to determine whether local jurisdiction SRREs, HHWES, and the
requirements of MCR, MORe, and AB 1594 have been adequately implemented. It
also proposes a process that CalRecycle and local jurisdictions would use to achieve
compliance with implementation requirements, and the structure of penalties that may
be imposed on jurisdictions that fail to adequately implement their SRREs and HHWEs
and the requirements of MCR, MORe, and AB 1594.

40

55



APPENDICES

Appendix A: Definitions

"Disasters/Acts of Nature" includes the proclamation by the Governor or a local
governing body of the existence of conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the
safety of persons and property within the state or local area caused by such
conditions as air pollution, fire, flood, storm, epidemic, riot, drought, sudden and
severe energy shortage, plant or animal infestation or disease, the Govemor's
warning of an earthquake or volcanic prediction, or an earthquake or other
conditions which, by reason of their magnitude, are likely to be beyond the control of
the services, personnel, equipment, and facilities of any single county, city and
county, or city.

"Disposai" means all waste created by all sources within each jurisdiction {(including
businesses, govemment agencies and residents) which is disposed at CalRecycle-
permitted landfills or CalRecycle-pemmitted transformation facilities, or is exported

from the state. CalRecycle tracks tons of waste disposed by each jurisdiction using
its Disposal Reporting System. Also, see Public Resources Code Section 41821.5.

"Diversion program" means a program in the source reduction and recycling element
of a jurisdiction’s integrated waste management plan, specified in Chapter 2
(Commencing with Section 41000) of, or Chapter 3 (commencing with Section
41300) of, Part 2 and that has the purpose of diverting solid waste from landfill
disposal or transformation through source reduction, recycling, and composting
activities. “Diversion program additionally includes any amendments, revisions, or
updates to the element, and any programs set forth in a time extension, alternative
requirement, or compliance order approved by CalRecycle pursuant to Part 2
(commencing with Section 40900).

"Employment" means the estimate of the annual average number of employees by
jurisdiction as prepared by the California Employment Development Department
(EDD). It is the number of people aged 16 years or older employed at places within
each jurisdiction's boundaries (industry employment)--not the number of jurisdiction
residents with jobs (labor force employment). Employment includes full-time and
part-time employees even if the employee is on paid vacation or paid sick leave, but
not if the employee is involved in a labor-management dispute. Self-employed,
unpaid family workers, and private household employees are not included. ltis a
benchmark estimate to compare year-to-year employment change.

"Estimated generation amounts" The estimated reporting year generation amount is
calculated by adjusting the base-year generation for changes in population and
economics. The uniform method for adjusting waste disposal to account for changes

56



in population and economics adjusts the maximum allowable reporting year disposal
amount using a combination of the ratios of base-year to report-year population,
employment, taxable retail sales and Consumer Price Index factors. Waste tonnage
from the residential sector are calculated separately from waste from the non-
residential sector (i.e., commercial/industrial wastes); then the waste tonnage from
both sectors are added together, as the adjustment factors influence residential and
non-residential wastes in a slightly different way. Pursuant to SB 1016 (Wiggins,
2008) as of January 1, 2009, measurement of the PRC Section 41780 diversion
requirement has changed to a disposal based measurement system. Accordingly
jurisdictions are no longer required to calculate their estimated generation amount for
each reporting year.

"Excluded waste types" PRC Section 41781.2 specifies that agricuttural wastes,
inert solids, scrap metals, and white goods that were diverted in the base year as a
result of diversion programs that began prior to January 1, 1990, are not allowed to
count toward base-year diversion claims unless CalRecycle receives documentation
showing that three specific criteria are met. These waste types are referred to by
CalRecycle as “restricted wastes.”

"Full implementation" means the accomplishment of the program tasks, including the
achievement of waste diversion requirements, as identified in each component of the
Source Reduction and Recycling Element or Household Hazardous Waste Element.

"Good Faith Effort” means all reasonable and feasible efforts by a city, county, or
regional agency to implement those programs or activities identified in its Source
Reduction and Recycling Element and Household Hazardous Waste Element, or
alternative programs or activities that achieve the same or similar results [PRC
Section 41850 (d) (1)]. Good faith effort is further defined in PRC Section 41850(d)
(2) and (3). Subsection (3) refers to the criteria in this policy document. Good Faith
Effort is defined for MCR in PRC section 42649.3(i) and for MORe in PRC Section
42649.82(h).

"Jurisdiction" means the city, county, or regional agency that is approved by
CalRecycle pursuant to Section 40975.

"Multicounty regional agency” means a regional agency, as defined in PRC Section
40181, that includes all of the jurisdictions that are located in at least two or more
rural counties.

"Per capita disposal” is a numeric indicator of reported disposal divided by

jurisdiction population (residents) or in some cases jurisdiction industry employment
(employees) to obtain disposal by individual.

37



"50 percent per capita disposal target” is the amount of disposal that is
approximately equivalent to the current 50 percent diversion requirement. To meet
the 50 percent goal, jurisdictions must dispose of not more than their 50 percent per
capita disposal target. For most jurisdictions, the 50 percent per capita disposal
target will be based on the average of 50 percent of generation in 2003 through 2006
expressed in terms of per capita disposal.

"Poputation” means the January 1 estimate of the number of inhabitants occupying a
jurisdiction as prepared by the California Department of Finance (DOF) for each non-
Census year (calendar year ending with a digit other than zero). "Population” aiso
means the April 1 U.S. Census count for each Census year (calendar year ending
with the digit zero). Population includes each person at the place where the person
lives and sleeps most of the time. This place is not necessarily the same as the
person's voting residence or legal residence. Noncitizens who are living in the United
States are included, regardless of their immigration status. Persons are included
regardless of characteristics such as: college student, commuter worker, domestic
worker or live- in nanny, foreign national, homeless, hospital or nursing home patient,
prisoner, intermittent resident or "snow-bird," military member, tourist or
undocumented worker. The fundamental goal is to count each person once, only
once, and in the correct "usual residence" location according to U.S. Census
residence rules.

“Rural city" or "rural regional agency” means a city or regional agency that is located
within a rural county as defined in PRC Section 40183(a).

"Rural county" means a county or multicounty regional agency that annually
disposes of no more than 200,000 tons of solid waste as defined in PRC Section
40184(a).

58



Appendix B: Relevant Waste Reduction Statutes

» PRC Section 40973 states that the regional agency, and not the cities or
counties which are member agencies of the regional agency, may be
responsible for compliance with Section 41780 if specified in the
agreement pursuant to which the regional agency is formed. PRC Section
40973(c) states that if all member jurisdictions of a regional agency are
rural cities or rural counties, as defined in PRC Sections 40183-40184,
respectively, the regional agency may be eligible for a reduction of the
diversion requirements of PRC Section 41780.

> PRC Section 40974 states that notwithstanding PRC Section 40972, each
city or county which is a member agency of a regional agency is liable for any
civil penalties which may be imposed by CalRecycle pursuant to PRC
Sections 41813 or 41850. However, an agreement which establishes a
regional agency may apportion any civil penalties between or among the
cities or counties which are member agencies of the regional agency if the
total amount of civil penalties which may be imposed against the regional
agency is equivalent to that amount which is the sum of the penalties which
may be imposed against each city or county which is a member agency of
the regional agency.

» PRC Section 41780 requires jurisdictions to reduce the amount of waste
sent to landfills by 25 percent by 1995 and 50 percent by the year 2000.

» PRC Section 41781.3 as amended by AB 1594 provides the new
ADC/Green Waste requirements.

> PRC Section 41782 allows CalRecycle to make adjustments to the amounts
reported pursuant to subdivisions (a) and (c) of PRC Section 41821.5, if the
city, county, or regional agency demonstrates, and CalRecycle concurs,
based on substantial evidence in the record, that achievement of the
diversion requirements of PRC Section 41780 is not feasible due to the fact
that a medical waste treatment facility, as defined in Health and Safety
Code Section 25025(a), accepts untreated medical waste, which was
generated outside of the jurisdiction, for purposes of treatment, and the
medical waste, when treated, becomes solid waste.

» PRC Section 41783 allows a jurisdiction submitting a SRRE after January 1,
1995, and on or before January 1, 2009, to include diversion of not more
than 10 of the 50 percent diversion requirement through transformation if
statutory requirements are met and allows for SRREs submitied thereafter to
reduce the per capita disposal rate by an amount to achieve the same effect
(up to 10 of the 50% diversion rate equivalent).

59



» PRC Section 41820.5 allows CalRecycle to grant a time extension from the
diversion requirement of Section 41780 to a city if it incorporated after
January 1, 1990 and if the county within which the city is located did not
include provisions in its franchises which ensured that the now incorporated
area would comply with the diversion requirements of Section 41780.

» PRC Section 41825 states that according to either a two or a four year
schedule based upon whether the jurisdiction was in compliance with PRC
Section 41780 for the calendar year 2006, CalRecycle shail review each city,
county, or regional agency SRRE and HHWE. If, after a public hearing,
which, to the extent possible, is held in the local or regional agency's
jurisdiction, CalRecycle finds that the city, county, or regional agency has
failed to implement its SRRE or its HHWE, CalRecycle shall issue an order of
compliance with a specific schedule for achieving compliance. The
compliance order shall include those conditions which CalRecycle
determines to be necessary for the local agency or regional agency to
complete in order to implement its SRRE or HHWE

» PRC Section 41850 allows CalRecycle, after holding a public hearing and
issuing an order of compliance pursuant to Section 41825, to impose
administrative civil penalties of up to ten thousand dollars per day (until the
jurisdiction implements the element) on jurisdictions that have failed to make
a good faith effort to implement their SRRE or HHWE. This section directs
CalRecycle to consider only those relevant circumstances that have
prevented a jurisdiction from meeting the diversion requirements, and
provides examples of legitimate relevant circumstances. This section also
describes what is meant by "good faith effort”.

» PRC Section 41850.5 states that any administrative civil penalty imposed by
CalRecycle pursuant to Sections 41813 or 41850 shall be deposited in the
Local Government Assistance Account. Funds deposited in that account
shall be used solely for the purposes of assisting local governments in
complying with the diversion requirements.

» PRC Section 42649 et seq. describes the MCR requirements.
» PRC Section 42649.8 et seq. describes the MORe Requirements.

60



Mandatory Commercial Organics Recycling Page 1 of 2

]

GaiRecycle/qf

Mandatory Commercial Organics Reeyeling . .~
Background and Overview
in October of 2014 Governor Brown sighed AB 1826 Chesbro {Chapter 727, Statutes of 2014),

:Program News...

requiring businesses to recycle their organic waste on and after April 1, 2016, depending on the D Updated FAQs now avaliable.
amount of waste they generate per week. This law also requires that on and after January 1, 20186,

local jurigdictions across the state implement an organic waste recycling program to divert organic » Mandatory Commercial
waste generated by businesses, including multifamily residential dwellings that consist of five or more Organics Recycling (AB 1826)

units {piease note, however, that, multifamily dwellings are not required to have a food waste diversion Miaterials (Apri 301 %)
program). Organic waste (also referred to as organics throughout this resource} means food waste, I

green waste, landscape and pruning waste, nonhazardous wood waste, and food-soiled paper waste I_'Ei Subscribe to Listsery

that is mixed in with food waste. This law phases in the mandatory recycling of commercial organics over time, while also offering an
exemption procass for rural counties. In particutar, the minimum threshold of organic waste generation by businesses decreasas over

time, which means that an increasingly greater proportion of the commercial sector will be required to comply.

Why Organics? Mandatory recycling of organic waste is the next step toward achieving California's aggressive recycling and greenhouse
gas (GHG) emission goais. California disposes approximately 30 million tons of waste in landfills each year, of which more than 30
percent could be used for compost or mulch (see the 2008 Waste Characterization Study). Organic waste such as green materials and
food materials are recyclable through composting and mulching, and through anaerobic digestion, which can produce renewable energy
and fuel. Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions resulting from the decompesition of organic wastes in landfills have been identified as a
significant source of emissions contributing to global climate change. Reducing the amount of organic materials sent to landfills and

increasing the production of compost and mulch are part of the AB 32 (California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2008) Scoping Plan.

For more information en the connection between the waste sector and California’s GHG emission reduction goals, please see
CalRecycle’s Climate Change page

Key Elements of the Law

The pages below address the specific requirements of businesses, jurisdictions, and CalRecycle.

“# Business Requirements and R rces
“® Local Government Requirements and Resources
-2 CalRecycle Reguirements

Implementation Dates and Thresholds

The law phases in the requirements on businesses, including multifamily residential dweliings that consist of five or more units,* over ime
based on the amount and type of waste the business produces on a weekly basis, with full inplementation realized in 2019. Additionally,
the law contains a 2020 trigger that will increase the scope of affected businesses, if waste reduction targets are not met. The
implementation schedule is as follows:

-® January 1, 2016: Local jurisdictions must have an organic waste recycling program in place. Jurisdictions must conduct outreach,
education to inform businesses how to recycle organic waste in the jurisdiction, and monitering to identify those not recycling and
inform them of the law and how to recycle organic waste.

“# April 1, 2016: Businesses that generate eight cubic yards of organic waste per week must arrange for organic waste recycling
services.

*# January 1, 2017: Businesses that generate four cubic yards of organic waste par week must arrange for organic waste recycling
services.

=¥ August 1, 2017 and Ongoing: Jurisdictions must provide information about their organic waste recycling program implementation in
the annual report submitted to CalRecycle. (See above for description of information to be provided.)

= Fall 2018: After receipt of the 2016 annual reports submitted on August 1, 2017, CalRecycle shall conduct its formal review of those
jurisdictions that are on a two-vear review cycle

“® January 1, 2019: Businesses that generate four cubic yards or more of commercial solid waste per week must arrange for organic
waste recycling services.

“# Fall 2020: After receipt of the 2019 annual reports submitted on August 1, 2020, CalRecycle shall conduct its formal review of all
jurisdictions.

http://www.calrecycle.ca. gov/Recycle/Commercial prganics/ 8/7/2015



Mandatory Commercial Organics Recycling

Page 2 of 2

® Summer/Fall 2021: If CalRecycle determines that the statewide disposal of organic waste in 2020 has not been reduced by 50
percent of the level of disposal during 2014, the organic recycling requirements on businesses will expand to cover businesses that
generate two cubic yards or more of commercial solid waste per week. Additionally certain exemptions, previously discussed, may no

longer be available if this target is not met.

*Note: Multifamily dwellings are not required to have a food waste diversion program.

Related Resources

=# Freguently Asked Questions (FAQ). This FAQ provides
CalRecycle's responses to frequently asked guestions from
stakeholders about the requirements of commercial organic
recycling under AB 1826.

=¥ Mandatory Commercial Organics Recycling (AB 1826)
Stakeholder Workshop Materials {(April 2015). Presentation,
proposed FAQS, generator identification tool, info on annual
reporting, example programs, program needs assessment
tool, and Countywide Integrated Waste Management Plan
(CIWMP) enforcement revisions.

- Contact Search. Use the Contact Search form to locate
jurisdiction (city, county, or regional agency) contacts and/or
identify the CalRecycle liaison assigned to a jurisdiction.

P CalRecycle's Food scraps management provides information
by generator (e.g., Hotels/Restaurants, Health Care Industry
Stadiums/Special Events Colleges/Universities).

=¥ Find a Composter Near You Locate compost and/or mulch
facilities by county and feedstock accepted. Additional facility
information is available using CalRecycle's Facifity
Information Toolbox (FaclT).

L T

Last updated: June 18 2015
Business Assistance, http://www.calrecycle.ca.qov/Business/

Local Assistance & Market Development, LAMD@calrecycle.ca goy (916) 341-6199

*# USEPA Food Recovery Challenge Participants reduce
wasted food through prevention, donation, composting, and
anaercbic digestion.

@ USEPA's Reducing Wasted Food & Packaging Toolkit. The
free toolkit includes a PDF guide and a tracking toot (Excel
spreadsheet) to help food service facilities identify and
implement opportunities to reduce food and packaging waste,
which saves money and reduces envircnmental impacts.

B CalRecycle's site for organics materials management
technologies has multiple resources including list of anaerobic
digestion projects, guidance, a listserv, and program news.
These and other resources are all accessible from
CalRecycle’s organics home page, which is regularly
updated.

-® Stay up to date on CalRecycle's proposed regulations on

Compostable Materials, Transfer/Processing by signing up for
the related listerv

Conditions of Use | Privacy Policy | Language Complaint Form

©1995, 2015 California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle). All rights reserved.

hitp://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Recycle/Commercial/grganics/

8/7/2015



2)seM 21uebig d19y)

9]2£>3yY o0} paiinbay ag uoog
1M saxajduwo) Apwesny
pue sassauisng eiwioyije)

uoljeuniou| 3oeIU0)

“{BICEIUIGHESOTI WANAR) JpjlooL
ssaulsng |jews (94) pieog sadinosay Jly ejulioy|ed ‘9

‘(a|qejieae uaym) sassauisng Auew
MO 2uluuap 03 suonipsuni 1oy |00y aLoay(ed ‘g

URUInesp
POO/501UenIO/ACD B DA B MMM/ [ .ﬁr_..-m
abey awoH uswabeuepy dens pood apAayed ¢

WyOv
M

el

“(SDV) suonsanp paysy
Apuanbayy (BYOW) BulpA>ay Juebig Alojepuey ¢

7531UeBin)

wmmn_ awoH (3YOW) bu _u>uw= u_:mm._o met:mE 4

sweificid Bulp£oay soiuebig Liojepuey
Bunuswadw| pue Bujuueid Yyym siuswiutasob
|ed0] I5|s5E O} BjqejeAr m_ tﬂm n_s_.q._ *(xase

speuo?) Yeys 8.2«1; juswdojaAsg
19M)Jely pue BdURSISSY [BX07 BIAIRY[RD °|
sadinosay s

$32/N05aY |20
$92JN0S9Y

£ZST-STOZ Yyya

‘BZ0T uj siabipy uoy>npal
{psodsip 1a3iu o) sjpy 2163 3113 jj UoRDIdXD 6} 332fqns 5] UCHGWAXE S|

*SJUDAD UD252I0JUN pue AJ_UIpIORIIXD
1o} pajuesb 5q Aew suopdwaxs wu)-pajjurt -

» (uondwiaxa Jayby siy3 Joy

pa3au 3y suiejdxa Jey) uoneuLIojul WM 3DAdDYERD

sapjacid uondpsuni [e30] 3yl J1) yaam sad

9)sem djuehilo Jo pled Jiqnd Suo 1sed) je ajesauab
10U s30p sassauisng jo dnoub Jo ssauisng ay] -

ojaam tad ajsem
s1uebio jo pied ign> e Jo Jjey-suo Jses| je jelaush
10U s30p sassauisng Jo dnoab so sssuisng 3y| -

"3)5eM
siuebio jo uorod Jueyiubis e jo SulpAdal ay) ul

3|NSaJ 1B4f) SUOIDE SJUSWIB|CIM| APUBLIND SSAUISNC YL »

‘suyq BuypAai [eusiew
1uebio jeuonyippe apiaosd o) adeds Jusyns
y}or| sassauisng Jo saxajdwod Ajjuweyjnw ayy -

reuld Bumojjo) oYy

40 Aue J9awW Jey) saXa|dW0d AjIWRIRINW pue s3553U
-15nq 01 suondwaxa juelb ‘siseq ased-Ag-ssed e uo 0}
suondLpsUN{ smojje me| 3y ssuondwaxa ased-4q-ased)

saxajdwod

Apwejnnw pue sassauisng
40} suondwax3

63



suiapcho | hm ey
ey O {jr a0 o arvd o ByE 05 Vi En DR [U0) nRER | iU slow
0 abpraepannd Gugad sl
M1 48 L I STRLIVRTATG B R S IR0 UREE DUl ol iy

(3 0y £eb jeinieu Gemaual

ol paliaalo s 3 anym A)oe) uosabip Jlgolasue
UBSiauLieg B0/ UBS|D) 0) 31sE4 POy JOSU0L £
uetp 2401 pagsnp (S0 auy 1esd Jsig a0 u) Ajep
siEallc /g | nane BUIAIES UalZly ujBw & pligSiued
negsal pswond 1sanh £05 Sey [R104 sy St

| LOZ W WiesBaud U302 ajsem usail pue poo)

g efian alussenes uniatouAbuabay nelua

‘jjenuue pajsodwod sdeids pooy Jo suoj

£E puB shol2uOp POO) 3{q)pa jO SUOL 85 Ul Bunynsas
‘WeiBaid 5| uj-eiedpied salogs Usay 'oBalg
Ligc o Aur aul Ag pageragio Yualsaln Jewel Sy 10
Brutitiduian 10j s 5| pody 8|d|pst| pue Hlieq poo)
paEiNy Buigoad iy 0) pajeudp s poo ajgipa "L Lo
20U9 Senuaiiegy pabejueapesp o) angsal poo) pue
Ysoduios Jog sdzps pob) 1o BON3R)|03 S bl pajed|
Sped anel e Ues U S2i01s Aol suesHag)y
Sali0}1s5 55822N%

ireserEma s Jatiuoll pue-stiojido Buliaiaal
Sieeio |E30) 4aul N0 senAldwod fjlweiinw

puE sassaUsng aleanpa suohdo BuipAsal Jjueblio
apiiedd 03 weibo)d BuypAaa isem (ueBIo UB
Watuajdiul o) padinbai sp uoliaipsun [e30)] ana 'Fsem
3juebio sjau) BUipA33) 1els o) AulpEsR a1 0 40Lg

ME| MU 341 Ui Aldwod ssssauisng (23]

e e o B

e ssiplugad e oy S e P s BB J52I0 B L1k 330 e
1 Bou R el Pap-pond T POC) e pRapsl supden

T TR TR TIT I AT A PR O e T R =2 R LRI TR SR Rl S B B e

=p3sia djuebio pajeisuad DU 3DUOP 40 [|F5 b
@y EEBIO SApias
Kieayiaads Jou) Bujssaaoid apSUR IR sapnE)
yeL 20jasas Bujpbas asem duebio ue o) 3qLOSONS '€
BujpAsal yjuebio JojsisEm
Jjuehiio (ney-jlas 1o D35Us SsBn aueER sRlDy T
“HYFEM FURRID
30 Buip&ars pur LoRRRled sepnEUY Aualnads e
eajasns Bujphang agsem auefio ue of sqlaxqgns pue
s Jayio woly sjses yuebio aeiedas-gaunos L

¢ EluBlUA nbal pue sEaUBURO ey

L aouEldwes Ul st boioe alyy jey) papiacid ‘suoie
Bupmoljol #13 Jo UopeLigLued Aue o aub Bulye; Ag
130 g Uk a3sea 3iuebio a0 o Wslualinbaiay)

sa21a425 BuipAday >i1uebip

Jiey Aq pasEaisap 10U 53 31SEM JUERID
10 [esodsip epIMElEs 1 0o Jad BT pIes jo

spue 24qna A0 40 7 jo sioneseusb - pzoz 'L Aenuer,
Hyaam Jod JjECE B0

0 Stk 2|gno a0l J0 b jo siojrisual - 5102 'L Aenuer
b2 Jad 33sem Muehio

10 SpJEA 2MND 2404 10  jO SoliEunE - £ LOZ ‘L faenuEr
hipam 2daisem Juelio

 J0 SEREA AT RIGW 40 8 10 sioaEskeb - ooz’ | j1dy

saep Buimolio) a4 Ag sisem 3juebio BuipAlal
1ieis niu saxadiues fjweilinu pue ssssalisng

Al o) FDURLIE 0} MOW Wits] 03
LM Y320y ‘asem IuEkio Jo
SadAl iaaHp Jo AlaLeA BRIM € 102008 U0 SA0|ALES

BUIpAa) HueBIp ‘VoisADIP Jqemeue pus Bumsjnul
Glunsodiuod se yans spouiat YBn oy ajgepAzal &

FR5EM I|URDI0 IS0 it BI}0S-PO0) PUR HISER, OO}

1O UCRda0RA Sk UM BNl SLUBS B 0] S2IIAIES
Bulpfiaad Joj sBuese Jnw sausitwoed Artning)

; 4aded pa)|os-pRg) PUE ‘SiSEM POCM SNORTIERIGY
Sosea Buunid pueadeaspue) aisem uaaih 'Sisem
pooy wasem dfuehin j0 s2dl) DuAGHO) BUY 1o} SRS
BuipAaal joj abUgLe Sessausng Sel salinba mel ]

sjustannbsy L103enbay

(phaagnny) Kianoday pun Bul 35y SE0N0SY JO JUNL)IAA] BIUICDD

APUNWWod no u| sqof uaaub

Bupuoddns ajiym 53500 [esodsip Buldnpal Ag Aduowl
sassauisng aAes ued
a1sem duebio Buix£ay |, “Ajjenuue sjjypuej u) sodsip
sueLIOJI{eD jeLRIRW Bl Jo uddiad O Inoqe Joj
sjunodoe asem diuehio ajqepAday (MONM NOAAId

‘noA 0} sjgejieae

suonydo Buip4da) pue uoi3||oD a)sem djuebio Jnoge

2JOLL US| 0 24My204q SIY) peay 'sjuawalinbal

a1e15 mau ayy yum Aidwiod noA djpy 03 aley aue
Auedwiod Bujney

pue JEYeTs)

yeam 1ad ajesauab Aay) aisem Jo Junowe 2yy uo buy
-puadap ‘90T ‘1 judy J2)ye pue uo jsem sjuebio Jay}
3[2A52. 0} paiinbal 3Je 10U JO SHUN § JO saX3|dwod
Ajuejnnw pue ‘sapnus aygnd Bujpnpul ‘sessaujsng

*0Z07 Aq 915eM 51 JO

Wa2uad g/ 2pAdai 0} [eob 53 J9a a)els Ayl dRy jm
pue 51234 {e12A3S JAA0 Ul paseyd aq jm siuawainbal
BuipAra) s1uebio mau ‘gzgL gy Jo sbessed syl yim




Agenda Item VIII

SOLID WASTE
REGULATORY UPDATES



66



Recycling Fraud Arrest: Second Trucker Busted at Border. June 1, 2015 Press Release. ‘Page 1 of 1

 CalRecycle/gh)

For Immediate Release For more information contact:
June 1, 2015 Media Contact: Lance Klup {CalRecycle)

Release #2015-12

Recycling Fraud Arrest: Second Trucker Busted at Border: $15,356 out-of-state haul
stopped at agricultural checkpoin

SACRAMENTOC--For the second time in as many months, the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery {CalRecycle) is
announcing the arrest of a semi-truck driver on recycling fraud charges. Similar to the pricr incident, this case invoives importing out-of-
state empty beverage containers for the purpose of defrauding the California Redemption Value {CRV) fund.

“When criminals try to cash in on out-of-state efnpty beverage containers, they essentially try to steal from every Californian who pays the
CRYV fee at the cash register,” CalRecycle Director Caroll Mortensen said. “We'll continue to do everything it takes to stop fraud and
prevent criminals from making illicit gains from our beverage container recycling program.”

CalRecycle works closely with its enforcement partners at the California Department of Justice and the Depariment of Food and
Agriculiure to enforce CRV fraud-prevention efforts.

On May 12, members of DOJ's Recycling Fraud Team were conducting surveillance at a recycling center in Phoenix, Ariz., when they
observed a "B&S Transport’ semi-truck out of Baldwin Park, Calif., being loaded with bags of empty beverage containers. The semi left
the Phoenix recycling center in the afternoan and arrived at the Blythe border agricutturat checkpoint in Riverside County that evening.
There, according to the arrest report, the driver told the checkpoint inspector that his truck was empty. However, upon inspection, the
trailer was found to contain the used beverage containers that were observed being loaded in Phoenix — a total of 8,548 pounds of
aluminum and 1,622 pounds of plastic with a potential value of more than $15,000 in ilegal CRV refunds.

After being interviewed by RFT agents, driver Ricardo Rodriguez of Colton, in San Bemarding County, was arrested on recycling fraud
and attempted grand theft charges. His arraignment is set for July 14 at the Riverside County Courthouse in Indio.

California’s Beverage Container Recycling and Litter Reduction Act incentivizes recycling through a CRV fee paid by California
consumers at the time of purchase and refunded upon return of the empty containers. Since the fee is not paid by cut-of-state consumers,
out-of-state containers are not eligible for CRV redemption. CalRecycle aggressively combats fraud through enhanced training of
recycling center owners, increased scrutiny of payment claims, daily load limits, and increased enforcement and inspection efforts with
cooperation from California’s DOJ and CDFA's agricultural checkpoints.

—
ENE G
Connect With Us:n E !fl
e

CalRecycle is the state's leading authority on recycling, waste reduction, and product reuse. CalRecycle plays an important role in the
stewardship of California‘s vast resources and promotes innovation in technology te encourage economic and environmental
sustainability. For more information, visit www,calrecycle.ca.gov,

...................................................................................................................................................................................................

News Room hitp:/iaww calrecycle ca.gov/MNewsRoom/
Public Affairs Office: opa@calrecycle.ca.qov (916) 341-6300

Conditions of Use | Privacy Poticy
©1995, 2015 California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle). All rights reserved.

http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/NewsRoom/201 5/06ne/12.htm 6/1/2015



Recycling Fraud Border Bust-Third Arrest of 2015: CRV scammer thwarted with $7,000 ... Page 1 of 1

S PRSPV Ny —" Y TR R 4 s T N A 1 . YAt
CalRecycle @

For Immediate Release For more information contact:

July 7, 2015 Media Contact: Lance Klug (CalRetycle)

Release #2015-13

Recycling Fraud Border Bust-Third Arrest of 2015: CRV scammer thwarted with

..................................................................................................................................................................................................

SACRAMENTO--For the third time in 2015, a truck driver faces charges for smuggling out-of-state used beverage containers across our
border in an attempt to defraud the California Redemption Value (CRV) fund. With this latest arrest, the Depariment of Resources
Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) reaffims its commitment to protect California funds with vigorous prevention and enforcement
efforts.

"Our enforcement partners with the California Department of Justice’s Recycling Fraud Team are relentless when it comes to locating,
surveilling and ultimately disrupting these CRV fraud schemes,” CalRecycle Acting Director Ken DaRosa said. “From the monitoring of
recycling centers, in-state and out- of-state, to the continued vigilance at California’s border agricultural checkpoints, illegal haulers should
know that we are going all-out o shut them down.”

CalRecycle works closely with the California Department of Justice and Department of Food and Agriculture to enforce CRV fraud-
prevention efforis.

Cesar Vargas of Compton, 42, was amested by DOJ Recycling Fraud Team agents on June 23, 2015. While conducting surveillance on
recycling centers in Phoenix, Ariz., agents spotted a red semi with a white trailer labeled "Franklin Express” of Compton being loaded with
used beverage containers at an undocumented business at 4235 W. Clarenden Ave. More than three hours after its departure, the semi
arrived at the Blythe Agricultural Checkpoint in Riverside County, where a driver, later identified as Vargas, told inspectors his trailer was
emply. A subsequent inspection revealed nearly 7,000 pounds of plastic and aluminum used beverage containers worth an estimated
$7.136. The driver could not produce an Imported Maleriais Report, which is required under 2014 reform regulations to fight CRV fraud in
the state.

Vargas was arrested on recycling fraud and attempted grand theft charges, and his truck was impounded, His arraignment is set for Aug.
18 in Indio, Recycling Fraud Team agents made two similar arrests at agricultural checkpaints earlier this year. one in Yermg, Calif., and
another at the Biythe station where Vargas was detained.

California's Beverage Container Recycling and Litter Reduction Act incentivizes recycling through a CRV fee paid by Califomia
consumers at the time of purchase and refunded upon return of the empty beverage containers. Since the fee is not paid by cut-of-state
consumers, out-of-state beverage containers are not eligible for CRV redemption. CalRecycle aggressively combats fraud through
enhanced training of recycling center owners, increased scrutiny of payment claims, daily load limits, and increased enforcement and
inspection efforts with cooperation from Califomia’s DOJ and CDFA's agricultural checkpoints.

__ __'". “II_
Connect With Us:m £ by E

HEE

CalRecycle is the state's leading authority on recycling, waste reduction, and product reuse. CalRecycle plays an important role in the
stewardship of California's vast resources and promotes innovation in technology to encourage economic and environmental
sustainability. For more information, visit www .calrecycle.ca.gov.

...................................................................................................................................................................................................

News Room http:/iwww.calrecycle ca goviNewsRoom/
Public Affairs Office; cpa@calrecycle.ca,qov (816) 341-6300

Conditions of Use | Privacy Policy
©1995, 2015 California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle). All rights reserved.

http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/NewsRoom/2015/07F¢gy/13.htm 7/9/2015



Recycling Fraud Team Hits a Vegas “Jackpot™: California agents make fourth border bust... Page 1 of 1

: —— e —
For Immediate Release For more information contact:
August 6, 2015 Media Contact; Lance Klug {CalRecycla)

Release #2015-14

Recycling Fraud Team Hits a Vegas “Jackpot”: California agents make fourth border
bust of 2015

SACRAMENTO-The California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) is announcing the arrest of a Los
Angeies area truck driver on felony charges of recycling fraud and attempted grand theft. Rogelio Perez of South Gate, 51, is accused of
trying to defraud the California Redemption Value (CRV) fund through the iflegal transport of out-of-state used beverage containers into
California,

“If truck drivers haven't gotten the message yet, CalRecycle hopes these continued arrests will show how hard we're working to protect
the integrity of the Califoia Redemption Value fund,” CalRecycle Diractor Scott Smithline said. “Our partnerships with the California
Department of Justice and the California Department of Food and Agriculture are proving to be invaluable resources in our fight against
fraud.”

On July 20, 2015, CaiRecycle’s enforcement partners in the California Department of Justice's Recycling Fraud Team were conducting
surveillance on a North Las Vegas truck storage yard. That afternoon, agents observed a group of unidentified individuals load a 53-foot
trailer with used beverage containers. A short time later, a white fruck labeled "lsaac Transportation” pulled into the iot, coupled to the
trailer, and left the yard. Recyciing Fraud Team agents followed the vehicle until it arrived at the Yermo, Calif., agricultural checkpoint,
where the driver, later identified as Rogelio Perez, informed the inspector that his trailer was empty. Upon inspection, the trafler was found
to contain approximately 8,000 pounds of used beverage containers with an estimated redemption value of $11,596. The truck was
impounded, and Perez was arrested and booked into the San Bemardino County West Valley Detention Center in Rancho Cucamonga.
He faces six months to three years in prison if convicted.

California’s Beverage Container Recycling and Litter Reduction Act incentivizes recycling through a CRV fee paid by California
consumers at the time of purchase and refunded upon return of the empty beverage containers. Since the fee is not paid on beverages
purchased outside the state, those containers are not sligible for CRV redemption. The California Department of Justice investigates and
prosecutes criminal cases on behalf of CalRecycle, which has administrative authority over the state's beverage container recycling
program. DOJ's efforts are funded through an interagency agreement between CalRecycle and California Department of Justice,

In addition o CalRecycle’s interagency agreements with California Department of Justice and Caiifornia Department of Food and
Agriculture, the department aggressively combats fraud through enhanced pre-certification training of recycling center owners,
documentation requirements for imported materials, increased scrutiny of payment claims, and daily load limits on the amount of material
that can be brought to a recycling center for redemption.

Connect With Us: li E @ (jgﬁ

CalRecycle is the state's leading authority on recycling, waste reduction, and product reuse. CalRecycle plays an important role in the
stewardship of California's vast resources and promotes innovation in technology to encourage economic and environmental
sustainability. For more information, visit www.calrecycle.ca.gov.

i

News Room hitp: .calregycle. ov/N 00!
Public Affairs Office: opa@calrecycle.ca gov {816) 341-6300

Conditions of Use | Privacy Poliey | Language Complaint Form
©1995. 2015 California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle). All rights reserved.

http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/NewsRoom/201 5/084y1g/14.htm 8/6/2015



70



08/04/15 BD MEETING - ITEM #9
CHANGE SHEET #1 (CIRCULATED 07/29/15)

Change Sheet # 1 State Water Resources Control Board
Order 2015-XXXX-DWQ
Amending
NPDES No. Cas000001
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
(NPDES)
Order 2014-0057-DWQ
General Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated
With Industrial Activities (Industrial General Permit)

71



08/04/15 BD MEETING - ITEM #9
CHANGE SHEET #1 (CIRCULATED 07/29/15)

Changes in deuble-b —out are NEW deletions since the amendment

proposed on July 3, 2015.

Changes in double blue underline are NEW additions since the amendment proposed
on July 3, 2015.

Changes in deubleredine-stike-eut are deletions made as part of the amendment
proposed on July 3, 2015.

Changes in red underline are additions made as part of the amendment proposed on
July 3, 2015.

STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER 2015-XXXX-EXESDWQ
AMENDING
NPDES NO. CAS000001
NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES)
ORDER 2014-0057-DWQ

GENERAL PERMIT FOR STORM WATER DISCHARES ASSOCIATED WITH
INDUSTRIAL ACTIVITIES

The California State Water Resources Control Board (hereafter State Water Board)
finds:

1.

The general permit for storm water discharges associated with industrial activities'
(General Permit) was issued by the State Water Board as a National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit under the authority delegated by
the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. The General Permit was adopted on
April 1, 2014, and became effective on July 1, 2015.

The General Permit requires Dischargers to submit permit registration documents
to obtain Notice of Intent (NOI) coverage under the General Permit using the State
Water Board's Storm Water Multiple Application and Report Tracking System
(SMARTS) website by July 1, 2015. Leading up to the July 1, 2015 deadline,
SMARTS experienced technical difficulties that rendered SMARTS inaccessible to
Dischargers attempting to file permit registration documents as weli as State Water
Board staff who were assisting Dischargers with enroliment. State Water Board
staff diligently worked to resolve the technical issues before the

July 1, 2015 deadline, but technical problems persisted, particularly as there was a
surge in online traffic on SMARTS in the days before the July 1, 2015 effective
date.

! State Water Board Order 2014-0057-DWQ

72



08/04/15 BD MEETING - ITEM #9
CHANGE SHEET #1 (CIRCULATED 07/29/15)

3. Because of ongoing technical difficulties, a large number of Dischargers were
unable to submit the required permit registration documents through SMARTS by
July 1, 2015 despite repeated attempts to use SMARTS. The deadiine for Existing
Dischargers to electronically submit permit registration documents for NOI
coverage is extended to August 14, 2015 in accordance with Attachment A to this
Order so that State Water Board staff has additional time to resolve technical
issues with SMARTS. The filing d or Dischargers who file for NOI rage on
or before August 14, 2015 wiil be deemed to be July 1 . 2015. The deadline for
New Dischargers registering for NO! coverage to electronicaily submit permit
registration documents is extended to August 14, 2015 or at least seven (7) days
prior to commencement of industrial activities, whichever is later, in accordance
with Attachment A to this Order. The filing date for New Dischargers who file for

NOI coverage on or before August 14, 2015 wili be deemed to be July 1, 2015 or
seven (7) days pror to commencement of industrial activities, whichever is later.

4. While technical issues are being resolved, the General Permit is in effect. The
deadline extension does not affect any of the other requirements or deadlines in
the General Permit. Dischargers must maintain permit registration documents on
site until they are able to submit the documents using SMARTS, and they must
submit permit registration documents electronically by August 14, 2015. Any other
information required by the General Permit to be submitted electronically, such as
meonitoring data, must also be kept on site until Dischargers are able to submit the
information using SMARTS, and that information must be submitted electronically
by August 14, 2015. Until August 14, 2015, the permit registration documents
maintained onsite by the Discharger shall determine compliance with Section |l
(Receiving General Permit Coverage) of the General Permit.

5. State Water Board Order 97-03-DWQ was rescinded (except for Order 97-03-
DWQ requirements that annual reports be submitted by July 1, 2015 and except
for enforcement purposes) as of July 1, 2015. Because of technical difficulties in
SMARTS the deadline to submit Annual Reports under Order 97-03-DWQ is
extended to August 14, 2015.

6. Per Code of Federal Regulations, part 40, sections 122.62 and 124.10, the State
Water Board issued a Public Notice on July 3, 2015 for a 30-day public review and
comment period on the proposed amendment to Order 2014-0057-DWQ, as
specified in Attachment A to this Order. Formal comments were due by
August 3, 2015.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

73



08/04/15 BD MEETING ~ ITEM #9
CHANGE SHEET #1 (CIRCULATED 07/29/15)

Order 2014-0057-DWQ is hereby amended as shown in Attachment A of this Order.
The amended Order shall become effective on August 4, 2015.

Date Jeanine Townsend
Clerk to the Board

74



08/04/15 BD MEETING - ITEN; #9
CHANGE SHEET #1 (CIRCULATED 07/29/15)

ATTACHMENT A
TO
ORDER WQ 2015-XXXX-EXECDWQ
AMENDING

NPDES NO. CAS000001
NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES)
ORDER WQ 2014-0057-DWQ

GENERAL PERMIT FOR STORM WATER DISCHARES ASSOCIATED WITH
INDUSTRIAL ACTIVITIES

Permit Order
LLA.6, (p.2)

6. State Water Board Order 97-03-DWQ is rescinded as of the effective date of
this General Permit (July 1, 2015) except for Order 97-03-DWQ’s requirement
that annual reports be submitted by Augusiduiy 14, 2015 and except for
enforcement purposes.

LB, (p.14)
B. Coverages

This General Permit includes requirements for two (2) types of permit coverage, NOI
coverage and NEC coverage. State Water Board Order 97-03-DWQ (previous permit)
remains in effect until July 1, 2015. When PRDs are certified and submitted and the
annual fee is received, the State Water Board will assign the Discharger a Waste
Discharger Identification (WDID) number. The-Dischargershallsubmi :

Section I1.B.4.2-b (p.16)

4, Schedule for Submitting PRDs - Existing Dischargers Under the Previous Permit.

a. Existiné Dischargers with coverage under the previous permit shall
register for NOf coverage by or on August duiy14, 2015 or for NEC

coverage by or on October 1, 2015. The filing date for Existing

75



08/04/15 BD MEETING - ITEM #9
CHANGE SHEET #1 (CIRCULATED 07/29/15)

Dischargers that register for NO| coverage by or on August 14, 2015
shall be deemed July 1, 2015. Existing Dischargers previously listed in
Category 10 {Light Industry) of the previous permit, and continue to have
no exposure to industrial activities and materials, have until

October 1, 2015 to register for NEC coverage.

b. Existing Dischargers with coverage under the previous permit, that do
not register for NOI coverage by or on August duly 14, 2015, may have
their permit coverage administratively terminated as soon as

August Juby 14, 2015.
Section I.LB.5.a (p.17)

5. Schedule for Submitting PRDs - New Dischargers Obtaining Coverage On
or After July 1, 2015

a. New Dischargers registering for NOi coverage on or after July 1, 2015
shall certify and submit PRDs via SMARTS at least seven (7) days prior
to commencement of industrial activities or on August Ju4ly 14, 2015,

whichever comes later. The filing date for New Dischargers that register
for NOI coverage by or on August 14, 2015 shall be deemed July 1,
2015 or seven (7) days prior to commencement of industrial activities,

whichever comes later.

Fact Sheet
Section ILA.3 (p.12)

This General Permit requires all Dischargers to electronically certify and submit PRDs
via SMARTS to obtain: (1) regulatory coverage, or (2) to certify that there are no
industrial activities exposed to storm water at the facility and obtain regulatory coverage
under the NEC provision of this General Permit. Facilities that were eligible to self-
certify no exposure under the previous permit (see category 10 in Attachment 1 of the
previous permit) are required to certify and submit via SMARTS PRDs for NOI coverage
under this General Permit by or on August <=y 14, 2015 or for NEC coverage by or on
October 1, 2015. -The Water Board is estimating that 10,000 — 30,000 Dischargers may
be registering for NOI or NEC coverage under this General Permit. Separate
registration deadlines, one for NOI coverage and one for NEC coverage, provides
Dischargers better assistance from Storm Water Helpdesk and staff.

Section I.A.3 (p.12)

76



08/04/15 BD MEETING - ITEM #9
CHANGE SHEET #1 (CIRCULATED 07/29/15)

gbtained regulatory coverage under Order 97-03-DWQthe-aurrent-permit, shall

#amediately comply with the provisions in this General Permit by July 1, 2015. All
Existing Dischargers who previously obtained regulatory coverage under Qrder 97-03-
DWQ the-susrent-permit are required to certify and submit PRDs via SMARTS for NOI
coverage on or after August 14, 2015 or for NEC coverage on or after October 1, 2015.

AII i : did no iously obtain regulatory cover der Or: -03-
DWQ who j ubmi ja SMAR | coverage on or after

mmedlatelg comglg with the grows:ons in thls General Perml M-leehaigeﬁawhe

Attachment C Glossary (p.2)

Effective Date

The date, set by the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board), when
at least one or more of the General Permit requirements take effect and the previous
permit expires. This General Permit requires most of the requirements (such as
ShdAEde-eubmittals minimum BMPs, samplmg and analy5|s reqwrements) to take effect
on July1‘é 2015.Fhis-Gen Srmireg - b or-Existing

Attachment D PRDs

Section D. (p.1)

D. When and How to Apply

Dischargers proposing to conduct industrial activities subject to this General Permit
must electronically certify and submit PRDs V|a the Storm Water Multiple Application
Reporting and Tracking System (SMARTS)? no less than seven (7) days prior to the
commencement of industrial activity. Existing Dischargers must submit PRDs for
NOI coverage by or on August Juy14, 2015 or for NEC coverage by or on

October 1, 2015.

? The State Water Board has developed the SMARTS online database system to handle registration and reporting
under this General Permit. More information regarding SMARTS and access to the database is available online at

<https://smarts. waterboards.ca.gov>. {as of June 26, 2013).

77



78



8.0 FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS*

“The frequently asked questions are intended solely as guidance. This document is not
intended to implement, interpret, or make specific any regulations or to create any new
substantive or procedural requirements. This document is riot intended, nor can it be relicd
on, to create any rights enforceable by any party in litigation with the State Water Quality
Control Boards or the Regional Water Quality Control Boards. In tha case of any conflict
with existing statutes, regulations, or orders, the actual statute, regulation or order governs.
This guidance may be revised at any time without public notice.

A. General

1.

How do | know if I need coverage under the industrial General Permit (Order 2014-
0057-DWQ)?

A broad range of industrial facilities are required to obtain permit coverage per federal
regulations. Fagcilities that must obtain permit coverage include manufacturing facilities,
mining operations, disposal sites, recycling yards, transportation facilities, and other
industrial facilities. See Attachment A of the Industrial Storm Water General Permit (iGP) for
a complete list of facilities that are required to obtain coverage. Click here to view a list of
the Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) codes that may be required to obtain coverage
under the IGP. The Regional Water Boards are also authorized to designate facilities that
must obtain coverage under the Industrial General Permit (see details in Section XIX.F of
the IGP).

Who must apply?

All Dischargers that operate facilities that are described in Attachment A of the IGP or are
designated by the Regional Water Board are required to submit either a new IGP
application, referred to as a Notice of Intent (NOI), or a No Exposure Certification (NEC)
certifying that no industrial pollutants associated with their industry are exposed to storm
water. The NOI must be submitted to the State Water Board by August 14, 2015 (or at least
seven days prior to commencing the industrial activity operations, whichever is later, for new
dischargers), and shall compiy with the Permit Registration Document (PRD) requirements
in the IGP. The NEC must be submitted by October 1, 2015 (or at least seven days prior to
commencement of industrial activities, whichever is later, for new dischargers).

The Discharger, which is defined in Attachment C of the Industrial General Permit, must
submit an NOI for each industrial facility that Is required by the federal regulations to obtain
a storm water permit. The required industrial facilities are listed in Attachment A of the IGP
and are also defined in 40 Code of Federal Regulations Section 122.26(b)(14). The facility
operator is typically the owner of the business or operation where the industrial activities
requiring a storm water permit occur. The facility operator may responsible for all permit
related activities at the facility. Where operations have discontinued and significant
materials remain on site (such as closed landfills), the landowner may be responsible for
filing an NOI and complying with the IGP. Landowners may also file an NOI for a facility if
the landowner, rather than the facility operator, is responsible for compliance with the IGP.

Who is not required to submit a Notice of Intent {(NOHI) or a No Exposure Certification
(NEC)?

Dischargers that operate facilities described below are not required to file for new IGP
coverage uniess the facilities have been designated by the Regional Water Board:

a. Facilities that are not described in Attachment A;

Water Boarnds

42

79



cooo

6.

a.
b.

7.

a.
b.
c.

b. Facilities that are described in Attachment A but do not have discharges of storm water
associated with industrial activity to waters of the United States (see details in Section
XX.C. of the IGP); or,

c. Facilities that are already covered by another National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System (NPDES) permit for discharges of storm water associated with industrial activity.

How do | file a new NOI or NEC?
File the NOI or NEC through SMARTS. Only a Legally Responsible Person can certify and
submit the NOI application or NEC certification.

. What is required to file a new NOI?

A completed NOI application

A site map (See details in Section X.E of the IGP)

A Storm Water Poliution Prevention Plan (See details in Section X of the 1GP)
A signed Electronic Authorization Form.

What is required to file a new NEC?

NEC Application/NEC Checklist
Site Map (See details in Section X.E of the IGP)

Electronic Authorization Form,
What is the IGP application fee?

The NOI application fee is $1632
The NEC application fee is $200
Checks should be made payable to: SWRCB

Note: The Current Fee Schedule can be viewed here

What are the timelines for IGP applications and renewals?

Facility operators of existing facilities under the 1897 IGP (State Water Board Order 97-03-
DWQ) must recertify their NOI in accordance with the new IGP (State Water Board Order
2014-0057-DWQ) on or by August 14, 2015.

Facility operators of new facilities (facilities beginning operations after July 1, 2015) must file
an NO! in accordance with these instructions at least seven days prior to the beginning of
operations or by August 14, 2015, whichever is later.

Once the completed NOI, site map, and appropriate hew IGP fee have been submitted to
the State Water Board, the NOI will be processed and the applicant will be issued a Waste
Discharge |dentification (WDID) Number. Please refer to this number when you contact
either the State Water Board or a Regional Water Quality Control Boards (RWQCB).

NEC certifications must be submitted by October 1, 2015 {or for new dischargers, at least
seven days prior to commenceément of industrial activities or October 1, 2015, whichever is
later.)

Water Boards

43

80



9. | have coverage under the expiring 1997 IGP (State Water Board Order 97-03-DWQ).
How do | re-apply for coverage under the new IGP?
Dischargers with an active WDID Number under the 97-03-DWQ Order must recertify their
Notice of Intent through the Storm Water Multiple Application and Report Tracking System
(also referred to as the SMARTS database). To recertify the Discharger must have a Secret
Code Number generated by the State Water Board.

10. Where do I get the Secret Code Number?
Contact the State Water Board at (866) 563-3107 or stormwater@waterboards.ca.gov to
obtain the Secret Code Number if you cannot locate the Secret Code Number previously
mailed by the State Water Board.

11. What is the annual compliance fee?
The annual fee is the same as the IGP application fee. The annual fee is paid annually and
is on the billing cycle of when the IGP application was processed (the Discharger received a
Waste Discharge |dentification Number - WDID) and maintains regulatory coverage under
the new IGP. The amount of the annual fee is the same as the application fee submitted
with the NOI or NEC.

12. How long is my coverage under the new IGP in effect?
Your coverage under the IGP is in effect until you submit a valid Notice of Termination
(NOT) through the Storm Water Multiple Application and Report Tracking System or until
Order 2014-0057-DWQ expires (without being administratively extended) or is superseded.
The Regional Water Quality Control Boards (RWQCB) however, may deny the NOT if the
NOT is considered invalid.

13. How can | avoid the most common mistakes made in applying for the new IGP?
Make sure the Legally Responsible Person mails in the original sighed Electronic
Authorization Form and correct application fee amount.

14. What are the regulations that apply to the new IGP? Where can | get coples?
The new IGP is available from the State Water Board's website at www.waterboards.ca.gov.
The federal Clean Water Act is available here.

15. How do | transfer the WDID number to a new owner or operator?
The WDID number is not transferrable to a new owner or operator. The previous owner or
operator must file a Notice of Términation and the new owner or operator must file a new
NOI to obtain a new WDID number.

16. The Legally Responsible Person (LRP) is no longer with the company or agency.
How does the new LRP gain access to the NOI records?
Contact the State Water Board at (866) 563-3107 or stormwater@waterboards.ca.gov to
request a change of the LRP. The new LRP must create a new User |ID and enter the
Secret Code Number generated by the State Waiter Board to certify and claim all existing
applications,

17. What if | have further questions?
If you have any questions or need assistance completing the NOI or NEC, please call the
appropriate Regional Water Quality Control Board or the State Water Board at (866) 563-

3107 or stormwater@waterboards.ca.gov.

B. SIC Codes

44
Water Boards

81



1.

2.

What is an “auxiliary” function? Do auxiliary facilities need permit coverage?
Please read IGP Fact Sheet Page 9-11.
| need to enter by SIC code in SMARTS. What is a SIC code?

You can watch the video on SIC codes
here: https:/iwww.youtube.com/watch?v=cTM P2gwJMs

The SIC Code manual is available online at: hitps://www.osha.gov/pls/imis/sic_manual.htmi

A list of SIC codes that may be regulated under the IGP can be found
here: hitp://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/stormwater/sicnum.shtmi

C. SMARTS

1.

What are the SMARTs Deadlines?

For the complete PRD requirements, see Section Il. Receiving General Permit Coverage in
the new IGP order.

Existing Dischargers with an NOI under the 1997 IGP - recertify NO! by August 14, 2015
with the site map and SWPPP.

New NOI/New Operation — submit and NOI seven days prior to commencing the industrial
activity operations (along with required PRDs} or by August 14, 2013, whichever is later.

NEC - for existing facilities obtaining NEC coverage — October 1, 2015 (along with required
PRDs).

NEC - for a new facility the meets the NEC criteria - seven days prior o commencing
industrial activity operations (along with required PRDs) or by October 1, 2015, whichever is
later.

NONA — upon request by the Regional Water Board or when the Discharger decides to
submit a NONA. For a NONA asserting no discharge to a Waters of the United States, the
Discharger is required to meet the no discharge criteria in the new IGP on July 1, 2015 and
must either obtain coverage under the new IGP or submit a NONA technical report signed
by a California licensed professional engineer when requested by the Regional Water
Board.

Annual Report — July 15 of the reporting year (starting July 2016)

Sampling results — 30 days after receiving the results from the analytical laboratory

To enroll under the new IGP, what do Dischargers need to do to recertify their Notice
of Intent (NO1) in SMARTS? What information is needed to recertify an NOI? Is there
an opportunity to make changes to the NOI as part of the recertification?

a. Recertify existing WDID Numbers/Existing NOI
i. Things you will need:
ii. Access to the intemnet
li. SMARTS Legally Responsible Person (LRP) User Account

Water Boards

45

82



iv. WDID Number

v. Secret Code Number (SCN)

vi. Storm Water Poliution Plan (SWPPP)
vii. Facility Site Map

b. New WDID Numbers/new NOI
I. Permit Registration Documents (PRDs):
ii. NOI
ii. SWPPP
iv. Site Map
v. Application Fee
vi. Electronic Authorization Form
vii. NOTE: PRDs are required to be submitted in SMARTS

€.  Dischargers are allowed to update information during recertification and Dischargers
enter the information when they apply for a new WDID/application.

When wlll the Annual Report be available in SMARTS?

The first electronic Annual Report due in SMARTS for the new IGP is July 15, 2016. The
State Water Board will have this Annual Report available before this due date. The Annual
Report under the 1997 IGP must be submitted via SMARTS by or on August 14, 2015.

How do | submit the Annual Report required in the new IGP?

The Discharger (LRP, DAR, DEP) will login into SMARTS, go to the reporting option, open
the applicable Annual Report and answer the questions (yes, no and explanation text). The
Discharger will then certify and submit the Annual Report to the Water Board in SMARTS.

If you qualify for an NEC as an existing Discharger, do you need a SWPPP by July 1,
20157

Dischargers who file valid NECs in accordance with these instructions are not required to
implement Best Available Technology Economically Achievable /Best Conventional
Pollutant Control Technology and comply with the SWPPP and monitoring requirements of
this General Permit. If you are an existing Discharger, recertify the NOI, then login to
SMARTS and switch the NOI to an NEC, certify and ensure that the uploaded site map is
correct and uploaded in SMARTS. If the Discharger does not switch the status by August
14, 2015, SMARTS will characterize the site as having an incomplete NOI recertification.

What is the “Industrial area exposed to storm water” fleld for?
This field is to provide data to the fee unit to explore the possibility of developing tiered fees
in the future based upon percentage of industrial area/activity exposed to storm water.

Who can be an LRP?
Read Section XXI.K of the {GP order.

What samples do | have to report in SMARTS? When are samples required to be
entered into SMARTS?

Dischargers are required to report all samples taken at compliance locations (discharge
locations/sampling ocations) in SMARTS from storm water discharge events that were
collected and analyzed. Samples taken for run-on, and internal “BMP” characterization
samples are not required to be entered in SMARTS. SMARTS allows the Discharger to
enter other types of samples, if required.

Water Boards

46

83



9. Is the SMARTS storm water analytical sampling data average based equal area
contributions?
No, the average is not based on equal area contributions. SMARTS calculates an
arithmetic average based upon the Qualified Storm Event storm water sampling resulis
entered by the Discharger.

D. SWPPP

1. What information is a Discharger required to include on the Site Map uploaded in
SMARTS?
Section X.E of the new IGP describes the require elements:

X.E. Site Map Requirements

The Discharger may provide the required information on multiple site maps. The Discharger
shall prepare a site map that includes notes, legends, a north arrow, and other data as
appropriate to ensure the map is clear, legible and understandable.

a. The facility boundary, storm water drainage areas within the facllity boundary, and
portions of any drainage area impacted by discharges from surrounding areas. Include
the flow direction of each drainage area, on-facility surface water bodies, areas of soil
erosion, and location(s) of nearby water bodies (such as rivers, lakes, wetlands, etc.) or
municipa! storm drain inlets that may receive the facility’s industrial storm water
discharges and authorized NSWDs;

b. Locations of storm water collection and conveyance systems, associated discharge
locations, and direction of flow. Include any sample locations if different than the
identified discharge locations;

c. Locations and descriptions of structural control measures11 that affect industrial storm
water discharges, authorized NSWDs, and/or run-on;

d. Identification of all impervious areas of the facility, including paved areas, buildings,
covered storage areas, or other roofed structures;

Locations where materials are directly exposed to precipitation and the locations where
identified significant spills or leaks (Section X.G.1.d) have occurred; and

f. Areas of industrial activity subject to this General Permit. Identify all industrial storage
areas and storage tanks, shipping and receiving areas, fueling areas, vehicle and
equipment storage/maintenance areas, material handling and processing areas, waste
treatment and disposal areas, dust or particulate generating areas, cleaning and
material reuse areas, and other areas of industrial activity that may have potential
pollutant sources.

2. Dol need a QISP to develop my updated SWPPP?
No. QISP are only required to provide assistance to 1) New Dischargers discharging storm
water associated with industrial activity to an impaired water body, 2) Discharges with level
1 ERA status, or 3) Dischargers with Level 2 ERA status.

E. Monitoring

1. What if | want to use a different test method than shown in SMARTS?
You will have to contact the State Water Board storm water unit so we can process the
request. General Inquiries: stormwater@waterboards.ca.gov or Telephone Toil Free - 1-
866-563-3107 or Fax - (816} 341-5543.

47
Water Boards

84



2, How soon are lab results required to be submitted into SMARTS?
Section X1.B.11: The Discharger shall submit all sampling and analytical results for all
individual or Qualified Combined Samples via SMARTS within 30 days of obtaining all
results for each sampling event.

F. Training

1. We have heard that SWRCB will require that Compliance Group Leaders be Trainers
of Record,
Yes. Section XVI.B.1: A Compliance Group Leader must complete a State Water Board
sponsored or approved training program for Compliance Group Leaders. The approved
program chosen by the State Water Board was the Trainer of Record training. Compliance
Group Leaders are able to begin groups in SMARTS July 1, 2015,

2. When will the QISP training be done? :
The QISP training is expected to be available the winter of 2015.

G. Annual Report

1. When will monitoring forms for the new IGP be released?
Since the monitoring data will now be submitted into SMARTS, there are no template forms.
Monitoring data is now submitted separate from the Annual Report. Visual observation
records are no longer submitted in the Annual Report. Dischargers shall keep records in a
manner consistent with the record keeping requirements in Section XXI.J. The analytical
monitoring screens in SMARTS will be available July 1, 2015.

2. We have facilities that are relocating. Do they have to apply for a new permit?
IGP coverage is tied to a specific facility location. If a facility moves, a new application is
required.

H. NEC

1. Will the State Board be developing a NEC checklist?
Yes, the NEC checklist is available in the SMARTS database.

l. NONA

1. When Is the NONA required?
If a Discharger is eligible for NONA, the facility operator will be either told to submit a NONA
report by the Regional Water Board or will submit one in SMARTS voluntarily instead of
obtaining IGP coverage.

2, Where do we send the NONA application and the engineering report? Is it online or
hard copy? Do we send a copy to the state or this is just at the regional level?
The NONA application and technical report must be submitted in SMARTS.

48
Water Boards

85



9.0 LIST OF ACRONYMS

AdHoc Report

AdHoc Monitoring Report

BMP Best Management Practices
CBPELSG gﬁxz;rgfslz?‘%rc(l; S;Icl?;iasf;ssuonal Engineers, Land
DAR Duly Authorized Representative
DEP Data Entry Person
PWQ Division of Water Quality
ELGs Effluent Limitations Guidelines and New Source
Performance Standards
ERA Exceedance Response Action
eAuthorization Electronic Authorization Form
IGP Industrial General Permit Order: 2014-0057-DWQ
LRP Legally Responsible Person
NAL Numeric Action Level
NEC No Exposure Certification
NEL Numeric Effluent Limitation
NO! Notice of Intent
NONA Notice of Non Applicability
NOT Notice of Termination
NPDES National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
NSWD Non Storm Water Discharges
PRDs Permit Registration Documents
QISP Qualified Industrial Storm water Practitioner
QSE Qualifying Storm Event
SIiC Standard Industrial Classification
SMARTS g;osl;r:n\"l\later Multiple Application and Report Tracking
SWPPP Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
WDID Waste Discharge Identification Number
49

Water Boards

86



g Fact Sheet

Water Boards

DRAFT GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS
FOR COMPOSTING OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW

The State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) is preparing an Environmental Impact
Report (EIR) for General Waste Discharge Requirements for Composting Operations (General Order)
that would cover facilities that collect certain organic material such as leaves, tree trimmings, grass,
food leftovers, and scrap paper products to create compost. Compost contains beneficial micro-
organisms that break down organics into a stable humus-rich soil amendment. Compost helps soils
retain moisture and nutrients, potentially reducing runoff and irrigation needs.

Composting operations help keep organic material out of landfills and may help the state to meet its
goal to recycie, compost, or reduce 75 percent of solid waste in landfills by 2020. However,
composting operations have the potential to pose a threat to water quality. The State Water Board
supports the goal of composting, when operated in a manner that protects water quality.

HOW DOES COMPOSTING AFFECT WATER QUALITY?

Composting piles form leachate — a liquid created when certain wastes decompose or as excess
moisture flows through the pile, Depending on its source and composition, leachate can contain a wide
variety of pollutants, which, if allowed to seep into groundwater or run off into surface waters, could
cause water quality problems. Leachate can potentially deplete oxygen in waterways and may contain
unacceptably high levels of nitrogen, phosphorus, metals, and other poliutants that could impact waters
of the state.

@ STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
1001 § Streat, Sacramento, CA 85814 « 916-341-5254 « Malling Address: P.O. Box 100, Sacramento, CA 55812-0100 s www.waterbobrds.cipov =

87



Fact Sheet

Wier Boards

WHO WILL BE AFFECTED BY THIS ORDER?

The proposed General Order will apply to existing and new composting operations, including
commercial, agricultural, institutional, and governmental faciliies. The General Order will exempt most
small composting operations, such as home composting or community gardens.

The proposed General Order will set standards for the construction, operation, and maintenance of
composting facilities to protect surface water and groundwater. The proposed General Order provides
a number of requirements, including standards for the permeability of the ground underneath the
composting piles, drainage, and specifications for leachate collection and containment. The Order will
also include requirements for monitoring and reporting.

This is not a new regulatory endeavor. Regional Water Boards previously regulated composting
operations under region-specific conditional waivers of waste discharge requirements or general
orders. Some composting operations in California are currently operating under individual waste
discharge requirements. Individual waste discharge requirements address site-specific conditions and
may contain more stringent requirements than what is in the proposed General Order.

PUBL!IC PROCESS

The State Water Board follows a strict, legally-mandated process when adopting general orders. There
will be multiple opportunities for public comment and discussion. The Draft EIR and General Order was
released for public comment on January 13, 2015. State Water Board members consider items for
adoption at publicly noticed mestings that are open to the general public. The General Order will be
presented to the State Water Board for consideration in June 2015.

HOW TC STAY INFORMED

To keep apprised of the status of the proposed General Order, you can s:gn up for State Water Board
notifications at the link below, check the box for “Composting Operations.”

hito:/Avww.waterboards.ca.goviresources/email_subscriptions/swrcb _subscribe.shtmi#qualit
And you can get more information on the State Water Board web site:

http://www.waterboards.ca.goviwater issues/programs/compost/

if you have any questions, you can submit them via email to Composting@waterboards.ca.gov.

(Fact Sheet updated 2.9.2015)

IC A Lwk F-G R NI AL E N Y { R O H M EW T.AL PR 0T E C LT 0 ACG.E HW.,CLY|

*@ STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD %
4001 1 Stresy, Sacramento, CA 85814 = 9%6-341.5254 « Maillng Address: .0, Box 100, Sscramenic, CA 95812-0100 » www.witerboarde.cagov /. sy, o



DRAFT REQUIREMENTS
General Waste Discharge Requirements for Composting Operations

{Revised July 20, 2015)
{Proposed Additions - Blue Double Underlined & Proposed Deletions - Red-Strkethrough |
Requirement Type ] Tierd | Tier i

lApplicabllity
Actlvitles not required |a. Agricultural Composting;
to obtain coverage b. Chipping and grinding facilitles and operations. This includes chipping and grinding facllities and operations at a

under this General  |composting facility if located outside of the composting operations area.
Order ¢. Lot clearing by lvcal governmental agencies (i.e., grubbing, tree trimming, etc.) for fire protection;
d. Composting activities that are within a fully-enclosed vessel;
. Composting operations that receive, process, and store less than 500 cubic yards {cy) of aliowable materials at
any given time;
f. Composting operations that recelve, process, and store less than 5,000 cy per year of allowable Tler | or Tler |}
feedstocks, additives, and amendments, and Implement the followlng management practices:
(1) Completely cover all materials during rain events to reduce the generation of wastewater; and
{2) Manage the application of water to reduce the generation of wastewater.
Total Facility Capacity |< 25,000 cy (combination of Tier ! allowable materials > 25,000 cy (all allowable materials received, processed, and
received, processed, and stored: feedstocks, stored: feedstocks, amendments}
amendments} and meets the siting criteria below. or < 25,000 cy which does not meet the site-specific
hydrogeologic conditlons do not meet the Tler | percelation
rate and depth to groundwater standards.
qDepth to Dependent on 5oil Percolation Rate as follows (minutes
Groundwater per Inch - MPI using percolation test):
< 1 MP| : 50 feet
1 MPI -5 MPI: 20 feet
> 5 MPi - 30 MPI: 8 feet
> 30 MPI : 5 feet
Ilstance to Surface 2 100 feet 2100 feet
ater
[oistance to nearest » 100 feet > 100 feet
water supply well
Allowable Feedstacks [« Agricultural materials * Food materials {(non-vegetative)
* Green materiais * Biosolids (Class A, B, and/for £Q)
« Paper materials * Manure
» Vegetative food materials = Anaerobic digestate derived from allowabile
* Anaerobic digestate derived from allowable Tier | Tier Il feedstocks
* A comblnation of allowable Tier | and Ter ||
feedstocks
Prohibited Feedstocks
b. Liquid wastes other than those of food origin;
¢. Medical wastes as defined in the Health and Safety Code, section 117690;
d. Radioactive wastes;
e. Septage;
f. Sludges, Including but not limited to sewage sludge, water treatment sludge, and industrial sludge;
8. Wastes classified as "deslgnated” as defined in Water Code section 13173;
h. Wastes classified as “hazardous” as defined in the Cal. Code Regs., title 22, section 66261.3;
i. Wood containing lead-based paint or wood preservatives, ar ash from such wood; or
i. Any feedstock, additive, or amendment other than those specifically described in the General Order, unless approved by
the Regional Water Board.
iAdditives No more thar 10 percent combined, on a total volume No more than 20 percent combined {other than liquid food
basls, of the total feedstocks for any given batch of material}, on a total volume basls, of the total feedstocks for
compast, of the following: fertllizing material at rates that |any given batch of compost, of the following: fertilizing material
will be consumed or fixed/immaobillzed during at rates that will be consumed or flxed/immobilized during
composting; manure; anaerobic digestate {solld) from composting, Houid food material, anaeroblc digestate (solid)
other feedstocks not lsted in this tier or under the derived frorn any material other than allowable Tier | and Tier I
Prohibitions section; and other materials approved by the feedstocks, and other materials approved by the Reglonal
Regional Water Board. Water Board.
lAmendments For. Tier | and Tier I} facilitles, the type and amounts of amendments must be specified in a NO| and/or a technical report,
and approved by the Reglonal Water Board,
Prohibited Additives [Use of biosollds as an additive or amendment Is Use of blosolids as an additive or amendment Is prohibited.
and Amendments prohibited.

FOR REFERENCE ONLY -
REFER TO GENERAL ORDER -1- (Revised July 20, 2015)

89



Handling System
(e.g. pond, tanks)

Wastewater Management Plan that describes how the
wastewater will be managed to prevent discharge. The
plan must describe the design, operations, and
maintenance of the systems, including water balance
calculations and assumptions.

Requirement Type | Tier | | Tier i
Construction
Pads surfaces must be capable of preventing degradation of waters of the state. Such structures are designed, constructed,
operated, and maintained to: (1) facilitate drainage and minimize pending by sloping or crowning pads to reduce
infiltration; (2) rellably transmit any free liquid to a containment structure; and {3) prevent conditions that could lead to
contamination, pollution, or nuisance.
Control and manage all run-on, runoff, and precipitation from all areas used for receiving, processing, or storage, under
conditions of a 25-year, 24-hour peak storm event. Protect areas fram inundation by surface flows associated with a 25-
vear, 24-hour peak storm event,
Working surfaces must be capable of resisting damage from
movement of operating equipment and weight of piles, have a
hydrauli¢ conductivity of 1.0 x 10° em/s or less, and consist of
one of the following:
(a) Compacted soils, with a minimum thickness of one
foot;
(b} Asphaltic concrete or Poriland cement concrete; or
{c) An equivalent engineered atternative approved by
the Regional Water Board.
In lieu of meeting the hydraullc conductivity requirement
prescribed above, the applicant may propose to implement a
groundwater protection monitering program. If this cholce is
selected, the applicant must submit a Groundwater Protection
Monitoring Program Plan in the Technical Report with the
Notice of Intent.
Wastewater Applicant must submit for approval a Water and Applicant must submit for approval a Water and Wastewater

Manogement Plan that describes how the wastewater will be
managed to prevent discharge. The plan must describe the
design, operations, and maintenance of the systems, including
water balance calculations and assumptions,

Detention ponds, if used, must be designed, constructed,
and maintained to prevent conditions contrlbuting to,
causing, or threatening to cause contamination, pollution,
o huisance, and must be capable of containing, without
overflow or overtopping {taking into consideration the
crest of wind-driven waves and water reused in the
composting operation), all wastewater from the working
surfaces in addition to precipitation that falls into the
detention pond from a 25-year, 24-hour peak storm event
at a minimum.

Detention ponds, if used, must be designed, canstructed, and
maintained to prevent conditions contributing to, causing, or
threatening to cause contamination, pollution, or nuisance, and
must be capable of contalning, without overflow or
overtopping (taking into consideration the crest of wind-driven
waves and water reused in the compaosting operation), all
wastewater from the working surfaces in addition to
precipitation that falls into the detention pond from a 25-year,
24-hour peak storm event at a minimum.

Detention pond liners must meet a hydraulic conductivity of 1.0

x 10°° em/s or less and include of one of the following:

{a) A liner system consisting of a 40-mil synthetic
geomembrane (60-mil if high-density polyethylene)
underlain by either one foot of compacted clay, or a
geosynthetic clay liner installed over a prepared
base;

{b} A liner system that includes Portland cement
conerete underlain by a 40-mil synthetic
geamembrane (60-mil if high-density polyethylene);
or

{c) An equivalent engineered alternative approved by

Detention ponds must be designed and constructed with a pan
lysimeter monitoring device under the lowest point of the pond
or equivalent alternative approved by the Regional Water
Board. In addition, ponds must be designed and operated to
maintain a dissoived oxygen concentration of at least 1.0 mg/L
to prevent anaerobic conditions.

Tanks, if used {i.e. above or underground), must be deslgned,
operated, maintained and monitored in accordance with

applicable laws and regulations.
e

FOR REFERENCE ONLY -

REFER TO GENERAL

ORDER
920

(Revised July 20, 2015)



Requirement Type | Tier | | Tier Il
Construction, continued

Drainage/ Drainage conveyance systems must be deslgned, Drainage conveyance systems must be designed, constructed,
Conveyance constructed, and malntained for conveyance of and maintained for conveyance of wastewater from the
wastewater from the working surface in addition to direct [working surface in addition to direct precipitation from a 25-
precipitation from a 25-year, 24-hour peak storm event at |year, 24-hour peak storm event at a mintmum and meet a

a minlmum. hydraulic conductivity of

Ditches must be properly sloped to minimize ponding and |1.0 x10° em/s or less, and consist of one of the following:
kept free and clear of debris to allow for continuous flow (a) Compacted solls, with a minimum thickness of one foot;

of liquid. {b) Asphaltic concrete or Portland cement concrete; or
Ditches must be Inspected and cleaned out prior to the {c) An equivalent engineered alternative approved by the
rainy season every year, Regional Water Board.

Ditches must be properly sloped to minimize ponding and kept
free and clear of debris to allow for continuous flow of liquid.
Ditches must be Inspected and cleaned aut pricr to the ralny

. : SEason every year.
EBerms Berms must prevent run-on to and runoff from a 25-year, |Berms must prevent run-on to and runoff from a 25-year, 24-

24-hour peak storm event. hour peak storm event.
Storm Water/ Composting Operations may be required to enroll under the Industrial Storm Water General Permit Order 97-03-DWQ.
Wastewater {Industrial General Permit, new Industrial General Permit 2014-0057-DWQ will be effective July 1, 2015) or obtain

appropriate National Pollutant Discharge Elimination Systern [NPDES! wastewater discharge permit,
Monitorin

Facllity Inspections | The Discharger must regularly Inspect and maintain all contalnment structures pursuant to thls General Order, the
Monitaring and Reporting Prograr, and Notice of Applicability. Inspection frequency must be sufficient to prevent
discharges of feedstocks, additives, amendments, compost, or wastewater from creating or contributing to contamination,
poliutlon or nuisance.

Dischargers must perform quarterly site inspections of the working surface, berms, ditches, facility perimeter, eroslon
control best management practices, and any other operational surfaces.

fiwater Quality Wastewater Management System: perform quarterly Inspections of the system, estimate avallable capacity and volume. If
using a pond, conduct guarterly sampling of the liquid within the pond. (when there is sufficient water to sample).

The detention pond leak detection mofitoring device {i.e., the
pan lysimeter) must be checked menthly during the wet season
for liquid. Upon detection of liquid, contact the Regional Water
Board within 48 hours; collect a sample and analyze for the fist
of constltuents below; remove liquid from the monitoring
device; and continue to monitor weekly. If liquid reappears,
collect and analyze the sample for the same list of constituents.
If wastewater Is confirmed, submit a Response Action Plen for
review and approval by Regional Board staff.

Tanks, if used, must be menitored in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations.

Monitoring **See below for revised Monitoring Requirements** Monitoring is required if applicable.
Requirements .
d Quarterly Monltoring: pH, dissoived oxygen, total dissolved solids, fixed dissolved solids, total nitrogen, specific
- Pon conductance (efectrical conductivity)
Groundwater Quarterly Monitoring: groundwater elevation, depth to groundwater, gradient, gradient direction, pH, TDS, nitrate as

nitrogen, sodium, chloride, total colform organisms

- Biosolids Preof of compliance with ceilinﬁ concentrations of 40 CFR 503,13, Table 1, or conduct testinE for each load delivered

FOR REFERENCE ONLY -
REFER TO GENERAL ORDER -3- (Revised July 20, 2015)

91



Requirement Typel Tier | I Tier li

| Reporting

Revised Notice of Submit a revised Notice of ntent at least 90 days prior to: {1) adding a new feedstock, additive, or amendment; (2)

Intent changing material or construction specifications; (3} changing a monitoring program; or {4) changing an cperation or

activity not described in the approved NOI and technical report.

Technical Report Submit a Technical Report, prior to any new construction of any working surfaces, detention ponds, berms, ditches, or

other water quality protection containment structure.

Final Post- Submit a Final Post-Construction Report, including as-built pians and specificatlons, within 60 days of completing
IConstructlon Report Jconstruction activities, to document that structures were constructed in accordance with the Technical Report.
[IMonitoring Report Submit an Annual Monitoring and Maintenance Report no later than April 1st of each year.

[[Notification of |¥f a violation of requirements of this Order or MRP occurs, the Discharger must notify the appropriate Regional Water

Violations Board staff by telephone or email, within 48-hours, ance the Discharger has knowledge of the violation. This notification

must Include a description of the noncompliance and its cause, the perlod of noncompliance {providing exact dates and
times); and if the noncompliance has not been corrected, the anticipated time to complete the corrective action. The
notification must also include steps taken or planned to reduce, eliminate, or prevent recurrence of the noncompliance.
Depending on the severity of the violation, the Regional Water Board staff may require the discharger to submit a separate
technical report regarding the violation within 10 working days of the initial notification.

|Enro|lment

FNew Operations Must file a complete Notice of Intent, filing fee, and technical report not less than 90 days prior to commencement of
composting operations., The Regional Water Board will issue a Notice of Applicability that, at a minimum, confirms the

Discharger's Tier, timeline for compliance, monitoring reguirements and monitoring methods.

Existing Operations  |Must file a complete Notice of Intent, filing fee, and technical report within one year of adoption of the General Order. The

technical report shall include a proposed schedule for full compliance and must be as short as practicable but may not

exceed 6 years from the date of the NOI. The Regional Water Board will issue a Notice of Applicability that, at a minimum,

confirms the Discharger's Tier, timeline for compliance, monitoring requirements and monitaring methods.

lIFees

Annual Fees The filing fee accompanying the NOI is the first year's annual fee. Annual fees are based on the threat to water quality
{TTWQ) and complexity (CPLX) of the discharge. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 23, § 2200.) The ratings are available at:
http:/ fwww.waterboards.ca.gov/resources/fees/docs/iyi415_fee_schedule.pdf

FOR REFERENCE ONLY -
REFER TO GENERAL-ORDER -4- (Revised July 20, 2015)

92



"~

Cablbersia

Water Boards

TIAIE WATER HL¥ 3Lt s - LKIRUL BUOARY

REGICYSL WA™CRH QUAL *Y COKIRGL BBakpy

Water Quality Fees Stakeholder Meating

DATE: Friday, August 7, 2015
TIME: 10:00 am — 12:00 pm
LOCATION: Cal/EPA Headquarters

1001 1 Street, Sacramento, CA 95814
Coastal Hearing Room, 2" Floor

WEBCAST LINK: http://www.calepa.ca.gov/broadcast

QUESTIONS: Fee Branch@waterboards.ca.gov — Questions received prior to and during

the meeting will be addressed during the meeting unless otherwise
requested.

AGENDA

1. Welcome and Introductions

2. Waste Discharge Permit Fund Condition (Attachment 1)

3. Waste Discharge Permit Fund — FY 2014-15 Revenue and Expenditures (Attachment 2)
4, Woaste Discharge Permit Fund Budget Cost Drivers (Attachment 3)

5. Waste Discharge Permit Fund - FY 2014-15 Expenditures by Program {Attachment 4)
6. Waste Discharge Permit Fund — FY 2014-15 Staffing by Program (Attachment 5)

7. Open Discussion

93




L JuaWILoRNY

102 ‘2 18nBny - BUas| JOPIOYSYeIS S384 ANEND Jelem

-se8y Joedw) Jou op Jey) seinypuadxe paebpng Blol
‘sweubioud aey o) 10edwn ON 'SWELE S9SN [BIUAWILOIAIT J0j INPPUSHXS Yd3/IBD ,

-spipeuad pue Seuy Woy PaAIBR) SNUBAB) A papund ‘uogejuawiny saesiBia
‘B0IIG SJOIDANOT EIBIS S pUR "Ty$td 'YdINRD Jo) suonepdeidde sepnjou| suogeIado SIS JBLYG

BULONLOR, LUOBSE IO BOLISISSY [B00T

“Syoaya PaLIZOLN WY JESLDse PUB ‘punj Juainsaau Asuoill pajoad $,.2)8)S aU) Woj sase) *sanEuSd pUE SaUI SapMjL SnUBAS: IBIO
‘SAAKIE JUSLIAIEqE pUB dnugaja Uo papusdxa Bq SNW jeL) Sefjjeuad PUE SUY LIOY PBAISISI SNLIBAGI §| INUBAB] PHOIISIY .
‘pUN BY) 0} HE3J T2y) SIEYOP J9BNUOD Juedsun Jusseidal slusulsn(pe JSop |

:saouj004
%0°G %8Gl %901 %l'L %LE %e'9 %L %68 %L 0} %b'Sl [%vsz |[onsasey pund
szZL'9% ezreLS 6E8'Z)S 1688 66L'eS £or'es viL'01% ¥09'9% $02'83 c6.°63 88Z°L1$ JONVIVE SNIONT
l(seze) £56'G$ 166'vS 01983 (168°1$) (85t°2$) £40'2$ OL¥' 1% (5e5'L$) {00e'sg)  [{(060°€P) {sso)ueD
6611218 eo11zis | 2607118 |oseicors | rze10i8 | 69,2018 | tev'ess | z6epi8 | zos'oeg | 962°cs$ | Lv1'998 senipuadx3 wiesbold 99 [8j01
(60¥°L$) (6ov'1$)  lzoz'vg)  [ieeg) (zgz$) ] . PV 8.Njjpusdx3) 834-UON
809°2zZLS g09'zzit | #6z1zis | ZBi'oits | £sg'iuy | 6942018 | L2rELS Z6E'vLS Z06'08% g62'css | Zpi's9% saunypuadx3 (ejol
| 00513 Vdanes |
BEYS 86Y3 SIGIEM BumuLg
€058 coss | 1098 o o T Jutie|d JBepm euoibsy
80v$ 8073 oov$ Lees Zo9ed BUIPASSY JBTeM
008°1$ fsiqeuuel) euenluey
£vss | {€¥as 6L7$ £188 I¥as £293 8z2/% £1es S0ES BLES o6V SUOEIRdQ S18IS 1BUI0
008°'L$ 008°1$ 002°L% 019°1% ,BOUEISISSY [€D0]
9588l 1S 958 8LLS | @08 FiIS  [cEv'i0LS  [08F00LS | 9FSLO0LE | £69°CLS 6078 166°08% 116218 150" SUONERIQ SIE)S PIEOT 121BM
’ saimipuadx3y
8re'cLis Zc12218 | vzo‘tzis | 2i¥8LiS | 0EP'66$ Li2'66% Pr'GLS Z0B'GLS ] 19£°6/% 066°€9% 150'698 anuaasy (ejo.
Gi§ 53 6.8 Z01$ €628 1792$ 0£9% 0063 1e0cs BEO'ES z29'2$ =)
62es 6zes gees FAFAIK SBWSassY Alfelad
PSELLS gre'ozis” |0ZEz1§ |eSLilIs | ZE0'66$ ¥90'L6$ yosvis Z06'7L$ ove'LiS 856098 gerzas | soe4 Aojeinbey
_ ] Bnuansy
9P ELS o/t'cis | Zoc'es (Gag) 069'c3 196'08 102'8% ¥61'e8 664'6% 560'6i$ | 84£°02% sougeg Buwuibag pesnipy
(622%) 6zZ$) (6zes) (910°6$) —_PNleAvy paoMseY
998§ 098§ TEL'LS (€128) {(€1619) 160'7$ (010c$)  [(os$) 108°1$ AL | SjuSLSNIpY Jea A Jolid
6e8zLS 6E8°ZLS 1S58 66.°c$ £ov'9s viz'ols ¥09'9$. ¥0Z'8$ S6.°6% 88Z'LL% 1£161LS JONVIVE ONINNID3E|
sabueys | [ 91GLAL | SEPLAS. ] PI€LAd | €1ZLA4 | ZHEAS | LOLAD | OLG0Ad | 6080 Ad 80-20Ad | 20-90 Ad
. eBd M b TN e ] .
oSl Ad | L7 119
jse22104 | 15823104

(000$) uonipuo) pund Jdam

94



Waste Discharge Permit Fund
FY 2014-15 Revenue and Expenditures

($000)

e =y R Budgeted” " [ Projected | Projected . | . Projected -
Program - -~ - | Expenditures’ | Expenditures’ | ' Revenue = | Over/(Under)
NPDES $29,627 $30,607 $29,900 ($707)
Stormwater $29,560 $25,045 $33,294 $8,249
WDR $27,687 $28,924 $27,375 ($1,550)
Land Disposal $15,149 $10,511 $15,137 54,626
401 Cert $7,102 $9,132 $6,509 ($2,623)
CAF $4,607 $4,536 $4.467 ($69)] .
ILRP $4,312 $6,113 | $4,639 ($1,474)

Total $117,945| - $114868| * - $121320] -~ - $6,452
1 Includes redirected expenditures for SWAMP/GAMA, Enforcement, Fee Unit and pro rata.

Water Quality Fees Stakeholder Meeting - August 7, 2015 Attachment 2

95



€ s

LoepyY

102 ‘2 18nBny - Bunoe Jop|oyaXElS S99 AJfenDd JSIem

026'0 _.m.nm

0Z6'691%

000'L8ES
000'8Z8%

000'2e5'eS

TJunoiuy obueys

sdp oe4 €14

Buliueld 82IN0SaY JATEM ULOIS dOF

[esads|q Jelemalsepm SBD B {10

JuBWIBISY/AIED YIESH/EeY 0id

TsobueL osuadx] Adewilid 9161 Ad

_..%.m- wo'clls  |(z1izs) (z61'08) T AL 9590219 60Z'1$ 0% z02'Z3 Shi'oLLS viol &
= = = == =

%00 651'6% 0$ 65163 651's% 0% 0zs$ - 2288 IS dol
%00 750've 0% Z69'v$ 269'7S 03 0ELS Ze$ 06¥'v$ 4vD
%00 £1e'/% 0% c1e'4% £LE'LS 0% 802$ 901'4% ¥og LOF
%8'8}- 520'e$ (5199) (288) ozs'es N\ | ova'es 0$ (0€1$) €94 204'e$ so Bulddy] - a1
%2 B4~ 621'6$ (158'1$) (90c$) fieziis / | ses'0ls 0$ (0928) 181$ 850'118 994 Buiddi] oN - 01
%00 15t'62% (zez$) zezs 18¥'62% 689'62% 823% 016% £90°'1$ 188'92%$ HAM
%t 8- 951'Ge$ {801'v$) {£129'5%) Lps'ses 98623 18es {0zs$) P 655623 Islep wiolg
%z - £5e'62% (ssee) 80.°62% £6E'629 0% (059%) LIES 979'62$ S3adN

abueysn enjasay

3 M”“”w_._:wn_ pund uawsnl 8-St Ad abpn sjusunsnipy uoe0]|e?; uauysn{ 1e6png

weafosd Y %G 40} . o 15e29.04 190pNg weiboid RecoliEey | SuBURSNIPY aseg wieiboid 4daM

BEony lejoy D snuaaay SHasHoR 91-61 Ad 2 dog aounosay 1509 yeIg S1vb Ad

pasnipy :
pajsnipy anuaA’y
M r I H [5) 4 3 a o) g v

(000%) 91-510Z A4
sJaAaL( 3509 198png 4daM



 Juswydepy S10Z *L 1snBny — Bunsely Jepjoysyels sae Aueny) Jojep
625°062°€L1$ | ¥26'996'vvS | B6L'SVB'ES | €VZ'UZV'ZIS | 8LL'COVS |  0Z0CS | ShyZibS 956'668'SL$ | GZr'99z'ses | 9'66€ | 1oL

9%er'vizes | 20v'zoz$ | zoL'919% | 162'2€0'L$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 286'G8$ |  €6¥'9LZ$ | §'L | SOMID/eouRINSSY Aend | £55/Z1p
£62'0v2'0¢$ | 208'022'8 0$ | 161'890°2$ 0% 0% | 2S.'99% | 160'S60°'CS | Lv6'cer'9$ | L8 Buluueld [03u0D DM \or
182'619'T¢ | 60v'PIZ'IS 0% 818§ 0% 0% 892$ 1S8'8vPS \189°2p68 | 0L | semoed [ewiuy pauyuon 161
102'808'98 | s91'5v'18 | sev'ls | cesioee'es 0% 08| L9018 | oezeors | seB'sHO'lS | 6z Su _e_co_‘m_n_hknacw 651951
8Sr'vEL'vS vEL'G8YS 0% | 905'260'cS | 03 0$ 0$ SEL'E91Ls €8y'eees | v | (vvo) Bupojuow pues) 1]
ov0'90L'be | 1£9'106°L$ 0% v9E'0LS 0% 08| 995'51$ 1080898 | Z89°16%°1S | 0ZL WBWEnI0T SpIMalelS Wl
LLl'ese'as | 098'vs6'ze 0$ -004'52% 6v6$- ¥88s |  e£ec'el$ | €L1'5E0°LS | ole'ese'zg | o€z |esodsiq puen 1EL
LI0'68E'YS |  OSE'LEPS | €L2'012°€S | Sevsres 0$ 08| 916018 | <c€i6's6i$| eceroezs| TS Jun sa4 0EL
009'Lv2'¥$ | YES'ELE'LS 08 | ze9'vELs 0$ 1z 0% | Giz'Zi98 | 8812518 | v8L dy| - stenep, by gzl
000'009% 0$ 05| 0000098 ) 08 0$ 03 08| 00 S_Hm_&wma_wmeﬁ Lz
69Y'9E8'L1$ | 9P8'0Z8'LS 698'68 |  609'.8.% | cec'eez$ | 69e'L$ | 980°CZS | 06v'ze'z$ | Spe'ooz'es | goo g1 Jejdeyd-UoN/NaM 9zl
gri'erl'als | ¥2o'ove'os 0$ \9L'oves 0% 2es | LZv0l$ | Zeo'evbes | vEsives | 029 IB)eM uLolg 01
119'68v'81$ | L0¥'28¢'8% 0| zeo'sezs | vec'eees 6v$ | £227i$ | ¥B0'€L6'ZS | SEr'Ss9'9s | Siz $30dN 201
121'995'e$ | BSp'88S'es 0$ v£8°01$ 0% S/9$ | 806'cS$ | 60€'026% | 1£5'T66'LS [ P'SZ weiboid Le Loy | 20L/001

oL Pajpul | eleyold | spenuo) | dx3dp | ewpieag | dieH sjyeusg Joge S.Ad uondpassq yseL

il Ts) dwe L
seamypuedx3 pejosioid

weiboid Aq sainypuadxy §L-v10Z Ad

pund juuad abieyosiq aysep

97



Waste Discharge Permit Fund
FY 2014-15 Staffing by Program

— YT o 105 | — JobClasslfication . =~ | PY's
] T Job CIass|ficatIon _PY's I Assistant Chief Council .3
= Assmtant Chief Council 0.1 Attorney 0.9
: | Associate Governmental Program Analyst 0.03 Aftorney It 1.1
1 Attorney 0.1 Attorney |V 0.05
Attorney Il 0.8 Environmental Geologist 55
Attorney IV 0.02 Environmental Geologist - Senior 2.1
Environmental Geologist 2.5 Environmental Scientist 14.8
et Environmental Geologist - Senior 0.5 w8 Environmental Scientist - Senior 4.0
# @ ¢ | Environmental Geologist - Supervising 0.01 i '8 | Environmental Scientist - Senior Spec 1.7
e g » | Environmentai Program Manager | 0.004 ; | Executive 0.1
& " | Environmental Scientist 13.8 e E +. | Information Systems Analyst - Associate 0.02
i E . .1 Environmental Scientist - Senior 1.4 i g o | Office Technician 08
+. 0 3.1 Legal Secretary 0.04 Sanitary Engineering Associate 20
. 5 - | Legal Support Supervisor | 0.2 Scientific Aid 0.9
: ¥ = | Sanitary Engineering Associate 0.3 Staff Services Analyst 04
Scientific Aid 0.1 Water Resource Control Engineer 21.4
Staff Services Analyst 0.004 Water Resource Control Engineer - Senior 5,1
Water Resource Control Engineer 3.9 Water Resource Control Engineer - Supv 0.8
| Water Resource Control Engineer - Senior i7 2] Total PY's | 62.0
Water Resource Control Engineer - Supv 0.1
Total PY's | 25.4 A _Job Classification - . PY's
_ Assistant Chief Councll 04
e _Job Classification PY's | Associate Governmental Program Analyst 0.5
. Asmstant Chief Council 0.3 | Attorney 0.7
Associate Governmental Program Analyst 0.1 Attorney lil 2.1
Attorney 0.8 Attorney IV 0.2
Attorney IlI 1.3 + 1 Environmental Geologist 11.7
Attorney 1V 0.2 * | Environmental Geologist - Senior 4.0
Environmental Geologist 3.7 % 1 Environmental Geologist - Supervising 0.6
Environmental Geologist - Senior 0.6 &I Environmental Scientist 6.1
Environmental Scientist 1.6 &1 Environmental Scientist - Senior 0.2
|_Environmental Scientist - Senior 1.7 # | Executive 041
% | Executive 0.05 : Information Systems Analyst - Associate 2.5
.| Information System Technician 1.0 & | Legal Secretary 0.002
Information System Technician - Assistant [ 0.8 % [ Legal Support Supervisor | 0.005
Information Systems Analyst - Associate 0.8 "4 | Office Technician 0.8
Information Systems Analyst - Senior 0.8 ~«'| Sanitary Engineering Associate 2.8
1 Information Systems Analyst - Staff 0.8 ;| Staff Services Analyst 0.9
.| Sanitary Engineer Tech 0.8 -] Student Assistant 0.2
: | Sanitary Engineering Associate 32 ‘| Water Resource Control Engineer 27.4
| Staff Services Analyst 0.1 Water Resource Control Engineer - Senior 5.0
Student Assistant 0.2 i Water Resource Control Engineer - Supv 04
| Water Resource Contro! Engineer 43.6 ' Total PY's | 66.5
{ Water Resource Control Engineer - Senior 8.8
1 Water Resource Control Engineer - Supv 02 e o
Total PY's | 715 VTR jop cjmjrcat.o{; T
Enwronmental Geologist
- Job Classification PY's £ | Environmental Geologist - Senior
Assistant Chief Council 0.01 A3 | Environmental Program Manager |
Environmental Geologist 4.3 | Environmental Scientist
£ 2 | Environmental Geologist - Senior 1.1 - | Environmental Scientist - Senior :
-# | Environmental Scientist 7.2 “| Environmental Scientist - Senicr Spec 4.1
Environmental Scientist - Senior 1.9 1 Scientific Aid 0.1
-2 | Environmental Scientist - Senior Spec 0.4 1 Student Assistant 0.05
B . | Sanitary Engineering Assoclate 0.3 Water Resource Control Engineer 0.1
| Water Resource Control Engineer 3.1 [ water Resource Control Engineer - Senior | 0.2
- .| Water Resource Control Engineer - Senior | 0.04 . | Water Resource Control Engineer - Supv 0.004
Total PY's | 18.4 Total PY's | 12.9
Water Quality Fees Stakeholder Meeting — August 7, 2015 Attachment 5

98



Waste Discharge Permit Fund
FY 2014-15 Staffing by Program

131 Job Classification PY's 191 Job Classification PY's
.. | Assistant Chief Council 0.02 % - | Environmental Geologist 3.8
Associate Govemmental Program Analyst 0.6 . g 3 ‘| Environmental Geologist - Senior 0.8
A4 B | Attomay 0.002 < @ | Environmental Geologist - Supervising _ 0.2
S [ Attomey I 0.3 § '8 ’E - 1 Envirgnmental Scientist 30
L | Attorney IV 0.02 ::'E | Water Resource Control Engineer 17
7§ - |_Environmental Geologist 8.7 Eo . | Water Resource Control Engineer - Senior 0.9
§ - | Environmental Geologist - Senior _ 4.7 ¥ 5 Total PY's | 10.4
@& | Environmental Geologist - Supervising 0.2
i @ *| Environmental Scientist 1.4 T , = == . ]
G - 401 .- Job Classfification “PY's
L = : ’ : picatio,
Ji E IsnforI;natign S’-.;ysterr_ns ﬁAnalys.t tAssoclate %013 v, | Assistant Chief Councll 0.2
& = SRy Engirearhy Associate : > Associate Governmental Program Analyst 1.3
‘ Staff Services Analyst 0.04
- Attorney 0.6
; |_Water Resource Control Engineer 6.4
- = Attorney |ll 2.3
Water Resource Control Engineer - Senior 0.1 Attorney IV 0.1
Water Resource Control Engineer - Supv 0.2 [ Environmental Geologist 5:5
Total PY's | 23.8 ;.| Environmental Geclogist - Senior 29
- | Environmental Geologist - Superviging 0.9
130 .Job Classification ~ PY's " | Envirenmental Program Manager | 1.2
- w-a. | Accounting Officer - Specialist 0.01 Environmental Program Manager i 0.4
: | Associate Governmental Program Analyst | 1.8 = |_Environmental Scientist 26.5
:Ip Management Services Technician 0.8 * | Environmental Scientist - Senior 5.8
Research Program Specialist | 09 Environmental Scientist - Senior Spec 5.7
. @ . | Staff Services Manager | 0.9 Executive 0.04
G| Staff Services Manager Il 0.8 ~ | Information System Technician 0.4
‘ Total PY's | 5.2 | Information Systems Analyst - Staff 09
> | Office Technician 1.4
; Job Classification PYs 1 Sanitary Engineering Associate 0.8
. Assist e ; Scientific Aid 0.2
Bboa | ssistant Chief Council 0.1 Staff Services Analyst 0.5
:ﬁgm:; M g; .1 Water Resource Control Engineer 18.3
“< [ Attomey IV 0.1 ey Water Resource Control Engineer - Senior | 5.3
€ . | Environmental Geologist 0.5 : Total PY's | 81.1
.. £ | Environmental Geologist - Senior 0.8 _
B ‘g . |_Environmental Geologist - Supervising 0.6 51 | Job Classification : PY's
- @ | Environmental Program Manager | 0.1 - .. : | Associate Govemmental Program Analyst 0.4
“ 15 ° [_Environmental Scientist 43 o . | Attorney il 0.0005
+ & | Environmental Scientist - Senior 1.9 £ . | Environmental Geologist 3.0
_ 8 ;| Executive 0.0005 8 . | Environmental Geologist - Senior 0.4
;-' g 4 | Sanitary Engineering Associate 0.3 1 % § |_Environmental Geologist - Supervising 0.3
o a5 | Scientific Ald 0:1 = Office Technician 0.01
- | Staff Services Analyst 0.6 ' ga 1 Scientific Aid 0.01
Tt . | Water Resource Control Engineer 5.1 -~ 8 .7 | Water Resource Control Engineer -
| Water Resource Control Engineer - Senior | 1.9 Iy - | Principal : 0.1
TS Total PY's [ 17.0 745 TotalPY's [ 42
] P S e e x
5563 -~ Job Classification o] PYs
) Environmental Scientist - Senior Spec 0.8
&< g Water Resource Control Engineer -
T=\| gs Senior 0.7
<} 22 Total PY's | 1.5
Water Quality Fees Stakeholder Meeting — August 7, 2015 Attachment 5




100



State Water Resources Control Board - Landfill Threat and Complexity Rating

Proposed for FY2015-2016
[Status TTWQ/CPLX County  [Reglon JFacility Name WDR FEE
No Tip Fee 1B Amador 55 |BUENA VISTA CLASS Il LANDFILL $38,630
TiP FEE 2B Butte 5R  |NEAL ROAD CLASS Ill LANDFILL $13,864
TIP FEE 2B Calaveras 58 |ROCK CREEK LANDFILL 313,864
No Tip Fee 2B Colusa 5 EVANS ROAD LANDFILL $16,557
TIP FEE 3B Colusa 55 JLANDFILL SITE 2, STONYFORD SWD $5,203
TIP FEE 1A Del Norte 1~ |DEL NORTE CO SWDS $40,054
TIP FEE 1B El Dorado 55 |UNION MINE LANDFILL $32,350
TIP FEE 2B Glenn 5R _|GLENN COUNTY CLASS Ill SANITARY LANDFILL 513,864
[No Tip Fee 3B Humboidt 1~ |Humboldt County-DPW $6,209

1A Humboldt 1 Humboldt Waste Management Autharity $47,829
1B Imperial 7 |BRAWLEY CLS Il WNIF 97007 $32,350
B Imperial 7 |CALEXICO CLS il WMF_ 02-104 $32,350
18 Impefial Tii:HOLTVI_LLE CLS Il WMF_03-066 $32,350
3B Imperial 7 |HOT SPA WMF $5,203
1B imperial 7 [IMPERIAL CLS Il WMF 02-105 $32,350
2B Imperial 7 " |NILAND il WMF _97-046 $16,557
3B Imperial 7~ |OCOTILLOWMF __ 97-044 $5.203
2B impenial 7~ |PALO VERDE Il WME $16,557
3B Imperiat 7 |PICACHO SWDS BB-005 $5,203
3B Imperiai 7 ISALTON CITY WME $6,200
1B Inyo 6B  |BISHOP(SUNLAND)CLASS Ill LF $32,350
{TIP FEE 3B Inyo 6B [INDEPENDENCE GLASSII LANDFILL $5.203
[No Tip Fee 3C Inyo 6B~ |KEELER CLASS Il LANDFILL $2,759
TIPFEE 3B Inya 6B~ |LONE PINE CLASS Ill LANDFILL $5,203
[No Tip Fee ac Inyo 6B~ JSHOSHONE CLASS Nl LANDFILL $2,750
[No Tip Fee 3C Inyo 6B ~ |TECOPA CLASS Il LANDFILL $2,750
2B Lake 55 ILAKE CO., DPS-SW $13,664
2B Lassen 2B |BIEBER CLASS Ill LANDFILL $16,557
ac Lassen 6A" |HERLONG SOLID WDS - $2.311
2B Lassen 6A  |LASSEN CO SANITARY LANDFILL $13,864
3C Lassen 3C |MADELINE SWDS $2,759
No Tip Fee ac Lassen 3C |RAVENDALE SWDS $2,759
TIP FEE 2B Lassen 5R ~ ]WESTWOOD CLASS Nl LANDFILL $13,864
TIP FEE 2B Madera 5F |AVENAL SWDS $13,864
TIP FEE 1B Madera 5F |FAIRMEAD SWDS $32,350
[No Tip Fee 3C Madera 5F |NORTH FORK SWDS $2,758
[TIPFEE 1B Mariposa 5F |MARIPOSA CO LANDFILL $32,350
No Tip Fee 2B Memdecino 1 Mendacino Co Solid Waste Div. $16,557
No Tip Fee 3B Memdocino 1 |Mendocino Co Solid WAste Div. $6,209
No Tip Fee 3B Memdocine 1 Mendocino Co Solid WAste Div. $6,200
No Tip Fee 3B Mendocino 1 <|'Mendocino Redweod Company $6,209
No Tip Fee 2A Mendocino 1~ |Ukiah, City of $20,604
No Tip Fee 2B Mendocino 1 |Willits City . $16,557
TIF FEE 2B Merced 5F  |BILLIE WRIGHT LANDFILL $13,864
TIP FEE 1B Merced 5F  |HIGHWAY 59 LANDFILL $32,350
TIP FEE 2B Modoc 5R |ALTURAS CLASS Ni] LANDFILL $13,864
No Tip Fee ac Modoc 6A _|[CEDARVILLE SOLID WDS (OLD) $2,759
No Tip Fee 3C Modoc 6A |CEDARVILLE SWDS $2.759
No Tip Fee 3C Modoc ~ 8A  |EAGLEVILLE SOLID WDS $2,750
No Tip Fee 3C Modoc 6A |FORT BIDWELL SWDS $2,759
No Tip Fee 3C Modoc 6A  |LAKE CiTY SWDS OLD - $2,7509
TIP FEE 1B Mono 68  |BENTON CROSSING LANDFILL $32,350
TIP FEE 3C Mono 68 |BRIDGEPORT SWDS $2.311
TIPFEE 1B Mono 6B |PUMICE VALLEY CLASS I LF $32,350
TIP FEE 2B Mono 6B TWALKER LANDFILL $13,864

101



State Water Resources Control Board - Landfill Threat and Complexity Rating

Proposed for FY2015-2016
Status TIWQICPLX County  |Region |Facility Name WDR FEE
TIP FEE 2B Mono 6B |WALKER SANITARY LANDFILL $13,864
No Tip Fee 1B Nevada 58 WCCOURTNEY ROAD LANDFILL $38,630
[No Tip Fee 3B Placer 58 |CITY OF COLFAX $6,208
No Tip Fee 2B Placer 55 |CHy of Lincoln $16,557
No Tip Fee 2B Placer 58 |Placer Cnty Fatﬁ@ Services $16,557
No Tip Fee B Placer 55__|PLACER CO. FACILITY SERVICES $16,557
No Tip Fee 3B Placer 58 |PLACER CO. FACILITY SERVICES $6,208
[No Tip Fee ac Placer 55 |PLACER CO. FAGILITY SERVICES $2,750
[No Tip Fee 2B Placer 6A |PLACER COUNTY FACILITY SVCS $16,557
|No Tip Fee 2B “Placer 55 |ROSEVILLE, CITY OF $16,557
TIP'FEE 1B Placer 58 JWRSL - Facility Services $32,350
TIP FEE 2B Plumas 5R |CHESTER CLASS Il LANDFILL $13,864
No Tip Fee 2B Plumas 5R |GOPHER HILL CLASS Ill LANDFILL $16,557
No Tip Fee 2B Plumas, Portal | 5R |PORTOLA CLASS Il LANDFILL $16,557
TIP. FEE 2B San Benito 3 |SANBENITO CO $13,864
No Tip Fee 2B Shasta 5R |Redding City (Solid Waste) $16,557
No Tip Fee 2B Shasta B8R |SHASTACO 316,557
No Tip Fee 28 Shasta 5R__ISHASTA CO $16,557
No Tip Fee 2B Shasta SR |SHASTA CO $16,557
TIP FEE 2B Shasta 5R |Shasta County $13,864
TIF FEE 2B Sierra 55 |LOYALTON SANITARY LANDFILL $13,864
No Tip Fee 2B Siskiyou SR _ |BLACK BUTTE GLASS IIl LANDFILL $16,557
No Tip Fee 2B Siskiyou SR [MCCLOUD CLASS Il LANDFILL $16,557
No Tip Fee 3B Siskiyou 28 [SISKIYOU CO HAPFY CAMP SWDS £6,209
TIP FEE 2B Siskiyou T [YREKA CITY SWDS $13,864
TIF FEE 7B Tehama SR |TEHAMA GOUNTY RED ELUFF LANDFILL $13,864
[Ne Tip Fee 1B Trinity _5R__|{TRINITY CO SWDS WEAVERVILLE $38,630
No Tip Fee 1B Tulare 5F  |CITY OF LINDSAY $38,630
[No Tip Fee 1B Tulare “5F |RESOURCE MANAGEMENT AGENCY $38,630
No Tip Fee 2B Tulare 5F__|RESOURCE MANAGEMENT AGENCY $16,557
No Tip Fee 3B Tulare 5F |RESOURCE MANAGEMENT AGENCY $6,209
No Tip Fee 3B Tulare 5F  |RESOURCE MANAGEMENT AGENCY $6,209
TIP EEE 1B — Tulare 5F _|[TULARE CO RESOURCE MGMT AGENCY $32,350
EE 18 Tulare 5F _|[TULARE CO RESOURCE MGMT AGENCY $32,350
1B Tulare 5F |TULARE CO RESOURCE MGMT AGENCY $32,350
2B Tulare 5F  |TULARE CO RESOURCE MGMT AGENCY $16,557
3B Tulare 5F  |TULARE CO RESOURCE MGMT AGENCY $6,209
No Tip Fee 3B Tulare 5F  |TULARE CO RESOURCE MGMT AGENCY $6,209
No Tip Fee 2B Tuolumne 58 |BIG OAK FLAT DISPOSAL SITE $16,557
No Tip Fee 2B Tuslumne 55 |JAMESTOWN SAN LF - CLASS lil $16,557
[TIP FEE 1B Yolo 55 |YOLO COUNTY LANDFILL $32,350

102



A PRESCRIPTION FOR

CHANGE

HOW IMPROPERLY STORED AND DISPOSED MEDS AFFECT OUR COMMUNITY HEALTH

103



NEW SOLUTIONS
FOR A GROWING
PROBLEM

Prescription medications
around the home pose
risks, but San Mateo
County has taken action

BY EVAN TUCHINSKY

rescription medication can save lives,
but it can also take lives. Overdoses
and accidental poisonings are just
two tragic consequences of the
national drug epidemic that includes San
Mateo County.
The use of prescription medication
is on the rise. This leads to a lot of
pills in household medicine cabinets,
easily accessed by anyone: unsuspecting
children, curious teens or burglars
who sell drugs on the street. A 2015
survey indicated that 27 percent of
county residents polled keep prescription
medications in an unsecured medicine
cabinet. Some officials worry that
improperly stored medications can

contribute to the growing problem of
prescription medication abuse.

In addition to improper storage of
medications, many people don’t know how
to safely dispose of leftover medications
when they're no longer needed. Throwing
leftover pills in the trash, or flushing
them down the drain or toilet, may have
negative environmental and public health
consequences.

San Mateo County is addressing this
serious problem head-on. The Board of

Supervisots recently passed a new ordinance
calling for manufacturers of medication
sold in the county to help expand options
for free, safe disposal of medicarion in our
communiries. This will help get unneeded
medication out of the home and help
protect your family from potential harm.

Read on to find cut mote about the
consequences of improper storage and
disposal of medication, and learn how
you can help keep your family and our
community safe.

PRESCRIPTION DRUG ABUSE TAKES A TOLL IN SAN MATEO COUNTY

Prescription
medication abusg
is @ serious issue
in San Mateo
County. Safely
store and dispose
of your meds to
keep them out of
the wrong hands.

¥i-

In 2014,

overdose.

53 PEOPLE DIED
from an accidental drug

i ' | }
! Rx | i | ;
i l i _ I
o 151 PEOPLE
53% of in the county were
There were ALL UNINTENTIONAL discharged from the
432 UNINTENTIONAL DEATHS hospital for accidental
DEATHS from in the county from poisoning by drugs,
prescription medication 1990-2010 were caused medicinal substances
from 1390-2010. by overdose. and biologicals in 2010.

Sources: San Matea County death certificates from 1990-2010, hospitalization discharge data from the Office of Statewide Health Planning
and Development and the National Institute on Drug Abuse.

2 A Prescription for Change |

San Mateo County Enviranmental Health

104



ITHE THREA
10 0UR COMMUNITY

What do the professionals say? By EVAN TUCHINSKY * - -

PRESCRIPTION DRUG ABUSE

National trends indicate
that the abuse of prescription
drugs is on the rise, Diana
Hill, Supervisor for San Mateo
County Behavioral Health and
Recovery Services, says the
anxiety drug Xanax is popular
locally among teens.

“Xanax bars are meant to be
split into four separate doses,” Hill explains. “Youth often take
the entire Xanax bar at once.”

This type of abuse of prescription medication can cause
dangerous side cffects as well as addiction.

“Overall, use of these drugs is rising,” Hill says.
“Medications left unused and unmonitored in medicine cabinets
are very easily stolen by youth or a guest.”

WHAT'S IN THE WATER?

When it comes to medication, don’t flush. Disposing of unused
medication via the toilet or the sink creates problems downstream,
since water treatment plants aren’t designed to handle these
sophisticated chemical compounds.

Brian Schumacker, plant Superintendent for South San Francisco
and San Bruno Water Control, says the State has not yet established
water-purity standards for medication levels since “it's such a new
concern.” Schumacker says it’s
difficult to accurarely measure
the impact of water-soluble
medications, but scientists are
studying the problem.

Thete ate many unknowns
when it comes to medication in
water, but pollution prevention is
the least costly option.

San Mateo County Environmental Health |

105

FREGSCRIFYION FOR CREME

Unsecured prescription medications in your medicine cabinet
may make your home a target for criminals.

“Much like with the abuse of illegal drugs, we often see other
crimes motivated by illicit prescription drug addiction, including
theft, burglary or even robbery,” says San Mateo County Sheriff
Greg Munks. “Narcotic investigators have seized weapons from
dealers of prescription drugs ... and have seen a recent rise in
pharmacy thefts, thefts of prescription pads and other fraudulent
ways to obtain prescription
medication. Alse, as is the case
statewide, locally we have seen
a rise in impaired driving as a
result of prescription drugs.”

Authorities identify
medication abuse as the fastest-
growing drug problem in the
hation,

In most households,
medication is stored in cabinets
or drawers that are easy to
access. Convenience carries
risk — patients can easily access
their meds, but so can anyone
else. Children who discover
pills may accidentally poison
themselves. Curious pets may
also gobble up pills tossed.in the trash and suffer overdose.
Securing medications in the home and disposing of them securely
at the County's official collection locations is the best way to avert
tragedy. See back page for disposal locations,

A Prescription for Changs 3



ary Bier understands firsthand
\ the devastating impact of

the abuse of prescription

medication. She recalls the

ADDICTION
15 HOME

Preventing prescription
medication abuse in
youth and teens

BY BRITTANY WESELY

“We need to be more
involved in limiting
access.”

Prevention Specialist at North County
Prevention Partnership

pain of watching the struggle of

many people in her family, including
one family member who accessed a
parent's prescription medication at age
10 and has struggled with addicrion
ever since.

“Tt was painful for me to watch as
a young girl,” Bier says. “The disease of
addiction has been hard for my family
member to battle and it remains a
constant struggle.”

Today Bier applies her personal
history to her job as a Prevention
Specialist at North County Prevention
Partnership, a nonprofit focused on
reducing the impact of drugs and
alcohol in the community.

“Recreational use of prescription
drugs is such a big deal on our [school]
campuses right now, even more so than
it was five years ago,” Bier says.

According to the Centers for
Disease Control and
Prevention, three out of
four drug overdoses are
caused by prescription
painkillers. In 2011, the
CDC declared prescription
drug abuse an epidemic

TEENS AND PRESCRIPTION DRUGS

and the White House defined it as “the
nation's fastest growing drug problem.”

Misuse of prescription drugs is
becoming more prevalent due to a rise
in accessibility, according to Bier. A
2014 study by Monitoring the Future
reported that more than 40 percent of
12th-graders nationwide say that it is
“very easy” to get access to controlled
medications.

Bier has worked with many San
Mateo County youth whose recreational
use of prescription medication has taken
a toll, like a group of local 11th-graders
who were recently nearly expelled for
using pills at school.

“A lot of parents don't think about
locking up or properly disposing
of prescriptions because it's not
something they're used to doing,” Bier
says. “We need to be more involved in
limiting access.”

Bier recommends that parents keep
prescription medications locked up at
home and properly dispose of unneeded
medications at secure collection
locations.

Resources for parents are available
through San Mateo County's Behavioral
Health and Recovery Services. To find
out mors, call the ACCESS Call Center at
800-686-0101 or visit
http://smchealth.org/bhrs/.

1/ 3 of teens

believe it's 0K to use

|

!
|
¥

| ) &
presctiption drugs More than o L W
that were NOT 4 11 10 teens who ; A 1‘-{& A
PRESCRIBED to them. i, & have misused or
§ B | abused a prescription
43% | - | drug GOT IT FROM _ 1 IN 5
a e e of teens say 1 = A PARENT'S kids who have misused
prescription drugs are MEDICINE or abused a prescription
{ EASIER TO GET CABINET. drug STARTED
- than illegal drugs. BEFORE AGE 14.

Source: The Partnership at Drugfree.org, www.drugfree.org/MedicineAbuseProject

4 A Prescription for Change | San Mateo County Environmental Health

106



BUARD OF SU

PERVISORS ADOPTS

OROINANCE T

JIMPROVE ACCESS TO

SAFE MEDICINE DISPOSAL

Medication manufacturers will share responsibility BY EVAN TUCHINSKY

new San Mateo County
ordinance is aimed at helping
make our communities safer by
expanding the public's access to
disposal sites for unwanted medication.

San Mateo County has long been
on the vanguard of chis issue, County
Supervisor Adrienne Tissier initiated
the County's prescription medication
take-back program at law enforcement
agencies in 2006, one of the first of its
kind in the nation.

However, a 2015 survey of about
1,800 county residents revealed that 38
percent still throw unneeded medicines
in the trash or toilet, and 27 percent store
them in a medicine cabinet.

Addressing this concern, the Board
of Supervisors recently approved the
Safe Medicine Disposal ordinance.
The goal of the ordinance is to increase
the number of sites that can securely
take unused or expired drugs, “thus
providing greater convenience to

POSSIBLE FUTUR
|

MAIL-BACK
PROGRAM ,

the public,” according to Waymond
Wong, Pollution Prevention
Program Supervisor for the County’s
Environmental Health Division,

The ordinance followed the
proven concept of Extended Producer
Responsibility (EPR), a policy approach
that involves manufacturers of goods in
the financial and operational responsibilicy
for product disposal. Taxpayers have
traditionally assumed all costs for the
disposal of manufactured goods.

“It is important for the producers to
be part of the solution to the growing
public health and environmental
problems associated with improper
medication disposal,” explains Wong,

The San Mateo County ordinance

Tissior both support the recently appreved Safe
Medicine Disposal ordinance.

PHOTO COURTESY OF SAK MATED COUNTY

was built on previously adopted
ordinances in San Francisco and
Alameda County. The new, expanded
collection program is expected to start
around January 2017. Collection options
have yet to be determined.

I Sherlff Greg Munks and County Superviser Adrisnne

E CCLLECTION OPTIONS INCLUDE:

o, SECURE ey T
|

DISPOSAL & ! o+
BINS IN: ! .=

PHARMACIES LAW HOSPITALS
ENFORGEMENT
AGENCIES
San Mateo County Environmental Health | A Prescription for Change 5

107



Top: SINGREM, Mexico's producer-
funded pharmaceutical collection
program, coliected and safely
disposed of mere than 420,000
kilograms of drug waste In 2014,

Bottom: SINGREM places secure
collection containers in pharmacles
for consumer convenience.

PHOTOS COURTESY OF JOSE ANTONIO AEDD

LEADING THE WAY

BY ALYSSA NOELLE RASMUSSEN

or years, San Mateo County has operated

Fa successful pharmaceutical disposal
program, disposing of more than 76
tons of medication. The newly adopted Safe
Medicine Disposal ordinance will expand
the collection program with funding from
pharmaceurical manufacturers.

Will it work? A look at whar Mexico
has done in recent years with similar
regulations offers a promising outlook for
how the program might be expanded in
San Mateo County.

Jose Antonic Aedo is the General
Manager of SINGREM, a Spanish
acronym for the National Management
System for Drug and Packaging Waste.

SINGREM is Mexico’s Extended Producer

Responsibility (EPR) cellection program
for pharmaceuricals. The nonprofit group,

founded in 2007, is organized and funded

by pharmaceutical manufacturers to
administer the collection and disposal of
unused prescription drugs.

To support the program, all
manufacturers contribute funding in

6 A Prescription for Change |

— . - Sy e
,
_- ~ 2
==
-
S Tt -
" iV E
E . g
# E A

proportion to the number of units they
sell. Manufactuters pay just 1.5 to 3
Mexican cents per unit to fund the

program, says Aedo, and the program costs

nothing to consumers and participaring
pharmacies that host the containers.

“With containers in the
large pharmacy chains,
it's easy to find a place to
drop off these expired or
leftover products.”

Jose Antonio Aedo
General Manager of SINGREM

“Almost everything we receive goes
to containers, transport and destruction.
“The administrative costs are Jess than 10
percent of the program,” Aedo says. “We
strive to be highly cfficient.”

Today SINGREM has 3,739
containers conveniently located in
pharmacies throughout 24 of Mexico’s

San Mateo County Environmental Health

108

~
wra 2 5
1
! Sug 4
f
L
e
y “ﬁw_
= i
%
——
iy e R
ii"-t’ ¥
e L
== -y
e PN
B -'-J'fﬁ
Tt
LY
* :.,Q*-'w«...‘_
> I el

Mexico offers model of
successful producer-funded
pharmaceutical disposal program

31 states. Public awareness
and participation has been
steadily on the rise. More
than 420,000 kilograms
of drug waste was
collected last year, up
from 8,000 kilograms just
four years prior.

“Manufacturers,
pharmacies, and consumers
are increasingly more
aware of the significance
of leftover medications,
given that, in Mexico, they
are taken out of the trash
and sold illegally or they
contaminate the land and
water,” Aedo says. “There
is more environmental
awareness. Moreover, with
containers in the large
pharmacy chains, it's easy
1o find a place to drop off
these expired or leftover
products.”




MANAGE YOURMIDS e
THE SAFE WAY

and dispose of leftover
or expired medications
| Store meds safeiy -
| * Store medicines out of reach of children or pets.

quickly and safely.
Here's how:

* Ask your pharmacist if any of your prescriptions are at risk for abuse.

* Lock up medications.

* Keep an updated inventory of all prescription medicine in your home,
* Pay attention to unexpected changes in pill quantities.

o R T e Y . S
e Hnadi

e et = e 1

CHECK TO SEE IF
YOUR ITEMS ARE

=
ACCEPTED:

F‘é.‘
<

i i
Accepted:
* Over-the-counter and
prescription medications, Approved San Mates County drop-off
including controlled substances lopations can be found at

* Medicated ocintments, smehealth.org/RxDisposal.

lotions and creams

* Liquid medication

. p . SO
et medication Pon't ﬂl.li}lﬂl‘ throw

metications in the trash.

Hot Accepted:
* Sharps/needles * Dump unneeded pills into
* 1V bags plastic baggies. It's OK to

use one bag for different
types of pills.

* Pecl off or black out the labels
on pill containers and recycle
the containers at home.

* Keep liquids, creams and gels

* Waste containing bload
or infectious material

* Personal care products
* Empty pill containers
* Hydrogen peroxide

* Aerosol cans in original packaging. S
— —— b
San Mateo County Environmental Health | A Preseription for Eha?ée 7

109



TAKE IT BACK.

DONT TRASHOR FLUSH

PHOTT COMTESY 0|
LUK UETED CRDATY

Belmont

Belmont Police Department
1 Twin Pines Lane
650-595-7400

Brisbane

Brisbane Police Department
50 Park Place

415-4671212

Burlingame

Burlingame Police Department
1111 Trousdale Drive
650-777-4100

Daly City

Daly City Police Department
333 90th St.

650-991-8119

Half Moon Bay

San Mateo County Sheriff's Office
537 Kelly Ave.

£50-726-8288

Hilisborough

Hillshorough Police Department
1600 Floribunda Ave.
650-375-7400

*Call for access hours and capacity

e

= e S
| meaicat DG, ||||-

¥ ”F:_'I!..ij. Ir' !..1

Millbrae

San Mateo County Sheriff's Office
Millbrag Police Bureau

581 Magnolia Ave.

650-259-2300

Moss Beach

San Mateo County Sheriff's Office
500 California Ave.

650-573-2801

Pacifica

Pacifica Police Department
2075 Coast Highway
650-738-7314

Redwood City

San Mateo County Sheriff's Dffice
400 County Center, Third Floor
650-589-1536

San Bruno

San Bruno Police Department
1117 Huntington Ave.
650-616-7100

Check the website often

for new Iocatmns'

If you have other questions, call 850-372-6200. M

110

ug

— ~eTe
. N !
PR o Ly ST
..glrrl“1|'l .‘?';‘;xl.'lli'-.".'_ "
e R e A e RN
B

B

San Carlos

San Mateo County Sheriff’s Office
San Carlos Police Bureau

£00 Elm St.

650-802-4277

San Mateo

San Mateo Police Department
200 Franklin Parkway
650-522-7710

South San Francisco
South San Francisco Police Department
33 Arroyo Drive, Suite C
650-877-8800

OF S44,
Sk

o iFo l"'"*

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

DeFo




Mary Pitto

From: cpsc-pharmaceuticals-listserv@googlegroups.com on behalf of Heidi Sanborn
[Heldi@calpsc.org]

Sent: Wednesday, August 12, 2015 6:47 AM

To: CPSC Pharmaceutical Listserv (cpsc-pharmaceuticals-listserv@googlegroups.com)

Subject: Marin: Article on Ordinance for Meds Passing

Marin: Drug firms must pay for disposal of their
medications

By Nels Johnson, Marin Independent Journal

Posted: 08/11/15, 6:28 PM PDT | Updated: 2 hrs ago
0 Comments

Pharmaceutical firms that make drugs sold in Marin County must pay to get rid of them safely when they are no
longer needed.

County supervisors Tuesday approved a law compelling drug firms catering to Marin residents to participate in
a “take back” program that collects and disposes of unused medications.

The action came on a 4-0 vote in the absence of Supervisor Kate Sears, who recused herself after noting she
owns drug company stocks.

Sears’® statement of economic interests on file with the county includes a blue chip portfolio of more than 70
stocks ranging from Exxon Mobil to McDonald’s, and includes about a dozen drug companies. She valued her
stakes in five of the drug firms at anywhere from $10,000 to $100?000 each.

Support for the ordinance was rallied by Supervisor Katie Rice and two weeks ago drew support from a parade
of organizations, residents and doctors. Experts reported there were more overdose deaths from prescription
drugs in Marin than from heroin and cocaine combined.

There were 27 unintentional prescription drug deaths in Marin in 2012, up from nine in 2009, 15 in 2010 and 13
in 2011. Non-fatal opiate-related visits to Marin emergency rooms rose from 198 in 2006 to 471 in 2012.

Only a handful of residents spoke when the measure came up for adoption Tuesday as an audience of 20 looked
on. “We had the big presentation and everyone showed up two weeks ago,” Rice noted.

All must take responsibility for the fight against drug abuse, Rice added, calling the drug firm measure “one
piece of a broader effort.”

The ordinance requires pharmacentical firms that sell medicine in Marin to design and pay for a prescription
drug take back system that is “free, convenient, and easily accessible to all residents,” said Public Health
Officer Dr. Matt Willis. Although the plan allows flexibility, one result will be expansion of the occasional
drop-off pill collection days the county already hosts.

111



“This would function the way almost all product stewardship programs do — for products that have ‘end of life
impact’ like batteries, electronics, mattresses, paint,” where manufacturers share responsibility for safe disposal,
Willis noted.

A letter of protest was submitted by the California Life Sciences Association, an industry group serving more
than 750 biotechnology, pharmaceutical and medical firms. Reese Aaron Isbell, associate director of
government affairs for the group, challenged the rationale for the ordinance, saying there is no evidence it will
prevent abuse and called disposal legislation a matter for the state or federal government to tackle.

Advertisement

“The implementation of various local ordinances will do little more than create a patchwork of inconsistent
regulations that will only confuse consumers and forestall conversations at the state and federal level around
truly effective and equitable solutions,” Isbell warned.

The ordinance carries a $40,000 start-up cost because a half-time employee will be assigned to implement it by
expanding a local drug disposal project, but the program will become self-sufficent as fees are charged to drug
producers. “The fees will be established for consideration by the board ... soon after the ordinance is adopted,”
Willis said.

The ordinance takes effect in a month.

Reach the author at njohnson@marinij.com or follow Nels on Twitter: @NelsJohnsonNews.

+ Full bioc and more articles by Nels Johnson
e Backtotop

112



FACT SHEET ON HOW TO DRAFT

PHARMACEUTICAL STEWARDSHIP ORDINANCES
(Revised 10/29/2014)

This fact sheet is intended to be used as a tool for anyone considering a producer responsibility
ordinance for household pharmaceuticals. It summarizes key elements of the two existing
pharmaceutical ordinances that have passed in the U.S. for Alameda County California and King County
Washington. In addition, it includes San Francisco’s new ordinance that was introduced Qctober 21,
2014. The consensus is that the best ordinance to start with is San Francisco’s which was the most
recently introduced and was based on the best of both Alameda and King County ordinances.

Questions to ask and have policy leadership answer before going to Counsel to draft
an Ordinance:

1. What medications much be accepted by the program? (OTC, vitamins, controlled)?

Will producers pay 100% of the program hard costs?

Will it include convenience requirements?

Will it require a producer funded and managed public education/outreach program?

Will pharmacies be required to (1) host bins, and/or (2) advertise the program?

Will it allow producers to charge the cost to the consumer visibly or be internalized in price?
Will it require producers to pay fees to reimburse for public agency oversight costs?

Will it allow the public agency to assess a penalty/fine for failure to comply, and if so what?

N R WwWN

Comparison of Ordinances by the Counties of Alameda, King and San Francisco:

Question Alameda County King County San Francisco
Safe Medication Secure Medicine Safe Drug Disposal
Disposal Ordinance Return Ordinance Ordinance
Adopted 7/24/12 Adopted 6/20/13 Introduced 10/21/14
Are over-the-counter No : Yes Yes
medications covered?
Are vitamins/ supplements | No No No
covered?
Are controlled substances | Yes, partially, special Yes Yes
covered? provisions for how
controlled are handled.
Will producers pay 100% | Yes No — The County Yes
of the program hard costs? funds collection bins
| up to maximum of
400 bins.

113




Will it have convenience
standards, and if so what?

No, but an explanation of
how the system will be
convenient and adequate
to serve the needs of
residents is required in
the plan.

Yes — Every retail
pharmacy and law
enforcement office
that volunteers must
be included in the
system. Ifa
jurisdiction does not
have at least 1 site
plus one additional
site for every 30,000
population, then
producers must also
provide periodic
collection events or

Yes — Every
Supervisorial District
must have at least 5
drop-off sites
geographically
distributed to provide
reasonably convenient
& equitable access. If
this cannot be
achieved due to lack of
drop-off sites, periodic
collection events
and/or mail-back
services shall be

mail-back services, or | provided.
some combination.
Will it require a public Yes Yes Yes
education/outreach
program?
Will pharmacies be No No, all potential No, the separate Safe
required to (1) host bins, collectors will Drug Disposat
or (2) advertise the participate Information ordinance
program? voluntarily. requires pharmacies to
display ads for the
collection program.
Will it allow producers to | No No No
charge visible fees? :
Will it provide oversight | Yes Yes Yes
fees to reimburse costs
incurred by the public
agency?
Allows the public agency | Yes, max. penalty of Yes, max. penalty of | Yes, $50-$500 per day
to assess a penalty/ fine? | $1,000/day. $2,000/ day. fines/up to 6 mo. jail

Ordinance Lead Attorney and Technical Staff by Jurisdiction:

Alameda County, CA:

Kathleen Pacheco, Senior Deputy County Counsel - Ph: 510-272-6700 kathleen.pacheco@acgov.org
Bill Pollock, Hazardous Waste Manager - Ph: 510-670-6460 bill.pollock@acgov.org

King County, WA:

Amy Eiden, Deputy Prosecuting Attorney - Ph: 206-477-1082 amy.eiden
Taylor Watson, Program Implementation Manager - Ph: 206-263-3072 taylor.watson@kingcounty.gov

San Francisco, CA:

County.gov

Joshua S, White, Deputy City Attorney - Ph: 415-554-4661 Joshua. White@sfgov.org

Maggie Johnson, Residential Toxics Reduction Coordinator - Ph: 415-355-5006

margaret.johnson@sfgov.org

114




Mary Pitto

From: CARE California Carpet Stewardship Program [info@carpetrecovery.ccsend.com] on behalf of
CARE California Carpet Stewardship Program [bjensen@carpetrecovery.org]

Sent: Wednesday, August 05, 2015 8:07 AM

To: Mary Pitto

Subject: California Update: August News and Events

\ California Carpet
Stewardship Program

An initiative of CARE: Carpet America Recovery Effort

California Carpet Stewardship Program

August 2015 Update

Stakeholder Workshops Reveal Challenges to Carpet Recycling, Gather
Input

Representatives from industry and government concerned about the
future of carpet recycling in California gathered for the second
annual California Carpet Stewardship Program Stakeholder
Warksheps held in Lakewood (July 14) and Sacramento (July 15). See
more and download the presentations on our blog. Input from the
Workshops and the upcoming presentation at CRRA will be compiled
and presented to the September meeting of CARE's Sustainable Plan
Committee {SPC), which oversees the California program.

CARE Presents ot CRRA Conference

CARE will present at the California Resource Recovery Association's 39th Annual Canference this
month in Los Angeles. CARE representatives will give an update on the most recent Annual Report

1

115



numbers and solicit feedback from recycling professionals in attendance. The CARE session is
Thursday, August 6 at 2:00pm. CARE staff also will participate in the Extended Producer
Responsibility session along with other product stewardship program representatives on Friday,
August 7 at 10:45 am, to be moderated by Heidi Sanborn of the California Product Stewardship
Council.

Collector Map Updated and Improved

Seatrte
The Carpet Collector map on CARE's website has been updated and wier
improved. The new tool allows anyone seeking to responsibly dispose of
used carpet to search for a site by name, city or zip code, and provides = W
more information on hours of operation, tipping fees and types of carpet n
accepted. R

L €
L LREE oy

(15 .

[ New Rural County Sites Welcomed

The Rural Program is delighted to welcome seven new counties to the Program so far this year,
including:

Colusa

Lake

Marin

Mendocino

Mariposa

Sutter

Yuba

To learn more about the Rura! Counties program, which provides support to qualifying rural
counties to expand access to carpet collection and recycling, visit the CARE website .

IOQm

Forward this email

¢ P Safe e ubsorila

This email was sent to mpitto@rcrcnet.org by bjensen rpetreco " :
Update Profile/Email Address * Rapid removal with SafeUnsubscribe™ | Privacy Policy.

116



Ma_rx Pitto

From: Matiress Recycling Council [ispa@sleepproducts.ccsend.com] on behalf of Mattress
Recycling Council [awall@mattressrecyclingcouncil.org]

Sent: Friday, June 19, 2015 11:04 AM

To: Mary Pitto

Subject: MRC Program Updates - June 2015

Having trouble viewing this email? Click here

You are receiving this emall because you signed up to recelve MRC Program Updates, have completed one of
our collection site Interest surveys or are the primary contact for your company's MRCreporting.org
registration.

You may unsubscribe if you no longer wish to receive our emails.

MRC Program Updates

June 19, 2015

&Mattress Recyclln Council [HOME ] [ ABOUT ] [ CONTACT]
gﬂztreesmftea's - E

l In This Issue

- MRC to Present California Program Details at CRRA Annual Conference
- Save the Date for MRC's Las Vegas Market Information Session

- Rhode Island Producers & Importers Must Register by July 1

- Resources for Registration Assistance & Customer Communication

MRC to Present California Program Details at CRRA Annual Conference

Thursday, August 6

Session 19: "Implementing California's Used Mattress and Recovery Act"
10:15- 11:45am PST

Millennium Biltmore Hotel

Los Angeles, California

Conference Website

MRC's Managing Director Mike O'Donnell and Southern California Program Coordinator Mark
Patti will discuss the impacts to the existing solid waste infrastructure, current challenges, and
how the program plan will work with stakeholders in the months prior to implementation. MRC
will share implementation timelines along with information on how solid waste facilities,
municipalities, and recyclers will be impacted by these new programs.

117



Save the Date: Information Session at Las Vegas Market

Tuesday, August 4
1:00-2:00pm PST

World Market Center B-16
Las Vegas, Nevada

Event Website

Attendees will learn about the Bye Bye Mattress program, the proposed fee and plans for
California and Rhode Island, and the progress of Connecticut's implementation. Speakers
include MRC's President Ryan Trainer, MRC's Managing Director Mike O'Donnell and MRC's
Vice President of Industry & External Affairs Chris Hudgins.

Rhode island Maitress Producers & Importers Must Join MRC by July 1

Rhode lsland Code.23-90, which established the statewide mattress recycling program,
requires that mattress producers and importers that sell, or offer mattresses for sale, to Rhode
Island end users must join the Mattress Recycling Council (MRC) by luly 1, 2015. Read the fuli
announcement here.

To join MRC, register at www.mrcreporting.org. Contact support@mattressrecycling.org or
call 1-888-646-6815 with any questions.

Registration & Customer Communication Resources Available

Producers (manufacturers, renovators, importers) and retailers of mattresses and box springs
must register with MRC. There is no cost for registering with MRC. Click here to register with
MRC.

REGISTRATION ASSISTANCE

How to Register on MRCReporting.org
This video accompanies the written
registration guidelines. Walk through the
registration process step-by-step.

View the video

Read the guidelines
Program FAQs

Follow @MattRecyCouncil for #FAQFriday!

CUSTOMER COMMUNICATION

These resource are available to all our registered retailers at no cost. You are not required to
use them. Contact Amanda Wall, MRC Marketing & Communications Coordinator, at
awall@mattressrecyclingcouncil.org with any questions.

118



+, F > s !
T F iy £,

e h

Hest easy and know
that your old mattress
is going to o hatter place.

s of My 1, 2015, the state

JE—

A §9 rocycing fee wilf be collertord
¥ TRDY KLy
Tistmd ot your rtalpt g5 “seoeding fee

Foiwe

A Priarervn’ the Mt Racgalivg Sl

in-Store Poster available in three sizes!

Mattress Recycling Council (MRC) is a nor-profit organization formed by the industry to operate recycling programs
in states which have enacted matiress recycling laws Connecticut's pragram launches.on May 1, with California and
Rhode Island axpected to begin m 2016. Each state's program i1g funded by a recycling fee that.is ‘collected when a

T S B S T SRSy,
. o % '

Receipt Attachment

Include this with your customer's receipt or
invoice to direct them to byebyemattress.com
for assistance with their fee and program
related questions. We also have a recycling
locator to help them find their nearest
collection site or recycling facility.

The final piece is about the size of a
smartphone or index card and is diecut with
rounded corners. Actual size is 3.75 inches x 5
inches.

To place your FREE order, register here or
contact awaII@mattressrecyclingcounci!.org.

There are no limits to the amount of pieces or
requests. This is a free resource available to
every registered retailer.

In-Store Posters
You are able to download and print this
informational poster in three sizes.

8.5x11 inches (letter size)
11x17 inches (legal size)
24x36 inches (standard poster size)

Download the Customer Q&A

This document can be used by your store
management and staff to answer questions a
customer might ask about the fee or the
recycling program. It's meant to be a resource
that you can put behind the counter or use in
staff training/manuals. Download it here.

mattress or box spning Is sold The fees pay for the transportation and recycling of the mattresses.

119



About MRC | Redistration | MRC in Your State | Program Updates | Contact Us

@& 2045 Matiress Recyciing Counal Al Riahts Resaenved

Forw, this email
ERF SafeUnsubsaibe

This email was sent to mpitto@rcrenet.org by awall@mattressrecyclingcouncil.org |
Update Profile/Email Address | Rapid removal with SafeUnsubscribe™ | Privacy Policy.

,ﬂw rnrvedﬂmaﬂﬁum x
Constant Contret”

lq

S e it

Tiy }t FREE today.

Mattress Recycling Council | 501 Wythe Street | Alexandria | VA | 22314

120



Mary Pitto

From: Mattress Recycling Council [ispa@sleepproducts.ccsend.com] on behalf of Mattress
Recycling Council [awali@mattressrecyclingcouncil.org]
. Sent: Thursday, July 02, 2015 9:34 AM
To: Mary Pitto
Subject: MRC Submits CA & RI Plans

Having trouble viewing this email? Click here

You are recelving this emall because you signed up to receive MRC Program Updates, are a registered
participant on mrereporting.org or have expressed interest in becoming a collection site.

You may unsubscribe if you no longer wish to receive our emails.

MRC Program Update

July 2, 2015

.&M eSS cli cil [HOME | { ABOUT | [ CONTACT ]
attr Recye«&glgﬁlgegggwrs ﬁ ;& a

I in This Issue

- MRC Submits California Mattress Recycling Plan to CalRecycle

- MRC Submits Rhode Island Mattress Recycling Plan to RIRRC

- 6,000 Mattresses Recycled in Connecticut's First Month

- Save the Date for Las Vegas Market & CRRA Information Sessions

- Resources for Mattress Retailers: Registration & Customer Education

|S=s=s - _—
MRC Submits California Mattress Recycling Plan to CalRecycle

OnJuly 1, MRC submitted its California Mattress Recycling Plan to the California Department of
Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) for review. The plan reflects two years of
planning, stakeholder outreach and discussions to develop a collection, transportation and
recycling program for used mattresses in Califarnia. The program, created by a 2013 mattress
recycling law, will be called Bye Bye Mattress. If approved by CalRecycle within the 90-day
review period, the recycling program would begin in January 2016.

MRC also submitted to CalRecycle a three-year budget for the program which, if approved, will
be funded through an $11.00 recycling fee that is collected on the sale of each new or

renovated mattress and box spring sold to California consumers and then remitted to MRC.

For more information: Read the full announcement or view the program plan.

MRC Submits Rhode Island Plan to RIRRC

121



On July 1, MRC submitted its Rhode Island Mattress Recycling Plan to the Rhode Island
Resource Recovery Corporation (RIRRC) for review. The plan reflects two years of planning,
stakeholder outreach and discussions to develop a collection, transportation and recycling
program for used mattresses in Rhode Island. The program, created by a 2013 rattress
recycling law, will be called Bye Bye Mattress. If approved by RIRRC within the 90-day review
period, the recycling program would begin in early 2016.

The proposed program will be funded through a $10.00 recycling fee that is collected on the
sale of each new or renovated mattress or box spring sold to Rhode island consumers and then

remitted to MRC.

For more information: Read the full announcement or view the program plan.

Connecticut's Bye Bye Mattress Recycling Program Processes 6,000
Mattresses in May

MRC is proud to announce that in the first month of Connecticut's Bye Bye Mattress recycling
program, it recycled more than 6,000 mattresses and foundations. MRC has partnered with
over 60 cities, towns and other large volume mattress users to divert discarded mattresses
from landfills.

Please note: If you sell mattresses in Connecticut, but have not registered with MRC, you may
be prohibited from doing business in the state. You may register at mrcreporting.org.

Save the Date: Upcoming Information Sessions

Las Vegas Market

Tuesday, August 4

1:00-2:00pm PST

World Market Center, Buiiding B - Worldview on 16
Las Vegas, Nevada

Event Website

Attendees will learn about the Bye Bye Mattress program, the proposed fee and plans for
California and Rhode Island, and the progress of Connecticut's implementation. Speakers
include MRC's President Ryan Trainer, MRC's Managing Director Mike 0'Donnell and ISPA's
Vice President of Government Affairs & Policy Chris Hudgins.

CRRA Conference & Tradeshow

Thursday, August 6

Session 19: "Implementing California's Used Mattress and Recovery Act”
10:15- 11:45am PST

Millennium Biltmore Hotel

Los Angeles, California

Conference Website

MRC's Managing Director Mike O'Donnell and Southern California Program Coordinator Mark
Patti will discuss the impacts to the existing solid waste infrastructure, current challenges, and
how the program plan will work with stakeholders in the months prior to implementation. MRC

2

122



will share implementation timelines along with information on how solid waste facilities,
municipalities, and recyclers will be impacted by these new programs.

For Mattress Retailers: Registration & Customer Education Resouices

REGISTRATION ASSISTANCE

CUSTOMER EDUCATION

How to Register on MRCReporting.org
This video accompanies the written
registration guidelines. Walk through the

-registration process step-by-step.

View the video

Read the guidelings
Program FAQs

Toll-Free Support: 1-888-646-6815
Email: support@mattressrecyclingcouncil.org

Follow @MattRecyCouncil for #FAQFriday!

These resource are available to all our registered retailers at no cost. You are not required to
use them. Contact Amanda Wall, MRC Marketing & Communications Coordinator, at
awall@mattressrecyclingcouncil.org with any questions.

s .‘. -- .3 ’ 44‘}‘ -_.‘._
~ 'Fhank your fer helping us -
. say heliotoa Yreener futui'e :

& ﬂn:ecyuingmew ) ancelpt. whmh 5 reqtmdby

= :Wwﬁwm;mmldual mtﬂlﬁ':i

e m&vﬁmatmem«ﬁsmmm
1::;'-1. Mmﬂﬂmﬂwrwﬁb feschirgas
mam'dns MWMWWW:W

mmm@pﬁm;mmﬂw g

Information Card

Include this with your customer's receipt or
invoice to direct them to byebyemattress.com
for assistance with their fee and program
related questions. We also have a recycling
locator to help them find their nearest
collection site or recycling facility.

The final piece is about the size of a
smartphone or index card and is diecut with
rounded corners. Actual size is 3.75 inches x 5
inches.

To place your FREE order, register here or
contact awall@mattressrecyclingcouncil.org.

There are no limits to the amount of pieces or
requests. This is o free resource available to
every registered retailer.

123



In-Store Posters Now Available
You are able to download and print this
informaticnal poster in three sizes.

8.5x11 inches (letter size)
11x17 inches {legal size)
24x36 inches (standard poster size)

Download the Customer Q&A
This document can be used by your store

you
is going to a better place. management and staff to answer questions a
B o by, 2015 the e o Compctia Do emlararind. customer might ask about the fee or the

o vyt v kot recycling program. It's meant to be a resource
",§ - u that you can put behind the counter or use in
Q:?g/‘“ L .

2 bye mattress.com staff training/manuals. Download it here.
4 Progreen o the Metzren facyding Covecl

Mattress Recycling Council (MRC) is a non-profit organization formed by the industry to operate recycling programs
in states which have enacted mattress recycling laws. Connecticut's program launches on May 1, with Californta and
Rhode isiand expected to begin in 2016. Each state's program is funded by a recycling fee that is collected when a
mattress or box spring is sold. The fees pay for the transportation and recycling of the matiresses.

About MRC | Registration | MRC in Your Stale | Program Updates | ContactUs

& 2015 Mattress Recycling Councll, All Rights Resarved.

Forward this email
52 SafeUnsubscribe

This email was sent to mpitto@rercnet.org by awall@mattressrecyclingcouncil.org |
Update Profile/Email Address | Rapid removal with SafeUnsubscribe™ | Privacy Policy.

g Tirted Email fronr SE 3
e e e e M T

¥y It FREE today

Mattress Recycling Council | 501 Wythe Street | Alexandria | VA | 22314

124



ALFINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, CALAVERAS, COLUSA MADERA, MARIPCSA, MOPOC, MONO. NEVADA, PLUMAS,

DEL NORTE, EL DORADO, GLENN, IMPERIAL. INYO, LASSEN SIERRA, SISKIYOL, TEHAMA, TRINITY, TUOLUMNE

TEGHNICAL ADVISORY GROUP (TAG)

CHAIR — MICH/EL. KOBSEFF, SISKIYOU CTOUNTY TAG CHAIR — KRISTINA MILLER, TEHAMA COUNTY

VICE CHAIR ~MARY RAWSON, ALPINE COUNTY TAG VICE CHAIR — JiM MCHARGUE, AMADOR COUNTY

ERXECUTIVE DIRECTOR — GREG NORTON PROGRAM MANAGER ~ MARY PITTO

MEMORANDUM

To:  ESJPA Board of Directors
From: Larry Sweetser, ESJPA Consultant

Date: August 12,2015

RE:_ESJPA Grant UEdate

Used Oil Grant

The ESJPA provided assistance with the Amador County Fair which had 2,004 visitors
to the County Used Oil booth. ESJPA Staff has completed work under the 4™ cycle oil
payment program and was awarded funding under the 6" cycle. Preparation is
beginning for assistance with the Siskiyou and Mariposa County Fairs. A site visit was
conducted for the Alpine County used oil center and recommendations for additional
services are under development.

Tire Amnesty Grant

Amnesty events were completed under the 1% cycle grant and the ESJPA is beginning
planning for the next Amnesty event cycle serving Colusa, Inyo, Mariposa, Sierra, and
Tuolumne counties. The grant will cover tire amnesty events through June 30, 2017.

USDA Training Assistance Grant

The ESJPA conducted trainings in Alpine and Lassen with the remaining trainings being
scheduled.  Other training to be conducted include: the SWANA Manager of Landfill
Operations training, and training on conducting environmental sampling for solid waste
facilities. The grant term was extended through September 2015.

1215 KSTREET, SUITE 1650 SACRAMENTO, CA 95814 PHONE: 916-447-4806 FAX, 916447-1667
WEB: WW‘.n"1 E §.J PAQRG



126



i Recyele o) e

Monthly Public Meeting

LT LrEm R R e T T T TN -

CalRecycle
10:00 A.M., June 16, 2015
Cal/EPA Building — Byron Sher Auditorium

A. DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Presentations or discussions by the Director and/or Executive Offices regarding
department matters, legisiative updates, public affairs or 75% initiative/legislative report.

B. PUBLIC COMMENT*

People may speak on any matter concerning CalRecycle with the exception of items
appearing elsewhere on this agenda or items related to pending adjudicative
(certification or enforcement) proceedings.

*Please note that while CalRecycle affords members of the public the opportunity to participate
by Webcast, CalRecycle strongly encourages public comments to be made in person.

C. BEVERAGE CONTAINER RECYCLING PROGRAM

Posslble decisions or announcements regarding BCRP matters including fund condition,
rates, approval of new/renewed certifications, or enforcement actions.

Action ltems
No actions at this time

Information Items

1. Recycler Training Opportunity Schedule
Department Staff Contact: George.Donkor@CalRecycle.ca.gov
Public Notice
Public Notice

D. ELECTRONIC WASTE RECYCLING PROGRAM

Possible decisions or overview regarding the reuse, recycling, and handling of covered
electronic devices; including matters related to fees, recyclers, enforcement, claim
reviews and adjustments.

Action Iltems

1. Consideration of Covered Electronic Waste Program Regulations Relative to CRT Glass
Disposition
Department Staff Contact: Jeff. Hunts@CalRecycle.Ca.Gov
Public_Notice

Information Items
Nothing fc report at this time

Page 1of 4
127



E. LOCAL ASSISTANCE
Possible approval or discussion of locally adopted planning documents, bi-annual
reviews, compliance and enforcement actions, or other program-related proceedings.

Action ltems
No actions at this time

Information ltems
Nothing to report at this time

F. GRANT AND LOAN PROGRAMS
Possible decisions or overview regarding matters refated to the used oil and household
hazardous waste programs.

Action items

1. Eligibility and Evaluation Process for the Farm and Ranch Solid Waste Cleanup and
Abatement Grant Program (Farm and Ranch Cleanup Account, Fiscal Years 2015-16
and 2016-17)

Department Staff Contact: Carla.Repucci@CalRecycle.Ca.Gov
Public Notice

Information ltems
1. Awards for the Local Government Waste Tire Amnesty Grant Program (Tire Recycling
Management Fund, FY 2015-16)

Department Staff Contact: Carla.Repucci@CalRecycle.Ca.Gov
Public Notice

2. Awards for the Household Hazardous Waste Grant Program (Integrated Waste
Management Account, FY 2015-16)
Department Staff Contact: Matt.Fong@CalRecycle.Ca.Gov
Public Notice

3. Awards for the Local Conservation Corps Grant Program (California Beverage Container
Recycling Fund, Electronic Waste Recovery and Recycling Account, California Tire
Recycling Management Fund, and California Used Oil Recycling Fund, FY 2015-16)
Department Staff Contact: Derek.Link@CalRecycle.Ca.Gov
Public Netice

G. SOLID WASTE AND TIRE FACILITIES
Possible decisions or reconsiderations to petitions for a facility or landfill permit or
modification; and, possible determinations of enforcement actions, clean-up
requirements; or LEA training.

Action ltems

1. Sycamore Landfill — City of San Diego, Revised Solid Waste Facilities Permit, Action
Needed July 3, 2015
Department Staff Contact: Virginia.Rosales@CalRecycle.ca.qgov
Public Notice

Page 2 of 4
128



10.

11.

Badlands Sanitary Landfill - Riverside County, Revised Solid Waste Facilities Permit, Action
Needed July 3, 2015

Department Staff Contact: Megan.Emslander@Calrecycle.ca.gov
Public Notice

Lamb Canyon Sanitary Landfill - Riverside County, Revised Solid Waste Facilities Permit,
Action Needed July 4, 2015

Department Staff Contact: Megan.Emslander@Calrecycle.ca.gov
Public Notice

Tehama County/City of Red Bluff Landfill Materials Recovery Facility - Tehama County,
Revised Solid Waste Facility Permit, Action Needed July 7, 2015

Department Staff Contact: Reinhard.Hohlwein@CalRecycle.ca.gov

Public Notice

McKittrick Waste Treatment Site - Kern County, Revised Solid Waste Facility Permit, Action
Needed July 19, 2015
Department Staff Contact: Christine.Karl@CalRecycle.ca.gov

Public Notice

Tehachapi Landfill - Kemn County, Revised Solid Waste Facilities Permit, Action Needed
July 20, 2015

Department Staff Contact: Christine.Karl@CalRecycle.ca.qov

Public Notice

Pena’s Disposal, Inc. Transfer Station and Recovery Facility — Tulare County, Revised Solid
Waste Facility Permit, Action Needed July 20, 2015

Department Staff Contact: Joy.lsaacson@CalRecycle.ca.gov
Public Notice

South Valley Organics Composting Facility- Santa Clara County, Revised Solid Waste
Facility Permit, Action Needed July 20, 2015

Department Staff Contact: Eric Kiruia@CalRecycle.ca.qgov

Public Notice

Pomona Valley Transfer Station - Los Angeles County, New Solid Waste Facility Permit,
Action Needed July 25, 2015

Department Staff Contact: Shannon.Hill@CalRecycle.ca.gov

Public Notice

Golden By-Products — Merced County, Major Waste Tire Facility Permit, Action Needed
September 20, 2015

Department Staff Contact: Margaret.Comotto@CalRecycle.ca.gov

Public Notice

Waste Recovery West, Inc. - San Joaquin County, Major Waste Tire Facility Permit, Action
Needed November 4, 2015

Department Staff Contact: Christine.Karl@CalRecycle.ca.gov

Public Natice

Page 3 of 4
129



Information ltems
Nothing to report at this time

H. POLICY MANDATES/WORKSHOPS/RULEMAKING PROCEEDINGS
Possible decisions or discussions by department staff regarding any order instituting a
rulemaking proceeding to develop and adopt regulations and/or policy guidelines
specifying the procedures to implement or revise program guidelines or requirements
such as Product Stewardship, Commercial Recycling, Organics Roadmap or the 75%
initiative.

Action ltems
No actions at this time

Information ltems

1. CalRecycle Packaging Workshop: Manufacturers’ Challenge
Please Note: New Time and Date
September 16, 2015 9:00AM — 4:00PM
Department Staff Contact: Cynthia.Dunn@CalRecycle.Ca.Gov
Public Notice

Information ltems
Nothing to report af this time

. OTHER
Possible decisions or discussions regarding the development or implementation of a
new or an amendment fo policies and procedures for grants, loans and contracts. Please
note that grants, loans, or scopes of work will be agendized specific to program area
unless otherwise noted here.

Action ltems
No actions at this time

information ltems
12. California Statewide Per Capita Disposal, Diversion, and Recycling Rates for Calendar Year
2014

Department Staff Contact: Mark.Umfress@CalRecycle.ca.gov

J. COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT HEARINGS
Hearings for Compliance and Enforcement matters and Administrative Appeals which are
required to have a public hearing prior to the Department taking action

Action ltems
No actions at this time

Information ltems
Nothing to report at this time

We want to assure all of our stakeholders that transparency and stakeholder involvement remains a
high priority for CalRecycle. In keeping with a history of providing stakeholders with information about’
programs, activities, and departmental decisions, CalRecycle has a public noticing site. To review Final
CalRecycle Decisions and other department activities, please go to:
hitp:/iwww.calrecycle.ca.gov/Actions/ or http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/BevContainer/Notices. Far
meeting participation, listserv, and feedback information, please go

to: http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/PublicMeeting/.

Page 4 of 4
130



~i§
&

e

CalRecycle )

Monthly Public Meeting

2oy

CalRecycle
10:00 AM,, July 21, 2015
Cal/EPA Building — Byron Sher Auditorium

A. DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Presentations or discussions by the Director and/or Executive Offices regarding
department matters, legislative updates, public affairs or 75% initiativeflegislative report.

B. PUBLIC COMMENT*

People may speak on any matter concerning CalRecycle with the exception of items
appearing elsewhere on this agenda or items related to pending adjudicative
(certification or enforcement) proceedings.

*Please note that while CaiRecycle affords members of the public the opportunity to participate
by Webcast, CalRecycle strongly encourages public comments to be made in person.

C. DATA REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS

Presentations by department staff on studies, research, or reports of program and policy
interest. '

Action Items
No actions at this time

Information ltems

1. Status of Quarterly Disposal Report Submittals for the First Quarter of 2015 and the status
of submittals for the 2014 Annual Facility Methods Summary Reports.

Department Staff Contact: Peter.Staklis@Calrecycle.ca.gov

2. Recovered Materials Exported from California Ports in 2014

Department Staff Contact: Larry.Stephens@CaiRecycle.ca.gov

D. BEVERAGE CONTAINER RECYCLING PROGRANM
Possible decisions or announcements regarding BCRP matters including fund condition,
rates, approval of new/renewed certifications, or enforcement actions.

Action Items
No actions at this time

Information Items
1. Recycling Program Certification & Registration Report
Quarterly Report on Branch workload metrics and key data.

Department Staff Contact: George.Donkor@CalRecycle.ca.gov

2. Recycling Program Enforcement Report
Quarterly Report on the Branch activities, including Probationary Reviews, inspections,
Investigations completed, and accusations filed. Updates will also be provided on
Department of Justice/Office of the Attorney General interagency activities.

Department Staff Contact: John.Halligan@CalRecycle.ca.qov

Page 1 of 5

131



3. Recycling Program Operations Report

Quarterly Report on the Branch activities will include a summary of Rate Determination
Studies statistics, Market Information and Statistics and Update on Plastic Market
Development Program for 2014.

Department Staff Contact: Mike.Miller@CalRecycle.ca.gov

E. ELECTRONIC WASTE RECYCLING PROGRAM
Possible decisions or overview regarding the reuse, recycling, and handling of covered
electronic devices; including matters related to fees, recyclers, enforcement, claim
reviews and adjustments.

Action ltems
No actions at this time

Information ltems
Nothing to report at this time

F. LOCAL ASSISTANCE
Possible approval or discussion of locally adopted planning documents, bi-annual
reviews, compliance and enforcement actions, or other program-related proceedings.

Action items

1.

Revision of CalRecycle’s Policy Document “Countywide Integrated Waste Management Plan
{CIWMP) Enforcement Policy Part i

Department Staff Contact: Cara.Morgan@Calrecycle.ca.qgov
Public Notice

Information lfems

1.

Applications to Renew the Recycling Market Development Zone (RMDZ) Designation for the
Following: Chico/Northern Butte RMDZ; Fresno County RMDZ; High Desert RMDZ; and
Madera County RMDZ

Department Staff Contact: Mitch.Delmage@Calrecycle.ca.gov
Public Notice

Five-Year Review Report For The Countywide Integrated Waste Management Plan For The
County Of Madera

Department Staff Contact: Paul.Brainin@Calrecycle.ca.qov

Public Notice

G. GRANT AND LOAN PROGRAMS
Possible decisions or overview regarding matters related to the used oil and household
hazardous waste programs.

Action Items

1.

2.

Criteria and Evaluation Process for the Tire-Derived Product Grant Program (Tire Recycling
Management Fund, FY 2015-16 and 2016-17}

Department Staff Contact: Noel.Davis@Calrecycle.ca.gov

Public Notice

Criteria and Evaluation Process for the Local Government Waste Tire Enforcement Grant
Program (Tire Recycling Management Fund, FY 2015-16 and 2016-17)

Department Staff Contact: Phanessa.Fong@Calrecycle.ca.gov

Public Notice

Page 2 of 5

132



Information ltems

1.

Awards for the Tire Incentive Program (California Tire Recycling Management Fund,
FY 2014-15)

Department Staff Contact: Melissa.Sanford@Calrecycle.ca.qov
Public Notice

Awards for the Used Qil Competitive Grant Progrém (Used Oil Recycling Fund,
FY 2015-16)

Department Staff Contact: Ashraf.Batavia@Calrecycle.ca.gov
Public Notice

Awards for the Local Enforcement Agency Grant Program (Integrated Waste Management
Account, FY 2015-16)
Department Staff Contact: MaryKay.Shafer@CalRecycle.ca.gov

Public Notice

H. SOLID WASTE AND TIRE FACILITIES
Possible decisions or reconsiderations to petitions for a facility or landfill permit or
modification; and, possible determinations of enforcement actions, clean-up
requirements; or LEA training.

Action ltems

1.

Pomona Valley Transfer Station - Los Angeles County, New Solid Waste Facility Permit,
Action Needed July 25, 2015
Department Staff Contact: Shannon.Hill@CalRecycle.ca.gov

Public Notice

Sycamore Landfill - City of San Diego, Revised Solid Waste Facilities Permit, Action
Needed August 3, 2015

Department Staff Contact: Virginia.Rosales@CalRecycle.ca.gov

Public Notice

South Valley Organics Composting Facility- Santa Clara County, Revised Solid Waste
Facility Permit, Action Needed August 21, 2015
Department Staff Contact: Eric.Kiruia@CalRecycle.ca.qov

Public Notice

McKittrick Waste Treatment Site - Kern County, Revised Solid Waste Facility Permit, Acticn
Needed September 4, 2015

Department Staff Contact: Christine.Karl@CalRecycle.ca.qov

Public Notice

Golden By-Products — Merced County, Major Waste Tire Facility Permit, Action Needed
September 20, 2015

Department Staff Contact: Margaret.Comotto@CalRecycle.ca.qov

Public Notice

Waste Recovery West, Inc. - San Joaquin County, Major Waste Tire Facility Permit, Action
Needed November 4, 2015

Department Staff Contact: Christine.Karl@CalRecycle.ca.gov

Public Notice

Page 3of 5
133



Information ltems
1. Waste Tire Enforcement Report
Department Staff Contact: Bill. Albert@CalRecycle.ca.gov

2. Approval of the Pottery Canyon Park Disposal Site Remediation Under the Solid Waste
Disposal and Codisposal Site Cleanup Program (Solid Waste Disposal Trust Fund, FY

2014/2015)
Department Staff Contact: Mustafe.Botan@CaiRecycle.ca.gov
Public Notice

3. Approval of Scope of Work and Authority to Solicit for S0Q for Cleanup Program
Engineering Services Contract and Two Remediation Services Contracts

Department Staff Contact: Robert.Healy@CalRecycle.ca.gov
Public Notice

4. Approval of the Point Mugu State Park Ranch Center Disposai Site Cleanup, Solid Waste
Disposal and Codisposal Site Cleanup Program (Solid Waste Disposal Trust Fund, FY

2014/2015)
Department Staff Contact: Mustafa.Botan@CalRecycle.ca.gov
Public Notice

5. Awards for the Solid Waste Disposal and Codisposal Site Cleanup Program Grants (Solid
Waste Trust Fund, FY 2014/2015)

Department Staff Contact: Alan.Zamboanga@CalRecycle.ca.gov
Public Notice ‘

I. POLICY MANDATES/WORKSHOPS/RULEMAKING PROCEEDINGS
Possible decisions or discussions by department staff regarding any order instituting a
rulemaking proceeding to develop and adopt regulations and/or policy guidelines
specifying the procedures to implement or revise program guidelines or requirements
such as Product Stewardship, Commercial Recycling, Organics Roadmap or the 75%
initiative.

Action ltems
No actions at this time

Information ltems

1. CalRecycle Packaging Workshop: Manufacturers’ Challenge
Please Note: New Time and Date
November 18, 2015 9:00AM — 4:00PM

Department Staff Contact: Cynthia. Dunn@CalRecycle.ca.qgov
Public Notice

J. OTHER
Possible decisions or discussions regarding the development or implementation of a
new or an amendment to policies and procedures for grants, loans and contracts. Please
note that grants, loans, or scopes of work will be agendized specific to program area
unless otherwise noted here.

Action ltems
No actions at this time

Information ltems
Nothing to report at this time

Page 4 of 5
134



K. COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT HEARINGS
Hearings for Compliance and Enforcement matters and Administrative Appeals which are
required to have a public hearing prior to the Department taking action

Action Items
No actions at this time

Information ltems
Nothing to report at this time

We want to assure all of our stakeholders that transparency and stakeholder involvement remains a
high priority for CalRecycle. In keeping with a history of providing stakeholders with information about
programs, activities, and departmental decisions, CalRecycle has a public noticing site. To review Final
CalRecycle Decisions and other department activities, please go to:

http:/iwww.calrecycle.ca.gov/Actions/ or hitp://www.calrecycle.ca.qov/BevContainer/Notices. For
meeting participation, listserv, and feedback information, please go

to: http.//www.calrecycle.ca.gov/PublicMeeting/,

Page 5 of5
135



136



0
] (800Z) 9TOT |1g MeU3S :poLlaN
saakoidwz — O (686T) 6¢6 Il Alquiassy :a1epuepy
" B eT
T'oT
0z ‘9lepuew %09 ayl yum asueljdwod
st [B1IBWNU UonaIpsIIN( 10 J1119W [BIDIYO Y|
il et B )
Siuspise
wapisay - g 3
Voo R BSOQqsi(l eliapn Jo
v'ge (suoyn) ov _ 1Q FHCEY Jad

juswAiojdwig 1 uonejndod Ipimaleis
SESEEF S FF L PP S
0

S

st

ejide) 194 opImalels eILiojie)

174
14
CTE o o€
SE
or

14
(suo1 jo suoy)

[esodsiq apimaleis

137



(TT0T) THE I1g Algwiassy

'0z0Z Aq [e0D Su1|2AI3Y BPIMBIRIS %SL

a)ey Suippiiay

(ze6T) v |I'g Alqwassy :poyloi
(686T) 6€6 ljiig Alqwiassy :21epuelp

"91epueW %05 9Y3 Yiim aosueldwod
|E3LI3WINU uoRIpsKUN( 104 JUBW |eulsio 3y L

aley UoISIaAIQ

3\ & & L A A
Q ) o %)
NN & & & &
%0
%02
%01
Juspisay Ag poylapy wausnipy
%59 %09
%99
sakvidw3 Ag %08
%00T

(3uadiad)
SO1EY UOISIDAIQ 2pimalels

L L & L A A
QO O © %)
QY & ¢ N ° &
0
S
AeQ Jad USPISIY 134 SPUNOY I\l/
01
9'0T
Aeq i34
aaAo0|dwi3 Jad spunod ST
(Aep 1ad spunod) 0c

jesodsiq ejide) J2d a3eiany SpIMa)LELS

138



%05
Syey Suiprosy

(o2Aodw3) %99 .

WIYINEJSp/IUdaYISO N /o1eIjesodsip/ain (Juspisay) %59 -
Seall[e08/|e1us)d|/A03 €3 3 pAISIer MMM/ a1y WS[EA|ND3 93y UOISISAId

:J& J|ge|IEAR S| UOIJBULIOJUI DION]

Aep/aafojdwa/sq| 90T
Aepjruapisaifsq| 5y

|Esodsiq e3ide) Jag

$sal80.id apimaiels 107 §53180.d spImalels v10z
(VR VR A VR VI VR PR VR VI R ¥ rroe
F & EEE R o0
%0 0'q
00T
%ST 'St
|esodsiq paj[iypuen
SU0} UOI|JiN Z'TE 00t
%08 iy 05z
0’0t
v %S4 paie|ay-|esodsiq
|e0D %S. suoj uollliN 9'9 | gisk
SUoj Uol|tiN 8°LE o'oY
%00T |
ajey duljcAiay spimajers (suo3 jo suoliiin)

jesodsig apimaiels

139



140



v £ e 97 — 305em palelauald $0 SUC] udl|lw ¢/

L8 S0 ST ANy

mco_m:_ucouA )
STOZ 4O SUIOWI NG T < ey 0|

> S

S|eLiew |enpinipul il i
uosiedwod jeuorjen « .
¥ 2w

MBIAIDNO HTOZ <

EmEE:m Co_umucmmwgn_ elusoji|e) | |esods)q pue 3ulpAdray Jo 21815 £T0Z

$3|qejoAday pue aisepn paldodxy

00°T-00:0T

WnLOYpNY Jayg

STOZ ‘1z Ajny

Bunsa g4 aphoay(ey

aseqgejep

SPRI HISIM 11341 pue J77 J8SIM Wol) eleg «

SpuaJ} pue ‘suoijeulssp ‘sanjea ‘siunowy «
suod elusojlje) wouy sjeualew

9|qe[2Ad3. Jo spodxs auIoqeas | «

sjelia1elA aqejoAday jo
suodx3 ejusoiied 102

s}I0dx3 9)qepAlsy elusopie)

141



it ey Fpted

SuoL UoI|iN 8T~uoneunsaq Aq spodx3 ajgepPAdray v -~

SUOL UOI||HAl 9°7/~SHOdX] BUIO(eaS ¥D YTOT

R RN

142

MIIAIBAQ YT0C

=l



n
24
aE

L PR LTS B e
R R S e A

119 6°98-SHodxXT 3|qePAIRY V)

REPYN

uoljjig 6°9S~uoneunsaq Aq sodx3 sjqejpiay vo AN074 BN|eA |9SSaA U0

118 €
P N N Y M W . W Tt N Mt YTy
FIFFTE TS IFEITE S S
37 i — _ m. ﬁ s
S bt} rj &
dELYl RO L og
e % e " GO0 3l
T B m -
x| _ ] 1 1 m L0l
PR m - | m w _ 3
m %A M08

T

Suol ui uoneunsag Aq suiodx3 a|qedAaay v v10¢

L

oN|eA |8sSIA uoljjig SOTS~S110dXT auiogeas yvo

143



9F ST

£T07 01 paaedwcd £T0Z 01 pasedwod == S
UC[IINPa] %8 uolINPDA 858
N ; LA POES
sl ., ‘Suol UoI|iliAl ¥'6¢

SUOL UOI|JIN t'6€ SHodx3 a|gejpAday auiogeas SN mt_.oaxm_.,w__,n!wﬁwx susoqess "' uosiiedwo) jeuoieN

v £ v - 0 0 =
b . L e I I e et
Pl i TR AT T et e R
B REEEEEE
gE * = %2
3
ﬂ 41 v
N F
k4
KA .
L £
ol :
# " M s -
i 4 o -
. - s 4 l_. e
m A b W .
S = =8 | ] B
& 2 -] &
= m & .
CREWE ] “ LRt A
[}

uosuedwo) |euociieN
‘ 3anjeA [9SSIA Ul uoneunisaq Aq suiodx3 3|qepPAdsy v ¥10T

144



o . y - . ot A e s .
h t.-.u. ﬂu .5-.\

l’f Iww&ﬁr\ ol 2 el ;
_ ::_:_
RN 1

£T0Z &) pasedwoo ~ n d el ot
UCIINPaI %6
A

_
qnie m. m
I

LI T
e CUR |
Ll m m [T
PO 3 LI
L ;,n-.
PR WA

SUQL UOI[IIAl £°S~SHOdXT [e1a{A SNOLID4 IulOje)

J,fj -~ _
e

S04 BluJojije)
Wouy saljipowiwo) ajqejpAday [enpialpul

Wi
L L

S EE T S F S8 S ST
R -
1 -3 B W o, e 3.
€T0Z 01 patedwca i -1 - -
UCRINpal %> = T
“ ¥
N i L T i Y
onrs ] ] w
4 ~m F ¥ b4 .
| Y har LAa
LRl L o
7 ) LR ol
L i L B 1Y
25 1 &
sl g
[ R L |

SuQl Uol|liNl §°6 ~AUNOD Aq sp0dx3 Jaded paxiiy Vo

@
€107 03 paiedwos -
uomenpas %yt
“)

-

uoH|ig z'LT$ suodx3 a|qepAiay dulogess ‘s'n

145



i RO S e e

e : e

-3

SUOL 000‘7Z9~SHOdX3 SINSEd JYIO BIUION[ED

t
-

£T0Z 03 paJediod
BSETIIN UE

bR |

tae

S0t MM M

S e s . e

—__—“llw N

[, SN

SUOL 058~SH0dX3 ue) wnulwnjy eiuiopjed

£T0Z 03 pesedwod
UDKINPa) %09,

(o ,.g: G " :
) . m -
] =
— - - i
=
= h ek
TR B
T
H
-

T

£10Z 01 pRJediuod
25e3.13U] %8T~
LT |

ERATE
akicm

Wan W

E

Ty Tl

_ n m — ” m n =
LR

AT

h i

Suol 000'GH9~S10dX3 2T SINSeld elulojl|e]

TZ

ET0Z 0} paJedlucd
HORPRL ST T~

Suoj UOI|[IN £ T~S1odx] [e19A m:oh._m"_-coz_ﬂ_mﬁoh___mu ’

Filig

F L .T_.__
F A R

sgam

nwir

O

146



by

¢591qe2A23. 10} BUIIDP 03 BNUIIUOD
s1aydew Ji [eod Su)pAdal Juadsad g7 sy YIeas am M MOH «
‘s||ypue| Jno ul pasods|p ag 4o Ajsadoidw)
3)1dy201s 0] [elalEW AI0L 3SNED Aew syodxa Jo aupeg «
uoijjiq £5 JO BSEIIIDP € PUR SUOY UOIIW {7 JO BSEIIIDP
e mes eas Aq spodxa erusayije) ‘TT0z o yead ayy BIUISL

SUOISNIU0Y)

%9T Ajo1ewixosdde umop spodxe |EIRN <
% S IN0ge uMop sLI0dxXD SIIISE|d <
%9 19A0 UMOp spodx]

(¥T0Z 30 syiuow Jnoy yuy ay) 0} pasedwiod)
sHodx3 2|qepAdsy euloylje) STOZ JO SYuow inoj 35414

4%

"AN|BA |[2SSIA

uolliiq £$ 8yl Ul papN|aul 10U ST JUNOLUE SIY | Uol|W Z/$ ISea)
1@ sem eluJoji|ed Wody spodxa 3JqeoAdal i)y PUe ‘ley dPnd) «
"sHod yD woyy sajqejaAdal jo Juaidioas 15981e] 3y} (1S sI euly) «
FT0OZ Ul %€ J9A0 umop JySiam Aq sHOUXD ajqepAdal v «
uol|liq £ Ajeau sjeliajew a|qejoAdnl JO anjeA |3SSaA«
R paviodxa s3|qe[oAlal JO SUO) UOIjjIW 8T «
spod ) woly spodxs aulogess |je jo %4z dn apew sa|qe|dAiny «

Alewwns

‘plIOM
punoJe salijunod Jaylo o3 paddiys sem uoljjiw z$«
"$3141UN0J 934y} 3s3L} 0} LOdXD BJIM UOIjIW /S s
*$3141UN02
Jaulled 1sa8ie| atom Auewusag pue ‘uedef ‘OIIXIIA «
"uoljjiw g/$ 1sea| 18 Sem ejuloji|ed
Wou) spodxa ajqejaAdas iy pue ‘jiey onj .
TSaN(eA §
0} AJUO SS322€ 9ARY DM "3|qEB|IBAR DU |IB4 pUE Yon.]
Aq paddiys ss|qejoAda uo uoizeuLIOU poNWIIT «

suawdiys Jiy pue ‘jley “yong

147



ueispeg Jvd

Aveucg nag e1puy ani
e w uedet Nar TvZ9-1vE (916)
1dATy AD3 puejieyl vHL
Aowiny unL ewauopu) Nai uoIas uoijeidauy a8pamou-aduo Adljod
wopSury papur b1 5] Suoy Juoy O3H
seuddiiyd IHd WeLaIA WINA mcwr_ﬁ_wu.w >.: m|_
asodeduis 458 eisAelein SAW
oA pell] 40 H|Gnday "ealoy O
Jopeajes |3 AlS ueme) NMmL
g Hid euy) NHD H
I T , e ¢suonsengp
sapod) Anuno)
'S)aNLewW Uo
1eduw 935 0} 10}|UOW O} PI3U pue ‘umop aJe spodxe ‘|eJarg <«
"$3)e15 13430 wod) paddiyssue <
sjealew pajlodxs Jo sash puj« 3M INQ ‘UOIIEWLIONI 2N{EA PUR JYSISM [9SS9A POOB SARY B«

Ayjenb eleq «
-ajenbape aqg Suisssdoud
uoINGLIUOD 5 EBILIOHED « . @1e]s-ul JO JUNOWE 3y} pjnom ‘yseid siewl Jodxa Ji .

%, o
spoday ainng e T aanpniselu|
. SUOISNPUO)

Tl e TR,

sp10dxa onJ) pue jiey «

o

148



0yl £~ £ i1y
CaiRecycle ‘;g ¥
Monthly Public Meetir_n_g

CalRecycle
10:00 A.M., August 18, 2015
Cal/EPA Building — Byron Sher Auditorium

A. DIRECTOR’S REPORT
Presentations or discussions by the Director and/or Executive Offices regarding
department matters, legislative updates, public affairs or 75% initiative/legislative report.

B. PUBLIC COMMENT*
People may speak on any matter concerning CalRecycle with the exception of items
appearing elsewhere on this agenda or items related to pending adjudicative
(certification or enforcement) proceedings.

*Please note that while CalRecycle affords members of the public the opportunity to participate
by Webcast, CalRecycle strongly encourages public comments to be made in person.

C. BEVERAGE CONTAINER RECYCLING PROGRAM
Possible decisions or announcements regarding BCRP matters including fund condition,
rates, approval of new/renewed certifications, or enforcement actions.

Action Items
No actions at this time

Information ltems

D. ELECTRONIC WASTE RECYCLING PROGRAM
Possible decisions or overview regarding the reuse, recycling, and handling of covered
electronic devices; including matters related to fees, recyclers, enforcement, claim
reviews and adjustments.

Action ltems

1. Reguiations for Assessing Civil Liabilities Under the Electronic Waste Recycling Act
Department Staff Contact: Ana-Maria.Stoian-Chu@CalRecycle.Ca.Gov
Public Notice

Information Items
Nothing to report at this time

E. LOCAL ASSISTANCE :
Possible approval or discussion of locally adopted planning documents, bi-annual
reviews, compliance and enforcement actions, or other program-related proceedings.

Action ltems
No actions at this time

Information Items

1. Five-Year Review Report For The Countywide Integrated Waste Management Plan
For The County Of Alameda
Department Staff Contact: Erica.Jue@Calrecycle.Ca.Gov
Public Notice

Page 1 of 4
149



F. GRANT AND LOAN PROGRAMS
Possible decisions or overview regarding matters related to the used oil and household
hazardous waste programs.

Action ltems
No actions at this time

Information ltems
Nothing to report at this time

G. SOLID WASTE AND TIRE FACILITIES
Possible decisions or reconsiderations to petitions for a facility or landfill permit or
modification; and, possible determinations of enforcement actions, clean-up
requirements; or LEA training.

Action Items

1.

Cold Canyon Landfill, Inc. — San Luis Obispo County, Revised Solid Waste Facility Permit,
Action Needed September 14, 2015

Department Staff Contact: Patrick.Snider@CalRecycle.ca.qov
Public Notice

L&D Landfill - Sacramento County, Revised Solid Waste Facility Permit, Action Needed
September 14, 2015

Department Staff Contact: Nicholas.Oliver@CalRecycle.ca.gov
Public Notice

Walker Landfill - Mono County, Modified Solid Waste Facility Permit, Action Needed
September 15, 2015

Department Staff Contact: Christine.Karl@CalRecycle.ca.gov
Public Notice

Golden By-Products — Merced County, Major Waste Tire Facility Permit, Action Needed
September 20, 2015

Department Staff Contact: Margaret.Comotto@CalRecycle.ca.gov
Public Notice

Waste Recovery West, Inc. - San Joaquin County, Major Waste Tire Facility Permit, Action
Needed November 4, 2015

Department Staff Contact: Christine Karl@CalRecycle.ca.qgov
Public Notice

Southeast Resource Recovery Facility — Los Angeles County, Modified Solid Waste
Facilities Permit, Action Needed September 29, 2015

Department Staff Contact; Shannon.Hill@CalRecycle.ca.gov
Public Notice

Information ltems

1.

2.

Award of a Solid Waste Disposal and Codisposal Site Cleanup Program Grant (Solid Waste
Disposal Trust Fund, FY 2014-2015)

Department Staff Contact: Mustafe.Botan@CalRecycle.ca.gov

Approval of Tijuana River Action Month Volunteer Cleanup Projects Support (Tire Fund, FY
2014-2015)
Department Staff Contact: Robert.Healy@CalRecycle.ca.gov

Page 2 of 4
150



H. POLICY MANDATES/WORKSHOPS/RULEMAKING PROCEEDINGS
Possible decisions or discussions by department staff regarding any order instituting a
rulemaking proceeding to develop and adopt regulations and/or policy guidelines
specifying the procedures to implement or revise program guidelinés or requirements
such as Product Stewardship, Commercial Recycling, Organics Roadmap or the 75%
initiative.

Action ltems
1. Adoption of a Negative Declaration (SCH# 2015062080) for the Compostable Materials,
Transfer/Processing Regulations

Department Staff Contact: Ken.Decio@CalRecycle.ca.qov

Public Notice

2. Adoption of the Proposed Compostable Materials, Transfer/Processing Reguiations

Department Staff Contact: Ken.Decio@CalRecycle.ca.gov

Public Notice

Information ltems
1. CalRecycle Packaging Workshop: Manufacturers' Chailenge

Please Note: New Time and Date

November 18, 2015 9:00AM - 4:00PM
Department Staff Contact: Cynthia.Dunn@CalRecycle.Ca.Gov

Public Notice

I. OTHER
Possible decisions or discussions regarding the development or implementation of a
new or an amendment to policies and procedures for grants, loans and contracts. Please
note that grants, loans, or scopes of work will be agendized specific to program area
uniess otherwise noted here.

Action Items
No actions at this time

Information Items
Nothing to report at this time

J. COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT HEARINGS
Hearings for Compliance and Enforcement matters and Administrative Appeals which are
required to have a public hearing prior to the Department taking action

Action ltems
1. Public Hearing to Consider the Issuance of Compliance Order (CO) 015-001 for the City of

Maywood
Department Staff Contact: Trevor.O’Shaughnessy@CalRecycle.ca.gov
Public Notice to Follow

Information_tems
Nothing to report at this time

We want to assure all of our stakeholders that transparency and stakeholder involvement remains a
high priority for CalRecycle. In keeping with a history of providing stakeholders with information about

Page 3 of 4

151



programs, activities, and departmental decisions, CalRecycle has a public noticing site. To review Final

CalRecycle Decisions and other department activities, please go to:
hitp://www.calrecycle.ca.goviActions/ or http://www.calrecycie.ca.gov/BevContainer/Notices. For

meeting participation, listserv, and feedback information, please go
to: http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/PublicMeeting/,

Page 4 of 4

152



Recycling Resource Center - Institute for Local Government Page 1 of 1

IIG INSTITUTE ror
8] LOCAL GOVERNMENT*

Promoting Good Government at the Local Level
Recycling Resource Center

As California residents and businesses recycle more, local governments are looking to build additional
recycling infrastructure projects and expand existing programs. This resource center includes
resources, webinars and case examples to help local governments do just that — finance and site
recycling projects and programs in their communities. The commercial recycling section includes
resources to help local officials increase commercial recycling in their communities.

Funding & Financing

As California residents and businesses are recycling more, due to a combination of customer education,
environmental awareness, local and state mandates and pricing incentives, local governments face
challenges in identifying ways to finance and fund recycling projects and programs. The resources and case
stories included here outline some of the innovative ways that local governments are financing recycling
infrastructure and funding recycling programs across the state.

More

Planning & Siting

Understanding how to site recycling, processing and manufacturing facilities can help cities and counties get
the full benefit of the economic development and greenhouse gas reductions they produce. In order to plan
for and site recycling facilities, local governments must obtain the proper permits and comply with the
California Environmental Quality Act among other requirements. This section provides resources and case
stories to help local governments navigate this complex process.

More

Commercial Recycling

This section includes a sample commercial recycling ordinance, a sample outreach and education fiyer,
examples of local commercial recycling programs, links to past webinars and other resources to help local
officials increase commercial recycling in their communities.

More

© Institute for Local Government | Home | Login | Website User's Guide | Website Policies {Updated 1/14)

http://www.ca-ilg.org/recycling-resource-center 53 6/22/2015



9 Used Oil & Household Hazardous Waste Programs

CalRecycle

Program News

1" Edltion 2015

o Used OllIHHW Conference Awardees

i
¢ Upcoming HHWIEs
Northemn California

Tehama County — Red Bluff
Wednesday, June 174

Back Row, Left to Right:
Josh Simpson (Kemps
Propane), Israel

{  Contact: Schochet (Flame King),
. Paul Freund ! Paul Freund (Tehama
freund Mg.ca.us | County), David Wyatt
' {Ceniral Contra Costa
! Sanit isirict), B
. Soithemn California ! anitary District), Ben

City of Thousand Oaks Lucha (Palmdale)

s Thursday, June 25t

—

Frant Row, Left to Right:

. Contact: i .
: i Trati Goutarfe (EIK
i ;ET@%M : Grove), Cedar Kehoe
‘ v ] {Elk Grove), Vickie
' Vel - Yoshikawa (Norwalk),
i Lyn Beurmann (Kem
i . 14 County)
Did You Know... i
Reviced Cerfified Collection.
cal 5
avaliable. Reclplemsnz:n use this f On behaif of CalRecycle and the conference sponsors, we would like to
checklist f?"ﬂ-"]'te‘]’;m atsingle | . thank all the conference attendees. This year’s conference was a great
a"d‘-“_’r i _pes : success with over 250 attendees participating. The next Used Qil/HHW

Conference will be in Northern California, Summer/Fall 2016. Stay
tuned!

Cert:iﬁecf Colleciion Centers {CCC) Service Centroct

- Did You Know... I 5 7 The CCC Service contractor, C2 Alternative Services (C2) has developed
i Thers s an interactive GIS used | i WO NeEW training guides: “Managing Local CCC Programs” and “Certified
i gilmap that details both active  ; _1 Collection Center Operators Guide.” Both are available at =~ - e i
Eﬁm‘mgﬁm 1 i £ CalRecycle’s Publications webpage. C2 Alternative Services m‘
i is now training jurisdictions on CCC management locally on

Calfornia. ‘

iy © T 5|te 1f you are interested in participating in the free training, or would A
like hard copies (in 2 binder) of the free training guides, contact Barbara - “
Baker. :

Houseliold Hoxardous Waste (HHW) Grani

HHW Cycle 24 (FY 2015/16) grant agreements will be distributed for signature as soon
as the FY 2015/16 State Budget is signed. Since Cycle 24 was undersubscribed, the

B R

L Did You Know...

e

There is a Check Your Number

. app avaliable for Apple products. ©  remaining eligible Cycle 23 applicants will be T

% Go tp the App Store and search l'. awarded. K |

ji & freccvo amter i cuzmnt Fundlng [

: ! Used Oil Competitive (UO t.'.'t)5 Opportunitice |

E i UOC Cycle 2 received 19 applications ¢

| * requesting $2.61 million. The grant awards wilt E Oil Payment Program |

. be announced at CaiRecycle’s July 21, 2015 : (OPP)} Cycle 6 (FY

¢ public meeting. ; 2015/16)

¢ ] . !
pmutmncs | Used Oil Certified Collection ~ ; [ becalGovemental -

:  Program (FY 2015736} H v Payment Program (1 0GOPP).

| pppication materals or | €TMET Program . application system for Cycle 6is |

!

FY 2015/16 grant will be The phone line for the Used Oil CCC Unit, (916} now open to accept applications.

st

| walable dune 2015, 34y. 6690, has been upgraded. Press 1 for i The deadline is June 30, 2015
E e ore do July 28, | Certifications staff, Press 2 for ~ : 2and secondary documents are

. 201, ' i Incentive Claims and Payments, ¢ due July 30, 2015. For more

: ' andfor Press 3 for assistance in  + information, see the NOFA page

¥ For more Information

. contact Carla Repucci. or contact your Program Advisor.

Spanish.

154



q q IEP A Edmund G. Brown Jr.
\ a Govemnor
v California Environmental Natthew Rodriquez

Secrelary for Environmental Profeotion
Protection Agency

Unified Program Newsletter
June 2015

IN THIS ISSUE:
CalEPA Recently Posted FAQs and Help Guidance on CERS Central
REMINDER: Annual Single Fee Summary Report (Report 2) must be submitted to
CalEPA by September 30, 2015
REMINDER: Compliance Monitoring and Enforcement (CME) Data must be entered
into CERS
DTSC After-Hour Temporary ID Numbers Issued By DTSC Emergency Response Duty Officers
SWRCB None
Cal OES None

CAL-FIRE Farms and the Federal Water Resources Reform and Development Act
OSFM How to File a Complaint Against an Engineer

CalEPA

Recently Posted FAQs and Help Guidance on CERS Central
Listed below are the most recent FAQs and Help Guidance documents that have been posted to the

CERS Regulator Portal (https://cersrequlator.calepa.ca.gov/Help):

General Information

e How to Report Multi-Day Inspections (5/12/15)
{How should inspections that take more than one day fo complete be reported in CERS?)

o Citations for Failure to Report UP Required Information (5/18/15)
(What code citations should use to site for fallure to electronically report required Unified Program information?)

Submittals

» Can a Submittal Relate to Construction Permitting {3/2/15)
(Can a CERS submittal be required as part of the new construction or tenant improvement project permitting
process?)

Underground Storage Tanks (USTs)

e When to Issue a UST Operating Permit (Updated 4/13/15)
{Can a UPA issue UST operaling permit if the facility has not submitting electronically to CERS or a local portal?
What if the facility has submitted but the UPA does not accept the submittal?)

REMINDER: Annual Single Fee Summary Report (Report 2) must be submitted to CalEPA by
September 30, 2015

Per California Code of Regulations, Title 27, Division 1, Subdivision 4, §15290(a), the Annual Single
Fee Summary Report (Report 2) for the previous fiscal year must be submitted to CalEPA no later
than September 30, 2015. Report 2 includes: the amount of the single fee billed and collected; the

Air Resources Board « Department of Pesticide Regulation + Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery » Department of Toxic Substances Control
Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment ¢ State Water Resources Control Board + Regional Water Quality Control Boards

1001 1 Street, Sacramento, CA 95814 » P.0. Box 2815, Sacramento, CA 95812 » (916) 323-2514 » www.calepa.ca.gov

155



Unified Program Newsletter
Page 2

amount of any funds due to Participating Agencies and the amount transmitted; the amount of
surcharge billed, waived and collected for each program (including the surcharge for the
Aboveground Pefroleum Storage Act Tank Program}; and a count of total regulated businesses,
Underground Storage Tank (UST) facilities, USTs, onsite hazardous waste treatment facilities
(including Permit By Rule, Conditionally Authorized and Exempt), California Accidental Release
Prevention (CalARP) Program stationary sources and waivers granted, businesses subject to the
CalARP Program and the total Aboveground Storage Tank regulated facilities.

Information contained within Report 2 is essential to adequately assess the implementation and fee
accountability of the Unified Program for each Certified Unified Program Agency as well as to convey
the statewide success and accomplishments of California's Unified Program to the United States
Environmental Protection Agency, California legislature and other interested persons.

A MS Word template for Report 2 is available on the CalEPA website at:
http:/fwww.calepa.ca.gov/CUPA/Publications under the heading “Required Summary Reporting
Forms and Instructions for ‘CUPA-to-State’ Reporting.”

Please remit Report 2 for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 to CalEPA by September 30, 2014 via:

Mail: OR Email:

The Unified Program cupa@calepa.ca.goy

California Environmental Protection Agency Subject: Report 2- Fiscal Year 14-15
P.O. Box 2815

Sacramento, CA 95812

REMINDER: Compliance Monitoring and Enforcement (CME) Data must be entered into CERS
Starting fiscal year 2014/2015, CME data must be submitted electronically within 30 days of each
completed quarter [CCR Title 27, Division 1, Subdivision 4, Section 15280(b}]. Submittal deadlines
are listed below:

Fiscal Year Quarterly CME Action Occurs Deadiine for Electronic Submittal
(including updates) Of Quarterly CME Data
July 1 — September 30 October 30
October 1 — December 31 January 30
January 1 — March 31 April 30
April 1 =June 30 July 30

As of August 1, 2014, CUPAs are evaluated on quarterly CME electronic reporting requirements for
ingpection and enforcement activities occurring on or after July 1, 2013.

All CME data must include the complete detail record fields identified in the CERS Regulator Portal
(http://cers.calepa.ca.gov/) and defined in the Unified Program Data Dictionary
(www.calepa.ca.govi/LawsReqgs/Requlations/T27/DataDict. pdf).

For more information, please refer to Unified Program Guidance Letter 14-02
(http:/fiwww.calepa.ca.gov/CUPA/Bulletins/2014/Jan17.pdf).

Department of Toxic Substances Control

After-Hour Temporary ID Numbers Issued By DTSC Emergency Response Duty Officers
DTSC Emergency Response Duty Officers (ERDOs) take telephone calls for temporary ID numbers
after hours in response to hazardous waste emergencies or spills, etc. U.S. EPA has the same
procedures. Sometimes the call goes to U.S. EPA (Washington DC or San Francisco) or California

156



Unified Program Newsletter
Page 3

Office of Emergency Services and based on the waste and scenario the caller is instructed to call
California’s after-hours number. California’s (OES) number is (800) 852-7550 and will be routed to
DTSC. U.S. EPA’s after-hours number is (415) 947-4400.

hitp://www. dtsc.ca.gov/IDManifestyEMERHWID.cim

DTSC ERDOs issue the temporary ID numbers from a list of ID numbers provided by the DTSC
Generator Information Services Section (GISS). The temporary ID number is then entered into
Hazardous Waste Tracking System (HWTS).

Additional Hazardous Waste ID Frequently Asked Questions can be found at:
hitp://www.dtsc.ca.gov/IDManifest/IDNUMFAQ.cfm

CAL FIRE - Office of State Fire Marshal

Farms and the Federal Water Resources Reform and Development Act

The United States Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA} has published a fact sheet explalning
the impacts of the Water Resources Reform and Development Act (WRRDA) on the Spill Prevention,
Control, and Countermeasure (SPCC) rule and farms. WRRDA was signed into law by the President
on June 10, 2014 and changes certain applicability provisions of the SPCC rule for farms as well as
modifying the criteria under which a farmer may self-certify an SPCC Plan. '

WRRDA also requires that U.S. EPA conduct a study, in conjunction with the United States
Department of Agriculture, to determine the appropriate applicability threshold for farms based on the
risk of discharge. The study is scheduled to be completed by June 2015, after which U.S. EPA will
anticipate future amendments to the SPCC requirements with regard to the findings of the study. The
fact sheet can be found on U.S. EPA’s website at

http://www.epa.gov/emergencies/docs/oilispec/spccwrrda.pdf. Questions or comments regarding the

WRRDA fact sheet should be referred to the “For More Information” section of the fact sheet.

Please note that WRRDA does not change the Aboveground Petroleum Storage Act (APSA).

How to File a Complaint Against an Engineer

The California Board for Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors, and Geologists (BPELSG) has the
authority to investigate complaints of violations of the Professional Engineers Act, such as fraud,
deceit, misrepresentation, negligence, incompetence, breach of contract, failure to use a written
contract, violating the Codes of Professional Conduct, and practicing without a license. Enforcement
actions include, but are not limited to, suspending licenses, revoking licenses, placing licenses on
probation, issuing administrative citations, and referring the matter to the district attorney for criminal
prosecution.

Unified Program Agencies and tank facility owners/operators are encouraged to utilize and follow the
BPELSG complaint process when encountering professional engineer certified SPCC plans that
contain gross errors or if no site visits have been made by the engineer or his/her agent. The
BPELSG complaint process may be found on their website at

http://imww. bpelsg.ca.goviconsumers/complaint _licensee.shtml or on their consumer guide which may
be found at hitp://www.bpelsg.ca.gov/pubs/consumer_guide.pdf.

157



158



I Edmund G. Brown Jr.
\ a I Y Govemor
u California Environmental atthew Rodriquez

Secretary for Environmental Protection
Protection Agency

Unified Program Newsletter
July 2015

IN THIS ISSUE:

CalEPA CHMIA Sponsored Training Announcement
“Smart Negotiator” Training - San Jose, August 10 ~ 11, 8:00 a.m. — 5:00 p.m.
Surcharge Transmittal Report (Report 1) and Annual Single Fee Summary Report
(Report 2) DRAFT templates available on CalEPA website
CERS 3.0- Workshop Held to Determine Supported Enhancements
Two Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ) added to CERS

DTSC None

SWRCB Remanufactured Underground Storage Tank Leak Detection Equipment
June 2015 CERS UST Status Report
Reporting Viclations per UST
Report 6

Cal OES None
CAL- FIRE Aboveground Petroleum Storage Act (APSA) Program Meetings

OSFM Farms and the Federal Water Resources Reform and Development Act
How to File a Complaint Against an Engineer

California Environmental Protection Agency

CHMIA Sponsored Training Announcement

The California Hazardous Materials Investigators Association (CHMIA) has sponsored a free training
to CHMIA and non-CHMIA members who are employed by a government agency. For further
information, please see attached CHMIA announcement.

“Smart Negotiator” Training - San Jose, August 10 — 11, 8:00 a.m. — 5:00 p.m.

The Western States Project is hosting a free two day interactive workshop for employees of CalEPA
Boards and Departments and local partner agencies to benefit environmental regulatory personnel
and attomeys involved in enforcement and/or drafting of compliance schedules to produce more
effective outcomes in negotiations. Class space is limited to 48 students. Applications must be
received by 4:00 p.m., Wednesday, July B. To apply, please send an email to Jessica Diedesch

(Jessica.Diedesch@calepa.ca.gov) and include the following information:

Your Name, Title, Agency/Department, Program you work in
Your Email address, mailing address, phone number

Your Supervisor's name, email address, phone number
Your enforcement duties

Please see the attached flyer for additional information.

Air Resources Board « Department of Pesticide Regulation » Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery ¢ Depariment ol Toxic Substances Control
Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment « State Water Resources Control Board « Regional Water Quality Control Boards

101 1 Street, Sucramento, CA 95814 « P.O, Box 2815, Sucramento, CA Y5812 = (916) 323-2514 + www.calepaca.goy

159



Unified Program Newsletter
Page 2

Surcharge Transmittal Report (Report 1) and Annual Single Fee Summary Report (Report 2)
DRAFT templates available on CalEPA website

The existing Report 1 and Report 2 templates adopted in Title 27, §15680, Appendix B, do not aliow
for the allocation of the applicable $26.00 facility surcharge for the Aboveground Petroleum Storage
Act (APSA), which became effective fiscal year 2014-2015. An official rulemaking will be required to
remove or revise the templates adopted in Title 27. CalEPA will initiate the rulemaking process later
this year to either remove or revise these Reports from Title 27. Therefore, until the Title 27
regulations are amended, CalEPA has developed and is providing CUPAs with draft templates for
Report 1 and Report 2, which include provisions for reporting the APSA surcharge. These draft
report templates will be distributed to all CUPAs and are available at
http:/iwww.calepa.ca.gov/CUPA/Publications. CUPAs are encouraged, but will not be required, to
use these draft Report templates. If a CUPA does not wish to use these draft Report templates then
the CUPA will need to somehow document the APSA surcharge amounts assessed, collected and
remitted on the existing Report 1 and Report 2 templates currently in Title 27.

CERS 3.0- Workshop Held to Determine Supported Enhancements

Approximately 150 suggested CERS enhancements from state and local regulators, business users
(including environmental and public interests), technical advisory groups, and data services vendors,
were reviewed by the Data Steering Committee (DSC) at a 3-day workshop held on June 23-25in
Sacramento. Over the next few weeks, CalEPA will be tabulating the results of the workshop and will
share those results with alt Unified Program stakeholders. The DSC supported CERS 3.0
enhancements will be presented to the Unified Program Administrative and Advisory Group (UPAAG)
in August 2015 and then, to Matthew Rodriquez, the Secretary for Environmental Protection, for final
determination as to which CERS 3.0 enhancements will be approved for development and
implementation. CERS 3.0 is expected to be deployed and available for use sometime in 2018.

On behalf of the statewide Unified Program, CalEPA would like to thank all participants in this
process for your time, dedication and efforts you've put forth in the development and review of
suggestions for enhancing the usability and electronic reporting capabilities of CERS.

Two Frequently Asked Questions {(FAQ) added to CERS

Two FAQs regarding unstaffed, remote, exempt facilities have been posted at
hitps:/icersrequlator.calepa.ca,gov/Help in the Business Section: “Are Remote Unstaffed Facilities
Exempt from Reporting?” and in the Regulator Section: "Exempt Remote Unstaffed Facility
Information in CERS,” revised 6/22/15 in response to suggestions regarding the need for local agency
tracking and for these facilities to be viewable in the Emergency Responder section of CERS.

State Water Resources Control Board

Remanufactured Underground Storage Tank Leak Detection Equipment

it has come to the State Water Resources Control Board's (State Water Board) attention that
remanufactured underground storage tank (UST) leak detection equipment is being offered to
California UST owners/operators, service technicians, and equipment suppliers. However,
remanufactured leak detection equipment does not meet California UST regulatory requirements for
the following reasons:

1. Performance certifications for leak detection equipment only can be obtained by the original
equipment manufacturer. [Califomia Code of Regulations (CCR), title 23, chapter 16, section
2643(f).] Remanufacturers are not the original equipment manufacturer of the leak detection
eqguipment, and therefore are unable to comply with this requirement.

2. California compliant leak detection equipment must be evaluated by an independent third party
testing laboratory. [California Code of Regulations, title 23, chapter 16, section 2643(f}).]
Modifications or changes to the equipment may produce parameters and data values that are
significantly different than the original parameters and data values. Remanufactured leak
detection equipment is therefore not covered by the original equipment manufacturer's evaluation
and listing. ;

160



Unified Program Newsletter
Page 3

Leak detection equipment that has been remanufactured, rebuilt, or refurbished by an entity other
than the original equipment manufacturer is not acceptable for use in California. Moreover, selling
remanufactured leak detection equipment for use in California is an unfair business practice.
[Business and Professions Code, section 17203.] The State Water Board has advised
remanufacturers that by June 8, 2015, all remanufactured leak detection equipment sold in California
must be labeled or otherwise marked as “not compliant for use in California with USTs.” When
remanufactured leak detection equipment is discovered on an UST (for example by a service
technician during inspection and maintenance activities), the ownersfoperators of the UST must
replace the remanufactured leak detection equipment with appropriate leak detection equipment that
is listed in the Local Guidance Letter 113 {LG-113). Below Is a link to the LG-113 document,
http:.//www.waterboards.ca.gov/water issues/programs/ust/leak prevention/lg113/index.shtml

A State Water Board letter regarding this issue was published on May 29, 2015 and is posted at the
website below.
http:/iwaterboards.ca.goviwater issues/programs/ustftech notices/remanufacturedld.pdf

June 2015 CERS UST Status Report

The State Water Board has recently published the latest quarterly status reports intended for tracking
progress towards entering all UST related business and compliance, monitoring and enforcement
(CME) data into the California Environmental Reporting System (CERS). The "June 2015 CERS UST
Status Report’ can be found at the website below.

http:/fwaterboards.ca.goviwater issues/programs/ust/adm notices/qtrly cersrpt 2015jun.pdf

The report shows 93% of UST sites are now in CERS. Since the first report in May 2014, there has
bsen an increase from 33% to 56% of UST facilities that now have an accepted UST submittal and an
increase from 9% to 64% that now have CME data. The report includes a breakdown by Unified
Program Agency (UPA). The next quarterly status report will be in September 2015.

Reporting Violations per UST

The State Water Board's Office of Chief Counsel (OCC) recently created a legal analysis that
determined all UST violations must be linked to specific USTs or UST systems, and not simply the
facility. This determination was partially based on statutory requirements to ensure each tank system
complies with applicable statute and regulations (section 25288) and penalties that are based on
each tank for each day of violation (section 25299). Violations noted on inspection reports should
clearly reference the UST system where the viclation occurs. Violations are not required to be linked
to a UST system in CERS since CERS is a reporting tool and is not intended to be used for
enforcement purposes. The State Water Board issued a letter to the UPAs regarding this matter and
it can be found at the website below.

hitp:/iwaterboards.ca.gov/water issues/programs/ust/adm notices/reporting violations.pdf

Report 6

June 30 marks the end of the first 2015 UST reporting cycle. Report 6 submittals are due by
September 1, 2015. it has become clear that deficiencies in CERS will not allow full electronic
reporting of Report 6 data, and fixes won't be available until CERS v3 (est. 2017). Please use the
“paper” versicn of Report 6 until instructed otherwise.

CAL FIRE - Office of State Fire Marshal
Aboveground Petroleum Starage Act (APSA) Program Meetings

Group Next Meeting Date
APSA Advisory Committee July 20, 2015

Farms and the Federal Water Resources Reform and Development Act
The United States Environmental Protection Agency (U.8. EPA) has published a fact sheet explaining
the impacts of the Water Resources Reform and Development Act (WRRDA) on the Spill Prevention,

161



Unified Program Newsletter
Page 4

Control, and Countermeasure (SPCC) rule and farms. WRRDA was signed into law by the President
on June 10, 2014 and changes certain applicability provisions of the SPCC rule for farms as well as
modifying the criteria under which a farmer may self-certify an SPCC Plan.

WRRDA also requires that U.S. EPA conduct a study, in conjunction with the United States
Department of Agriculture, to determine the appropriate applicability threshold for farms based on the
risk of discharge. The study is scheduled to be completed by June 2015, after which U.S. EPA will
anticipate future amendments to the SPCC requirements with regard to the findings of the study. The
fact sheet can be found on U.S. EPA’s website at

http://www.epa.gov/emergencies/docs/oil/spec/spec_wrrda.pdf. Questions or comments regarding the
WRRDA fact sheet should be referred to the “For More Information” section of the fact sheet.

Please note that WRRDA does not change the Aboveground Petroleum Storage Act (APSA).

How to File a Complaint Against an Engineer

The California Board for Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors, and Geologists (BPELSG) has the
authority to investigate complaints of violations of the Professional Engineers Act, such as fraud,
deceit, misrepresentation, negligence, incompetence, breach of contract, failure to use a written
contract, violating the Codes of Professional Conduct, and practicing without a license. Enforcement
acticns include, but are not limited to, suspending licenses, revoking licenses, placing licenses on
probation, issuing administrative citations, and referring the matter to the district attorney for criminal
prosecution.

Unified Program Agencies and tank facility owners/operators are encouraged to utilize and follow the
BPELSG complaint process when encountering professional engineer certified SPCC plans that
contain gross errors or if no site visits have been made by the engineer or his/her agent. The
BPELSG complaint process may be found on their website at

http://www.bpelsg.ca.gov/consumers/complaint_licensee.shtml or on their consumer guide which may
be found at http://www.bpelsg.ca.gov/pubsiconsumer guide.pdf

162



Secretary for Environments! Protection
Protection Agency v °

Unified Program Newsletter
August 2015

IN THIS ISSUE:

CalEPA California Air Resources Board (CARB) Stationary Source Refrigerant
Management Program Project
Annual Single Fee Summary Report (Report 2) for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 due
September 30, 2015 :
REMINDER: Compliance Monitoring and Enforcement {(CME) Data must be entered
into CERS

DTSC None

SWRCB UST Violations Result in $1.35M Judgment Against San Francisco Municipal
Transportation Agency
Single-Walled UST Correspondence
Compatibility of USTs Storing Gasoline with Ethanol
Local Guidance 171
Abandoned UST Initiative

Cal OES None

CAL-FIRE Farms and the Federal Water Resources Reform and Development Act
OSFM

California Environmental Protection Agency

California Alr Resources Board (CARB) Statlonary Source Refrigerant Management Program
Project

The State of California’s Assembly Bill 32 (Global Warming Solutions Act, 2006}, affects facilities with
refrigeration systems using more than 50 pounds of high global warming potential refrigerants, such
as Freon, R-22, or other replacements. Common affected industries include cold storage
warehouses, agriculture (cooled packing houses), industrial processing and manufacturing, food
manufacturing, food distribution and supermarkets. Facilities with refrigeration systems that use
ammonia or CO? as thelr only form of refrigerant are not affected by this regulation. in an effort
to identify facilities with applicable refrigeration systems, the CARB has sent letters and postcards
and has made phone calls to potentially affected businesses.

Many facilities that are currently reporting to Certified Unified Program Agencies (CUPAs) are
potentially affected by the CARB Stationary Source Refrigerant Management Program regulation,
aiming to reduce greenhouse gas emissions from large, commercial and industrial refrigeration
systems. As part of this project and in the near future, the CARB will be requesting assistance from
the CUPAs to reach out to these potentially affected facilities with the distribution of flyers and FAQs,
or by informing CARB staff of potentially affected facilities. CARB will follow up with the potentially

Air Resources Board » Department of Pesticide Regulation * Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery « Department of Toxic Substances Control

Oifice of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment » State Water Resources Control Board * Regional Water Quality Control Boards
1001 I Streel, Sacramento, CA 95814 » P.O. Box 2815, Sacramento, CA 95812 » (916) 323-2514 » www.calepa.ca.gov

163



Unified Program Newsletter
Page 2

affected facilities and assist with compliance. For more information, please contact the CARB
Refrigerant Management Program at: {916) 324-2517, www.arb.ca.govfcc/rmpfrmp.htm, or email:
mp@arb ca.qov.

REMINDER: Annual Single Fee Summary Report (Report 2) for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 due
September 30, 2015

Per California Code of Regulations, Title 27, Division 1, Subdivision 4, §15290(a), CUPAs must
prepare the Annual Single Fee Summary Report {Report 2) for the previous fiscal year and submit it
to CalEPA no later than September 30, 2015. Report 2 includes: the amount of the single fee billed
and collected; the amount of any funds due to Participating Agencies and the amount transmitted; the
amount of surcharge billed, waived and collected for each program (inciuding the surcharge for the
Aboveground Petroleum Storage Act Program}; and a count of total regulated businesses,
Underground Storage Tank (UST) facilities, USTs, onsite hazardous waste treatment facilities
(including Permit by Rule, Conditionally Authorized and Exempt), California Accidental Release
Prevention (CalARP) Program stationary sources and waivers granted, businesses subject to the
CalARP Program and the total Aboveground Storage Tank regulated facilities.

Information contained within Report 2 is essential to adequately assess the implementation and fee
accountability of the Unified Program for each CUPA as well as to convey the statewide success and
accomplishments of California’s Unified Program to the United States Environmental Protection
Agency, California legislature and other interested persons.

The existing template adopted in Title 27, §15680, Appendix B, does not allow for the allocation of the
applicable $26.00 facility surcharge for the Aboveground Petroleum Storage Act (APSA), which
became effective fiscal year 2(14-2015. CalEPA will initiate the required rulemaking process later this
to remove the template from regulation. Until the template is removed from regulation, CalEPA has
developed and is provided CUPAS with a draft template, available at:
http://www.calepa.ca.gov/CUPA/Publications under the heading “Required Summary Reporting
Forms and Instructions for ‘CUPA-to-State' Reporting.” CUPAs are encouraged, but not required, to
use the draft template provided. If a CUPA does not wish to use the draft template, the APSA
surcharge amounts assessed, collected and remitted must be documented.

Please remit Report 2 for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 to CalEPA by September 30, 2015 via:

Mail: OR Email:

The Unified Program cupa@calepa.ca.gov

Califoria Environmental Protection Agency Subject: Report 2- Fiscal Year 14-15
P.O. Box 2815

Sacramento, California 95812

REMINDER: Compliance Monitoring and Enforcement (CME) Data must be entered into CERS
Starting fiscal year 2014/2015, CME data must be submitted electronically within 30 days of each
completed quarter [CCR Title 27, Division 1, Subdivision 4, §15290(b}]. Submittal deadlines are listed
below:

Fiscal Year Quarterly CME Action Occurs Deadline for Electronic Submittal
(including updates) Of Quarterly CME Data
July 1 — September 30 October 30
October 1 — December 31 January 30
January 1 — March 31 April 30
April 1 = June 30 July 30

164



Unified Program Newsletter
Page 3

As of August 1, 2014, CUPAs are evaluated on quarterly CME electronic reporting requirements for
inspection and enforcement activities occurring on or after July 1, 2013,

All CME data must include the complete detaif record fields identified in the CERS Regulator Portal
(http://cers.calepa.ca.qov/) and defined in the Unified Program Data Dictionary

(www.calepa.ca.qgov/LawsRegs/Regulations/T27/DataDict.pdf).

For more information, please refer to Unified Program Guidance Letter 14-02

(hitp://www.calepa.ca.gov/CUPA/Bulleting/2014/Jan17.pdf).

State Water Resources Control Board

Underground Storage Tank Violations Result in $1.35M Judgment Against San Francisco
Municipal Transportation Agency

The State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) has reached a $1.35 miliion
settlement with the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA) for violating leak
prevention requirements for hazardous substances at four underground storage tank (UST) facilities
in San Francisco. These alleged viclations included failure to monitor tank systems, failure to
maintain adequate spill containment, failure to perform monthly designated operator inspections and
falsifying monthly designated operator reports.

Under the terms of the settlement, the SFMTA wili pay $425,000 in civil penalties to the State Water
Board; $100,000 for the reimbursement of enforcement costs and $375,000 will be suspended on the
condition SFMTA completes several enhanced compliance actions. An additional $450,000 is
suspended on the condition SFMTA maintains compliance with underground storage tank laws and
injunctive provisions for a period of five years.

For more information, view a copy of the complaint and settlement agreement at the website below.

hitp://www. waterboards.ca.goviwater issues/programs/enforcement/orders actions.shiml

A copy of the full press release can be found at:

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/press room/press releases/2015/pr072715 muni enforcement.pdf.

Single-Walled UST Correspondence

On July 7, 2015, the State Water Board issued a notice regarding the new single-walled UST closure
requirements. The notice was distributed to all cowners and/or operators of single-walled USTs, as
identified by the Unified Program Agencies (UPAs). The letter provided information on how to comply
with the new requirements, what funding sources are available to assist with compliance, and who to
contact for questions or concems. A copy of this letter can be found at:

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/ust/single walled/docs/sw_ust owner operator ltr.pdf.

For more information on the single-walled UST closure requirements, visit the website below.

hitp:/iwww.waterboards.ca.goviust/single walled!

Compatibllity of USTs Storing Gasoline with Ethanol

On June 24, 2015, the State Water Board issued a technical nofice outlining the types of
documentation that can be used to demonstrate compliance with the compatibility requirements of
California’s Health and Safety Code. For fiber reinforced piastic (FRP) tanks that store gasoline with
ethanol, the technical notice states that a UL 1318 listing/approval which includes “alcohol” or
“alcohol mixtures” may satisfy the requirement that the primary containment be compatible with the
stored substance. Tanks installed before January 1, 1991 may also, in lieu of a UL approval/listing,
use a manufacturer's affirmative statement of compatibility for the specific substance stored to
demonstrate compliance. A table is attached to the technical notice to assist in determining what
documentation is necessary and available to demonstrate that an FRP tank is in compliance with the
primary containment compatibility requirement of California’'s Health and Safety Code, chapter 6.7,

165



Unified Program Newsletter
Page 4

sections 25292.05, 25291, 25290.2, and 25290.1. The table consists of the most common FRP tank
manufacturers and what documentation can be used to satisfy the compatibility requirement. The
technical document is posted at:

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/ust/ftech notices/docs/ethanol tank compatibility letter.pdf.

Local Guidance 171

On July 24, 2015, the State Water Board released Local Guidance {LG) 171 - Permanent Closure of
Underground Storage Tanks That Do Not Meet Health and Safety Code, Chapter 6.7, Section 25291,
Subdivisions (a){1){6). LG 171 summarizes the main provisions of Senate Bill 445 (Sfats. 2014, Ch,
547) that apply to UST design and construction. These changes are reflected in Health and Safety
Code, section 25292.05. The guidance was drafted in an attempt to make it easier for owners and
operators of underground storage tanks (USTs), Unified Program Agency staff, and other interested
parties to identify USTs subject to SB445. In addition, LG 171 specifies what actions are necessary if
the UST does not comply with Health and Safety Code, chapter 6.7, section 25291(a}(1)-(6). LG 171
is posted at:

http://'www.waterboards.ca. qov/iwater_issues/programs/ustfieak prevention/lgs/docs/lg171.pdf.

Abandoned UST Initiative .

Sullivan Intemational, the United States Environmental Protection Agency, and the State Water Board
continue to investigate non-compliant sites with abandoned USTs throughout the state of California.
Information regarding the Abandoned UST Initiative can be found at:

http://waterboards.ca.gov/ust/abandoned storage.shiml.

The latest information regarding the Abandoned UST Initiative can be found in the July 2015
Abandoned Underground Storage Tank Initiative Progress Report below.

hitp://waterboards.ca.gov/ust/docs/abandoned storage/ab ust initprogrpt 072015.pdf

Also, a list of current abandoned USTs, as well as previously abandoned USTs that are now in
compliance can be found in the July 2015 Abandoned UST Inventory below.

hitp://waterboards.ca.gov/ust/docs/abandoned storage/ab ustandprev comp.pdf

CAL FIRE - Office of State Fire Marshal

Farms and the Federal Water Resources Reform and Development Act

The United States Environmental Protection Agency (US EPA) has completed and published the
study required under the Water Resources Reform and Development Act (WRRDA) to determine the
aggregate aboveground oil storage capacity threshold for farms subject to the federal Spifl
Prevention, Control, and Countermeasure (SPCC) rule. The study determined the threshold for
minimum oil storage at a farm subject to the federal SPCC rule to be 2,500 gallons. However, until
the federal SPCC rule is amended to incorporate the findings of the study, the thresheld provided in
WRRDA remains effective.

A factsheet on WRRDA can be found on US EPA’s website at
http://www.epa.gov/emergencies/docs/oil/spce/spec wrrda.pdf. Questions regarding the WRRDA fact

sheet should be referred to the “For More Information” section of the fact sheet.

The US EPA study on farms may be found on US EPA’s website at hitp://www?2.epa_gov/oil-spills-
prevention-and-preparedness-regulations/oil-storage-us-farms-risks-and-opportunities. Questions or
comments regarding the study should be referred to US EPA.

Please note that WRRDA does not change the Aboveground Petroleum Storage Act (APSA).

166



Mary Pitto

From: CalRecycle Electronic Product Management ListServ [EWaste@calrecycle.ca.gov]
Sent: Friday, June 05, 2015 6:36 PM

To: Mary Pitto

Subject: California E-Waste Updates: Implementing the Electronic Waste Recycling Act
June 5, 2015

Dear Electronic Waste Stakeholder:

This electronic newsletter is an update on the implementation of California's Electronic Waste Recycling Act of
2003 (Act) and other electronic waste (e-waste) management developments in California.

In this issue:
REVISED CEW/CRT REGULATIONS TO BE HEARD AT CALRECYCLE MONTHLY

JULY 14 STAKEHOLDER WORKSHOP: IMPOSING CIVIL LIABILITIES

#itit Revised CEW/CRT Regulations to Be Heard At CalRecycle Monthly ####

Proposed revised regulations governing aspects of California’s covered electronic waste (CEW) program will
be presented as an item at the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) public monthly
meeting on June 16 at the Cal/EPA Headquarters Building in Sacramento. A Public Notice for this monthly
meeting along with an agenda can be found here:

http.//www.calrecycle.ca. gov/Actions/PublicNoticeDetail aspx?id=1513&aiid=1374

The subject item will present a staff proposal along with a request for approval to move forward with the
proposed revised regulations. The regulations focus on the allowable disposition of treatments residuals, CRTs,
and CRT glass derived from CEW that is claimed for recycling payment.

The request for approval, the proposed revised regulations, and supporting documents can be found through this
Public Notice:

http://www.calrecvcle.ca. gov/Actions/PublicNoticeDetail.aspx?id=1515&aiid=1376

#HH# July 14 Stakeholder Workshop: Imposing Civil Liabilities ####

CalRecycle will host a stakeholder workshop on the afternoon of Tuesday, July 14, from 1PM until
approximately 4PM on the subject of civil liabilities. The Public Notice for the workshop can be found at:
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Actions/PublicNoticeDetail .aspx?id=1523 &aiid=1386

This workshop will present and discuss proposed regulations to implement a civil liability component to the
covered electronic waste (CEW) recycling payment system. As authorized by Public Resources Code (PRC)
section 42474(d), CalRecycle may administratively impose civil liabilities (penalties) on a person “... that
makes a false statement or representation in any document filed, submitted, maintained or used for purposes of

1

167



compliance...” with the Electronic Waste Recycling Act and associated regulations, including those related to
the CEW program. It is anticipated that the proposed regulations will be adopted under emergency authority
(see PRC 42475.2).

Interested parties should closely monitor the Public Notice site for developing details.

There will be no cost or registration necessary to attend and participate in the workshop. Interested parties who
cannot aftend in person can monitor the proceedings via a webcast and will be able to submit questions or
concerns via email before and during the event.

#3448 Other Resources ##iH

Covered Electronic Waste (CEW) Recycling Program Information:
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Electronics/CEW/

CEW Recycling Payment System Regulations:
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Laws/Regulations/Title] 4/Chap(8pt2/default.htm

DTSC Universal Waste Electronics Handler and Recycler Information:
http://www.dtsc.ca.gov/HazardousWaste/EWaste/

Public Resources Code (PRC), Health and Safety Code (HSC), and other statutes:
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/calaw.html

USEPA Information on the Management and Regulation of CRTs:
htgp://www.epa.gov/gpawaste/hazard/recycling[electron/index.htm

Please note that e-mail correspondence with the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery
(CalRecycle) related to e-waste management in general, and implementation of the Electronic Waste Recycling
Act in particular, should be directed to ewaste@calrecycle.ca.gov

Also note that an archive of past distributions of this newsletter is available at:
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Electronics/NewsEvents.htm

Thank you for your interest in shaping California's e-waste management future.

To subscribe to or unsubscribe from the E-Waste listserv or other listservs, please go to
httpy//www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Listservs/. For information on California’s Electronic Waste Recycling Act of
2003 (SB 20) implementation efforts, as well as other relevant developments go to

ht_tp://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Electronics/ .

168



Mary Pitto

From: CalRecycle Electronic Product Management ListServ [EWaste@calrecycle.ca.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, July 07, 2015 4:11 PM

To: Mary Pitto

Subject: California E-Waste Updates: Implementing the Electronic Waste Recycling Act

July 7, 2015
Dear Electronic Waste Stakeholder:

This electronic newsletter is an update on the implementation of California's Electronic Waste Recycling Act of
2003 (Act) and other electronic waste (e-waste) management developments in California.

In this issue:
REMINDER: JULY 14 STAKEHOLDER WORKSHOP ON CIVIL LIABILITIES

REVISED CEW/CRT REGULATIONS READIED FOR TRANSMITTAL TO OAL

#### Reminder: July 14 Stakeholder Workshop on Civil Liabilities ####

Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) will host a stakeholder workshop on the
afternoon of Tuesday, July 14, from 1PM until approximately 4PM on the subject of civil liabilities. The Public
Notice for the workshop, along with an agenda and draft documents, can be found at:
http.//www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Actions/PublicNoticeDetail.aspx?id=1523 & aiid=1386

This workshop will present and discuss proposed regulations to implement a civil liability component to the
covered electronic waste (CEW) recycling payment system. As authorized by Public Resources Code (PRC)
section 42474(d), CalRecycle may administratively impose civil liabilities (penalties) on a person ... that
makes a false statement or representation in any document filed, submitted, maintained or used for purposes of
compliance...” with the Electronic Waste Recycling Act and associated regulations, including those related to
the CEW program. It is anticipated that the proposed regulations will be adopted under emergency authority
(see PRC 42475.2).

There will be no cost to attend and participate in the workshop, however for the purposes of planning the
courtesy of an RSVP is requested. Please send those to ewaste@calrecycle.ca.gov

Interested parties who cannot attend in person can monitor the proceedings via a webcast and will be able to
submit questions or concerns via email before and during the event.

#it#it Revised CEW/CRT Regulations Readied for Transmittal to OAL ####

Proposed revised regulations governing aspects of California’s CEW program administered by CalRecycle have
been approved internally and are being readied for transmittal to the Office of Administrative Law (OAL) for

1

169



review. The regulations focus on the allowable disposition of treatments residuals, CRTs, and CRT glass
derived from CEW that is claimed for recycling payment, as well as associated documentation. Existing
program regulations have prohibited the disposal of residual CRT glass derived from CEW claimed for
payment. The revisions would now allow all otherwise legal dispositions, including regulated disposal if
recycling options are not economically feasible to pursue.

There will be a ten day review period once the proposed regulations are submitted to OAL, after which the rules
take effect. Further notices will be announced through this listserv as necessary.

The signed internal request for approval, the proposed revised regulations, and supporting documents can be
found through this CalRecycle Public Notice:
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Actions/PublicNoticeDetail.aspx?id=1515&aiid=1376

#### Other Resources ####

Covered Electronic Waste (CEW) Recycling Program Information:
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Electronics/ CEW/

CEW Recycling Payment System Regulations:
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Laws/Regulations/Titlel 4/Chap08pt2/default.htm

DTSC Universal Waste Electronics Handler and Recycler Information:
http://www.dtsc.ca.gov/HazardousWaste/EWaste/

Public Resources Code (PRC), Health and Safety Code (HSC), and other statutes:
hitp://www.leginfo.ca.gov/calaw.html

USEPA Information on the Management and Regulation of CRTs:
hitp://www.epa.gov/epawaste/hazard/recyeling/electron/index.htm

Please note that e-mail correspondence with the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery _
(CalRecycle) related to e-waste management in general, and implementation of the Electronic Waste Recycling
Act in particular, should be directed to ewaste@calrecycle.ca.gov

Also note that an archive of past distributions of this newsletter is available at:
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Electronics/N ewsEvents.htm

Thank you for your interest in shaping California’s e-wastc management future.

To subscribe to or unsubscribe from the E-Waste listserv or other listservs, please go to
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Listservs/. For information on California’s Electronic Waste Recycling Act of
2003 (SB 20) implementation efforts, as well as other relevant developments go to
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Electronics/.

170



Ma:! Pitto -

From: CalRecycle Electronic Product Management ListServ [EWaste@calrecycle.ca.gov]
Sent: Thursday, July 23, 2015 4:07 PM

To: Mary Pitto

Subject: California E-Waste Updates: implementing the Electronic Waste Recycling Act
July 23, 2015

Dear Electronic Waste Stakeholder:

This electronic newsletter is an update on the implementation of California's Electronic Waste Recycling Act of
2003 (Act) and other electronic waste (e-waste) management developments in California.

In this issue:

COMMENTS SOUGHT BY JULY 31 ON PROPQSED CIVIL LIABILITY RULES

### Comments Sought by July 31 on Proposed Civil Liability Rules ####

Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) is seeking comments on proposed regulations
related to the administration of the civil liabilities under the Electronic Waste Recycling Act in general and the
covered electronic waste (CEW) recycling payment system in particular. Comments are requested by Friday,
July 31, 2015.

Please send any comments to ewaste@calrecycle.ca.gov

CalRecycle hosted a stakeholder workshop on July 14 to present and discuss the proposed rules. The Public
Notice for that workshop, along with draft documents and a recording of the proceedings, can be found at:
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Actions/PublicNoticeDetail aspx ?id=1523 &aiid=1386

As authorized by Public Resources Code (PRC) section 42474(d), CalRecycle may administratively impose
civil liabilities (penalties) on a person “... that makes a false statement or representation in any document filed,
submitted, maintained or used for purposes of compliance. ..” with the Electronic Waste Recycling Act and
associated regulations, including those related to the CEW program. It is anticipated that the proposed
regulations will be adopted under emergency authority (see PRC 42475.2).

##H Other Resources ##

Covered Electronic Waste (CEW) Recycling Program Information:
hitp://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Electronics/ CEW/

CEW Recycling Payment System Regulations:

http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Laws/Regulations/Title1 4/ ChapQ8pt2/default.htm

171



DTSC Universal Waste Electronics Handler and Recycler Information:
http://www.dtsc.ca.gov/HazardousWaste/EWaste/

Public Resources Code (PRC), Health and Safety Code (HSC), and other statutes:
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/calaw.html

USEPA Information on the Management and Regulation of CRTs:
http://www.epa.gov/epawaste/hazard/recycling/electron/index.htm

Please note that e-mail correspondence with the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery
(CalRecycle) related to e-waste management in general, and implementation of the Electronic Waste Recycling
Act in particular, should be directed to ewaste@calrecycle.ca.gov

Also note that an archive of past distributions of this newsletter is available at:
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Electronics/NewsEvents.htm

Thank you for your interest in shaping California's e-waste management future.

To subscribe to or unsubscribe from the E-Waste listserv or other listservs, please go to
hitp://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Listservs/. For information on California’s Electronic Waste Recycling Act of
2003 (SB 20) implementation efforts, as well as other relevant developments go to

http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Electronics/.

172



Agenda Item X

ARTICLES
OF
INTEREST



174



County waste department to provide free composting workshop in Banning on Saturday - ... Page 1 of 1

County waste department to provide free
composting workshop in Banning on Saturday
Posted: Wednesday, July 15, 2015 12:44 pm

The Riverside County Department of Waste Resources will host a free backyard composting
workshop in Banning on Saturday (July 18).

Attend this “how-to” workshop to learn how to recycle organic resources such as yard trimmings,
fruit and vegetable waste into a dark, crumbly, sweet-smelling soil conditioner. Compost can be
used to enrich the soil in gardens, lawns and house plants. Instead of putting organic waste in the
garbage to be hauled to the landfill, learn to compost!

The free “how-to” backyard composting workshop begins at 10 a.m. at the City of Banning Senior
Center, 769 North San Gorgonio Ave.

Composting is nature’s way of recycling. It’s a great way to divert waste from the landfill and turn
it into a beneficial soil amendment. In composting, organic material is mixed together in a pile or
bin, where literally millions of tiny microbes digest the material and turn it into a nutrient-rich soil
amendment.

The Riverside County Department of Waste Resources provides this free workshop in an effort to
divert waste and help preserve valuable landfill space in the county sanitary landfill. For years, the
department has trained volunteer master composters who explain how to create compost easily
and efficiently from organic wastes. Low-cost compost bins, subsidized by the department, will
also be available for purchase by Riverside County residents (limit three per household). County
residents can purchase compost bins by personal check only. Cash and credit cards will not be
accepted.

For more information, contact Riverside County Department of Waste Resources at (951) 486-
3200 or visit: hitp://www.rcwaste.org/opencms/recycling/pdf/flyers/Banning.pdf

http://www.recordgazette.net/news/breaking/county 7 saste-department-to-provide-free-co...  7/21/2015



GUEST EDITORIAL | BY JAMES D. WARNER

Waste-to-Energy: The Lost Decades

facility was built and commissioned in the United States. (The

last one was in Montgomery County, MD, in 1995.) This long
period without new facility construction will come to an end in a
few months when the West Palm Beach County Solid Waste Author-
ity (in Florida) opens a new 3000 TPD facility—their second, in fact.
What should we, as an industry, think of these two lost decades with-
out any new development {yes, we had expansions) of this proven
technology? When only
three general options
exist (recycle/compost,
combustion, and landfill}
to manage our MSW
stream, how could a
country as large as the US
not build a WTE facility.
in 20 years?

Other regions of the
developed world have
embraced WTE during
the same time period,
including almost all of
‘Western Europe (driven
by landfill organics bans
and $100+/ton landfill
taxes), Pacific Rim Coun-
tries (now 40% of the
global market), as well
as other select emerg-
ing regions around the
globe (i.e., the Arabian
Peninsula). According to
the latest EPA numbers,
the US was utilizing WTE
for processing only 12%
of MSW in 2013. Twenty
years ago, the US was
recycling 27% of MSW.
We are now recycling .
about 35% as a nation: a gain of 8%. Landfilling has declined from
57% to 53% in the last 20 years, while combustion has also fallen
from 16% to a reduced level of 12% as noted previously. Both
landfilling and combustion have decreased an equal percentage to
account for the rise in recycling. So, after we recycle 35%, we are
landfilling about four of every five remaining tons. This can hardly
be seen ‘as “progress” in a country where landfilling is at the bottom
of EPA’s own waste hierarchy. I struggle to accept that we are choos-
ing to landfill our MSW because citizens, lecal government units,
and waste practitioners believe it is generally better for the environ-
ment. What is the root problem then? And, we if continue on this
path, what can we expect in the next 20 years?

'WTE had a promising growth spurt from 1985 through 1995.
Many of the plants built during that period (including LCSWMA’s

]:t’s now 2015, two decades since a new waste-to-energy (WTE)

8 MSW MANAGEMENT [ JULY/AUGUST 20151

176

in Lancaster County, PA) exceeded performance expectations of
their owners and became widely accepted in their local communi-
ties. In LCSWMA's experience, our landfill life was extended from
10 years to 30 years. Qur county recycling rate grew significantly
from single digits to 43.7% just last year. It is worth noting the
recycling rate would only be 40% if not for the recovery of fer-
rous and non-ferrous metal after combustion, We have generated
enough renewable energy to power the equivalent of every home

in Lancaster County for four years. We have lowered our waste
disposal CO,e (carbon dicxide equivalent) output by more than 10
million tons, versus had we landfilled that post-recycled waste. Our
MSW disposal fee is $62.80 per ton, which is lower than the rate at
the time our WTE facility opened in 1991. The last debt payment
on the facility will be made this year sc all future benefits will come
without project debt. I now present readers the same question 1

am asked by residents and visitors after a tour of our W'IE facility:
“Why aren’t there more of facilities like this in the U5?” Good ques-
tion, but one with a difficult answer. msw

James D. Warmer is CEO for the Solid Waste Management Authority,
Lancaster County, PA, and a member of MSW Managerment's Editorial
Advisory Board.



Landfill brings solar windfall for Washington County, Maryland | NACo Page 1 of 3

COUNTY NEWS

LANDFILL BRINGS SOLAR WINDFALL FOR
WASHINGTON COUNTY, MARYLAND

By CHARLIE BAN Aug. 3, 2015

Tags: Energy

Leasing county land to solar energy companies will make Washington County,
Md. an entirely-solar-powered government, give its budget an almost-half
million dollar boost, and in the process make it a leader in the Old Line State.

Public-private partnerships with three solar energy producers have led to
construction of 130 acres of solar panels which, when completed, witl yield 25
megawatts of electricity, 14 megawatts of which will be purchased by the
county and the school district at a reduced rate. That adds up to a savings of
$100.000 a year over the previous energy contract, just for the county
government.

“And it’s all sustainable,” said Julie Pippel, director of the county's division of
environmental management. "Plus, it's all privately built and maintained.”

Montgomery County, Md.- based EPG Solar approached Washington County
more than three years ago with an interest in using some of its land. Spear
Point Energy and Northern Energy have followed suit. The solar field con-
struction should be complete and online by the end of 2015.

"When you own a landfill with landfill space, and people are locking for solar
(projects), you get people knocking on your door,” she said. “We had all of this
land, we're owning it and maintaining it. It wasn't drawing in a tax base and we
weren'’t getting anything from it.”

Now those otherwise-empty acres are yielding $375,000 annually in rent
revenue (one penny per kilowatt-hour generated) from the three energy
companies. It's net savings and revenue of $475,000.

“They're getting their power and we're getting our rent,” she said.

http://www.naco.org/articlesllandﬁll-brings-solar-\i'_;':;\dfall-washington—county-maryland 8/5/2015



Landfill brings solar windfall for Washington County, Maryland | NACo Page 2 of 3

Local contractors are building the solar fields and will maintain them. This was
precipitated in large part by a recent reorganization of the Department of
Environmental Management, which grouped environmental, solid waste, water
and recycling functions together, separate from public works.

“Those functions are now managed in a direct way that relate to each other,”
Pippel said. "It put us in a position to enhance environmental initiatives in the
county, bring some sustainability to the county, reduce county budget, so
solar is something that could do that for us.”

The deal was held up by a question of whether counties could enter into a
purchase power agreement.

“The regulations guiding utilities referred to ‘municipalities’ as viable parties in
a contract, which we read as ‘local governments,” Pippel said. “The power
company read that as towns and cities.”

The Public Service Commission ruled in favor of Washington County, paving
the way for other counties. Pippel said Harford and Queen Anne’s counties
have called with interest.

Robert Babcock, owner of EPG Solar, said the choice of Washington County
for a major project was an easy one.

"What wasn't attractive?” he said. “| love working with municipal governments.
They look for local solutions, and in this case it's to generate their own power.”

The volume of open space was also appealing because of the scale on which
EMPG could work,

“Using landfill space is one of the greatest uses of county resources,” he said.
“What else will you do with it? It was all the land | needed.”

ABOUT CHARLIE BAN ruu Bio)
SENIOR WRITER & WEB EDITOR

Charlie Ban writes for County News and helps
manage NACo website content.

http://www.naco.org/articles/landfill-brings-solar-w; gifall-washington-county-maryland 8/5/2015



Recycling snoops trash residents' privacy rights - The Orange County Register Page 1 of 5

= BACK

D 'SCHO

ibe Today (/sections/i ibe)  Customer Service (fhelp/)  eRegister [http://epapet.ocregister.com/Clive/ODE/OrangeCountyRegister/}  Today's Puper
(/sections/headlines/)
Knowledge Cafe (http:/fwww. { fsections/| ledge-cafe/} M ines (http:fhy egister.com/go/magazines) Unides {hitp://www.unidessc.com)

Weather (hitpz//weather.ocregister.comf)
, News (/sections/news/) | Sports {/sections/sports/) | Business {/sections/business/)

Entertainment (/sections/entertainment/) | Life {/sections/life/) Opinlon(lsectionsloplnionnI

Obits (http://obits.ocregister,com/obituaries/orangecounty/)

' I Reglster Connect (http://connect.ocregister.com/)

CARS
n
{/GO/CARBA
(HTTP//MOYWLBCIOBFINDER.CO
(/G0/OC MBI PLACE/}
CLEBSIMEDS
(HTTP://DC. KAANGO.COM
Palitical Cartoons {/sections/galleries/gallery/Inosubs=1&category_id_list=18964)  Columns (/sectionsfopinion/columns/) (hgﬂm h
Freeze-dried mice holding From waffle shop to white Restaurants' openings at ARTIC As people hear the Republican
< champagne? The wacky tablecioths, Orange County rolling forward, slowly hopefuls debate tonight, will )
decorations at the OC Fair students spend summer serving {{articles/open-675583-city- Donald Trump's stance also
TOP NEWS

OPINION {/COMMON/ARCHIVES ICATID=18963)
Recycling snoops trash residents' privacy rights

Aug. 5,2015 | Updated Aug. 4, 2015 4:49 p.m.

i e e
Scrap metal cans are processed for recycling.

, BAVID DUPREY, ASSOCIATED PRESS

By ADAM B. It was horrifying enough when { read five years ago that 68 local
SUMMERS { governments in Britain and Northern Ireland had installed microchips in
STAFF . iy
COLUMNIST household garbage bins to monltor how much garbage some 2.6 million

households were throwing away (and potentlally levy fines on those the
government thinks throw away too much or recycle too little). Now, as
the U.S. seeks to emulate the British surveillance state, the

FACEBOOK governmental trash snoops have made their way across the pond.

YT 1wrrrer

http://www.ocregister.com/articles/trash-67 5908-re[;zling-government.html 8/6/2015



Recycling snoops trash residents' privacy rights - The Orange County Register

£ e Increasingly, public and private waste and recycling collectors are
(mailto:? utilizing radie-frequency identification tags, which are installed on orin
subjecFOCREGISfEﬂ%ﬁ"“ bins and contain unique identifying information which can be
transmitted to readers on collection trucks.

20Recycling%

20snoops% “A growing number of cities in the United States are installing RFID chips
20trash% in trash cans and recycling bins in order to bring computer technology to
20residents% bear on the problem of ensuring compliance with recycling regulations,”
27% the American Civil Liberties Union warned in a recent post.

20priva

20: ht cz::d =htjtrhr§]purposes of this technology may be benign, Dayton, Ohio, for
3A%EZF‘;: ¥ egample, offers financial incentives for recycling and uses RFID tags to

_ track who has earned the cash prizes. Charlotte, N.C, uses the tags to
2Fwww.ocregisteny@@¥imanage its bin inventories, improve the efficiency of its collection

2Farticles%% routes and more accurately target recycling educational materials.
2Ftrash-

675908- But such technology can also be put to much more intrusive uses. in
recycling- Cleveland, residents face $100 fines if their trash bins contain more than

tht lm percent recyclable materials, And Seattle residents are suing the city
ESYEREREIIM )over a new law that penalizes them for not “properly” sorting their

Y commENTS recycling and food waste. Residential trash containers with more than 10
percent recyclables or food waste, as determined by trash collection
=y workers, will generate a $1 fine on the next monthly bill, and businesses

{fcommon/printeduibmptifamily property owners with too much food waste face $50
db=ocregister&idSHrEH08)

5 senceor La Crosse and Onalaska, Wis., even use video cameras to monitor and
(ftemplates/saverfyFiumenyaetphfimcontents and go after those disposing of
id=675908&headliMtBRESR ARG tems.”

20sn00ps%h To illustrate just how violating and revealing this trash snooping can be,
20trash% under the backdrop of a 2002 court case that called into question {and
20residents%

eventually struck down) the Portland Police Department’s practice of
2% collecting evidence by snatching and rifling through people’s trash
20privacy% without a warrant, journalists at the Willamette Week newspaper put
20rights) city officials’ support for the practice to the test by rummaging through
the trash of the mayor, the police chief and the district attorney.

Police Chief Mark Kroeker was not pleased when the journalists later
spread out on a table before him “a receipt with his credit card number,
asummary of his wife's investments, an email prepping the mayor about
his job application to be police chief of Los Angeles, a well-chewed cigar
stub and a handwritten note scribbled in pencil on a napkin, so personal
it made us cringe.” And Mayor Vera Katz "went nuclear” when she found
out others had looked through her recycling.

“Your garbage can is like a trap door that opens onte your most intimate
secrets; what you toss away is, in many ways, just as revealing as what
you keep,” the Willamette Week observed.

Reason.com blogger Anthony L. Fisher made an apt analogy between
local government garbage snooping and the federal government’s
dragnet collection of U.S. citizens® phone metadata. Both provide
indivect or piecemeal evidence of one’s life, but when aggregated may
paint a frighteningly detailed account of one's thoughts and actions. And
neither should be conducted without a proper and individualized
warrant.

Government was supposedly established to protect people’s lives and
praperty, not rummage through theirtrash and compel them, under
threat of fines, to sort it just the way government officials want it so they
can maximize their recycling revenue or meet arbitrary recycling and
composting goals. It is time to recycle the value of privacy, and trash
overbearing government regulations and snooping.

WRITE A LETTER TO THE EDITOR Letters to the Editor: E-mail to letters@ocregister.com
{mailto:letters@ocregister.com), Please provide your name, city and telephone number
{telephone numbers will not be published). Letters of about 200 words or videos of 30-
seconds (http://letters.ocregister.com/2010/10/27/calling-all-pundits-join-the-flip-cam-
sensation/) each will be given preference. Letters will be edited for length, grammar and
clarity.

THESTANALAN D ceour

SA9.ERW SOAT
WD TA N LA S AL

MOST POPULAR

Woman arrested sfter slow-speed car chasein
Santa Ana

{http:/ fwww, gister.com/articles
676234-officers-street.html}

Three arrested in string of CVS rebberies,
including five in Orange County stores
(http:/fwww.ocreglster.com/articles/beach-
676233-stores-cvs.htmi}

As people hear the Republican hopefuls debate
tonight, will Donald Trump’s stance alse mo
{http:{weww.ocregister.com/farticles/trump-
676235-latinos-county.html)

Car hacking Is the next carjacking, and
automakers are fighting back
{http:ffwwew.ocregister. com/articles fsecurity-
&76228-cars-vehlcles.html)

Where did Naugles go? Swamped by fans, the
reborn fast-food brand plans (imited hours, we
{https//www.ocregister.com/articles/naugles-
6T6182-week-restaurant.htmil)

BACK
"SCHOOL

N ‘o_ .

3 IOA:

| Regular Price Sate Price
‘-'._ - - .

Page 2 of 5

WHAT DO YOU THINK?

Should Joe Biden make a run for the Democratic
nomination?

O ves
C No

O rmnotsure

SUBMIT

http://www.ocregister.com/articles/trash-675908-re g cling-government.html

8/6/2015



American recycling Is stalling, and the blg blue bin is one reasan why - The Washington Post 6/23/15, B:44 AM

NOT NOW 2
Get the Local Headlines Newsletter

Free daily updates delivered just for you.

D.C. Politics

American recycling is stalling, and the big blue bin is
one reason why

By Aaron C. Davis June 20

Tucked in the woods 30 miles north of Washington is a plant packed with energy-guzzling machines that can
make even an environmentalist’s heart sing — giant conveyor belts, sorters and crushers saving a thousand tons
of paper, plastic and other recyclables from reaching landfills each day.

The 24-hour operation is a sign that after three decades of trying, a culture of curbside recycling has become

ingrained in cities and counties across the country. Happy Valley, however, it is not.

Once a profitable business for cities and private employers alike, recycling in recent years has become a money-
sucking enterprise. The District, Baltimore and many counties in between are contributing millions annually to
prop up one of the nation’s busiest facilities here in Elkridge, Md. — but it is still losing money. In fact, almost
every facility like it in the country is running in the red. And Waste Management and other reéyclers say that
more than 2,000 municipalities are paying to dispose of their recyclables instead of the other way around.

ADVERTISING

hitp:/fwww.washingtonpost.com/local/dc-politics/american-recycli...n-why/2015/06/20/914735e4-1610-11e5-9ddc-e33535421 00c_story.htm] Page 1 of 7

181



American recycling Is stalling, and the big blue bin Is one reason why - The Washington Post 6/23/15, 8:44 AM

In short, the business of American recycling has stalled. And industry leaders warn that the situation is worse

than it appears.
“If people feel that recycling is important — and I think they do, increasingly — then we are talking about a
nationwide crisis,” said David Steiner, chief executive of Waste Management, the nation’s largest recycler that

owns the Elkridge plant and 50 others.

[Five ways Americans should — and shouldn’t — recycle]

The Houston-based company’s recycling division posted a loss of nearly $16 million in the first quarter of the
year. In recent months, it has shut nearly one in 10 of its biggest recycling facilities. An even larger percentage of

its plants may go dark in the next 12 months, Steiner said.

The problems of recycling in America are both global and local. A storm of falling oil prices, a strong dollar and a

weakened economy in China have sent prices for American recyclables plummeting worldwide.

Environmentalists and other die-hard conservation advocates question if the industry is overstating a cyclical

shump.

“If you look at the long-term trends, there is no doubt that the markets for most recyclables have matured and
that the economics of recycling, although it varies, has generally been moving in the right direction,” said Eric A.
Goldstein, a lawyer with the Natural Resources Defense Council who tracks solid waste and recycling in New
York.

«And that’s without factoring in the external impact of landfilling or anything else,” he added. “There aren’t alot

of people saying, ‘Send more material to landfills.””

http:waw.washingtonposi.comllocaildc-puliticslamarican-recycli...n-why/2015l06!20!91 4735e4-1610-11e5-9ddc-e3353542100¢c_story.himl Page 2 of 7

182



American recyeling is stalling, and the big blue bin is one reason why - The Washington Post 6/23/15, B:44 AM

Still, the numbers speak for themselves: a three-year trend of shrinking profits and rising costs for U.S.
municipalities — and little evidence that they are a blip.

Trying to encourage conservation, progressive lawmakers and environmentalists have made matters worse. By
pushing to increase recycling rates with bigger and bigger bins — while demanding almost no sorting by
consumers — the recycling stream has become increasingly polluted and less valuable, imperiling the economics
of the whole system.

“We kind of got everyone thinking that recycling was free,” said Bill Moore, a leading industry consultant on
paper recycling who is based in Atlanta. “It’s never really been free, and in fact, it's getting more expensive,”

The problem with blue bins

Many of the problems facing the industry can be traced to the curbside blue bin — and the old saying that if it
sounds too good to be true, it just might be. Anyone who has ever tossed a can into a bin knows what's supposed
to happen: Anything recyclable can go in, and then somehow, magically, it’s all separated and reused.

The idea originated in California in the 1990s. Environmental advocates believed that the only way to increase
participation in recycling programs was to make it easier. Sorting took time and was messy. No one liked it. So-

called Material Recovery Facilities, or MRFs, were created to do what consumers wouldn't.

With conveyers, spinning flywheels, magnets and contraptions that look like giant Erector Sets, companies found
that they could recycle almost everything at once. Lightweight newspaper and cardboard were sent tumbling
upward, as if in a clothes dryer. Glass, plastic and metal fell into a series of belts and screens. Automation was

adopted to sort, bale and send to manufacturers all those tons of paper, bottles and cans.

From the start, it was hard to argue that glass should have been allowed in the curbside mix. If’s the heaviest of
recyclables but has always been of marginal value as a commodity. In the rough-and-tumble sorting facilities, a
large share of it breaks and contaminates valuable bales of paper, plastic and other materials.

Today, more than a third of all glass sent to recycling facilities ends up crushed. It is trucked to landfills as daily

cover to bury the smell and trap gases. The rest has almost no value to recyclers and can often cost them to haul

away.

http://www.washingtonpost.com/local/dc-politics/american-recycli...n-why/2015/06/20/914735e4-1610-1185-9ddc-e33535421 00c_story.himi Page 3 of 7

183



Amerlcan recycling is stailing, and the big blue bin is one reason why - The Washington Post 6/23/15, 8:44 AM

In recent years, the problem of contamination has spread beyond glass. The problem was exacerbated when
municipalities began increasing the size of bins, believing that bigger was better to keep more material from
landfills.

Consumers have indeed been filling the bigger bins, but often with as much garbage as recyclable material.

With the extra room, residents stopped breaking down cardboard boxes. Because a full shipping box sometimes

fits inside, even with foam and plastic wrap attached, all of it more frequently shows up at sorting facilities.

Residents have also begun experimenting, perhaps with good intentions, tossing into recycling bins almost

anything rubber, metal or plastic: garden hoses, clothes hangers, shopping bags, shoes, Christmas lights.

That was exactly the case last year, when the District replaced residents’ 32-gallon bins with ones that are

50 percent larger.

[D.C. said it was recycling — it wasn't.]

“Residue jumped a ton,” said Hallie Clemm, deputy administrator for the city’s solid waste management division.
In fact, so much nonrecyclable material was being stuffed into the bins that after an audit by Waste Management

last fall, the share of the city’s profit for selling recyclables plummeted by more than 56 percent.

That has driven up the city’s processing price for recyclables to almost $63 a ton — 24 percent higher than if it
trucked all of its recycling material, along with its trash, to a Virginia incinerator.

The D.C. Council recently approved a payment of $1.2 million to Waste Management for the contract year that
ended in May. In 2011, the city made a profit of $389,000.

Little demand for newsprint

A large part of the problem for recyclers is falling global commodity prices — a phenomenon largely out of
recyclers’ hands. But the negative impact of that trend is amplified by the contents of most recycling bins,

because the composite of what Americans try to reuse has changed dramatically over the past decade.

Dwindling have been the once-profitable old newspapers, thick plastic bottles and aluminum cans that could be
http:lfwww.washingtonpost.eomlloca!ldc—politicslamerican—recycli...n—whyl201 5/06/20/914735ed-1610-11e5-9ddc-e3353542100¢_story.html Page 4 of 7

184



American recycling is stalling, and the big blue bin is one reason why - The Washington Post 6/23/15, 8:44 AM

easily baled and reused.

With oil prices driving up transportation costs, manufacturers have engaged in a race to make packaging more
lightweight. Coffee cans disappeared in favor of vacuum-packed aluminum bags; some tuna cans went the same
way. Tin cans and plastic water boitles became thinner, too: The amount of plastic that once came from 22

bottles now requires 36.

There was an even more pronounced drop in newsprint. Long alucrative recycling commodity, it’s not a key
commodity market. In its place is something known as mixed residential paper: the junk mail, flattened cereal

boxes and other paper items that these days can outweigh newspaper in a one-ton bale.

One bright spot has been an increase in cardboard. Analysts say that with more people buying items through
online merchants, cardboard can account for up to 15 percent of cities’ recyclable loads — more than double that

of a decade ago.
The demand for that paper and cardboard, however, remains at a near-decade low. In China, containerboard, a
common packaging product from recycled American paper, is trading at just over $400 a metric ton, down from

nearly $1,000 in 2010. China also needs less recycled newsprint; the last paper mill in Shanghai closed this year.

[China doesn't even want to buy our garbage anymore]

With less demand, Chinese companies have become pickier about the quality.

Last week in Elkridge, an inspector from a Chinese company studied bales of paper being loaded into shipping
containers bound for the port of Baltimore and, eventually, Asia,

If the inspector found more than five nonpaper items protruding from any one side of the bale, it was rejected,
forcing workers to break down the material and send it all back through the processing facility.

The lightweight vacuum packs for food and paper-thin plastic bottles are increasingly part of the problem. They
are so light that they get blown upward with the paper.

“We’ve seen economic downturns in the value of material in the past, but what's different now is that the materia]

mix has changed,” said Patty Moore, head of California-based Moore Recycling Associates, which specializes in

htip://www.washingtonpost.com/lccal/de-politics/american-recycli...n-why/2015/06/20/914735e4-1610-11e5-9dde-e33535421 00c_story.himi Page 5 of 7

185



American recycling is stalling, and the big blue bin Is one reason why - The Washington Post 6/23/15, B:44 AM

plastic recycling. “The problem is, to get the same value out of your scrap, you have to shove a whole lot more
material through the facility. That was fine when scrap values were high, but when they dropped, we realized it’s
expensive to push all of this lightweight stuff through, and we’re in trouble.”

Brent Bell, Waste Management’s vice president for recycling, said the company has yet to see municipalities
abandon recycling, and the company is maintaining its ability to recycle whatever cities send their way. But it is

downsizing its operation and expecting little increase in recycling rates nationwide.

Last week, the Environmental Protection Agency announced a nationwide taly for recycling in 2013 that showed

overal! recycling had contracted for a second straight year, to 34.3 percent of the waste stream.

With those trends, Bell said the company is beginning tough discussions with cities about what it sees as a long-
term economic reality: Cities must bear more of the financial impact of falling commodity prices. That’s the only

way, Bell said, for recyclers like his company to invest in the business.

Steiner, Waste Management’s chief executive, went further. “We want to help our customers, but we are a for-

profit business. We won’t stay in the industry if we can’t make a profit,” he said.

Clemm, the District’s recycling chief, said small efforts can begin to turn the tide. The District must begin by

getting more garbage out of its recycling stream.
“Residents have a way to influence this by making sure they are recycling right,” she said.

Another possibility is to follow the urgings of the environmental community by expanding recycling programs to
include composting — the banana peels and grass clippings degrading in landfills that by some estimates have
become the nation’s third-biggest source of methane gas contributing to global warming. Composting is partly
credited with the success of such cities as San Francisco, Portland and Seattle in increasing the share of the waste

stream that is recycled each year.
There are also a few encouraging signs downstream in the recycling market. A recycled-plastics company in Troy,
Ala., processes more than 500 million pounds of recyeled material annually from plastic bottles — and with 450

employees, the company is growing. In the Midwest, another company opened two additional facilities this

month to feed an Indiana paper mill that churns out 100 percent recycled cardboard.

http:/fwww. washingtonpost.co m/local/de-politics/american-recycti...n-why/2015/06/20/914735e4-161 0-11e5-8ddc-e3353542100c_story.himl Page 6 of 7

186



American recycling is stalling, and the big blue bin is one reason why - Tha Washington Post 6/23/15, B:44 AM

Turning a profit on the initial, dirty task of sorting and processing.the nation’s recyclables, however, may take a
larger overhaul, said Patty Moore. Governments may need to set standards or even consider taking over part of

the process to better encourage investment and ensure that profits remain a public benefit.

“If we're going to be serious about secondary-materials management, we’re really going to have to address it as a
state or preferably national level,” she said. “We need to harmonize what we’re doing and make it work in a way

that we’re not spending all this money and spinning our wheels.”

Aaron Davis covers D.C. government and politics for The Post and wants to hear your
story about how D.C. works — or how it doesn't.

http://www.washingtonpost.com/local/dc-politicafamerican-recychi...n-why/2015/06/20/914735e4-1610-11e5-8ddc-e33535421 @0c_story.htm? Page 7 of 7

187



1838



WASTE COLLECTION

S
)

Meetin o
special Wastes C

LA T i e A M

He Ul

nallenge

These present a conundrum for solid waste managers throughout the United States.

n one hand, waste management
operations are doing what they
can to ensure that bulky items
are disposed of properly and
not ditched on the side of the road, and that
other special wastes receive proper disposal.
Still, most waste managers would prefer to
see fewer bulky items headed for the landfill
and more put to good use for someone else.
Suki Janssen, interim solid waste director
for Athens-Clarke County, GA, says the term
“bulky waste” makes her uncomfortable. “It’s
not waste,” she says. “It’s just items that have
been misplaced or not in the reuse stream.”
Stephen Gillette, solid waste director
for Colorado’s Larimer County, concurs; “]
think people keep forgetting the three Rs: it's
reduce, reuse, and then recycle—and if ail
else fails, landfill. I think sometimes we just
jump to number four”
Waste management directors such as
Debbie Krogwold, recycling coordinator for
Waupaca County, WI, are educating the pub-

34 MSW MANAGEMENT [ JUNE 20151

BY CAROL BRZOZOWSKI

Iic on sustainable practices that reduce waste.

“I believe user fees are important—not
only for garbage, but the special wastes like
hazardous waste, so they don’t feel like: Tm
going to have this; I'll just get rid of it, and it's
not going to cost me anything,” she says. “If
it does cost a little bit, it will make them think
that they’ll just buy what they need”

Many municipal waste operations are
partnering with non-profits to reuse and
recycle unwanted waste that still has some
useful life, Some areas are ramping up efforts
to recycle.

In response to its residents’ passion for
recycling, Athens’ solid waste department
is opening up a center for hard-to-recycle
materials this year.

“It will be taking iterns that we know
there are outlets for in Atlanta, but we
historically haven’t had the space to save it
in a dry area where it can be sold or picked
up for cost neutral to go to a recycler,”
explains Janssen,

189

Colorado’s paint stewardship bill goes
into effect July 1. The state will become the
eighth in the US to implement PaintCare, a
paint recycling program.

PaintCare is a non-profit organization
created in 2009 by the American Coatings
Association to represent paint manufactur-
ers in states that pass paint stewardship laws.
The Colorado Paint Stewardship Law imple-
ments an industry-operated and financed
Ppostconsumer paint management system
that decreases cost and responsibility for
local and state governments and makes paint
recycling more convenient,

Half of products received through
municipal household hazardous waste
programs are paints, Sorne 10% of paint
is leftover and unused. Some 65 million
gallons of paint are leftover annually in the
United States, including 1.2 million gaflons
in Colorado.

‘While normal waste collection is con-
ducted through fairly predictable routes on

Petersen Industries



specified days in most communities, when it
comes to special wastes, operations should
always be prepared for the unusual, Gillette
points out. “You never know when someone
is going to call and say, ‘I've got this, and you
say, ‘You've got what?” Have your regulators
on speed dial so you can help your customer
in tight situations,” he says.

One of the most unusual special wastes
with which Gillette has had to deal came at
the request of a veterinarian school. “They
had an elephant to bring out that had passed
away from TB,” he says. “They called the
state, and they thought the best thing to do
was to bury this animal, because who has a
regulation about do you accept an elephant?
Be prepared, and think outside of the box.”

Bulky waste items can present a chal-
lenge for many waste operations. In Athens,
Janssen faces a particular challenge, though
she adds it’s not insurmountable.

Athens is home to the University of
Georgia. And like at any campus anywhere in
the US, once students leave at the end of the
school year, they leave behind a trail of waste.

“During move-out time, which is typi-
cally in the spring and into early Jure as
well, there is an exceptional amount of use-

able bulky waste,” says Janssen. “People wha
don’t live in college towns would be morti-
fied at what students regard as waste. A lot
of the students’ parents have a lot of wealth
or gave them money to buy mini-fridges,
couches, chairs, end tables, coffee tables
—you name it. Some of the kids I've talked
to once they graduate college don’t want that
stuff anymore. They feel like they’ve become
an adult, and they want to get new stuff.”

In so doing, many don’t try to seek out
reuse options, she says. “A lot of good stuff
still gets trashed in our community, and I'm
sure we're not the only one,” says Janssen.

The university, which operates its own
recycling and trash crews, is trying to com-
bat that, and Athens’ solid waste department
tries to assist, she adds.

Athens has a high poverty rate, “so getting
that useful material that they would throw
out into the hands of our impoverished citi-
zens is something that we need to do a better

job with at move-out time,” says Janssen.

The challenge is that the move-out time
occurs in a brief time period. “It’s hard for
all of us to get enough equipment, or equip-
ment that doesn’t tear up the material,” she
says. “We have a lot of rolloff containers, but

those aren’t necessarily the best equipment
to be hauling mini-refrigerators because it
moves around, so having proper equipment,
such as box trucks, would be a betier way.”

Additionally, it requires a lot of staff, or a
group of volunteers, to handle the large load
of useful material.

Goodwill has tried to make it easier by
putting a tractor-trailer on campus to take
some of the usable material.

The campus’ program, “Dawgs Ditch the
Dumpster” encourages students to donate
unwanted material at the end of the year at
dropoff sites in each residential community.

One particular challenge is dealing with
unwanted items from off-campus housing.
“That’s a project that our staff has talked
about that we really need to work on, to get
apartment complexes to get on board with
move-out programs;” says Janssen. “That is
another level of complexity, becanse you're
dealing with private entities, apartment
complexes, that often don’t want to pay to
get rid of that stuff. They take the easy way
out. They hire private companies and slap a
20- to 40-cubic open-top container and tell
the kids to have at it.”

Since there is no legislation on the books

F A

EMERYTOP 400 '#7%

is the World's
Toughest Floor.
mﬁuurgn’reed.‘ ]

Visit Us
at Waste Expo <
Booth #3716 &

[ www.mswmanagement.com ] MSW MANAGEMENT 35

190

-



WASTE COLLECTION
that says the apartment complexes can’t do otherwise, Athens-Clarke
County’s solid waste department does not have an option for them,
Janssen says. “It’s hard to compete with some of the low prices trash
haulers offer, A lot of them don’t have a place to store it, even if we
asked them to, so we could get around with a box truck to pick it up”

Athens-Clarke County’s solid waste department tries to encourage
the apartment complexes to work with places such as Goodwill and
Habitat ReStore, “but that is a work in progress,” notes Janssen. “A lot
of them don't want to store the material —they just want the fastest
way to get rid of the material, and, unfortunately, that’s 2 Dumpster.”

There also are students who are “impatient and don’t want to
work within the confines of their apartment complex, so we have 11
dropoff sites in our community just for recyding material, so during
move-out time we get hit pretty hard at our dropoff sites with bulky
waste,” notes Janssen.

The solid waste trucks try to get it picked up and to a reuse
option if possible, but sometimes it’s sitting out in the weather, and
in even 24 hours it could be ruined, Janssen says,

On a day-to-day basis, the Athens-Clarke County Solid Waste
Department owns and operates a landfill, collects residential waste in a
defined area and commercial waste throughout the county, has a recy-
cling division, and operates “Keep Athens-Clarke County Beautiful”

Janssen says that if one of the customets in the service area of
10,000 residential accounts wants to get rid of bulky waste, the solid
waste department picks it up for an additional cost.

While 115,000 people live in Athens, fewer than half live in single-
family homes. The others live in low-income housing or multifamily
dwellings, which are considered commercial entities and are serviced

IS5/

REFUSE CONTAINERS
POLY SIDE LOAD DUMPSTERS,
200-300-450 GAL. ROUND CONTAINERS

The superior design and construction, combined with the innovative
features, makes these products stand alone in the marketplace.
Containers are rotationally molded in a Snyder manufacturing
facliity located n the LISA  Available in crosslink or high density
polyethylene plastic resins and multiple color choices

Visit us at Waste

info@snyderplasticsolutions.com
www.snydemrefuse.com

Toll Free: (U.S. & Canada) 1-888-422-8683

Ph: 402-467-5221 « Fax: 402-465-1220

36 MSW MANAGEMENT [ JUNE 20151

by the city’s solid waste operation or private haulers.

“We operate our landfill and our collections division as Enter-
prise Funds, so we have to collect all of the money like a private
entity would,” says Janssen, “We charge a pickup fee and a disposal
fee if it has to be disposed of in a landfill. If it can be recycled, then
potentially there would be no disposal fee. But first and foremost, we
do encourage all of our residents through education”

Athens has a number of nonprofit community reuse options for
useable bulky waste, and the solid waste department encourages
residents to first consider those options before landfilling. Those who
want to landfill, but avoid the pickup fee, can self-haul to the landfill
and are charged $42 a ton.

In Temple, TX, bulky waste is collected twice a month from resi-
dential customers using a boom truck: a regular truck chassis with a
20- to 30-cubic yard bed and a large grapple claw/boom to pick up
items curbside. The city also picks up brush, which is taken to the local
wastewater plant where it is chipped and mixed to make compost.

The city has handled bulk and brush waste in this manner for
more than 25 years, notes Lisa A. Sebek, director of solid waste
services. “We believe this type of operation meets the needs of our
department and our city. It is a safe and efficient operation” she says.

To those looking to create an effective program with such lasting
power, Sebek advises other waste managers to do research. “Research
what other cities are doing, research the needs of your own city, and
then see what operation will work best in your city to meet the needs
of your city operations and those of your citizens®

In Bunnell, FL, the solid waste department offers grapple service
to the city’s residents and businesses. Residents are allowed to put
bulk waste, such as non-construction debris, out on the second
pickup day of the week, 52 weeks a year. The itemns must have
replacement value, such as rugs, mattresses, and furniture,

Bunnell offers twice-weekly waste collection services; the fee
for bulky waste pickup is included in the monthly charge. An extra
charge is assessed for businesses and residential households requir-
ing service for items too small for a rolloff container. In that case, the
customer may hire for grapple service, which is generally construc-
tion and demolition {C&D). Fees are based on the composition of
the debris—C8D heavy class or industrial mediunylight, says Perry
Mitrano, director of solid waste.

Heavy mixed C&D materials that are not segregated from debris
and cannot be recycled cost more to dispose. Lighter materials that
cannot be recycled and must be landfilled are calculated as less, based
on cubic yards. “Our experience in our market shows us the average
cost is $11 per yard, for both heavy or light,” adds Mitrano,

The driving factor behind the program is “cutting costs out of the
higher disposal wastestream,” he says. “We are continuing to reduce
our front-end commercial Dumpsters’ weights by identifying debris
that is really not Class one garbage, but Class three, which is less
expensive to dispose of versus Class one”

Additionally, the practice keeps debris out of the waste hauling
truck that may cause damage to the truck body, he adds, “Steel and
wood debris, often, finds its way behind the blade or through the
side of the body, thereby damaging the truck,” says Mitrano.

For its operations, Bunnell uses two grapple trucks—one newer,
and the older one Mitrano describes as “likely the most reliable truck
we own. Department employees find the lower longer body is better
operationally. We often have to work under wires and low branches.
We recommend an 18- to 22-yard body”

In ensuring that the current program fits the community’s needs,

191



ACCIDENTS

Know the DIFFERENCE
between PASSIVE (Camera,
Radar, Ultrasonic Systems), and
a TRULY ACTIVE (GLOBAL
SENSOR SYSTEM), with
AUTOMATIC BRAKING.
Protect yourseif and your
community and prevent backing
accidents with GLOBAL'S
INFRA-RED TECHNOLOGY and
38 years experience.

Upcoming Trade Shows:

WASTEEXPO
June 2-4, 2015
Las Vegas, NV

Booth #1830

CANADIAN WASTE &
RECYCLING EXPO
November 4-5, 2015
Montreal, QC
Booth #2411

L years

= Oldest in the
© business
¥ d
Globat Sensor Systems, Inc.
400 Brunel Road
Mississauga, Ontario
Canada L4Z 2C2
Tel: (905) 507-0007
Fax: (905) 507-4177
www.globalsensorsystems.com
raygienn@globalsensorsystems.com

38 MSW MANAGEMENT [ JUNE 2015 ]

WASTE COLLECTION

Mitrano says that Bunnell’s solid waste
department strives for efficiency, capacity,
and quality of service, and that the program
is highly successful with no need to make
changes. “Efficiency—we do pick it up fast.
Capacity—we need to get it on one load,

or have a transfer station or landfill nearby
if we can’t; this consideration helps decide
the type of truck to purchase. Quality of
service—Bunnell requires the service to pick
up everything by close of business Friday,”
lists Mitrano. “The trashy country road pile
in the city is not the look the department
wants people to see, so we are self-inspecting
and self-managing the trucks constantly, and
communicating pickups during the day to
ensure proper pickup.”

In Midland, TX, the solid waste depart-
ment has a call-in program for special and
bulky wastes. “We have designated employees
who are devoted to large-item pickup, and
we also utilize inmate labor” notes Motris
Williams, director of solid waste. “The city
does not charge any additional fees for large-
itern pickup. The items are collected in the
order that they were called in”

The original program was set up as a
way to occasionally collect large items and
“keep our alleys clear of large debris and cur
three-cubic yard alley containers from being
filled with the items,” notes Williams, adding
that the city has substantially expanded the
program over the years.

Midland utilizes two rear-load trucks
and three pickup trucks that haul 16-foot
enclosed trailers to handle the collection.

Williams says the program is falling short
of meeting the community’s needs. “The
growth of our community has increased
faster than our labor force,” he points out.
“This, in turn, keeps us running behind.
Our program could improve with specified
collection times and areas for citizens and
education as to what is considered a large
item that can be collected.”

The city of Charlotte, NC, has been col-
lecting bulky items as early as 1989, using
the scheduling system, notes Brandi Wil-
Liams, public affairs manager for Charlotte.
Prior to that, bulky items were collected as
garbage through the twice-a-week backyard
garbage collection program.

The city began using an automated rout-
ing system in 2000. The service is provided
weekly and at no extra charge to the city’s
750,000 residents, who call in to schedule the
iterns for collection.

“When they call in to schedule, we route
cach day for the most efficient collection,” says

192

Williams. “This system allowed us to schedule
bulky using three categories: bulky garbage,
recyclable bulky white goods, and tires”

Three different trucks are dispatched for
the separate wastestreamns, which are then
disposed in three different places in Meck-
lenburg County to county-owned landfills
and MRFs, The white goods and tires are
treated as recyclable material and sold on the
recyclable market.

Prior to the current system, the requests
were phoned in, and the trucks’ routes were
manually mapped the day prior to collec-
tion, says Williams. “Around the same time
in 2000, we began to route the requests using
a GIS-based solution that saved hours in
map creation,” she says. “The routing system
improved over the years and in 2010, we
began automated routing of the stops that
further improved productivity by making the
routes more efficient”

In addition to helping to decrease illegal
dumping, the program also has helped keep
white goods, tires, and electronics out of the
landfill, Williams points out.

There is no extra charge for the service,
but the waste hauling operation faces a
challenge shared by many others, “We find
that we have a large percentage of white
goods and non-recyclable items such as
couches, chairs, and tables that are not at the
curb when we come to collect them,” says
Williams. “We believe this is because of scav-
enging. We would like to resolve this issue,
because routing for and going to the location
1o pick up something when it is not there is
an investment of time, fuel, and resources
that is wasted when a considerable number
of stops have already been collected. We're
still in the brainstorming phase and explor-
ing options for how to deal with this.”

Berkeley County, SC, provides sanita-
tion services to about 81,000 residential and
commercial customers. Special waste must
go through a screening process that includes
a Toxicity Characteristic Leaching Procedure
(TCLP) and a verification process to ensure
that it is non-hazardous and able to go into
a Subtitle D landfill, notes Mark Schlievert,
director of solid waste for Berkeley County
‘Water and Sanitation.

1n South Carolina, sludge is considered a
special waste, he says. “Periodically, have to
run a fingerprint test on material as it comes
in, and then every so often you have to do a
TCLP” says Schlievert.

In general, the sludge is directed to the
landfill and mixed in with the regular waste.
“Agbestos in South Carolina has to have a



license and manifest coming from our regu-
lator, which is the South Carolina Depart-
ment of Health and Environmental Control”
says Schlievert. “It has to be immediately
buried three feet and covered, You also have
ta take the GIS location and elevation, and
that’s got to be documented to go along with
the manifest.”

As for bulky waste, depending on what
it is, it may go into a Class 2 landfill, says
Schlievert. “Otherwise, if it's MSW bulky
waste, we just put it up on the landfill and
mix it in with the rest of the waste.” he adds.
“We try to keep stuff like that as far away
from side slope as possible. It can wick and
cause leakage” -

The Augusta County Service Authority
in Virginia landfills bulky couches and mat-
tresses that are placed into a rolloff box. All
white goods are recycled. The program has
been in place since the landfill was con-
structed in 1971,

Some of the bulky waste is placed into a
Goodwill pod located at the site, That pro-
gram has been in place for six years.

“They will take gently used furniture, and
things of that nature, that they can put into
their store or recycle,” notes Greg Thomas-

son, director of solid waste management for
the 125,000-resident service area. “They take
electronics, books—it’s amazing how many
things they will take,”

The Authority also does an annual collec-
tion for paints, solvents, batteries, and other
special wastes. Thomasson says the program
works well, as it gives residents two options
for their waste: to bring for no charges items
that can’t be otherwise recycled or to donate
them to Goodwill,

In the past couple of years, the Fort Col-
lins, CO, area has had what Gillette describes
as FEMA-type events that generated a great
deal of debris: a fire in 2012, and a flood in
September 2013. The latter event created
mostly woody debris in the service area of
315,000 people.

“A county next to us chose to attempt
to grind it and compost it, and then the
people weren't too happy because they
weren’t sure this wasn’t contaminated from
a flood,” says Gillette,

“We looked into grinding the material,
but because of the double handling, we
chose to bury it,” he adds. “We asked people
to cut the trees to six-foot sections, and we
buried it. It worked for us. It saved our citi-

zens money to be able to bring this material
in because they were able to handle it more
readily, and the debris company we hired
was able to get it cleaned up quicker than
had we done other things with it”

In general, Larimer County’s landfill
compactor takes to large furniture and other
bulky items brought in, while appliances are
segregated and recycled.

Waupaca County in Wisconsin has had a
transfer station, since 1994, at which bulky
waste that can go to a landfill is brought in
by residents and businesses, and is weighed
on a certified truck scale with fees charged
by the pound. “We have compactor boxes,
and we contract with a private hauler who
takes them to the Qutagamie County land-
£ill,” says Krogwold. The department’s service
area includes 52,000 residents.

Some people will contract to have 2 pri-
vate hauler transport the bulky waste either
to the transfer station, or landfill.

Krogwold believes the program fits the
community’s needs. “At our transfer sta-
tion we not only have the bulky waste that
would be destined for a landfill, but we also
collect fluorescents, oil filters, waste oil,
recyclables, appliances, and electronics.” she

Knock boxes down to size with
a Marathon vertical baler.

Marathon’s vertical baler, your most reliable employee,
makes recycling easier than ever. For more information,
cail 1-800-633-8974 or visit marathonequipment.com.

Visit us at WasteExpo in booth 2437,

LU Esarmmrecrtad St ol oo Fv0um. A6 gk KNV,
26 R 3 S [OPETY c i avriet ETMr GnLp

40 MSW MANAGEMENT [ JUNE 20151

193



says. “There are user fees for that. But there
is a program available for pretty much any
waste residents have”

But, she sees room for imprevement.

“I wish we could handle it better and have
more time to do that,” she says. “In the
hazardous waste program, we do accept
hazardous waste from households, and there
is a user fee on that program. That imparts
the knowledge to people that they will have
to-pay for the waste—it’s not free”

And it may get people thinking that they
should buy just what they need as to not
have to deal with getting rid of it later on,
Krogwold says.

Outagamie County’s solid waste col-
lection service area covets 550,000 people.
The county also partners with neighboring
Brown and Winnebago counties. Most of the
material that comes into Outagamie County
is trucked in, notes landfill superintendent
Bill Long.

“We do have private vehicles that come
in with bulky material, and we help them
unload—either with one of our landfill doz-
ers, or with our excavator,” says Long.

Special waste must meet one of three
protocols and be approved for the landfill,

Long says. The protocols are labeled A, B,
and C, and correspond with chemical con-
centration limits regulated by the Wisconsin
Department of Natural Resources.

The program enables Outagamie
County residents to get rid of their
special waste products without a signifi-
cant expense, says Long. It is the owner’s
responsibility to have the waste tested
before bringing it to the landfill.

“It gives them an opportunity to have
their material tested to see exactly what the
content of that material is for both the land-
fill, and their own knowledge,” adds Long.

In Lincoln County, W1, the small county-
owned landfill handles MSW from five of
the surrounding counties, as well as its own.
There are some 50,000 people in the service
area, notes Dan Miller, solid waste manager.

Bulky items are segregated, A tire pile is
picked up by a tire recycler. Appliances such
as stoves, refrigerators, and water heaters are
sent to a salvage yard. The program has been
in place since 1989; two years ago, an e-waste
program was added to handle such items
as televisions, computers, and VCRs are put
into Gaylord boxes on pellets and stored in
a cold storage building until there is enough

for a recycler to pick up the load.

Ease of use is the driving factor behind
the program’s success, Miller says. “We
charge a very nominal fee—just enough to
recoup our costs;” he adds. “We don’t want
to see our county forests or the roadsides
fill up with televisions or tires. We still have
folks bring us some of those items that
they've cleaned up out of the county forests.
The county foresters will bring a load once
in a while, Some of the townships clean
them up out of the roadside ditches. You're
always going to have scofflaws out there.”

Lincoln County also takes lead acid bat-
teries for no charge. Recently, the county
added antifreeze and peanut oil from deep
fryers to its list of accepted items.

The county plans to do a “clean sweep”
operation in August for hazardous waste;
the last was done in 2008. “We try to get
the more obnoxious type items out of the
residences and the farms,” says Miller. “If
that goes well, we may look at setting up a
more permanent househeld hazardous waste
collection site here as well”

The collection will include fluorescent
light fixtures, bulbs, and thermostats, he says.

Miller points out that Wisconsin

GREASELESS

Model D6620-27K

SAVE TIME AND MONEY
WITH THIS LOW MAINTENANCE
CART LIFTER FROM PERKINS

1.800.882:5292

www. perkinsmfg.com

Aptll Environmeiital Ad

Built to your specifications

(©2015 Perkins Manufaclinng Company,

Seeyson  lube

708.482.9500
viww perkinsmig.com

[ wwaw.mswmanagement.com 1 MSW MANAGEMENT 4|

194



Wireless
Collision Warning

www. PreView SCOrm

Introducing

PreView® Wireless

What's Missing?
The 75’ cable running
through the truck body,
cutting instailation and
asset downtime in half

What's Not Missing?
Collision Prevention
Injury Reduction
Saved Lives

Visit us at Waste Expo Booth 1859

A
Pré\ iew:

We've got your biind spot covered”

www.PreViewRadar.com

42 MSW MANAGEMENT [ JUNE 2015 ]

WASTE COLLECTION

exempts houscholds from hazardous waste
laws. “Small quantities can come into the
landfill in trash, but some folks separate
them out,” he says, adding that Lincoln
County subsidizes the fees its residents pay
to take their hazardous waste to the perma-
nent household hazardous waste collection
site in two neighboring counties.”

Meanwhile, Lincoln County is looking
to make improvements in its program by
expanding its universal waste collection to
include some small electronics.

Pharmaceuticals are part of the special
wastestream with which municipal waste
management operations must address
differently.

Many operations are partnering with
local law enforcement offices to help col-
lection efforts. Such is the case in Waupaca
County, which offers year-round dropoff
locations at three police stations and the
sheriff’s department at no charge. The
county works with the state through a grant
program to help with the cost of the disposal
of the medication.

Larimer County’s local police depart-
ments also act as a collection site for
pharmaceuticals. Those that find their way
into the county’s household hazardous waste
program are added to the flammables, “so
that when they’re taken away to be com-
busted, they’re not available for someone to
abuse or reuse,” says Gillette.

Athens’ solid waste department col-
lects pharmaceuticals at two separate police
department locations, Still, there are some
who don’t want to deliver the pharmaceuti-
cals for incineration.

In its educational outreach, the solid
waste department promotes those dropoff
points as a first consideration, but for those
who will not do so for whatever reason, they
are instructed to not flush medications down
the toilet, but rather put them in the garbage.

A local hospital near the Angusta County
Service Authority hosts an annual collection
for unwanted pharmaceuticals.

Solid waste operations have several
equipment options for handling bulky and
special wastes. “Petersen Lightning Loader
is the original bulky and special waste
collection loader,” says Sam Petersen, vice
president of sales and marketing, “Petersen
Industries uses a hydraulically actuated
knuckleboom with a special trash grapple
built specifically for bulky items.”

All equipment produced by Petersen is
intended to automate this type of collection,
he says, “This allows for an increase in effi-

195

ciency, along with greatly reducing employee
injuries associated with the labor-intensive
job of handling the loading of these items.
With seven mounting variations of our
Lightning Loader, Petersen Industries can
produce equipment capable of adapting to
all bulky waste collection scenarios”

Steve Barnhardt, national sales manager
for Pac-Mac, says the company’s knuckle-
boom loaders are suited to handle bulky
waste, “They are offered in the knuckleboom
or shuttle style, such as the KB20 medium-
duty loader, the KB220 heavy-duty loader,
the SKB20 standard shuttle loader, the
SKB220 heavy-duty shuttle loader, and a
self-contained rolloff unit,” he says.

Stellar Industries’” hydraulic hooklift
hoists are suited for handling bulky waste,
notes Donna R. Popp-Bruesewitz, company
spokesperson. The company offers articulat-
ing tilt and sliding jib hooklifts in 50 models
encompassing a wide range of capacities and
body sizes. One truck supports numerous
bodies. The design offers the operator the
opportunity to load, unload, or change bod-
ies without leaving the truck cab to increase
efficiency and productivity, while cutting
down on operational costs and maintenance,

The hooklift features permanently
lubricated bushings, a dump/load interlock
system, a low-flow/high-pressure hydraulic
system, a full-length dump frame with front
saddles to support the body during dump-
ing, and rear body tie-downs and oversized
rear hinge pins designed to ensure stability.

The Stellar Flex36 series hooklift was
designed to replace 10 current Stellar
hooklift models with four. The four Flex36
Series hooklifts, accommodating cab to axle
measurements of 60, 84, 108, and 120, are
designed to be pressure adjusted for lifting
capacities ranging from 9,000 to 16,000
pounds, depending on the GVWR (gross
vehicle weight rating) of the chassis.

The Stellar Slider Series Hooklift is a
body handling system mounted on a truck
chassis capable of loading, unloading, and
dumping various bodies with a wider range
of lengths using a hexagonal sliding jib. With
hydraulic adjustable hook heights, the Stellar
Slider Series will handle 36.63- to 61.75-inch
hook height bodies, and will accommodate
capacities up to 65,000 pounds,

Municipal solid waste managers offer the
following advice to those starting programs
for special and bulky waste:

» Set an initial goal and monitor its

Pprogress as your city’s needs grow,

notes Williams.



Set the stage with the equipment neces-
sary to do the tasks. “You have to get it

in and out of your site as fast as you can,
because the waste does take up a lot of
area,” explains Long.

Hire a consultant if necessary. “The spe-
cial waste program is a very concentrated
program, and it takes a lot of manage-
ment,” says Long.

Start small, “Think things through,”
instructs Miller. “Electronic items need
to be protected from the elements, s0
you’ll have to have adequate storage
space for them, whether it’s an enclosed
rolloff container or a shed. Appliances, as
long as you have them on a hard surface,
can be stored in the open. Tires are bulky
and take up room.”

Make the program easy and convenient
for both the people dropping off the
waste, and companies that will be pick-
ing it up for other uses. “People will

take advantage of a program and won’t
improperly dispose of materials if it is
convenient for them and doesn’t cost that
much,” says Krogwold.

Make education a critical program
component. “It’s important for programs

to not enly look at the proper disposal
of various items, but also at the waste
reduction;” says Krogwold. “Are there
things that can be addressed to facilitate
not producing it in the first placet Waste
reduction is an important component of
a waste management system.”

Analyze the wastestream, and Jmow

your population’s habits, advises Jans-
sen. “There are peak times you're going
to have to deal with this because you
may have to get additional assistance or
equipment,” she says. Gillette adds that
examining the expected volume helps
with planning: “If you're going to get 400
couches or 2,000 mattresses, how are you
going to handle it? Are there other places
where one can use it or recycle it? Are
there other uses?”

Team up with non-profit organizations to
help divert some items from the landfill.
Compile a list of community resources

For related articles:

www.mswmanagement.com/collection

that inform residents about non-profit
entities that will take in unwanted items,
Janssen says.
Mitrano points out that government enti-
ties must have ordinances—laws, rules, and
regulations—"to manage and explain why
you may do the things government does.
Along with that, you must have resolutions
of fees to regulate prices and keep them fair”
Governments under contract with a
private hauler within a franchised closed or
open market must help the private hauler
by using ordinances to promote the type of
services used within the franchise, he adds.
“If you are 2 government agency, like an
Enterprise Fund as we are here in the City
of Bunnell, where the department operates
like a business and funds itself via fees for
service or part of the general fund which is
taxed-based, I highly recommend leasing the
trucks and turning them back in for a new
one before the warranty expires,” advises
Mitrano. “That reduces the maintenance
cost, other than general wear-and-tear like
tires, oil changes, and hoses.” MswW

Carol Brzozowski specializes in topics related
to waste management and technology.

Discover The Difference!

m—r
s

Tougher, St

ronger, Lastsilonger.

Diamondback Products’ cart lippers have {ewer
1

MDDEL 100

moving parts, which means less inventory t

stock and fewer repairs for your fleel.

Simple Is Better.

MOOEL 500

MOOEL 600

888-313-1424

P.O. Box 2235 * Welcome, NC 27374

www.diamondbackproducts.com

[ www.mswmanagement.com 1 MSW MANAGEMENT 43

196



MSW and the Promise
of Biotechnology

When it comes to its progress in achieving zero waste to landfills, the United States
is on a par with Slovenia and the Czech Republic. By jaMes L stewarT

=% n average, the top eight coun-

\.' tries in Burope for landfill

! diversion (Germany, Austria,

" Belgium, the Nethetlands,
Switzerland, Sweden, Denmark, and Norway)
are putting just 2% of their solid wastes into
landfills, Each is recycling and composting at
least 50% of its wastes, and collectively they
employ 228 thermal waste-to-energy (WTE)
Plants—exactly half of all such plants in
Europe—to treat their residuals for energy
recovery. Germany and Switzerland now
report that they have achieved zero waste

to landfills.

The German Federal Environment Agency
estimates that the energy generated by its 80
thermal plants saves some 9.75 million tonnes
of carbon dioxide emissions (CO,) annually
by replacing fossil fuels like coal or oil.

In the US, MSW generation has hovered
around 250 million tons per year for the past
decade. In recent years, about 35% has been
recycled or composted and another 12% has
been incinerated for energy recovery. As a
nation, we are still landfilling more than half
of the solid waste we create.

When it comes to its progress in achieving
zero waste to landfills, the US is on a par with
Slovenia and the Czech Republic.

In all due respect, despite ali best inten-
tions, these facts confirm that the goal of zero
waste to landfills cannot be achieved through
the recycling of finished products and com-
posting alone.

Admittedly, by tonnage, the primary
waste conversion technology in use in Furope
and in Asia is now state-of-the-art incinera-
tion. Japan, however, is the world’s largest
user of MSW gasification. It has more than
120 plants that employ gasification-related
equipment from companies like JFE, Nippon
Steel, Ebara, Mitsui, Kobelco, and Westing-
house Flasma. Only 2% of Japan’s MSW is
being disposed of in landfills, a goal that was
established out of necessity decades ago, due

26 MSW MANAGEMENT [ JUNE 20151

to their lack of available landfill space and
the fact that the transport of MSW from one
municipality to another is not allowed.

In less than 20 years, China has become a
major player in waste-to-energy, constructing
more than 100 WTE plants that process 17%
of its MSW. The European and Asian experi-
ence compels regulators in North America
to modify their definitions of recycling to
include not only finished products, but the
recovery and reuse of carbon at the molecn-
lar level. At a minimum, public jurisdictions
should be allowed to obtain landfill diversion
credit whenever MSW residuals are converted
to syngas (composed primarily of hydrogen

and carbon monoxide) and reconstituted into

the nation’s dependence upon landfills and
contribute to national security, energy inde-
pendence, and a better environment.

Today, the promise of biotechnology has
taken wing, The production of biofuels now
extends beyond corn-based ethanol. Last year,
POET-DSM, Quad County Corn Processors,
Abengoa, and DuPont joined INEOS Bio
{whose technology is capable of processing
MSW) in commissioning commercial plants
that produce cellulosic biofuels from agricul-
tural residues, forest resources, and energy
crops. Also, during the year, US biodiesel
production reached 1.75 billion gallons, and
technologies for the production of biobased
chemicals moved forward rapidly.

Despite all best intentions, the goal of
zero waste to landfills cannot be achieved
through the recycling of finished products

and composting alone.

electricity, liquid energy, or biobased chemi-
cals, from which a wide array of biobased
products can be produced.

Such a policy would be consistent with
California law, which defines recycling as
“the process of collecting, sorting, dleansing,
treating, and reconstituting materials that
would otherwise become solid waste, and
returning them to the economic mainstream
in the form of raw material for new, reused,
or reconstituted products, which meet the
quality standards necessary to be used in the
marketplace,” words which the state’s bureau-

cracy has steadfastly refused to put into effect.

A decade ago when the BioEnergy
Producers Association was founded, it was
widely anticipated that conversion technolo-
gies (CTs} would soon meaningfully reduce

197

However, the success stories in MSW were
few. Only Canada's Enerkem commissioned a
commercial scale biorefinery that uses MSW
residuals as a feedstock for the production of
biofuels and chemicals. It will annually gasify
100,000 dry tonnes of post-recycled solid
waste, initially to produce 10 million gallons
of biomethanol, a chemical intermediate,
and later cellulosic ethanol. It is part of an
integrated waste management system for the
City of Edmonton where 209 of the city’s
waste is recycled, 40% is composted, and 30%
is used to produce biofuels. The project has
increased the city’s landfill diversion rate from
60% to 90%.

After a decade-long effort and billions of
dollars of expenditure, CTs have yet to fulfill
their promise in addressing one of North



America’s primary environmental goals
—reducing the 125 million tons of post-recy-
cled MSW that come to rest in our nation’s
landfills each year.

1.

‘Why? The reasons are clear:

Nothing discourages capital investment
more than federal regulatory uncertainty.
The Renewable Fuel Standard (RFS), the
platform that motivated billions of dollars
of private sector investment and enabled
the development of the first-generation
biofuels industry (ethanol and biodiesel),
has been under continuous attack in
Congress, as have the federal grant and
loan guarantee programs that have sup-
ported its development. The $1-per-gallon
biodiese] tax incentive, vital to the industry,
lapsed at the beginning of 2014, was not
retroactively reinstated until December,
and several weeks later, was again allowed
10 expire. In mid-April, in settling litiga-
tion filed by the petroleam industry, EPA
agreed that it would propose biofuels
volume requirements for 2015 by June 1,
and finalize its Renewable Volume Obliga-
tions for both 2014 and 2015 by November
30. These numbers, which establish the
volume of biofuels that must be blended
into the nation’s transportation fuels under
the RFS, are intended to enable produc-
ers to plan their production levels so as

to comply with these federally mandated
targets. Although EPA has now agreed

that the 2014 volume requirements will
reflect the amount of fuel that was actually
used during that year, the announcement
came almost two years too late to be of
any value. The 2015 numbers are com-

ing almost one year too late. EPA has now
committed to announce its RPS (Renew-
able Portfolio Standard} obligations for
2016 on schedule.

. Commodity price instability: The past year’s

collapse of petroleum prices, mirrored

in the price of natural gas, has impacted
conversion technology developers as well
as first-generation ethanol producers. Vast
swings in the price of petroleum, corn, and
ethanol, and the value of RINs that track
compliance with the RPS have eroded
operating margins and discouraged capital
investment, and in the past, have caused
some first generation biofuels producers to
shut down for periods of time, This year’s
OPEC-orchestrated petroleum price war
has not only been an attempt to slow west-
ern oil and gas development, it has been

a direct attack on the economic vitality of
alternative fuels.

3. Entrenched opposition: Aided and abetted

by the nation’s livestock, poultry, and
food production interests, the oil and gas
industry has spent at least $140 mil-

lion en lobbying in each of the past six
years, protecting deep federal subsidies
for petroleum, while blaming biofuels

for everything from global warming, to
increasing food prices. Attempts to break
through the E10 blend wall have led to an
infrastructure standoff, with the major oil

advocating the repeal of the RES.

4. Price Competition: Natural gas prices,

which are expected to remain depressed
over the next decade, have made low-
priced fuel and electric power accessible in
much of the nation. Further, as opposed
to Burope and Jjapan, landfill capacity and
acreage for expansion remains plenti-

ful, keeping tipping fees within reason
throughout much of the country.

Last February, Plasco Energy, after invest-

companies resisting the installation of E15  ing almost $400 million in its process over

and higher ethanol blender pumps and 10 years, filed for bankraptcy. According

0ne. ..

Lass.
PP g W
', S F

i

e e o i e

One Truck. One Operator. Unlimited Earning Potential. When it

comes to maximizing your day 1o day operalions. consider the Steilar®

Hookift system. The simplicity of design and operation are key features ;

that will allow a single truck and a single operctor the abillity to load.

! unload or change bodies without leaving the fruck cab. This drastically
increases efficiency and productivity while cutting down on operational
costs and maintenance. |

~ Visit us online
- www.slellarindustries.com/one
g TEL% Qur People. Qur Products.

800.321.3741

P e (e

I R P U S T RIE S MG,

[ www.mswmanagement.com ] MSW MANAGEMENT 27

198



e :.--\1' e

! :]- "‘...- ||E_:1'|I

to court documents, Plasco Group engi-
neers “concluded that certain aspects of the
conversion system needed to be redesigned
in order to sustain commercial operating
performance on an economically viable
basis. .. " Concern about “its ability to oper-
ate at commercial levels and to convert both
wet and dry waste continuously,” and an eco-
nomic model that relied upon

high tipping fees and electric

e
i ._]ir

power prices, had long hampered WO rldWlde )

the company’s ability to take the

technology beyond the demon-

stration stage.

5. Consistent, homogenous feed-
stock is critical to the MSW
conversion process. Conquer-
ing this single complexity
has slowed commercialization and even
defeated some of the industry’s most
promising technologies. The production
of uniform refuse derived fuel is often
a necessary intermediary step between
recycling and gasification.

In mid-2014, INEOS Bio reported that,
since completing construction of its $130
million Vero Beach facility two years earlier,
“very little fermentation or production of

ethanol from the production fermenter had
occurred, due in large part to the sensitivity
of the bio-organisms in the fermentation
process to high levels of hydrogen cyanide in
the syngas.” Design modifications, including
the installation of HCN scrubbers, result-
ing from challenges encountered during
commissioning have delayed nameplate level

operations for almost three years. And, this
has occurred with cellulosic wastes. Mixed
MSW has yet to be introduced.

As early as 2012, Coskata, which was
founded on the premise of MSW conversicn,
switched its feedstock strategy to natural gas,
6. Feedstock aggregation: Firm feedstock and

offtake agreements, contracts for 10 years

of more, are normally required for debt
financing, Due to the diversity of haulers

there is enough MSW
available to produce 42 billion
gallons of cellulosic biofuels.

and waste management contracts in the
nation’s major markets, MSW feedstock
agreements for more than 400 tons per
day can be difficult to achieve. The oppor-
tunity for CT projects appears to rest in
smaller to mid-sized communities, where
projects can be developed with individual
waste management companies or through
public-private partnerships.
In years past, to stimulate

the introduction of recycling,

local governments and the waste
management industry integrated
the cost of separating and recover-
ing selected commodities from
the MSW streatn into the fees
they charged to their customers,
However, no provision has ever
been made for the further recovery and pre-
processing of MSW residuals (i.e., RDF units
on the back of MRFs) prior to final disposal,
The production of uniform feedstocks for
biorefineries, established as part of and
financed by local WM systems would go a
long way to lifting one of the major technical
and economic burdens being experienced by
emerging bioindustries. For this to happen,
the environmental benefits of such a program

'l.-l

wo&e‘ eg., “0

'SEE Us F\T
BOOTH S

SAFER, SIMPLER AND SMARTER —

Single Stream | Constroction & Demolltion | Gresn Wasts

SINCEITS FOUNDING IN 1835,

Waste'lo Engrmy

EUHIHET ll‘; H]I]ﬂ.'!’

.al1|

ZNcLanahan

28 HISW MANAGEMENT [ JUNE 20151
199



Whether lnaﬂmg Tamping or

ﬂnmﬂe_ﬂ_anﬂﬂ_la It._

It rlle Manniaclurmﬂ
Recycle Center Drive
Two Harhoers, MN 55616
18-834-535%

115

Visit Us at
Wasle Expo
Booth #1339

30 MS¥W MANAGEMENT [ JUNE 20151

| WASTETO ENERGY

would need to be universally recognized by

both policy makers and environmentalists, as

was the case for traditional recycling. To date,
vested interests have effecnvely prevented this
from happening.

7. State regulatory uncertainty, A number of
state governments, most notably Califor-
nia, have been unwilling to provide devel-
opers with a feedstock-driven, technology
neutral waste conversion playing field.
Although energy recovery or the produc-
tion of biofuels and biobased chemicals
may be a higher and more profitable use of
MSW than can be achieved in traditional
recycling, this alternative does not appear
in many waste hierarchies, nor is this given
credit for Jandfill diversion.

During the past 10 years, California has
landfilled approximately 340 million tons of
municipal solid waste, much of which has not
even becn segregated for standard cans-and-
bottles recycling, but instead is collected and
sent directly to landfilling. Yet, California’s
legislature and administration have not taken
a single productive step to enable itsuse asa
sustainable feedstock.

Throughout that time, California’s own
BioEnergy Action Plan has included language
directing CalRecycle, its waste management
agency, “to work to promulgate changes to
existing law to develop a regulatory frame-
work for biomass waste conversion facili-
ties, meeting environmental standards, that
clearly distinguishes them from disposal, and
provides clear permitting pathways for their
development, as well as provides diversion
credits to local jurisdictions for solid waste
processed by these technologies.”

Further, the state’s Air Resources Board.
has acknowledged that organic waste is one of
the only feedstocks that, on a life-cycle basis,
will meet the emissions reduction objectives
of California’s Low Carbon Fuel Standard. Its
staff once declared that 24 waste-to-biofuels
facilities would be required in the state by
2020 to assist in meeting the goals of this pro-
gram. Its Economic & Technology Advance-
ment Advisory Committee has said that,“By
conservative estimates, CTs have the potential
to reduce annual greerthouse gas emissions
by approximately five million tons of CO,
equivalent in California alone”

And yet, the state’s legislative and admin-
istrative burueacracy has blocked all efforts to
remove from statute a definition of gasifica-
tion that is universally acknowledged to be
scientifically inaccurate, Among its provisions,
it requires zero emissions from the entire
biorefining process, a physical impossibility

200

and a standard that would shut down every
power plant and petroleum refinery in the
state. The uncertainty caused by this defini-
tion, which governs the regulation of CTs,
opens the door to spurious legal challenges
by extreme environmentalists, and thus, has
caused this emerging industry to turn its back
on the state.

Contrast this with Towa, where, with
unanimous support, a bill is moving through
its legislature to add conversion technologies
to the states waste hierarchy. Its solid waste
management policy will soon read, in order
of most-preferred to least-preferred, “volume
reduction at the source, recycling and reuse,
waste conversion technologies, combustion
with energy recovery, and other approved
techniques of solid waste management includ-
ing but not limited to combustion for waste
disposal and disposal in sanitary landfills”

In 2011, California established a policy
goal of 75% landfill diversion by 2020, which
means that, by that date, it will have to reduce
by approximately 10 million tons the amount
of matetial it landfills each year. It believes
that it can achieve this by requiring universal
commercial recycling and further reducing
the volume of organics in the residual waste
streamn. Even if it could possibly achieve this
goal, why not reduce the amount of inorganic
waste being landfilled, as well, when plasma
gasification technologies can turn inorganics
into useful products?

The plasma vitrification process offers
immense potential for MSW disposal, because
it is capable of achieving 100% landfill diver-
sion, Plasma processes run at temperatures
well over 5,000°F, and at these high tem-
peratures, they are able to break down any
terrestrial material with an ultra-clean emis-
sions profile. Plasma Power of Ft. Lauderdale,
Florida, a leader in plasma technology, has
achieved thousands of hours of commercial
operation, processing a wide range of waste
streams, including MSW, post MRF Residu-
als, coal ash, drilling waste, ASR, biomass and
other industrial wastestreams that are hard to
remediate, The process is self-powering and
able to convert its vitrified product into high
value insulation and other green products,
resulting in zero waste.

In the United Kingdom, Air Products is
constructing two major MSW projects at
their Tees Valley Renewable Energy Facility
using the advanced Westinghouse plasma
gasification technology of Alter NRG. The
first of their kind in the UK and the largest
of their kind in the world, each will generate
49,9 MW of baseload power, diverting



950 tonnes per day of non-recyclable waste from landfills and pro-
ducing enough renewable electricity via combined cycle configura-
tion to power the equivalent of 50,000 homes. The first plant is now
commissioning and the second, well into construction, is expected to
come on line in 2016,

Solena Fuels, in partnership with British Airways, has targeted
2017 for completion of a biorefinery east of London that will annu-
ally produce approximately 42 million gallons of sustainable jet fuel
and diesel. Solena will employ its patented single-phase, high-
temperature plasma gasification system and the modified fixed-bed,
microchannel Fischer-Tropsch process of Velocys to convert 575,000
metric tons of post-recycled MSW, wood waste and agricultural
waste to jet fuel and diesel. British Airways has made a long-term
commitment to purchase all 17.5 million gallons of the jet fuel pro-
duced by the facility each year at market competitive rates.

E2 Environmental Entrepreneurs, in its 2014 Advanced Biofuel
Market Report, identified seven companies in the US and Canada
that are pursuing technologies capable of producing advanced bio-
fuels from mixed MSW feedstocks. These are defined as technologies
whose carbon intensity is at least 50% below that of petroleum, as
measured by the California Air Resources Board.

The 2014 E2 report predicted that 34 advanced biofuels plants
will be on line by 2017, but only six of these were expected to process
MSW, and three of them are projects of Enerkem. Only Fulcrum and
Fiberight were projected to commission additional MSW-related
biorefineries by that date,

Fulcrum BioEnergy has traveled a long and challenging road in
technology development and project finance, but the company has

remained firm in its commitment to convert MSW into biofuels,
obtaining long-term, zero-cost MSW feedstock commitments repre-
senting about 4% of the MSW being landfilled annually in the US.

After initially focusing on ethanol, Pulcrum has moved to the
production of a syncrude that can be upgraded to “drop-in” jet fuel
or diesel. It will use the steam reforming gasification process of
Baltimore-based ThermoChem Recovery International and conven-
tional Fischer-Tropsch technology. Benefiting from commitments for
a $105 million USDA loan guarantee and a $70 million grant from
the Advanced Drop-in Biofuels Production Project of the Depart-
ment of Defense, its first plant, now commencing construction east
of Reno, Nevada, will annually consume 147,000 tons of zero-cost
MSW to be delivered by Waste Management and Waste Connections.
Aware of the need for gasification feedstock consistency, Fulcrum is
building its own pre-processing facility onsite.

Fiberight has operated 2 demonstration facility in Lawrenceburg,
VA, for more than 5,000 hours, that involves MSW feedstock pre-
treatment, including pulping, and enzymatic hydrolysis to produce
industrial sugars that can be sold as is or fermented to produce
ethanol. After EPA ruled that CNG produced from biogas qualifies
as advanced biofuel and for D3 RINs, Fiberight put on hold its plans
to convert organic residuals to ethanol at its shuttered Blairstown,
IA, ethanol plant, and now plans to employ anaerobic digestion to
produce CNG from C5 sugars at a 300 ton-per-day MSW shredding
and sorting facility in Marion, IA. In Maine, it is pursuing the same
concept, only larger, through a public-private partnership formed to
process the MSW of 187 mid-coast communities.

In the past two years, substantial development capital and

'_ \‘:I,““ -

7

shredding + briquetting

EXPERIENCE.
GROWTH.
DEPENDABILITY.
SIZE REDUCTION TECHNOLOGY

888-440-7170
INFO@WEIMAAMERICA.COM

WEIMAAMERICA.COM

*P_Q

waste

- mlu-‘\

Scan to see this shredder in action!

32 MSW MANAGEMENT [ JUNE 2015 ]

201



research has been focused on biobased
chemicals and bioplastics, where prices and
margins are more attractive, markets are
mote stable, and the plant-based feedstocks
used to create C5 and C6 sugars are less
vulnerable to the commodities speculation
we have experienced with petroleum and corn. Renewable chemi-
cals and bio-based products face a less intrusive federal regulatory
environment than biofuels, and they are now eligible for loan
guaranfees.

However, one promising biobased chemicals producer that
remains focused on MSW is Kiverdi. Among its feedstocks, Kiverdi
can gasify MSW as its first step in producing high-value oils and
chemicals for such product applications as detergents, biomaterials
and fuel additives. Its proprictary high-yield microbes can sustain-
ably produce high quantities of oils from waste carbon, decoupled
from the price fluctuations, supply chain disruptions, and geopolitics
associated with commodities.

S0, what does this mean for waste managers who are beginning to
think about options for the futuze?

Tt means be patient. Look for modular technologies that can eas-
ily be replicated, ones that are feedstock flexible and capable of creat-
ing multiple revenue streams. “Drop-in” fuels—those with the same
molecular structure as refined petroleum, that ¢an be transported
through existing pipelines, that can be blended with or teplace
petroleurn-based fuels without regulatory limitation—will have an
easier time entering the marketplace. Some version of California’s
LCFS will one day be adopted by other states across the nation, and

For related articles:

www.mswmanagement.com/WTE

MSW-based drop-in fuels will be well posi-
tioned to help achieve their goals.

A recent study by Columbia University’s
Earth Engineering Center estimated that if
all of the MSW that is being landfilled in
the United States were converted to power,
it could generate enough coveted base Joad power to serve nearly 14
million homes, or 129 of the nation’s total. It would reduce green-
house gas emissions by at least 123 million tons of carbon dioxide
equivalents per year, an amount comparable to taking more than 23
million cars off the road.

Viewed another way, the organic materials that America places
in landfills each year contain the energy equivalent of approximately
240 million barrels of oil.

Worldwide, there is enough MSW available to produce 42 billion
gallons of cellulosic biofuels.

It has been estimated that energy recovery will ultimately generate
70% of the revenue attributable to next-generation waste manage-
ment technologies in North America.

The industry has embarked on a paradigm shift. By the end of
this decade, MSW will be seen as an asset, a strategic resource in a
circular economy.

So, stay the course. Take an active part in the political process.
The logic of recovering the energy value in the nation's MSW residu-
als—before they are placed in landfills will ultimately prevail. msw

James L. Stewart is the Chairman of the Board of California’s
BioEnergy Producers Associgtion.

YARD AND FOOD WASTE

LOWANAINTERANCE OPERATION

MAXIMIZED BIDGAS PRODUCTION

Lo g Vol

maximize the value

ETr B = ML R e 4‘-‘ 2 £ g uon w4k T i
af vour erganic waste:

EISENMANN

WaStEEXpQ
Booth #3663

Eisenmann’s fully automated anaerobic digestion solutions
turn today’s organic waste into tomorrow's green energy.

Free Webinar “Anaerobic Digestion of Organic Waste Streams”

-urg’.in'-'_-5-|;'j|rl':l.'l'r||i||'-|'|.r:ﬂrh = WA ERETITIETTI B L0

forester.net/organics

[ www.mswmanagement.com 1 MSW MANAGEMENT 33

202



GOVERNING

I N § T i1 TUTE

Issue Brief

Creating Fuels from Post-Use Plastics

Transforming non-recycled used plastics into valuable fueis, petreleum products
and chemical feedstocks

Producing Sustainable, Alternative Energy understanding of the plasticsto-fuel process, plus updated
with Plastics-to-Fuel Technology regulations for these facilitles, can enable the energy from non-

A rapidly expanding set of technologies is enabling recycled plastics to be safely and efficiently recovered.
communities to divert non-recycled plastics from the landfill
by converting them into useful fuels and chemical feedstocks. Economic and Environmental Value of
And there's plenty of potential for these technologies to be Creating Fuels from Non-Recycled Plastics
adopted in cormmunities across the country. Consider this: If all Plastics recycling continues to increase in the U.S. While
of the non-recycled used plastics headed to U.S. landfills each reuse and recycling are the preferred methods of plastics
year were instead converted intc fuel, it is estimated that these recovery, it is not always possible for ali plastics to be recycled.
technologies could produce enough fuel to power mors than Sothere is a real need and opportunity to identify viable means
nine million cars each year.’ of recovering those plastics that are not recycled.

AL present, however, many state governments lack a clear For the material that currently ends up in landfills, one option
regulatory framework for permiting these new technologies, so is to convert plastics intc usable sources of energy, Many of the
adoption is somewhat limited. Recognizing that used plastics plagtics that cannct be recycled are viable sources, or feedstocks,
actually are a valuable feedstock for manufacturing — rather for plastics-to-fuel conversicn.
than a waste — will likely require a paradigm shift, A better Plasiics-fo-fuel technologies use a chemical process

(pyrolysis) to change the materials’ properties, thereby salvaging
if all of the non—recycled used plastics and repurposing the energy for use in other products. The
headed to U.8. landfills each year were standard plastics-to-fuel process goes something like this:
converted to fuel, it is estimated the nation 1. Collect plastics that cannot be recycled.
could produce enough fuel to power more 2. Remove contaminants —such as metal and glass —
than 9 million cars each year. from the plastics stream.

3. Heat plastics without the presence of oxygen to

create gasses.
e 8

4, Cool and condense the gases intc oil, fuels and

petroleum products.

Processes may vary slightly, but they can be designed
o create fuels and/or new feedstocks for transportation,
manufacturing and cther industrial uses, For example, some

=1 milllon cars plastics-to-fuel technologies can produce low-sulfur crude oil
o —t— that can be refined into synthetic diessl fuels, lubricants, waxes
i I'_ T - or even feedstocks for new chemicals and plastics. Fuels can

_ bs used for transportation (e.g., cars, ships, planes) or industrial
g s Gh oY e = boilers. A carbon-based by-product of the process, sometimes

203



The Plastics-to-Fuel Process

STEP 2:
Contaminants like metal and glass are
rermioved frorh Lhe plastics strearm.

STEP 3:

:f"f""'ziﬂf ﬂafr £ Plastics are heated
j'pjr"l rl':: il without oxygen
processing {pyrolysis),

STEP &:
Gas s conted
and condensed
intz ofl, fusls
: and petrolelm
Fulels can powe Petroleum products can ' products.
tars, buses, ships be used by manufacturers
and planes. 2nd ndostral users,
called “char" may {under certain conditions) be used as a processes as so'id waste disposal or waste-to-energy
carbon black or even as a coa! replacement in cemert kiins and (where mixed, unprocessed waste is combusted to produce
boilers. And non-condensable gases {including propane) can be anergy). Such inaccurate and outdated classifications place
captured for use as process energy. unnacessary restrictions on these facilities.

This conversion process can be used to efficiently recover the Compare, for example, a plastics-to-fuel facility to a typical
energy embodied in plastics, can displace some of the need for solid waste disposal endpoint, such as a landfill. A landfill
virgin crude oil extraction and can help preserve the open space stores mixed solid waste and after it no longer receives waste it
that otherwise would have been used for a landfill often must be managed over its life for methane recovery and

Misconceptions About
Plastics-to-Fuei Facilities Four Things to Know About the

The potential benefits of plastics-to-fuel conversion are many, Plastics-to-Fuel Conversion Process
but the technology is not yet widely used. ft's important 1o
understand some of the barriers to innovation.

One common misconcaption is that plastics-to-fuel 1 1t helps keep non-recycled plastics out of landfills,
conversion will counter recycling efforts. However, high-value,
widely recycled plastics are not convertad into fuels because
it often doesn’'t make sconomic sense. On the other hand,
many non-recycled plastics are ideal for conversion. Examples
include food-contamirated plastics, agricultural plastics,
multHayered fiexible packaging, some plastic toys and some
engineered resins.

Plastics are heated in an oxypen-deficient snvironmant
until they melht end then becoma gases. The gases are ther
A challenge to more rapid commercialization of this condensed Into petroleum products:

technology involves the regulatory classification of plastics-

to-fuel technologies. These innovative manufacturing 4
technologies don't fit neatly into most current regulatory
schemes that, by default, may classify these manufacturing

204



leachate. By comparison, decommissioning a plastics-to-fuel
facility typically requires removal of any remalning plastics and
disassembly and removal of the machinery.

The Ins and Outs of Properiy Regulating
Plastics-to-Fuel Technolegy

Regulatory best practices that resolve discrepancies
between dated wasts policies and current opportunities
might begin by broadening the definttions of "clean energy”
and "renewable energy" to include energy recovery —the
recovery of norn-recycled waste that is transformed into usable
energy and fuels. Such best practices might also take into
account the benefits of regulating plasticsto-fuel facilities like

other manufacturing processes. And they might racognize
that manufacturing fuels and petroleurn products from non-
recycled plastic feedstocks can strengthen community-based,
integrated resource management strategies.

Following are scme guidelines for modernizing and
streamlining &tate and local regulations to help standardize
the approval process for plastics-to-fuel facilities and to
capitalize on non-recycled plastics as a local resource.

1. Zone plastics-to-fuel facilities as light Industrial
manufacturing facilities. Manyufacturing is generally
defined as the process of converting raw materials,
components and parts into finished goods that meet a
customer's expactation. Plastics-to-fusl conversion is a

Non-Recycled Plastics as a\laluable Energy Resource

Many states, such asNorth and South Carolina; have & robust plastic recysling indesty, in this DA Sootl Mouw,
the state recycling directorfar North Caroling's Division of Ervirotimental Assistance B Gustomer Saryice sharad
some thoughts on hiow the Carclinas are bullding upen thistolndation and remain open to the development of
plastics-lo-fuel facililiesto redoce Iandnll wasie anid create ctonomic growth throughout the region.

0Q: What do recycling efforts currently fook like in

the Carolinas?

SCOTT MOUW: Ve takerecyeling very serlously, For example,
we helped form the Carsling Plastics Recycling Councll, &

parinershin of recyeling companies and other slakshpldars,

15 lncrease plashics recoveny in Morth and South Garplina, Our
State rocycling progeam has worked hard to expand droproffand
ciirbsite senvices, aswell gs develop other pro aramsto recover
industral gnd agncutiuralplastics in Iheinterestol lafdfil
diversion, we-are siriving to captureall of the value of plastics wa
can, and that would inclids the eneray valug of the niatenal,

Q: Howmight plastics-to-fual technology fit into

thal infrestructure?

SCOTT MOUW: This naw tachnolony has the potential fo
-etilarge tha spectilim of dvertible materials, More and mora

low-grade plastics ar entenng the recycling Stream ahd morg

could be E-aJHLIH.‘.ﬂ'j. These plastics need markets ta help us

reduce thair fiow o Endiils.

Q. Might some regitlators and recycling companies

fear that recyclable plastics will end upin plastics-to-fuel

facilities?

SCOTTMOUW: Plastics-lo-fuel technology shotild [deslly
complement racychng. Some plastic recyclers may Worry Lheytl
lozetheir streams bitl don't believe they Wil The teclinalogy
largets laWwsaralue mostly non-recycled plastics, not mohAmlie
recyclabiles, 50 theis sholild nol bea use conflict butingtead &
opportunity 1o caplure more plastics from disposa),

0: What are some key permitting and zoning con cerns?
SCOTT MOUW: Roguliatore flways seph 1o protect pubiehezlth
and reduce emilronmental risks, =0 thay'll ask lots ol questions.

about plasticsto-fusl {echnolomy and M uss,
What does the convarsion processimvalve,

end whal's the incoming stream like? And what's
It over atihe end of the process?

South Carolinahasg plastics-todusl faeility zohod as gt
industnal manufacturing, and enbthecfacility may openin
Fayetteville WN.CWhile otharmaterials mayinadveriantly be
mixed inwith thie plasiics and require management and disposal,
the facilities Whemselves don'l store solld waste, The process o't
ot olwasts dispesal orivaste to encray: the site's niol a landiil,
The site would be pemitiad and zoned accordinoly,

Q. 1t sounds Iike the Cardlinas are frylng to fay a

solid groundwork foruse of the technology.

SCOTT MOUW: That's right. | thinlc we're prepared to explore
oppartunites fn & smart, strateole way, From there, the marke!
Wil diotate whal makes the most sense. As thedndustry
tovnlops —end | hopeit does —we'lll 2llnesd toimprove oul
understanding of how thetechnologyfits inta broader materials
management sltoits.

0 What do you see happening at the state lsvel

going forward?

= COTT MOUIW: Welwan] 1o connect plasticstofuel companies
with the appropriale resoifces and by parl ol the comvelzation,
Welthelp compenies find industimal-zoned propenies and
identify Incentives that might apply. In the lona term, wa woedld
10VE 1o see tacliities With the righl business modellocated

in the Garolinas and belpan of liow oUr S1ate manages the
plastics discard stream, We don't see any adyantages to putting
nonreoycled plastics indandfills, especially it we canexiract
value from them; ingtead ‘we wanl to harness the embodied
energyin the materials spd notdet that goto waste,




A new 21%-century paradigm is needed that
recognizes the value of non-recycled waste and
allows innovative conversion technologies to
flourish. By altering the prevailing perspective on
used materials from a liability to an asset, the nation
can realize the benefits of recovering energy from
more of its post-use resources and send fewer

plastics to landfills.

manufacturing process because it uses non-recycled
plastics &5 a raw materiai for conversion to fuels and
chemical feedstocks. it is not a disposal process that
stores solid waste (materials that cannot be sorted and
upgraded for reuse).

Identify manufacturers of fuels from non-recycled
plastics feedstock as alternative energy producers,
not as waste disposal companies. Plastics-to-fuei
facilities do no: treat waste for disposal onsite. They create
marketable alternative energy products and should be
regulated as such, In addition, the plastics-to-fuel process
car have & similar environmental impact as that of
manulacturers that use equipment and machinsry,

Do not require unnecessary financlal guarantees
that discourage investment and may therefore
inadvertently encourage landfill disposal. Fiastics-to-
lue! facilities do ot store waste for extended pericds of
time, so these facilities should nct be required o create
large post-ciosure mairtenance funds, such as those
generally required for landfills. A plastics-io-fuel facility
makes money only when converting non-recycled plastic
feedslocks into a marketable commodity. These facilities
have ro incentive to store waste and should not be treated
like Yandfills.

Endnotes

1.

Allow for disposal of off-spec feedstocks and
by-products. Inevitably, some materials such as metzls,
woaod and fiber will be delivered to a plastics-to-fuel facility
and won't be able to be used. Like cther manutacturing
facilities, regulations should allow for proper disposal of
off-spec feedslocks and by-products.

5. Let recyclers determine if there is a viable market
for their plastics. Rigid reguirements that prohibit the
use of certain piastics in plastics-to-fuel conversion couid
result in large volumes of recyclabie maierials being
disposed of as wasts, for example during periods when

there are insufficient recycling markets for these materials,

Restricticns that result in disposal of these materials
obviously wou'd not suppert the goals of recycling
and recoveary.

A 21st-Century Framework for Beneficial
Energy Recovery

Plagtics-to-fual technology complements recyciing and
can be used to extract usable energy from materials that
would otherwise be buried in landfills,

The apportunily is targe. To fulfill this potential, a new
21=cantury paradigm is needed that recognizes the value
of non-recycled waste and allows innovative conversion
technologies to flourish. By altering the prevailing perspective
on used matenials from a liability 1o an asset, the nation can
realize the benefils of recovering energy from more of its post-
use resources and send fewer plastics to landfills.

Changing the way policy makers view post-use plastics
and revising outdated laws and regulations will heip unleash
the value of nonrecycled plastics.

Themelis, Nickolas and Mussche, Chasles, Colurmbia University, “2014 Energy and Economic Value of Municipai Sclid Waste, Inciuding

Non-Recytled Plastics, Currently Landfilled in the Fifty States,” July 2014, https/ /vaww.emericancherristry.com/Policy/Energy/Energy-

Recovery/2014-U pdate—of—Potentialrfo.'-Energy—Reccvery—frcm-Mun'\cipaleoIid-\.’daste—and-Non— Recycled-Flastics.pdf

All information from interviesy with Scott hMouvs conducted on June 2, 2015.

Underwritien by:

The American Chernisi:y Council's Plzstics Division represents leading companies dedicated to providing innovative

sclutions to the chailenges of today and tormorrowe through plastics. Advances in plastics are helping Americans save

American’
Chemistry
Council

energy, reduce greenhouse gas emissions and decrease waste. Because plastics are such a valuable resource, the
Plastics Division is leading efforts to "reduce, reuse, recycle and recover,” including through ovtreach, aducation and
access to advances i recycling technology.

The Plastics-to-0il Technologles Alliance was founded in 204 to work on enhancing public policy in support of

technologies that convert non-recycled plastics into petraleum-based products. The Alliance counts the following
as its members: Agilyx Corporation {Beaverton, Ore.), Cynar Plc {London, UK}, RES Polyflows (Akron, Ohio), Americas
Styrenics (The Woodlands, Tevas), Sealed Air {Charlotte, N.C.), and Tetra Tech (Pasadena, Calif.).

To learn mmiore, please visit plastics.americanchemistry.com/ ReguiatingPlactics-to-Fuel,

G 2015 e Repubhe. All nghs reserved.

206



Drowning In Non-Collected
Recyclables. . .

Where’s the Life Vest!?

(Part 2 of 4)

Do you swim alone, or with the sharks? BY BOB BRICKNER AND LOIS CLARKE

Introduction
7~ n Article 1,“If At End of a Diving
i Board...Should You Take the Next

. Step?”, we raised the question of how
to increase materials recovery rates,
and at what cost. Particularly, the subject
was raised pertaining to the municipal
solid waste (MSW) and curbside recycling
components {excluding yard waste for now),
in the context of a Mixed Waste Processing
Facility (MWPF), The first article set the
stage for this four-part series, designed to
provide jurisdictions with information on
how to think about {Author’s note: This does
not say implement) the “one bin” collec-
tion question, versus their current and/or
traditional multi-bin or multi-cart collection
systems. The focus of it was to stress the
importance and need to understand what is
actually in your MSW stream.

This article (Part 2), will identify how
waste can actually move around, and the
potential evaluation criteria when compar-
ing costs for collecting trash and recyclables
separately (two carts), versus the costs for
collecting trash and recyclables together
(one cart). We also include cost data on
certain waste collection and system cost
information, including representative
public-sector costs/household or costs/
ton for their waste handling strategies and
diversion levels achieved.

Part 3 will identify the criteria to con-
sider in developing a MWPF and the cur-
rent state of waste separation equipment,
as well as the ability to recover marketable
materials from MSW.

Then, Part 4 will pull the highpoints
of the three previous articles together, and
include a Jook at the preliminary economics
of a community (1) using only a single-

md T

stream materials recovery facility (MRF) and
landfilling the rest, versus {2} a MWPF (with
a “one bin” collection program) and landfill-
ing the non-marketable materials.

Do You Swim Alone
or With the Sharks?
‘When focusing on the waste collection
system only, we care not only about gross
costs, but also about metrics associated
with costs and landfill diversion rates
achieved for the money being spent. Often-
times, decision-makers ask: How much do
we need to spend to increase our divergion
level? Or, as a citizen might alternatively
ask the same decision-maker at a public
hearing: Why is it costing us so much for so
little incremental diversion?

First, let’s start with a basic understand-

36 MSW MANAGEMENT [ JULY/AUGIST 2015 ]

207

ing of the types of collection systems.

There are a myriad of systems to collect

MSW and recyclables from residences, but,

in general, they include the following:

* self-haul by the public to citizen dropoff
centers (with multiple bins for recyclable
materials and MSW);

= one cart set out (all MSW placed inside
a cart with no required recycling);

* two carts set out (MSW and
recyclables); and

* three carts sct out (MSW, recyclables
and yard waste).

Self-haul includes the generator bringing

their MSW and/or recyclables, directly to

a drop-off location (sometimes called a

convenience center) or other location acting

as a processing facility, Self-haul, especially
in rural areas, can help reduce a jurisdictions



collection and education costs. However, this
puts the onus on the individual citizens to
gather and haul their MSW and recyclable
materials to the dropoff site or a processing/
disposal facility. Self-haul to a convenience
center is generally a service offered in less
dense areas, or in addition to one of the
other publicly provided or subscription-type
collection services, if no mandatory collec-
tion is provided.

If a one cart system is provided, all of the
MSW materials are put into a single con-
tainer, typically about 95 gallons in size, and
then placed curbside for unloading into the
collection truck. With only one container
for all of the MSW, recyclables would be
mixed with the MSW. Alternatively, recy-
clables can be kept separated in a specific
colored bag and placed in the same large
cart for pullout later. This single container,
sometimes called 2 one-bin system, requires
a single collection truck picking up all of
the materials from one bin, and requires
very little public education expense. In an
urban setting, and usually by ordinance and
for public health and safety reasons, every
residence is required to participate in the
government-elected program.

A two-cart system is typically where
MSW is placed in one bin and recyclables
are separated by the homeowner and placed
in a second bin. Each bin is collected by a
separate truck or a split body truck. If the
recyclables are commingled, this is referred
to as a set out of “single stream” recyclables,
This form of collection service requires
more education than the one-bin system, to
help define what the acceptable recyclables
are, but it is relatively easy for the citizenry
to participate. A single-stream recyclables
system can result in a broad range of con-
tamination, depending upon the method
of recyclables collection, the basis of service
fees and the public relations and education
provided. For example, a pay-as-you-throw
(PAYT) MSW cart pricing model might lead
to more non-recyclables and trash showing
up in the larger recyclables cart when the
smaller “paid for” trash cart is full. If there
are recycling police used to enforce collec-
tion practices, some collection-related labor
may be spent at the curbside leaving notices
for the residence to educate them on the
correct usage of the two carts. Also, with a
two-cart system the customer must now be
able to store two bins. However, as a benefit,
the initial upfront costs for this system do
not include the time spent by the resident to
separate their initial recyclable materials.

A two-cart system could also define
where MSW is placed in one cart and
recyclables, generally fiber and contain-
ers {e.g., bottles, cans, etc.), are placed
in bins. Two smaller recycling bins (ver-
sus a larger wheeled recyclables cart) are
referred to as dual-siream recyclables, with
fiber separated from the containers. This
requires more education and generally
results in lower participation rates than
with the larger single-stream recyclables
cart system. Generally, customers find the
single-stream recyclables system easier to
use, and thus participate to a greater degree.
A dual-stream recyclables system generally
results in the cleanest recyclables, though
this depends on the effectiveness of the
jurisdiction’s public education and types of
mechanical system used for processing the
materials. Again, some labor may be spent at
the curbside placing the correct material in
the correct container or leaving notices for
the customer to educate them on the correct
usage of the smaller two-bin system. With a
dual-strearn system, the customer must now
be able to store three containers, though
each recycling bin is smaller than the one
large recycling cart typically used in the
single-stream recyclables system. Costs for
this system do not include the time spent by
the resident to complete the initial separa-
tion of their materials.

If a single- or dual-stream recycling col-
lection exists, the third service is usually yard
waste which is collected separately either
in a cart, compostable bag, or bundled {for
branches) and left at the curb.

Recent studies have found higher recy-
cling rates with the single-stream recyclable
collection systems than with the dual-stream
recyclables system. Recycling rates for single-
stream recycling can result in 20-30% more
diversion than dual-stream recycling. The
reason being it is easier for the residential
customer to participate in the single-stream
recyclables system. The customer only has to
decide if it goes in the trash cart or recycling
cart. Also the customer only has to bring two
carts to the curb rather than three containers
with dual-stream programs.

Another form of a waste collection sys-
tem gaining momentum is called wet-dry,
with the organics {food waste) and yard
waste placed in a separate cart for eventu-
ally composting or anaerobic digestion
{AD} processing.

In addition to overall costs and achieved
diversion rates, jurisdictions should also
consider the challenges of making changes

MOBILE
SCREENING &
CLASSIFICATION

D:MAX

BivAX s a mobile sereening
and claseification system
used 1o recover materials
such as grit, sand, sludaa
and figrous rag from waste
water within'a range

ol industries.

CcDENnVIro

cdenviro.com

[ www.mswmanagement.com ] MSW MANAGEMENT 37

208



to their solid waste system and the fact
there may be other benefits to their current
system. For example, a jurisdiction that has
a robust recycling education program may
be able to piggyback on that pregram to
promote other conservation issues,

Current Systems:
Are the Numbers All Wet,
or Waste Generators Wearing
Bathing Sults?
GBB maintains a database regarding waste
and recycling collection services in cities
throughout the United States with popula-
tions over 100,000. The data includes infor-
mation concerning collection frequency,
bin or cart size, whether setouts are single-
ot dual-stream, whether service is provided
by public or private entities, reported costs
and how services are billed. Based on this
database, it appears at this time that a
significant majority—=81%—of the cities
utilize single-stream mixed recyclables set-
outs, while 18% utilized dual-stream collec-
tion. The remaining 1% of the cities collect
commingled waste and recyclables together,
diverting materials to0 a MWPE.

Table 1 shows a sampling of 10 cities

from across the nation with their corrent
residential collection systems noted. The
teview that follows does not knowingly
include muitifamily or apartment units, but
attempts to compare single-family systems
of these cities.

The jurisdictions were selected solely 1o
provide a wide geographic base from the
East Coast to the West Coast, medium size
and large population, a diversity of collec-
tion systems, at least one city with a MWPF
and one with a waste-to-energy plant, and
budgetary information pertaining to solid
waste generally available. A significant dif-
ference cxists in waste generated and quan-
tities landfilled. Sometimes, but not always,
this is called “diversion rates,” However,
diversion rates are like schools of fish; dif-
ferences exist in fish sizes, colors and even
names, but they are all called “schools”

The jurisdictions in Table 1 are presented
in alphabetical order and municipal popula-

See http://foresternetwork.com/
mswirecycling-part-2
for Tables 1 4.

tions range from slightly over 200,000 in
Fayetteville, NG, to over 1 million people
in Houston, TX. Most of the jurisdictions
shown have once per week refuse collection
for 60,000 to 400,000 residential units. Most,
but not all, have weekly recyclables collection
program going into a single-stream recy-
clables processing system. Most communities
have one cart (typically 64 to 96 gallons in
size) for refuse and one cart for recyclables
{typically 35 to 65 gallons in size).
Municipalities with longer-term pro-
grams or higher aspirations pertaining to
diversion goals may provide 96-gallon recy-
cling carts and small trash carts. However,
because of the nature of this article, Table 1
lists the number of residential units that are
typically, but not always, single family.

If You Can’t Stand the Heat,

Get Into the Water

Comparing one community to another has
become a national pastime. While not dis-
placing the backstroke or butterfly stroke,
the style of this game is firmly drawm and
the “rules of comparison benchmarking”
generally established, Picking up on the
service descriptions presented in Table 1,

RECGISTRATION IS OPERN!

AUGUST 30 — SEPTEMBER 2, 2015 ' PHOENIX CONVENTION CENTER

38 MSW MANAGEMENT { JULY/AUGUST 2015 ]

209




Table 2 provides a little “cost benchmark-
ing” information for when you are laying at
the beach this summer and really wish-
ing you were in San Francisco, CA, or
Seattle, WA. The uncomfortable column
for cold water fish in a hot tub might be
the cost summary column that indicates
all of the residential solid waste costs on

a per-ton managed basis. Yes, fortunately,
this is an article and not a treatise, or the
details associated with all of the highlights,
exceptions and summary discussions of
cach community might consume at least
20 pages . . . a little too long for MSW
Management to publish in this edition.
However, each summary in the “$/Ton
Managed” column has a few nuggets of
intrigue, creating the comparable bench-
marking costs. Examples to wet your
whistle could include: differences in base
labor costs, cost of living index adjust-
ments, union versus non-union pay scales,
tenure (seniority} of drivers impacting
budgets, age and type of vehicles utilized,
fringe benefit packages, a task or full-day
pay system, etc. The reader is encouraged
to fish without borders into these deep
seas, but secure a fishing license, too,

Fishing in the Shallows

or the Deep Blue Sea?

For those familiar with the expression “the
Greatest Generation,” and those that are
such—we salute you! For those thinking
about the expression, and not sure when it
appeared on the US lexicon, we would offer
an original thought associated with the waste
industry in the 1950s and ’60s. At that time,
dumps were really dumps. Quite frequently
an “act of God” would occur and the dump
would catch on fire to reduce the incom-
ing wastes volume to extend the dump’s
life, So did such situations, which definitely
extended the dumps life in many locations,
initiate an early “event of diversion™?

Well, times have changed. Mostly, but
not always, for the better. But we think
we can all agree that we are all better off
with the tens of thousands of uncontrolied
dumps that existed 50—60 years ago in this
country closed, and sanitary landfill designs
and operational practices diligently con-
trolled today by state regulators.

However, the phrase “landfill diversion,”
or “waste diverted from burial in a landfill,”
is still causing discussions among the big
fish. Excluding waste reduction practices

for purposes of this discussion, the key
premise of the debate seems like it should
be on the merits of performing (or provid-
ing) environmentally acceptable options for
waste management to landfill disposal. You
know, maybe like the original EPA waste
hierarchy illustrated!

In certain locations around the US, the
environmental community is very active,
and waste-related issues are always part
of the discussion. Since the Constitution
provides a whole set of rights preserved
for each of the current 50 states, we have
a patchwork quilt of diversion-based
mathematics, goals, and even regulatory
obligations that states have promulgated.
Oftentimes, even cities within states have
opted to enact stricter diversion goals and/
or mandated waste programs to create a
more eco-friendly environment.

However, as with any bill, law, ordi-
nance, ot requirement, sometimes as small
as a no parking sign with a $250 towing
expense (if you can even find your car), the
unintended consequences are what can't be
seen through the dark depths of the ocean.
Hence, Table 3 is provided to overview
these 10-city residential waste management

WITH THE EARTH IN MIND

WORLE-CLASS
REDUCTION ANL
SCREENING.

ECOVERSE.NET
440.937-3225

INNOVATIVE
DEPACKAGING
SOUTIONS

[ www.mswmanagement.com 1 MSW MANAGEMENT 39

210



ADMINISTRATION

costs on a $/overall-tons-managed basis
and their diversion rates.

Table 3 also provides a new metric associ-
ated with the cost of residential service, the
basis of local costs on a $/ton of waste actu-
ally diverted. This metric is thought to be a
brand new measure introduced in this article
as bait for those wanting to consider the
impact of the hook, versus leisurely attempt-
ing free-style swimming with the sharks.

We all appear to be chasing diversion
goals. The data presented in Table 3 builds
off the Table 2 data and provides the over-

all cost for each ton of residential waste
that is actually diverted. That is, for all of
the money spent to provide the myriad of
collection, processing/marketing and appli-
cable disposal systems, what is the actual
cost per ton for the achieved result of
diverting some waste from a landfill? This
is a unique metric for comparison of one
municipality to another in a cost-versus-
benefit oriented society. This might be the
spot where fish that can change colors to
camouflage themselves from predators will
suryvive more than the others.

Register today at
ForesterUniversity.nel

FORESTER UNIERSITY PRESENTS

Adding GPS Fleet Management
to Your Team

Wednesday, July 22

Join speaker Bob Laabs for a FREE webinar exploring GPS fieet management systems (e.g.,
how they work, benefits, etc.) and how you can implement telematics in your fleet to improve
driver and vehicle safety, reduce fuel spend, and increase your fleet's productivity and efficiency.

Speaker: Bob Laabs, Verizon

Earn 1 PDH / 0.1 GBEU Credits!

ERINGING YO CUTTING-EOGE TECHNOLOGY AND TOOLE-ANYTIME ANYWHEERE

I ML Frester Al r ey

s R fonthl e 1} -0

UNIVERSITY.NET

=

40 MSW MANAGEMENT [ JULY/AUGUST 2015 ]

21t

For example, based on Table 2, Seattle
spends nearly $175 million per year on
their residential-based solid waste program.
Table 3 indicates that Seattle handles almost
725,000 tons per year and reportedly diverts -
over 400,000 tons per year, These costs
amount to neatly $240 per ton actually
managed. With their publicized 56% diver-
sion rate from landfilling, this amounts to
an estimated $430 for each ton diverted.

Referring to Table 3, when one divides
the residential waste Cost per Ton Diverted
by the residential waste Cost per Ton Man-
aged, one calculates the Diversion Cost
Ratio (DCR). If all of the generated MSW
were diverted (recycled), the DCR would
be 1.0. Therefore, as shown in Table 3, for
Seattle, this equates to a Diversion Ratio
of 1.8. Many cities know and consistently
publish their estimated diversion rates as a
matter of fact. Oftentimes, the latter is used,
in part by cities with low rates to announce
new recycling initiatives to address the issue.
New programs will inevitably cost money
and the economic implication of being a
“change agent” is at times, very contro-
versial, and might even be the reason for
a shortened political career. However, this
article is just intended to present some of
the more behind-the-scenes financial data
to help school the reader and provide data
to add to the discussion.

Based on the methodology of the review
presented, it should not come as a shock
that the city of Indianapolis, while having a
respectable average cost per ton managed at
about $160 per ton, has the lowest diversion
rate by a considerable margin. This then
calculates to both the highest cost per ton of
recyclables diverted and the highest DCR as
presented in Table 3. The city of Cleveland,
OH, also has a relatively low diversion rate
at 129% and a high DCR.

The city of Cleveland has the lowest
cost per ton managed at just over $100 per
ton, but also has a very low diversion rate.
With a 28% diversion rate, the City of Fort
Worth, TX, and three others created a mid-
tier diversion rate of 28% to 38%, creating
a DCR for these for the four cities which a
range from 2.6 in Fayetteville, to 3.5 in Fort
Worth, The city of Charlotte has a DCR at
2.8 and the city of Houston, with a DCR of
3.3, is also between those two cities. Based
on our research, the three west-coast cities
have the highest program costs per ton,
but also have high diversion rated, and
therefore very low DCRs, which range from
4 DCR of 1.6 in Portland, OR, to a 2.1 DCR



in San Francisco.

Oftentimes, much of the public does
not know what their city waste programs
actually cost relative to other cities. This
data is even more obtuse when the costs are
buried with their general tax biil, and there
are no direct monthly or quarterly line item
charges or services bills presented to the
resident for review that force the occasional

“environmental and social impact” moment.

Table 4 attempts to sort out the number
of residential units serviced and their
published service charges to establish a
basis of funding. That is to say, are the -
service charges themselves paying for the
actual services provided, or is the General
Pund used to cover the costs. For example,

- it appears that in Seattle the full costs of
the services provided are covered by the
residential service charges. Alternatively, in
Houston, all of the costs appear to be paid
out of the General Fund.

Understanding the Costs of

the Seafood Salad

If all you want is seafood, your mate
might buy you a fish and chips sandwich
or a Maine lobster tail dinner. The cost is

substantially different, but if it

was put on their or your credit

card, don’t worry about it for

now! It is like a tax notice that

states “this is not your bill”

.. . at least for now anyways!

As presented in Table 2, there

are two major cost compo-

nents to the solid waste sys-

tem:; collection and disposal.

The Table 2 data speaks for

itself. Based on EPA-published

data used previously by GBB

staff, Figure 1 breaks down the

average cost of two collection-

related activities, recyclables

processing, and then disposal.
Nationwide, and prior to this new

research, collection costs for both refuse

(called MSW in Figure 1) and recyclables

makes up approximately 60~65% of the

average budgeted waste costs. As a data

check, using the data developed for Table 2,

the average collection costs for the nine cities

indicated is 67%. Recyclables processing and

disposal make up approximately 35-40% of

the waste handling system costs. The admin-

istrative costs are assurned to be allocated

Recycling
Processing
8%

Colleciion-
MSW

41%%

Cinllcetuin-
ooy el
2%,

Figure |. Representative costs of collection and disposal

proportionally, but this could not always be

verified by the data reviewed. While more

specific details are not presented in Table 2,

issues that affect these proportional costs,

and revenues where applicable, include:

*  community size;

» pgovernment structure;

+ public versus private systems;

= pumber of wastestreams identified for
diversion programs;

= number of facilities used;

e revenue sharing back to community;

Bridear, B, Q). Update on Solld Waste and

Alternative Conversion Technologles [PowerPuin. slides].

[ www.mswranagement.com 1 MSW MANAGEMENT 41

212

G EIORO-t-l)




~ ADMINISTRATION
¢ local labor rates;

+ distances away from processing/disposal

locations;
+ type of collection vehicles utilized;
« landfill disposat costs; and
+ politics
‘When comparing costs for a jurisdiction col-
lecting all of their MSW in one bin without
a separate recyding collection program, ver-
sus the costs for separately collecting trash
and recyclables, the two major cost elements
influencing the incremental collection costs
include labor and equipment. Equipment
includes both trucks and the carts provided
to the residents.

The amount of labor and equipment
required for a one-bin collection system is
less than collecting trash and recyclables
separately. The former requires the crew
for one collection truck and the latter
with source separated recyclables requires
the crew for two collection trucks pass-
ing through the exact same neighbor-
hoods. While the crew for the MSW truck
associated with a single-stream recyclables
system, for example, may be collecting
fewer tons becanse some of the tonnages
have shifted to the recycling cart, the crews

for two trucks are still required to drive
down the same street and typically service
the same number of set outs. That is, unless
the recycling collection system, or even the
waste collection systein, has shifted to an
every-other-week (EOW) collection.

Cart costs scale down pretty much as yon
would expect when yon move to a one-bin
system, however, remember that the one-bin
system will typically be larger (usually 96
gallons) and get more use (abuse). There-
fore, repair and replacements costs per cart
may be higher.

Moadel Community
(Baiting You for Part 3)
A major dilemma faces a jurisdiction trying
to increase its diversion. Do they keep a
current two- or three-cart low diversion col-
lection system that includes a dual-stream or
single-stream MRF and landfill, and spend
additional money on education to increase
diversion; or, do they potentially spend less
money on an automated collection system,
move to a one-bin collection system, and
employ a modern processing system that
includes a MWPF and landfill?

To iltustrate how a potential change could

be impacted by collecting MSW in a one-
bin system, and not trash and recyclables
separately, versus the current costs for the
conventional two-bin system collecting trash
and recyclables separately, we introduce a
model community (see Table 5} under three
collection scenarios.

Scenario A will be the baseline, where we
assume the model community is currently
collecting its wastestream as follows: 65%
MSW, 15% recyclables and 20% yard waste.

Scenario B presents increased recycling,
where we assume the model community has
enhanced its public education program to
increase the collection of recyclables from
within its wastestream to collect 55% as
MSW, achieve a 25% recyclables set-out rate
for processing at a single-stream MRF and
20% is yard waste,

Scenario C assumes adoption of the one-
bin system, where the model community has
switched back to a one-bin system to change
the collection of its wastestream to collect
80% as MSW (with deliver to a modermn
MWPPF with the latest technologic advance-
ments) and they still separate, collect and
divert 20% as yard waste,

It is important to remember that both

FORESTER UNIVERSITY PRESENTS

New Webinar!

Surviving a Media Crisis

Wednesday, July 8™ 11am PDT/ 2pm EDT

Any press can be good prass. . . i you're prepared,
Join returning industry expert Melanie Goetz for

the tips and fricks to quickly dig yourse!f and your
company out of any media crisis, avoid long-tail fallout,
AND tum that crisis infto a marketing opportunity.

Earn 1 PDH /0.1 CEUl =

Speaker
Melanie Goetz, MBA
Prasident, Hughes & Stuart

i

Register today @
Foresterthniversitynet!

'HERE

42 MSW MANAGEMENT [ JULY/AUGUST 20151

213



Tahle 5. Scenarios for Comparing Collection Costs and Diversion Rates

| Ecernfio

Traith Cart

ard Waste Cart

20% of wastestream
1:Baseline 60% of wastestream collected separately; assume separately (single stream 31.5%
10% of residue recyclables); assume 10% residue

X . . 20% of wastestream 30% of wastestream collected
zﬂgﬁfgjﬂé'%%lg stream via 50% of wastestream collected separately; assume separately (single stream 39.25%
P 10% residue recyclables); assume 10% residue

. : B0% of wastestream; assume 20% of wastestream . R
gh&n‘r’:g tc?a%?: sb' nfor MSW 509 recyclables with collected separately; assume Rﬂgf;geds:ii: Mé:gﬁitw-a ste 58.0%

¥ 10% residue 10% residue 9 ¥

*Assumptions of Mixed Waste Processing Facility to be discussed in Part 3

Scenarios 1 and 2 are subject to significant
human decision-making and intervention,
Once the recyclables are placed in carts,
no other “diversion ability” enters into
the program. Multiple collection vehicles
passing through neighborhoods might have
been required in the early days of recycling
when “human intervention” was ahead of
mechanical processing technologies.
However, with Scenario 3, the entire
wastestream is subject to a series of
mechanical separations with human quality
control review. All of the residential genera-
tors wastestream materials is subject to
inspection and separation. Thus, all of the

generators ate indirect participants in having
their wastestreams undergo a series of recov-
ery steps for pulling out recyclable materi-
als. Setting politics aside, and the ground
battles associated with those demanding to
keep their current source separation system,
which might truly be extremely inefficient, it
appears the signs along the roads are being

For related arficles.

www.mswmanagement.com/recycling

adjusted to read: Fishing allowed, with a
license, in this Pond!

The next article in this series will address
the one-bin collection and MWPF technical
opportunities in greater detail. Along with
the types of equipment and performance
currently available in the marketplace, it will
review the basis of the greater diversion rates
achievable, while also keeping the overall
collection costs in check, isw

Bob Brickner is the executive vice president,
and Lois Clarke is a project manager, both
at Gershman, Brickner ¢ Bratton Inc. in
Fairfax, VA,

waste &recycling expo

CANADA

November 4 - 5, 2015

Reqister
Today!

Palais des Congrés, Montréal, OC Canada

Canada's ONLY trade event serving the waste, recycling and public

works markets

Where key buyers from all segments of the industry find the

latest innovations.

Composting = Construction & Demolition Vilaste * Scrap Bepyching = Infrastructure

fedevelopment / Public Warks » incinerabion { Gasication { Thermal fechnologies = Landhll
= [\iRFs / Transter Stations/ Storage { Containers ® Recycling * Waste Treatment / Disposal

Solwware [ Technology = Trucks & Transportation Equipment

e R e —

REGISTER NOW AT www.cwre.ca/ADSTS

+1403509 4017
Arnie GessrDWRECR
v CVRELGS

& dagated el

municipal
EQuipment =Kpa

'o
H e

{ www.mswmanagement.com ] MSW MANAGEMENT 43

214




